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GROUP STRUCTURE
EREIZRIE

As at the date of this report, the shareholders and the principal subsidiaries of Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited were as

follows:

RARER » kR REEAXEERNERAFZBEREIEMBARTNT

Beijing Chaoyang Auxiliary

Food Company H shareholders

Other domestic shareholders

LT HBHAREAS L Pl L

40.61% 156.20% 44.19%

Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited
tRREEEREERNMERLF

100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Beijing Jingkelong Beijing Xinyang Tongli Beijing Chaopi Beijing Jingkelong Beijing Jingkelong

Shouchao Commercial Facilities Trading Company (Langfang) Supermarket Chain
Company Limited Company Limited Limited Company Limited Company Limited

R EE ARG BAESE L REAR R E R ERR J8%iD) E R
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

.|I1n|

E RS

Dear shareholders:

&=

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Beijing Jingkelong
Company Limited (the “Company” or “Jingkelong”), | hereby present
the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries(collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2013 (the “Reporting
Period”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2013, the entire fast moving consumer goods retail and wholesale
industry remained weighed down by intensified competition and
significant influences from policies, amid the downsides in domestic
economy and sluggish recovery paces worldwide. Responding to
the challenging market and competitions, we took concerted efforts
across the Group to tap on the potential in procurement, marketing,
management and services to achieve a turnaround of business

performance.
During the Reporting Period, the Group achieved the following results:

° Revenue was approximately RMB9,629,190,672, representing an

increase of approximately 4.6% as compared to 2012;

o Gross profit was approximately RMB1,325,350,204, representing

a decrease of approximately 4.1% as compared to 2012;

° Gross profit margin was approximately 13.8%, representing a

slight decrease as compared to 15.0% in 2012;

o Profit attributable to equity holders of parent company of parent
company was approximately RMB57,055,711, representing a

decrease of approximately 45.7% as compared to 2012;

o Basic earnings per share was approximately RMB0.14 (2012:
RMBO0.25); and

° The proposed final dividend per share was RMBO0.10 (including
withholding dividend tax) (2012: RMBO0.10).

ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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On retail business, our profit margin during the Reporting Period was
further squeezed due to the intensified competition, impacts from
the booming online shopping and stringent restriction on public-fund
spending, as well as the changing consumer habits and the rigid cost
increases in labor, rent and energy and utilities. Despite the adverse
impacts, the Group opened new stores at selected sites to expand
its retail network coverage under a prudent strategy, and renovated
the existing stores to improve shopping environment and customer
experience. Meanwhile, the Group stepped up business management
transformation to shift from traditional price focused promotions to
consumer demand oriented promotions through ongoing product
mix optimizations with a focus on fresh food. In spite of the adverse
market, we sustained stable customer traffic by highlighting our unique
services and strengths as a traditional retail operator to differentiate

from online shopping.

Our wholesale business experienced serious impact on high-end
liquor due to the restriction on public-fund spending, as well as the
heightened difficulties in marketing to the traditional downstream retail
business. Accordingly, the Group took initiatives including expanding
the coverage through new subsidiaries in Datong, Shanxi province and
Tangshan, Hebei province, and developing new distribution channels
such as drug stores, baby product stores and group purchase. The
offline distribution channels were stabilized by optimizing the brand
mix, maximizing the marketing potential of brands and reducing
the profit reliance on high-end liquor. At the same time, the Group
realigned itself with online shopping to broaden and deepen the
cooperation with e-commerce customers with a focus on distribution
and delivery. We made an attempt on direct sourcing of overseas
products and obtained import and export rights, and established a
new channel to facilitate product mix optimizations, diversification of
merchandise portfolio based on the existing distribution network and
lower procurement cost. To build up our logistics and distribution
center, we introduced small-size disassembling and auto-sorting
equipment and upgraded the logistics management system, securing
the competitive strength based on the improved efficiency and

services.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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OUTLOOK

Looking into 2014, the Group will still face numerous challenges
including downsides in domestic economy as well as competitions
both within the industry and from online shopping. Nevertheless,
the economy should gradually bottom out along with the upgrading
of economic growth model through ongoing reforms. The retail and
wholesale industry where the Group operates will benefit from the
policies on increasing resident income and improving well-being, a
key note in future economic development of China. Consumption and
domestic demand will be underpinned by a longstanding mechanism
emphasizing their fundamental role. The accelerated urbanization
process will help to release potential consumption and present
opportunities for retail outlet expansion. Enterprises will benefit from
lower financing cost, thanks to the diversified financing channels as a
result of fundamental financial reforms. All these policies will contribute

to the Group’s business growth in the future.

In 2014, the twentieth anniversary of the Group, we will review
the current difficulties and problems and press ahead with the
transformation and upgrading of our procurement and store operation
model. We will carry out a series of activities focusing on marketing,
services and communication with employees and suppliers, to
enhance corporate cohesion and work efficiency. The Group expects
to break through the current bottleneck, achieving a resilient growth to

deliver attractive return on investment for shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our sincere gratitude to
our shareholders for their trust and support; to all business partners,
suppliers and customers for their support and assistance, and our
appreciation to all staff and the management team for their hard work

and contribution to the Group during the Reporting Period.

Li Jianwen

Chairman

Beijing, PRC
28 March 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 20183, the traditional retail and wholesale industry were
unprecedentedly affected by the subdued consumption, fiercer
market competition and the increasing labor and rental costs amidst
the mixed economic dynamics at home and abroad. Responding to
challenges during the Reporting Period, the Group steadily expanded
business scale, optimized product mix, refined marketing approaches,
consolidated logistics infrastructure and enhanced management
efficiency in bid to curb the downward trend of profitability.

RETAIL BUSINESS

Stably expanding the retail network

During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to adhere to its
strategy of regional development, and opened 38 retail stores in Beijing
and Datong, Shanxi Province, comprising 35 directly-operated retail
outlets (including 2 hypermarkets, 3 supermarkets and 30 convenience
stores) and 3 franchise-operated convenience stores. In addition, the
Group renovated and upgraded 5 existing stores, and in turn improved
the shopping environment. Due to reasons such as expiration of the
term of leasing and modification to the franchise development strategy,
during the Reporting Period, 3 supermarkets, 1 directly-operated
convenience store and 5 franchise-operated convenient stores were
closed.

The total number of the Group’s retail outlets was 279 as at 31
December 2013. The following table sets out the number and net
operating area of the Group’s retail outlets as at 31 December 2013:

B B R Em R AT

o

ZEZF ERINEEBERBEREM HED
NTR  TEHRFMBEARAL HeFEEE
ERALFHEERTERBTEEBIAMREN
BB - EMA > AEBEEHEE B
REIAREBRR  MEBMEEAE  #HED
BEEAN SEMREXER  BACELSE

EEME  BHBILE T EBY -
TEXRK
RIARIEHAE

HREMAN AEBEERSRECERRE &£
bR R LA K [l b [ 37 5 U5 4838 - BIEE YR
35 (2@ AES SH4RA BT RIOEEFE) -
R NERE A FESR - ok - HEM RAB EMMET T
RieouE - RN B RNERBFAESFREA -
HEEIFEIRAR T oM e BT 1M E & ERIE RS
BB EFIE -

BE—Z—=F+-"A=+—H AEEHRET
EEH279ME - TRHAFIIAKERN T =4
TZA=Z+—BEMTEMEREMFLEERR :

Department Convenience
Stores Hypermarkets Supermarkets stores Total
BE®S Nt REBTH EHE &%

Number of retail outlets TEMEHE

Directly-operated L 12 77 100 191

Franchise-operated LR IE - - 1 87 88
Total Bt 2 12 78 187 279
Net operating area

(square metres): FEEERE(TAK):

Directly-operated HER 39,742 86,089 162,534 19,745 308,110

Franchise-operated B NEE _ _ 880 16,495 17,375
Total At 39,742 86,089 163,414 36,240 325,485
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Improving competitiveness of merchandise

Through constructing fresh produce bases and enhancing upstream
sourcing, the Group established a stable supply chain for fruits and
vegetables, achieving 98% direct supply of vegetables and more than
70% fruits sourced from orchards. Premium imported aquatic products
and fruits were introduced, to cater for high-end consumer demand
and diversify the fresh food mix. The refined quality criteria for sourcing
fruits and vegetables under a regular quotation and bidding mechanism
for suppliers led to higher quality and price competitiveness in our
fresh food. As fresh produce effectively attracted customers and
boosted sales, sales of fruits and vegetables posted a growth of

11.8% year-on-year despite the muted overall sales.

Merchandise gross margins were improved on more advantageous
pricing strategies, as the Group introduced new products and
optimized the product mix while broadening the scope of upstream
sourcing. To better optimize the product mix, the Group conducted
ranking, analysis and screening on the contribution of merchandise
on a regular basis to choose the fittest in a shorter cycle. Efforts
were stepped up to strengthen meticulous management over
turnover, stock, order fulfilment rate and return of goods as well as
management of goods information, aiming to accelerate the turnover

of goods and reduce capital consumption.

Diversified marketing approaches

The Group initiated cultural and differentiated marketing campaigns
targeting major holidays, hot topics and the people’s livelihood needs,
and leveraged on external resources such as bank networks to carry
out joint promotions to diversify the offerings. A string of promotional
campaigns were staged in the year including “Jingkelong New Year’s
Fair”, “Earth — our common home”, “Jingkelong Food Safety Month”
and “Jingkelong Tourism Festival” to facilitate the cross-scale. With
an aim at differentiated operations, we launched the “Jingkelong
Gift Box”, an innovative marketing campaign pertaining to the Mid-

Autumn Day and National Day holidays with a focus on customized

gift packages.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Steering stores towards refined operations

With an emphasis on automatic replenishment, we regularly analyzed
and adjusted the automatic replenishment parameters and hence
effectively addressed the out-of-stock issue. Through inventory taking
and examination as well as selective monitoring, we strengthened
inventory management of stores and accelerated their turnover rate.
Initiatives such as layout and display improvements and unified store
decorations were taken to optimize the foot traffic routes and upgrade
the image of stores. To guide fresh food operation, we implemented
the standards on full-day operation, expanded the shopping space
and established a training base which uplifted the overall fresh food
operation of stores. Certain smaller stores were encouraged to operate
staple food on their own, filling the gap and improving the performance

to attract more customers.

Improving customer services

Tapping on external resources, we improved the in-store infrastructures
such as Lakala (h.<%I), Electronic Funds Transfer at Point of Sale (%X
£5) and “Wanbosi” (B182) Convenient Project, and introduced a
great number of value-added services based on third-party prepaid
cards. The convenient services improved shopping experience and
effectively attracted the traffic of customers. We continued the
“Jingkelong Membership Day” exclusive promotions including double
points, half-prices, magic prices and buy-and-save, and held health
lectures, visits to fresh produce bases and logistics centers and other
activities to consolidate customer loyalty. In addition to refinement
of the internal service documentation system, we organized regular
activities including seminars for customer service staff and customer
satisfaction surveys, with an aim at better services at stores. We also
provided special training sessions for customer service system and
carried out the series activities of learning from “Service Stars”, leading

to overall improvement in services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BT Mo

Higher efficiency of logistics and distribution

Our normal-temperature logistics center successfully shifted from the
co-distribution model to the cross docking model for more than 300
suppliers, hence increasing the fulfilment rate and delivery timeliness
for small orders of remote and small stores. We brought the return
of overstocked and damaged goods under strict procedures and
standards, mitigating the pressure of inventory while reducing the
consumption of social resources. We optimized internal procedures
and supply chain management, and strictly standardized the “no
inspection upon receipt” procedure for merchandise directly delivered
to stores. The distribution efficiency was further improved as a result
of sound inventory mix, bulk merchandise allocation model and receipt

reservation services.

Operation results of retail business

An analysis of the retail principal operating income contributed by the
Group’s directly-operated hypermarkets, supermarkets, convenience
stores and department stores and the gross profit margin is set out as

follows:

YIRE R RE — ST

R AE PO IEN B IRI00HM R H E AL E T 2
it AR HIRETABRERREEATRA - 2
BTRREHMDAERTHARNIERRER
BTSRRI - D585 f 8 7 m AR IR AR
EER  BREREREMERERSL  EREER
BAHNRERD THEERRE - TEHEIEAEE
EREMHERER  BERETIREERD S
FE B IRE  cRAEERETEE T
EMERREEEN  IRBEHRETIEERE -
FLX R — R -

TEREXE
TREJNNAEEEHEEAEYS  HRED - EFE
;AN EELT WA RENENDITEE -

Increase/
2013 2012 (Decrease)
—2-= —2-—F  #inS08)
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 (%)
ARETR AREFT (%)
Directly-operated retail outlets: BEEZEEH
Hypermarkets RES 1,181,898 1,187,962 (0.5)
Supermarkets LRABm 2,954,246 3,012,214 (1.9)
Convenience stores BEFE 325,789 324,139 0.5
Department stores BE®S 54,611 49,995 9.2
Including: commission Hep o HaelA 46,879 42,300 10.8
Total retail principal operating income T F L ¥BILA S5 4,516,544 4,574,310 (1.3)
Gross profit margin of directly-operated H& XZEE -
hypermarkets, supermarkets and RATRm &
convenience stores (%) B FEE R (%) 16.0 15.4 0.6

ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the Reporting Period, the retail principal operating income
of the Group decreased by approximately 1.3%. This was mainly
attributable to (i) a decrease in sales of approximately 6.0% in
comparable stores; (i) the sales contribution from new stores opened
in the second half of 2012 and during the Reporting Period, and from
certain renovated and reopened stores, and (jii) a decrease in sales
due to the Group’s adjustment in the sales structure of its retail outlets

and product mix.

The gross profit margin generated from the directly-operated retail
business (excluding department stores) increased from approximately
15.4% in 2012 to approximately 16.0% in the Reporting Period, this
was mainly due to (i) an improvement in the pricing management of
fresh produce; (ii) the continuous optimization of product mix; and (i)
a decrease in the volume of large procurements which in turn reduced
the discount to profits. Through these efforts, the retail gross profit
and gross profit margin were slightly increased over the same period

last year, despite the fact that there has been a decrease in sales.

WHOLESALE BUSINESS

Expanding the distribution network with diversified channels.
During the Reporting Period, the Group further expanded its regional
distribution networks by setting up a new subsidiary in each of Beijing,
Datong, Shanxi province and Tangshan, Hebei province as well as
a branch company under a subsidiary in Langfang, Hebei province,
thus strengthening its distribution network both within and outside of
Beijing area. To broaden sales channels, the Group actively developed
new distribution channels such as drug stores, baby product stores
and group purchase. Staying in tune with online shopping, we set up
a dedicated e-commerce team focusing on distribution and logistics to
e-commerce customers, while deepening the cooperation with major
e-commerce platforms to expand customer base and augment the

penetration into this segment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

Optimizing the brand mix to sharpen the marketing edge. In light
of our brand strategy, we introduced new brands, and expanded
the scope of businesses by adding small household appliances
and children’s toys. Seeking new cooperation model with upstream
suppliers and downstream customers, we achieved mutual success
based on the broadened market, enhanced marketing and optimized
mix of the brands. We made an attempt on direct sourcing of
overseas products and obtained import and export rights. Through
a merchandising company established in Hong Kong, we completed
the first batch of direct sourcing for certain wine brands from Italy
and Hungary, and obtained the nationwide sole-distributionship for
certain brands. By developing our in-house brand and rationalizing the
relations between upstream and downstream, we further enhanced

profitability and market competitiveness.

Upgrading the logistics and distribution system for better
services. We introduced a small-size disassembling and auto-sorting
system, achieving full-automatic disassembling and sorting for self-
operated merchandise, management on odd inventories and higher
operational efficiency. It allowed us to provide more professional
and refined logistics services for small orders of small- to medium-
sized customers. The Group pushed forward strategic partnership
with third-party logistics under innovative collaboration models,
including establishing joint distribution centers with major customers.
While optimizing the service quality management system, the Group
promoted the sharing of experience in refined management and
cost control to enhance distribution efficiency and tap on new profit

streams.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Refining management to maximize resource efficiency. New
functions were established, including Merchandise Management
Department to support rational business decisions based on
centralized data analysis on products and suppliers, Corporate
Planning Department responsible for streamlining internal management
systems and workflows to lay a cornerstone for refined, scientific
and specialized management, and Local Operation Management
Department to strengthen the centralized management and
supports for local operations outside of Beijing to boost their
profitability. Responding to the challenging market, we reinforced
strategic cooperation with suppliers, and established a longstanding
communication mechanism with retail outlets in order to improve
services and pertinence of promotions for maximizing the resource
efficiency. Moreover, we strengthened management over funds and
receivables to safeguard against financial risks and maximize the

capital efficiency.

Operation results of wholesale business

The wholesale principal operating income and gross profit margin are

analyzed as follows:
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Increase/
2013 2012 (Decrease)
—2-= —T—=F  #MSCRD)
RMB’000 RMB’000 (%)
ARETT AREFT (%)
Wholesale principal operating Bt EE
income recognised HEIRM#E
by Chaopi Group* FEEBWA 5,644,729 5,131,415 10.0
Less: Intersegment sales T D RS (559,119) (536,489) 4.2
Sales to franchisees by the Company  $4& F N /54 10,279 12,144 (15.4)
Total wholesale principal HoBs F &%
operating income W A& 5,095,889 4,607,070 10.6
Gross profit margin**(%) FEF (%) 9.9 12.4 (2.5)

Chaopi Group represents Beijjing Chaopi Trading Company Limited and its

subsidiaries.

- It represents gross profit margin of wholesale business recognised by

Chaopi Group including intersegment sales.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

During the Reporting Period, the wholesale principal operating income
recognised by Chaopi Group increased by approximately 10.0% and
was mainly due to (i) various marketing efforts arranged with suppliers
to increase market shares; (ii) the sales contribution from the new
subsidiaries established during the Reporting Period and the second
half of 2012; and (iii) the sales contribution from newly introduced

distributorship brands.

During the Reporting Period, the decrease in the gross profit margin
of wholesale business recognised by Chaopi Group by approximately
2.5% was mainly due to (i) the restrictions on public-fund spending
imposed by the government which resulted in a suppression of
high-end consumption and a decline of the price of high-end liquor
merchandise; and (ii) the adoption of multiple promotions with

suppliers, which in turn reduced the gross profit margin.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Principal operating income FEEBWA

Gross profit EF

Gross profit margin (%) FEF) (%)

Earning before interest and tax BRI

Net profit pEm b

Net profit margin (%) FFEE(%)

Net profit attributable to owners BENERARMBER
of the parent vy

Net profit margin attributable EENERAIFEERN
to owners of the parent (%) ) E (%)

Principal operating income

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s principal operating income
increased by approximately 4.6%,of which retail principal operating
income decreased by approximately 1.83%, and wholesale principal

operating income increased by approximately 10.6%.
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13.8% 15.0% (1.2)
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100,316 171,805 (41.6)
1.0% 1.9% (0.9
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0.6% 1.1% (0.5)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Gross profit and gross profit margin

During the Reporting Period, the gross profit of the Group decreased
by approximately 4.1% compared with last corresponding period. The

gross profit margin was 13.8% (2012: 15.0%)).

OTHER INCOME

Other income mainly comprise income from suppliers, rental income

from leasing and sub-leasing of properties and counters.

The Group’s other income increased from RMB625,916,000 in 2012
to RMB774,562,805 by approximately 23.7% during the Reporting
Period, mainly due to the increase of income from suppliers which
were in line with the increase in revenue, and the increase of rental

income from newly-opened stores.

OPERATING EXPENSES

Operating expenses mainly comprise of salary and welfare,
depreciations, energy fee, rental expenses, repair and maintenance
expenses, transportation expenses, packaging expenses, and

advertising and promotion expenses.

The Group’s operating expenses were RMB1,484,512,031 during the
Reporting Period, representing an increase of approximately 11.7%
compared to the corresponding period in 2012. The increase was
primarily due to (i) the selling and distribution expenses of the new
stores, the renovated stores and the new subsidiaries in the wholesale
business; (i) the increased labor cost attributable to the compliance
of legal requirement due to the increase in minimum wages; and (iii)
during the Reporting Period, more marketing activities were launched

in response to the market downturn and competition from e-commerce.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses mainly comprise salary and welfare, social
security costs (including retirement benefit contribution), depreciation

and entertainment expenses, etc.

The Group’s administrative expenses were RMB266,231,417 during
the Reporting Period, representing an increase of approximately 0.2%
compared to the corresponding period in 2012. The increase was
mainly because of (i) the increased cost involving retirement benefit
contribution, housing reserves and other social insurance relating to
the wages paid in last year; and (i) a decrease in the amount of the
performance-based bonus paid due to a drop in the performance of

the Company.

FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Financial expenses include interests on bank loans and debentures,

interest income, bank charges and exchange gains or losses.

The Group’s financial expenses increased from RMB154,217,524
in 2012 to RMB158,068,655, and were primarily due to increase of
interest expenses on bank loans and debentures caused by increased
financing principal from business requirement and increased interest

rate.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group was not subject to Hong Kong profit tax as the Group had
no assessable profit arising in or deriving from Hong Kong during the

Reporting Period.

The members of the Group were subject to corporate income tax at
a rate of 25% during the Reporting Period on their respective taxable

profit pursuant to the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations.

Income tax expense decreased from RMB57,823,961 in 2012 to
RMB43,168,935 in 2013, primarily due to the decrease in 2013

taxable profits.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

NET PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The net profit attributable to owners of the Company decreased
by approximately 45.7% from RMB105,104,506 in 2012 to
RMB57,055,711 in 2013. The decrease was mainly attributable to (i)
the decrease of gross margin under the press of fierce competition
and unfavorable economic condition, more promotions have been held
to attract more customers, allowing more profits to the customers;

and (i) the increase of labor cost, rental cost and financial expenses.

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

The Group recorded basic earnings per share of approximately
RMBO0.14 for 2013, which was calculated on the basis of the number
of 412,220,000 shares, representing approximately 44.0% lower than
the RMBO0.25 of 2012.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the Reporting Period, the Group mainly financed its operations
through internally generated cash flows, bank borrowings and

debentures.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had non-current assets of
RMB2,482,066,820 (comprising of fixed assets,, investment property
and land use rights of RMB1,572,393,535), and non-current liabilities
of RMB1,008,802,930 (comprising mainly bank loans and debentures
of RMB977,553,870).

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had current assets of
RMB4,667,991,529. Current assets mainly comprised of cash
and cash equivalents of RMB601,588,771, inventories of
RMB1,481,250,484, trade receivables of RMB1,658,164,932 and
prepayments and other receivables of RMB679,864,965. The Group
had current liabilities of RMB4,064,904,393. Current liabilities mainly
comprised of trade and notes payables of RMB1,195,635,326, short
term bank loans of RMB1,860,977,942 and advances from customers
and other payables of RMB719,474,469.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BT Mo

INDEBTEDNESS AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had bank loans of
RMB2,104,977,942, which consisted of trade receivables
factored bank loans of RMB99,598,081, secured bank loans of
RMB244,000,000, unsecured bank loans of RMB1,761,379,861. All
the Group’s bank loans bear interest rates ranging from 5.04% to 7.2%
per annum. The secured bank loans were secured by certain of the
Group’s buildings and investment properties with aggregate net book

values of RMB147,486,861.

The Group’s bills payable of RMB56,677,291 were secured by
certain of the Group’s security deposits of RMB11,335,458 as at 31
December 2013. Also, the security deposit amounted to RMB700,000
was used for the issuance of domestic long-term letter of credit to pay

back the accounts payable amounted to RMB3,000,384.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s gearing ratio* is approximately
71.0%, which is slightly higher than that of 69.3% as at 31 December
2012.

* Represented by: Total Debt/Total Asset

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group’s operating revenues and expenses are principally

denominated in Renminbi.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not encounter any material
effect on its operation or liquidity as a result of fluctuation in currency

exchange rates.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EMPLOYEES AND TRAINING

As at 31 December 2013, the Group employed 8,451 employees
in the PRC (2012: 8,386). The total staff costs (including directors’
and supervisors’ remunerations) of the Group for the Reporting
Period amounted to RMB604,697,307 (2012: RMB568,702,862). The
emolument of staff (including directors and supervisors) of the Group
are based on position, duty, experience, performance, and market

rates, in order to maintain their remunerations at a competitive level.

As required by the PRC laws and regulations, the Group participates in
the defined contribution retirement benefits scheme for its employees
operated by the relevant local government authorities in the PRC. The
Group is required to make contributions for those employees who are
registered as permanent residents in the PRC at a rate of 20% (2012:
20%) of the employees’ salaries, bonuses and certain allowances.
The Group has no further obligation associated with the said defined
contribution retirement benefits scheme beyond the abovementioned
annual contributions. The Group’s contributions to the defined
contribution retirement benefits schemes amounted to RMB62,291,048

for the Reporting Period (2012: RMB54,616,210).

During the Reporting Period, the Group hosted trainings with various
format and topics for its employees to improve their skills and
professional knowledge. The Group held 68 seminars during the year,

and more than 5,700 employees have benefited from them.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

ESTABLISHMENT OF FOUR SUBSIDIARIES

During the Reporting Period, the Group, through its non-wholly
owned subsidiary Datong Chaopi Beichen Trading Company Limited
(“Datong Beichen”), established a subsidiary Datong Chaopi Mayi
Trading Company Limited (“Datong Mayi”) to engage in the retail of
general merchandise in Datong, Shanxi province. Datong Mayi opened
28 directly-operated convenience stores in Datong, Shanxi province
during the Reporting Period. As at 31 December 2013, the Company
held an indirect equity interest of approximately 55.90% in Datong
Mayi. The registered capital of Datong Mayi is RMB5,000,000, which

has been fully paid up by Datong Beichen.

During the Reporting Period, the Group, through its non-wholly owned
subsidiary Beijing Chaopi Trading Company Limited (“Chaopi Trading”),
established a subsidiary Tangshan Chaopi Baishun Trading Company
Limited (“Tangshan Baishun”) to engage in the wholesale of general
merchandise in Tangshan, Hebei province. The registered capital of
Tangshan Baishun is RMB30,000,000, which has been fully paid up by
Chaopi Trading.

During the Reporting Period, the Group, through its non-wholly
owned subsidiary Chaopi Trading, established a subsidiary, Beijing
Chaopi Maolisheng Trading Company Limited (“Chaopi Maolisheng”),
to engage in the wholesale of general merchandise in Beijing. The
registered capital of Chaopi Maolisheng is RMB50,000,000, which has
been fully paid up by Chaopi Trading.

During the Reporting Period, the Group, through its non-wholly owned
subsidiary Beijing Chaopi Flavourings Company Limited (“Chaopi
Flavourings”), established a subsidiary, Hong Kong Chaopi Yazhou
Company Limited (“Chaopi Hong Kong”), in Hong Kong, to engage in
the import and wholesale of general merchandise in Hong Kong. The
issued capital of Chaopi Hong Kong is HK$10,000, which has been
fully paid up by Chaopi Flavourings.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CHANGES OF EQUITY INTEREST IN THE FOUR
SUBSIDIARIES

Pursuant to an agreement entered into between Chaopi Trading and
an independent third party dated 24 January 2013, Chaopi Trading
transferred 30% of its equity interest in Datong Beichen to the said
independent third party for a consideration of RMB7,800,000. After the
completion of the said transfer, the Company held an indirect interest

of approximately 55.90% in Datong Beichen.

Pursuant to an agreement entered into between Chaopi Trading and
an independent third party dated 11 June 2013, Chaopi Trading
disposed 30% of its equity interest in Tangshan Baishun to the said
independent third party for a consideration of RMB9,000,000. After the
completion of the said transfer, the Company held an indirect interest

of approximately 55.90% in Tangshan Baishun.

Pursuant to an agreement entered into between Chaopi Trading and
an independent third party dated 6 December 2013, Chaopi Trading
disposed 35% of its equity interest in Chaopi Maolisheng to the said
independent third party for a consideration of RMB17,500,000. After
the completion of the said transfer, the Company held an indirect

interest of approximately 51.90% in Chaopi Maolisheng.

Pursuant to an agreement entered into between Chaopi Trading
and an independent third party dated 27 December 2013, the
said independent third party disposed 4% of its equity interest in
Beijing Chaopi Huilong Trading Company Limited (“Chaopi Huilong”)
to Chaopi Trading for a consideration of RMB960,000. After the
completion of the said transfer, the Company held an indirect interest

of approximately 55.10% in Chaopi Huilong.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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ISSUANCE OF CORPORATE BONDS

During the Reporting Period, pursuant to the shareholders’ approval
and the approval of the Issuance Examination Committee of the
China Securities Regulatory Commission (“CSRC”),the Company
finished issuing certain corporate bonds (the “Corporate Bonds”)
in an aggregate amount of RMB750 million on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange on 15 August 2013. The maturity period of the Corporate
Bonds is five years, with the option to increase the coupon interest
rate by the issuer and investors repurchase option at the end of the
third year. The coupon rate of the Corporate Bonds is 5.48% per
annum. The Corporate Bonds are guaranteed by an independent
third party, Beijing Chaoyang District National Capital Operating

Management Center, a state-owned enterprise.

ISSUANCE OF PRIVATE DEBT FINANCING
INSTRUMENT

On 12 July 2013, pursuant to its shareholders’ approval, the Company
issued private debt financing instrument in an aggregate amount of
RMB200,000,000 with a term of maturity of six months through the
Bank of Nanjing. The private debt financing instrument is unsecured

and with coupon rate of 5.2% per annum.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had no material contingent

liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to 31 December 2013, the Group had the following

significant event:

On 28 March 2014, the directors of the Company proposed the
payment of a final dividend of RMBO0.10 (including withholding dividend
tax) per share to shareholders. The proposal of dividend distribution
mentioned above is subject to the approval by the shareholders at
Annual General Meeting dated 28 May 2014 of the Company. This
recommendation has not been incorporated in the consolidated
financial statements as a liability. The proposed dividend shall be paid
to shareholders on the register of members on 9 June 2014. The

estimated amount of dividends in aggregate is RMB41,222,000.

STRATEGY AND PLANS

Addressing the opportunities and challenges in 2014, the Group will
integrate innovations into operations to step up transformation and

maximize management efficiency:

—  Steadily expanding business scale. On retail business, we
will steadily expand the store network in the Greater Beijing
Area and renovate the existing outlets under the strategy of
regional development. Meanwhile, we will diversify into innovative
businesses such as fresh food supermarket and premium
supermarket to expand our niche in the changing market. On
wholesale business, we will opportunistically cooperate with
strong partners to extend our market presence, and speed up
expansion through local subsidiaries to broaden and deepen the

wholesale and distribution network.
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Maximizing the potential of retail business. By shifting the
sourcing model towards upstream as an organizer in the supply
chain rather than a simple merchandiser, we will develop custom-
ordered staple food and increase the weight of imported products
and in-house brand to improve product mix and gross margin.
We will reorganize the existing merchandise database to enhance
category management according to the ABC principle, and
maximize the efficiency of merchandise display resources based
on centralized management to improve the integration of product
range and individual product contribution. Through upgrading
the POS system to support marketing innovations, we will launch
accurate marketing initiatives such as additional discounts, loyalty

points and trade-in to foster customer loyalty.

Sharpening the competitiveness of wholesale business. While
introducing new brands, diversifying product lines and expanding
the coverage of brand agency, we will enhance professional
brand operation; accelerate the development of in-house brand
and imported products, and optimize the mix of products on
agency basis; seek breakthrough in cooperation by developing
new channels such as e-commerce platforms and group
purchase and improving services compatible for various retail
outlets; and refine management over upstream and downstream

based on a rational supply chain to boost the profitability.

Carrying forward the construction of logistics and
distribution system. On retail business, we will upgrade the fruit
and vegetable workshop of the fresh food distribution center,
standardize the merchandising through processing technology
surveys and workflow improvements, and increase value addition
to increase the profitability of specialty goods. On wholesale
business, we will upgrade the logistics development model
through centralized services and further integration. We seek
to minimize logistics costs through contracted transportation
services for retail outlets, a simulated market pricing mechanism
and other means. Strict management will be exercised on
third-party logistics to enhance their availability. The Group will
continue to upgrade the logistics system and platform to reduce

the error rate and improve the efficiency.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Group recognises the importance of a robust governance
framework to drive the strategy for sustainable development of the
Company and long-term sustainable value for the shareholders. The
Group has adopted the principles of the Corporate Governance Code
(the “Corporate Governance Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) with
the objective of enhancing the quality of corporate governance of
the Group and the conduct of its business in a fair, transparent, and
ethical way. This corporate governance report describes the corporate
governance practices of the Group and explains the applications of

the principles of the Corporate Governance Code.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has applied the principles
and complied with all the Code Provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code during the Reporting Period, save for the directors’

retirement by rotation as explained below.

Provision A4.2 of the Corporate Governance Code requires that every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, of a listed
issuer should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. The Company’s Articles of Association stipulates that
each director shall be elected in general meeting of the Company for a
term of not more than three years, and eligible for re-election upon the
expiry of the term. Having taken into account of the continuity of the
Group’s operation and management policies, the Company’s Articles
of Association do not currently stipulate the mechanism in respect
of directors’ retirement by rotation and hence contains no express
provision for the directors’ retirement by rotation and thus deviating

from the aforesaid provision of the Code.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiries with all directors, all the directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard of dealings as set out
in the Model Code and code of conduct regarding their securities

transactions throughout the Reporting Period.

THE BOARD

The board of directors (the “Board”) takes the responsibility for
leadership and control of the Group and is collectively responsible
for safeguarding the best interest of the Group and accountable
to the shareholders. Matters that are required to be determined
or considered by the Board include overall group strategies of the
Group, substantial acquisitions and disposals, capital transactions,
annual, interim and quarterly results, distribution of dividends and
other substantial operating and financial matters. Major corporate
matters that are specifically delegated by the Board to the Group’s
management include the preparation of financial accounts for the
Board’s approval, execution of business strategies and initiatives
approved by the Board, implementation of adequate system of internal
controls and risk management procedures, and compliance with the

relevant statutory requirements, rules and regulations..
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Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions passed at the 2012 annual
general meeting (“2012 Annual General Meeting”) held on 28 May
2013, each of Mr. Li Jianwen, Ms. Li Chunyan, Mr. Liu Yuejin, Mr.
Wei Tingzhan, Mr. Gu Hanlin, Mr. Li Shunxiang, Mr. Wang Liping, Mr.
Chen Liping and Mr. Choi Onward has been re-elected as a director
for a three-year term, and such term will expire upon the end of the
annual general meeting (“2015 Annual General Meeting”) for the year
ended 31 December 2015. With effect from 28 June 2013, Mr. Wei
Tingzhan has ceased to be the chairman of the Board, a member
of the nomination committee and a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company, and has been re-designated from an
executive director to a non-executive director of the Company;
whereas Mr. Li Jianwen has been appointed as chairman of the
Board, a member of the nomination committee and a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company with effect from 28 June
2013. Accordingly, the Board currently consists of three executive
directors (Mr. Li Jianwen, Ms. Li Chunyan and Mr. Liu Yuejin), three
non-executive directors (Mr. Wei Tingzhan, Mr. Gu Hanlin and Mr. Li
Shunxiang) and three independent non-executive directors (Mr. Wang
Liping, Mr. Chen Liping and Mr. Choi Onward), with Mr. Li Jianwen
serving as the chairman of the Board. All of the directors have fulfilled

their responsibilities as directors throughout the Reporting Period.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or other

material/relevant relationships) among members of the Board.
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Each of Ms. Li Chunyan and Mr. Liu Yuejin will not receive a director’s
fee, but is entitled to remuneration based on her/his executive duties
and responsibilities (other than being a director) in the Company.
Each of them is entitled to a fixed annual basic salary, a performance
based bonus (to be determined by reference to the Company’s annual
financial results) and other allowance and benefits in kind under
applicable PRC law and regulations. Their respective fixed annual
basic salary for each of the forthcoming three-year term shall be
reviewed by the remuneration committee of the Company and subject
to the Board’s approval. The chairman of the Board is entitled to an
annual basic salary of RMB700,000 (tax inclusive), and a performance
based bonus (to be determined by reference to the Company’s annual
financial results) and other allowance and benefits in kind under the
applicable PRC law and regulations. The non-executive directors
will not receive any remuneration. Mr. Choi Onward, an independent
non-executive director is entitled to receive a fixed director’s fee
of RMB154,758 per annum (tax inclusive). Each of the other two
independent non-executive directors is entitled to receive a fixed
director’'s fee of RMB41,850 per annum (tax inclusive). The aforesaid
remunerations of the directors of the Company have been considered
and approved by an ordinary resolution passed at the 2012 Annual

General Meeting.

During the Reporting Period, the Board fulfilled the requirement of
having at least three independent non-executive directors (Mr. Wang
Liping, Mr. Chen Liping and Mr. Choi Onward) and having appointed
independent non-executive directors representing at least one-third
of the Board as required by the Listing Rules. The Company also met
the requirement of having at least one independent non-executive
director (Mr. Choi Onward) who has the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.
The Company has received from each of the three independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation in respect of their
independence. The Company is of the opinion that all the independent
non-executive directors are independent pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the

Listing Rules.
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Reasonable notice period and sufficient relevant information have
been given to all directors so as to enable them to attend the Board
meetings and make appropriate decision in relation to matters to be
discussed. All directors are entitled to include matters of their concern
in the agenda of all Board meetings. All directors are entitled to

inspect all relevant corporate information.

The biographical details of the directors are set out on pages 72 to 79

of this annual report.

Mr. Li Jianwen, acting as the chairman and executive director of the

Company is responsible for operation of the Board.

The other two executive directors, Ms. Li Chunyan and Mr. Liu Yuejin
are responsible for the financial affairs and retail operation of the

Group, respectively.

Each executive director has sufficient experience to hold the position

so as to accomplish his/her duties effectively and efficiently.

Pursuant to the code provision A.1.8 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the Company should arrange appropriate insurance to cover
potential legal actions against its directors. To comply with such code
provision, the Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
for the directors to indemnify their liabilities arising from their corporate

activities.
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During the Reporting Period, 7 Board meetings (not including written ~ ¥R&EHIA - EF e /BT 7T AR (TEEERA
Board resolutions) were held and the attendance records of the HEHR#H) AHUESEHESHFIHOT

directors attending such meetings in person are set out below:

Attendance/Number of meetings

HEEBRE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Wei Tingzhan (Chairman)* BEEEE(EEFR) 5/5
Mr. Li Jianwen (Chairman)** TENEE(EER) 7
Ms. Li Chunyan TEMTL 7/7
Mr. Liu Yuejin IR ek 77
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Wei Tingzhan* R B S 2/2
Mr. Gu Hanlin BEEMEAE 77
Mr. Li Shunxiang FBrELE 77
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFEHITES
Mr. Choi Onward BRERE 6/7
Mr. Chen Liping B FS A 7/7
Mr. Wang Liping T RF 4 7/7
* Mr. Wei Tingzhan ceased to be the chairman of the Board and has been  * ZE-ZFAXAZTN\BR - HEEREETHE
re-designated from an executive director to a non-executive director of FAARBEER  THWTESHEIZERNTES
the Company with effect from 28 June 2013. BT o
**  Mr. Li Jianwen has been appointed as chairman of the Board with effect ~ ** ZE-ZFAAZTN\BR  FEXEEREZHE
from 28 June 2013. BAQREER -
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Attendance of director at the general meeting EEHERREAE

During the Reporting Period, 4 general meetings, including one annual  $R&EEIAN » KRB HBITTINRKEAE - Hb
general meeting, one extraordinary general meeting, one H shares EF—XBRRBEFARE  —ABRRFHIARE - —
class meeting and one domestic shares class meeting, were held and  XHEERFERIBREAS - —XNE R RIARE
the attendance records of the directors attending such meetings in  BRA®  AHEEH S HERENOT ¢

person are set out below:

Attendance/Number of meetings

HEEERE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Wei Tingzhan (Chairman)* BEREE(EFR) 4/4
Mr. Li Jianwen (Chairman)** FEXGEE(EFER) 4/4
Ms. Li Chunyan THEKLZL 4/4
Mr. Liu Yuejin 2B L 4/4
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Wei Tingzhan * FrF B 0/0
Mr. Gu Hanlin BEM S & 4/4
Mr. Li Shunxiang RS 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Choi Onward BEREEE 4/4
Mr. Chen Liping BRI A 4/4
Mr. Wang Liping FRFRE 4/4

* Mr. Wei Tingzhan ceased to be the chairman of the Board and has been BZZ—=F A=Z+/N\B8 GEELETHE
re-designated from an executive director to a non-executive director of EARAESER  WHRTEEATERRTES

the Company with effect from 28 June 2013. B -

ke

Mr. Li Jianwen has been appointed as chairman of the Board with effect BT —=FNAZ+TN\AE FEXFEERIT
from 28 June 2013. RARAEER -
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CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

As part of an ongoing process of directors’ training, the directors are
updated with the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements from time to time to ensure
compliance of the same by all directors. All directors are encouraged
to attend external forum or training courses on relevant topics which

may count towards continuous professional development training.

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance
Code, all directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This
is to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. During the Reporting Period, all directors have participated
in in-house training courses and workshops in respect of corporate
governance and regulations organized by the Company or, by perusing
materials relevant to the Company’s business or to their duties and
responsibilities, the relevant directors have participated in appropriate
continuous development activities. All the directors have provided a

record of the training they received to the Company.

Pursuant to the code provision C.1.2 of Corporate Governance Code,
the management of the Company also provides all members of the
Board with monthly updates which presents information in respect of
the Company’s performance and financial position, and changes and
developments in laws, regulations, business and the market, to assist

each director in the discharge of their duties.
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The participation by individual directors in the professional

development programme in 2013 is recorded in the table below.

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Li Jianwen (Chairman) TRNAE(EFLR)
Ms. Li Chunyan EX= S

Mr. Liu Yuejin BURREEE
Non-executive Directors FHITES

Mr. Wei Tingzhan e

Mr. Gu Hanlin BUEM L&

Mr. Li Shunxiang FBEEL A
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHITES
Mr. Choi Onward BESE

Mr. Chen Liping PR A

Mr. Wang Liping ERFRE

CHAIRMAN AND GENERAL MANAGER

Mr. Li Jianwen and Mr. Li Wei are the chairman of the Board and
the general manager of the Company respectively, which are two
clearly defined positions. The chairman is responsible for the effective
operation of the Board while the general manager is in charge of
the Group’s daily business development and management. The
Company’s Articles of Association sets out the respective duties and

power of the chairman and the general manager in detail.

Board committees

There are currently 3 Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, to assist

the Board in carrying out its responsibilities.

The term of the Strategy Committee of the third session of the Board,
which was established for a three-year term commencing from 10
June 2010 has expired, There are no meeting held during its term.
And accordingly no Strategy Committee is established by the fourth

session of the Board.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the Board meeting held on
10 June 2010, the third session of the Audit Committee (the “Audit
Committee”) was established, in which Mr. Choi Onward was
appointed as the chairman, and Mr. Wang Liping and Mr. Chen Liping
were both appointed as members. Pursuant to the resolutions passed
at the 2012 Annual General Meeting held on 28 May 2013, each of
Mr. Choi Onward, Mr. Wang Liping and Mr. Chen Liping has been re-
elected as a independent non-executive director for a three-year term,
and such term will expire upon the end of the 2015 Annual General
Meeting. Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the Board Meeting
held on 28 June 2013, the Audit Committee of the fourth session of
the Board was established. The Audit Committee wholly consists of
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Choi Onward who
was appointed as the chairman, and Mr. Wang Liping and Mr. Chen

Liping who were both appointed as members.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are set in
line with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code.
The Audit Committee provides an important link between the Board
and the external auditors in matters falling within the scope of the
audit of the Group, and is responsible for the review of financial
information of the Group, the oversight of the Company’s financial
reporting system and internal control procedures, and exercises the
corporate governance functions delegated by the Board. It reviews the
effectiveness of the external audit, internal controls and risk evaluation

and, provides comments and suggestions to the Board.
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Pursuant to the code provision D.3.1 of Corporate Governance Code,
the Audit Committee performed the corporate governance functions
delegated by the Board during the Reporting Period, including, to
develop and review the policies and practices of the Company on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;
to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management; to review and
monitor the policies and practices of the Company on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; to develop, review and monitor
the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
the directors and employees; and to review the compliance by the
Company with the Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in the

Corporate Governance Report.

The Audit Committee held 6 meetings during the Reporting Period
for reviewing the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group, discussing internal controls, financial reporting matters and
corporate governance functions, including a review of the 2012 annual
report and the 2013 quarterly and interim results, and discussing
relevant matters including matters relating to annual auditing plans
of 2018 and corporate governance. The attendance records of the
members of the Audit Committee attending such meetings in person

are set out below:

Mr. Choi Onward (chairman) BERREE(EE)
Mr. Chen Liping BR A&
Mr. Wang Liping FRFEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s 2013 audited annual
results and discussed with the management and the external auditors
on the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group,

internal control and financial reporting matters.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the Board meeting held on 10
June 2010, the third session of the Remuneration Committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) was established, in which Mr. Wang
Liping (an independent non-executive director) was appointed as the
chairman, and Mr. Wei Tingzhan (an executive director) and Mr. Chen
Liping (an independent non-executive director) were both appointed
as members. Following the expiry of the term of their directorship,
the said directors were reappointed as directors of the Company
at the 2012 Annual General Meeting held on 28 May 2013, and a
new session of the Remuneration Committee was established. Mr.
Wei Tingzhan has ceased to be a member of the Remuneration
Committee and Mr. Li Jianwen was appointed as a member of the
Remuneration Committee in place of Mr. Wei Tingzhan pursuant to
the resolutions passed at the Board meeting held on 28 June 2013.
The Remuneration Committee of the fourth session of the board of
directors consists of Mr. Wang Liping (an independent non-executive
director) as the chairman, and Mr. Li Jianwen (an executive director)
and Mr. Chen Liping (an independent non-executive director) both as

members.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
set in line with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code. The main duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration policy and
structure for the Directors’ and senior management of the Company,
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for determining remuneration policy; to review and approve the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s
corporate goals and objectives. In accordance with the code provision
B.1.2(c)(ii) of the Corporate Governance Code, the Remuneration
Committee have been delegated with responsibilities by the Board,
and is responsible for determining the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management and making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive
directors, and to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is

involved in deciding his own remuneration.
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During the Reporting Period, two meetings of the Remuneration
Committee were held for discussing and considering the performance
based bonus of the Company’s directors and senior management for
2012. The attendance records of the members of the Remuneration

Committee attending such meetings in person are set out below:

Mr. Wang Liping (chairman) FRFrE(ERE)
Mr. Chen Liping BRI S A

Mr. Wei Tingzhan* FEB T

Mr. Li Jianwen** FRNEE

* Mr. Wei Tingzhan was not involved in deciding his performance-based
bonus during the meetings. 2 meetings were held before Mr. Wei
Tingzhan’s resignation as a member of the Remuneration Committee on
28 June 2013.

- no meeting was held after Mr. Li Jianwen’s appointment as a member of

the Remuneration Committee on 28 June 2013.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the Board meeting held on
10 June 2010, the third session of the Nomination Committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) was established, in which Mr. Chen Liping (an
independent non-executive director) was appointed as the chairman,
and Mr. Wei Tingzhan (an executive director) and Mr. Wang Liping (an
independent non-executive director) were both appointed as members.
Following the expiry of the term of their directorship, the said directors
were reappointed as the directors of the Company at the 2012 Annual
General Meeting held on 28 May 2013, and a new session of the
Nomination Committee was established. Mr. Wei Tingzhan has ceased
to be a member of the Nomination Committee and Mr. Li Jianwen
was appointed as a member of the Remuneration Committee in place
of Mr. Wei Tingzhan pursuant to the resolutions passed at the Board
meeting held on 28 June 2013, The fourth session of the Nomination
Committee, consists of Mr. Chen Liping (an independent non-executive
director) as the chairman, and Mr. Li Jianwen (an executive director)
and Mr. Wang Liping (an independent non-executive director) both as

members.
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The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
set in line with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code. The Nomination Committee is responsible for nominating
potential candidates for directorships, reviewing the nomination
of directors and making recommendations to the Board on such
appointments, reviewing the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy, and assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive directors, and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of directors and succession planning (in particular the chairman of the
Board and the chief executive) for directors. The Diversity Policy of
the Members of the Board was adopted at the board meeting on 23
August 2013, pursuant to which all the nominations of any member
of the board should be made in accordance with the Diversity Policy
by taking into account certain objective criterion (including without
limitation, the gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service) and

having due regards for the benefits of a diversified Board.
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During the Reporting Period, four meetings of the Nomination
Committee were held for discussing and recommending the
candidates to be proposed for re-election/appointment as directors
of the Company, reviewing relevant matters including the structure
and composition of the Board of the Company and the assessment
of independence of the independent non-executive directors. The
attendance records of the members of the Nomination Committee

attending such meetings in person are set out below:

Mr. Chen Liping (chairman) BR3P L (FE)
Mr. Wang Liping FAFR A

Mr. Wei Tingzhan* Sl o

Mr. Li Jianwen** PR

3 meetings were held before Mr. Wei Tingzhan’s resignation as a member

of the Nomination Committee on 28 June 2013.

* one meeting was held after Mr. Li Jianwen’s appointment as a member of

the Nomination Committee on 28 June 2013.

STRATEGY COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the Board meeting held on 10
June 2010, the strategy committee of the Company was established,
which consists of three executive directors, namely Mr. Wei Tingzhan,
Mr. Li Jianwen and Ms. Li Chunyan, and two independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Wang Liping and Mr. Chen Liping.
Mr. Wei Tingzhan was appointed as the chairman. The main duties of
the Strategy Committee are to conduct research on the development
strategy and consider the strategic plans of the Company, and to
make recommendations to the Board for decision making on strategic
development. Following the expiry of the term of the third session of
Board of directors, The term of the Strategy Committee has expired.
There are no meeting held during its term and accordingly no Strategy

Committee is established by the fourth session of the Board.
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

During the Reporting Period, the supervisory committee (the
“Supervisory Committee”) of the Company consists of four
shareholders appointed supervisors (Ms. Liu Wenyu, Mr. Yang Baoqun,
Mr. Chen Zhong and Ms. Cheng Xianghong) and two staff-appointed
supervisors (Ms. Yao Jie and Ms. Wang Hong). Ms. Liu Wenyu serves

as the chairman of the Supervisory Committee.

The supervisors have performed their work in a dedicated and diligent
manner and carried out effectively the functions of supervising the legal
and regulatory compliance relating to financial matters and overseeing

the directors and senior management of the Group during their offices.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and monitoring
the auditor’s independence and objectivity and effectiveness of the
auditing process. It receives letter from the auditor confirming their
independence and objectivity and holds meetings with representatives
of the auditor to consider the scope of its audit, approve its fees, and
the scope and appropriateness of non-audit services, if any, to be
provided by it. The Audit Committee also makes recommendations
to the Board on the appointment and retention of the independent

auditor.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA LLP (B8 k &M ST (kL@
& %)) were appoint as the auditor of the Company for the period from
the conclusion of the 2012 annual general meeting to the conclusion
of the 2013 Annual General Meeting of the Company. For the year
ended 31 December 2013, the Company agreed to pay Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu CPA LLP (BE)ZEXSETAMEFFT(EGRERER))
in aggregate amounting to RMB2,000,000 for 2013 auditing fees
and RMB200,000 for non-audit services in respect of reviewing the

Group’s 2013 interim financial statements.
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RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PREPARATION OF ACCOUNTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial
statements in compliance with the relevant regulations and applicable

accounting standards.

The responsibility of the auditors with respect to the financial reporting

are set out in the Auditors’ Report on pages 80 to 81.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining an adequate
system of internal control to safeguard shareholders’ interest and the
Group’s assets. Regular reviews have been conducted by the Board
for ensuring the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s internal
systems in respect of financial, operational and risk management

areas.

The internal audit department of the Company has been established in
2009 providing independent assurance to the Board and management
by reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal controls of

the Group.

GOING CONCERN

There were no uncertain events or conditions of material nature that
would affect the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern during

the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Li Bo, who was appointed as the company secretary of the
Company on 18 March 2011, fulfills the requirement under Rules 3.28
and 3.29 of the Listing Rules. As an employee of the Company, the
company secretary supports the Board, ensures good information
flow within the Board and Board policy and procedures are followed;
advises the Board on corporate governance matters, facilitates
induction of the Directors and, monitors the training and continuous
professional development of Directors. He has attained not less than
15 hours of relevant professional training during the Reporting Period.
His biography is set out in the “Directors, Supervisor’'s and Senior

Management’s Profiles” section of this annual report.

THE AMENDMENTS TO THE ARTICLE OF ASSOCIATION

During the Reporting Period, the Article of Association of the Company

was amended once in the following manner:

On 28 May 2013, the 2012 Annual General Meeting was held to
approve, inter alia, the amendments to the Article of Association. The
amendments to the Article of Association were made to clarify the
accounting standards requirement in respect of the preparation of the
Company'’s financial statement and to prepare the Company’s financial
statements using the China Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises only. Clause 148 of Articles of Association of the Company
was amended from: “The financial statements of the Company shall,
in addition to being prepared in accordance with PRC accounting
standards and regulations, be prepared in accordance with either
international accounting standards, or that of the place outside the PRC
where the Company’s shares are listed...” to “The financial statements
of the Company shall, in addition to being prepared in accordance with
PRC accounting standards and regulations, be prepared in accordance
with the accounting standards regulated and allowed by the law and
the rules of stock exchanges of the place outside the PRC where the
Company’s shares are listed...” Further details are set out in the circular

of annual general meeting dated 12 April 2013.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to Articles 58 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
where shareholder(s) holding 10% (including 10%) or more of the
Company’s issued and outstanding shares carrying the right to vote
request(s) in writing for the convening of an extraordinary general
meeting, the board of directors shall convene an extraordinary general

meeting within two (2) months.

Pursuant to Articles 60 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
whenever the Company convenes a general meeting, shareholder(s)
individually or collectively holding 3% (including 3%) or more of the
shares carrying the right to vote of the Company shall have the right to
propose new motions to the general meeting by submitting the same
to the convener in writing. The Company shall include in the agenda
for the meeting the matters in the motions that fall within the scope of

duties of the shareholders’ general meeting.

Pursuant to Articles 78 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
shareholders shall comply with the following procedures when they
propose to convene an extraordinary general meeting or a class
meeting:(1) shareholders individually or jointly holding 10% or more
(including 10%) of the shares carrying the right to vote at the meeting
proposed to be held for 90 consecutive days or more may sign one
or more written request(s), the form and substance of which are the
same, to propose to the Board for holding of an extraordinary general
meeting or a class meeting, and shall list out clearly the agenda of the
meeting in the request. The Board shall, upon receipt of the aforesaid
written request, convene the extraordinary general meeting or the class
general meeting as soon as possible. The shareholdings mentioned
above shall be calculated on the date when the shareholders make
such written request.(2) If the Board does not serve a notice of such
meeting within 30 days upon receipt of the aforesaid written request,
shareholders individually or jointly holding 10% or more (including 10%)
of the Company’s shares carrying the right to vote at the meeting
proposed for 90 consecutive days or more may sign one or more

written request(s), the form and substance of which are the same, to
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propose to the Supervisory Committee for holding of an extraordinary
general meeting or a class meeting, and shall list out clearly at the
agenda of the meeting in the request. The Supervisory Committee
shall, upon receipt of the aforesaid written request, convene and
preside the extraordinary general meeting or the class meeting in a
timely manner.(3) If the Supervisory Committee does not serve a notice
of such meeting within 30 days upon receipt of the aforesaid written
request, the shareholders making such request may convene the
meeting by themselves within two months upon receipt of the request
by the Supervisory Committee, and the procedures for convening such
meeting shall be as similar to those for convening a general meeting
by the Board as possible. Any reasonable cost incurred in connection
with the convening and holding of the meeting by the shareholders
themselves as result of the failure on the part of the Board and the
Supervisory Committee to hold such meeting as required above shall
be borne by the Company, and shall be deducted from the amount
due to the Directors and supervisors of the Company who are in

default.

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Group is committed to establish a stable and constructive
communication with shareholders, adhere to the principles of integrity,
regularity and high transparency, and disclose the required information
in compliance with the Listing Rules. Information of the Group is

disseminated to its shareholders in the following manners:
- delivery of results and reports to shareholders;

—  publication of announcements on the websites of the The Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Company, and
issue of shareholders’ circulars in accordance with the Listing

Rules;

— arrange general and extraordinary meetings with its shareholders
as an effective communication channel between the Board and

shareholders.
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- the Department of Investor Relations of the Company is
responsible for liaison with investors and analysts by answering
their questions and gathering, in a timely manner, opinions and
comments from analysts and investors on the operation of the
Group, and selectively adopting them in the Group’s operation;

and

- communicating actively with various parties, in particular,
convening briefing sessions and individual meeting with
institutional investors upon the announcement of results and
making decisions on material investments. The Group also
participates in a range of investor activities and communicates on

one-on-one basis with its investors regularly.

The Board always welcomes shareholders’ view and input sincerely.
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board by addressing them to the Investor Relations Department of
the Company by letter, telephone, fax or email. Details of the contact

information can be found at page 4 of this annual report.
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EFRHS

The board of directors hereby presents their annual report and the
audited financial statements of the Company and the Group for the

Reporting Period.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the retail and wholesale distribution
of daily consumer products in the region covering the Beijing city and
certain parts of its periphery. There were no significant changes in the

nature of the Group’s principal activities during the Reporting Period.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the Reporting Period and the state of affairs of
the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2013 are set out in

the financial statements on pages 82 to 319.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of RMBO0.10
(including withholding dividend tax) (2012: RMBO0.10) per share in
respect of the Reporting Period to shareholders on the register
of members on 9 June 2014. This recommendation has been
incorporated in the financial statements as an allocation of retained
profits within the equity section of the balance sheet. The arrangement
of the closure of the register of shareholders of H shares of the
Company regarding shareholders’ dividends will be announced in
the circular of the 2013 Annual General Meeting of the Company to
be dispatched to the shareholders. The above dividend distribution
proposal is subject to the approval by the shareholders at the 2013
Annual General Meeting of the Company. The dividends to be
distributed will be denominated and declared in Renminbi. Distribution
of cash dividends for domestic shareholders will be paid in Renminbi,
while cash dividends for H-shareholders will be declared in Renminbi
but paid in Hong Kong dollars (based on the average of the exchange
rates for Renminbi to Hong Kong dollars as announced by the
People’s Bank of China for the five working days prior to the date of
the 2013 Annual General Meeting at which the final dividends would
be approved by the shareholders).
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Pursuant to the “Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC” and the
“Detailed Rules for the Implementation of the Enterprise Income Tax
Law of the PRC”, commencing from 1 January 2008, any Chinese
domestic enterprise which pays dividends to a non-resident enterprise
shareholder (i.e. legal person shareholder) in respect of accounting
periods beginning from 1 January 2008 shall withhold and pay
enterprise income tax for such shareholder. Since the Company is
a H-share listed company in Hong Kong, the proposed 2013 final
dividend distribution will be subject to the aforesaid Enterprise Tax
Laws. In order to properly carry out the withholding and payment of
income tax on dividends to non-resident enterprise shareholders, the
Company will strictly abide by the law and identify those shareholders
who are subject to the withholding and payment of income tax based
on the register of H-shareholders as at the end of Monday, 9 June
2014. In respect of all shareholders whose names appear on the
register of H shareholders kept at Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, the Company’s H-Shares Registrar and Transfer
Office in Hong Kong as at the end of Monday, 9 June 2014 who
are not individuals (including HKSCC Nominees Limited, corporate
nominees or trustees, and other entities or organizations that are all
considered as non-resident enterprise shareholders), the Company will

distribute the 2013 final dividends after deducting income tax of 10%.

Pursuant to the State Administration of Taxation Notice on Matters
Concerning the Levy and Administration of Individual Income Tax After
the Repeal of Guo Shui Fa [1993] No. 45 (Guo Shui Han [2011] No.
348) (B R 7% 42 /5 B 70 B 75 35 [1993]04565% S 14 FF 112 75 B8 & A PR
SREEB AN (B K[2011]3485%) ) (the “SAT Notice”) dated
28 June 2011, and the letter titled “Tax Arrangements on Dividends
Paid to Hong Kong Residents by Mainland companies” issued by The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange Letter”)
dated 4 July 2011, the Company is required to withhold and pay the
individual income tax in respect of the 2013 Final Dividends paid to
the Individual H Shareholders (“Individual H Shareholders”) whose
names appear in the register of H-Shares Registrar of the Company
when distributing the 2013 final dividends in accordance with the

law, as a withholding agent on behalf of the same. However, the
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Individual H Shareholders may be entitled to certain tax preferential
treatments pursuant to the tax treaties between the PRC and the
countries in which the Individual H Shareholders are domiciled and the
tax arrangements between Mainland China and Hong Kong (Macau).
The Company will finally withhold and arrange for the payment of the
withholding tax pursuant to the above the SAT Notice and the Stock
Exchange Letter and other relevant laws and regulation, including
the “Notice of the State Administration of Taxation in relation to the
Administrative Measures on Preferential Treatment Entitled by Non-
residents under Tax Treaties (Tentative)” (Guo Shui Fa [2009] No.124)
(ERBBEBDANEDEIERZEIFWR EFEEBIEGEITT)>N
BAN) (BIF72%[2009]1245%) (the “Tax Treaties Notice”)). The Company
will determine the country of domicile of the Individual H Shareholders
based on the registered addresses as recorded on the register of
members of the Company on Monday, 9 June 2014 (the “Registered
Address(es)”). The Company assumes no responsibility and disclaims
all liabilities whatsoever in relation to the tax status or tax treatment
of the Individual H Shareholders and for any claims arising from any
delay in or inaccurate determination of the tax status or tax treatment
of the Individual H Shareholders or any disputes over the withholding
mechanism or arrangements. Details of arrangements are as follows:
(i) For Individual H Shareholders who are Hong Kong or Macau
residents and those whose country of domicile is a country which has
entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate
of 10%, the Company will finally withhold and pay individual income
tax at the rate of 10% on behalf of the Individual H Shareholder; (ii)
For Individual H Shareholders whose country of domicile is a country
which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend
tax rate of less than 10%, the Company will finally withhold and pay
individual income tax at the rate of 10% on behalf of the Individual
H Shareholders. If the relevant Individual H Shareholders would like
to apply for a refund of the additional amount of tax withheld and
paid, the Company can assist the relevant shareholder to handle the
application for the underlying preferential tax benefits pursuant to the
tax treaties, provided that the relevant shareholder shall submit to the
Company the information required under the Tax Treaties Notice on or

before 31 July 2014. Upon examination and approval by competent
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tax authorities, the Company will assist in refunding the additional
amount of tax withheld and paid. (iiij For Individual H Shareholders
whose country of domicile is a country which has entered into a tax
treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of more than 10%
but less than 20%, the Company will finally withhold and pay individual
income tax at the actual tax rate stipulated in the relevant tax treaty.
and (iv) For Individual H Shareholders whose country of domicile is a
country which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating
a dividend tax rate of 20%, or a country which has not entered into
any tax treaties with the PRC, or under any other circumstances, the
Company will finally withhold and pay individual income tax at the rate
of 20% on behalf of the Individual H Shareholders. If the domicile of
an Individual H Shareholder is not the same as the Registered Address
or if the Individual H Shareholder would like to apply for a refund of
the additional amount of tax finally withheld and paid, the Individual H
Shareholder shall notify and provide relevant supporting documents
to the Company on or before 31 July 2014. Upon examination of the
supporting documents by the relevant tax authorities, the Company
will follow the guidance given by the tax authorities to implement
relevant tax withholding provisions and arrangements. Individual H
Shareholders may either personally or appoint a representative to
attend to the procedures in accordance with the requirements under
the Tax Treaties Notices if they do not provide the relevant supporting

documents to the Company within the time period stated above.

Shareholders are recommended to consult their tax advisers regarding
PRC, Hong Kong and other tax implications arising from their holding

and disposal of H Shares of the Company.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities and equity
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
Company’s annual reports, is set out on page 320 of the annual

report.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTY, FIXED ASSETS AND
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Details of movements in the investment property, fixed assets and
construction in progress of the Company and the Group during the
Reporting Period are set out in note (XIl) 10, 11 and 12 and note (VI) 8,

9 and 10 to the financial statements, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in the Company’s share capital during the

Reporting Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the PRC which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing

shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the Reporting

Period and up to the date of this report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves (including surplus reserve and
undistributed profits) of the Company and the Group during the
Reporting Period are set out in note (XIl) 30, 31 and note (VI) 32, 33 to
the financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes

in equity, respectively.
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UNDISTRIBUTED PROFITS

Details of undistributed profits are set out in note (VI) 33 to the

financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of the Group’s bank borrowings at the reporting date are set

out in note (VI) 17, 25 and 27 to the financial statements.

ISSUED THE CORPORATE BONDS AND THE
PRIVATE DEBT FINANCING INSTRUMENT

During the Reporting Period, in order to raise working capital and
reduce financial costs of the Group, pursuant to the approval of
the Issuance Examination Committee of CSRC, the Company finish
issuing Corporate Bonds in an aggregate amount of RMB750 million
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange on 15 August 2013. The period of
the Corporate Bonds is five years, with the options to increase the
coupon interest rate by the issuer and investors repurchase option at
the third year end. The interest rate of the Corporate Bonds is 5.48%
per annum. The Corporate Bonds were guaranteed by an independent
third party, Beijing Chaoyang District National Capital Operating

Management Center, a state-owned enterprise.

On 12 July 2013, the Company issued the private debt financing
instrument in an aggregate amount of RMB200 million with a term
of maturity of six months through Bank of Nanjing. The private debt

financing instrument is unsecured, interest-bearing at 5.2% per annum.

The issued short-term debenture with a face value of RMB200 million
and a maturity period of one year by the Company on 10 July 2012
has been paid on the maturity of 11 July 2013, and the Company has

paid all the principal and interest.
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INTEREST CAPITALISED

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s interest capitalized amounted

to RMB1,747,787 (2012: RMB1,179,900).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Reporting Period, operating income to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for approximately 18.0% (2012: 19.0%)
of the total operating income for the year and operating income to the
largest customer accounted for approximately 10.0% (2012: 11.0%).
Purchase from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 22.0% (2012: 19.8%) of the total purchases for the year
and purchases from the largest supplier accounted for approximately

7.0% (2012: 6.5%) during the Reporting Period.

None of the directors or supervisors of the Company or any of their
associates or any shareholders which, to the best knowledge of the
directors and supervisors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five

largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The directors and supervisors of the Company during the Reporting

Period and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wei Tingzhan (Chairman)
(ceased to be the chairman and re-designated
as a non-executive director since 28 June 2013)
Mr. Li Jianwen (Chairman)
(appointed as the chairman
since 28 June 2013)
Ms. Li Chunyan
Mr. Liu Yuejin
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Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wei Tingzhan
(re-designated as a non-executive director
of the Company since 28 June 2013)

Mr. Gu Hanlin

Mr. Li Shunxiang

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Choi Onward
Mr. Wang Liping
Mr. Chen Liping

Supervisors:

Ms. Liu Wenyu (Chairman)
Ms. Wang Hong

Ms. Yao Jie

Mr. Chen Zhong

Ms. Cheng Xianghong

Mr. Yang Baoqun

The Company has received the annual confirmations of independence
from each of independent non-executive directors and is of the view

that they are independent.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S PROFILES

Profile details of the directors, supervisors and senior management of

the Company are set out on pages 72 to 79 of the annual report.
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DIRECTORS’
CONTRACTS

AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE

The Company has entered into service contracts with each of the
directors pursuant to which they have agreed to act as directors for
a three-year term with effect from the 2012 Annual General Meeting
and will expire at the end of the 2015 Annual General Meeting. Mr. Li
Jianwen, Ms. Li Chunyan and Mr. Liu Yuejin were appointed as the
executive directors from 28 June 2013 and have entered into service
contracts with the Company. Each of the executive directors, Ms. Li
Chunyan and Mr. Liu Yuejin (other than the chairman of the Board,
Mr. Li Jianwen) will not receive a director’s fee, but is entitled to
remuneration based on his/her executive duties and responsibilities
(other than being a director) in the Company which comprises a
fixed annual basic salary, a performance-based bonus which is
determined by reference to the Company’s annual financial results and
other allowance and benefits in kind under applicable PRC law and
regulations. Their respective fixed annual basic salary and performance
based bonus for each of their term shall be approved by the Board
and the remuneration committee of the Company. Pursuant to the
shareholders’ approval in the 2012 annual general meeting, Mr. Li
Jianwen, the chairman of the Board is entitled to an annual salary of
RMB700,000 (tax inclusive), and a performance based bonus, the
standard of which has been approved by the 2012 annual general
meeting, and other allowance and benefits in kind under applicable

PRC law and regulations.

Each of the non-executive directors, Mr.Wei Tingzhan, Mr. Gu Hanlin
and Mr. Li Shunxiang, has entered into service contract with the
Company pursuant to which they have agreed to act as non-executive
directors for a three-year term with effect from 28 June 2013, which
will expire at the end of 2015 Annual General Meeting. They will not

receive any remuneration.
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Each of the independent non-executive directors, Mr. Choi Onward,
Mr. Wang Liping and Mr. Chen Liping, has entered into a service
contract with the Company pursuant to which they have agreed to
act as independent non-executive directors for a three-year term with
effect from the 2012 Annual General Meeting, which will expire at
the end of 2015 Annual General Meeting. The terms of their service
contracts are identical in all material respects and they are entitled to
receive fixed directors’ fees. The director’s fee for Mr. Choi Onward is
RMB154,758 per annum (tax inclusive) and is RMB41,850 per annum
(tax inclusive) for each of Mr. Wang Liping and Mr. Chen Liping.

Each of the supervisors, Ms. Liu Wenyu, Mr. Yang Baoqun, Ms. Yao
Jie, Ms. Wang Hong, Mr. Chen Zhong and Ms. Cheng Xianghong,
has entered into a service contract or an appointment letter with the
Company pursuant to which each has agreed to act as a supervisor
for a three-year term with effect from 2012 Annual General Meeting or
the worker’s congress (as the case may be), and will expire at the end
of 2015 Annual General Meeting or the resolved date of the worker’s
congress. The terms of the service contracts or appointment letter are

identical in all material respects save that:

Mr. Yang Baoqun does not receive any supervisor’s fee;

i. each of Mr. Chen Zhong and Ms. Cheng Xianghong receives a

fixed supervisor’s fee of RMB35,100 per annum(tax inclusive);

ii. each of Ms. Liu Wenyu, Ms. Wang Hong and Ms. Yao Jie is
entitled to remuneration based on her executive duties and
responsibilities (other than being a supervisor) in the Company
which comprises of a fixed basic salary, a performance-based
bonus which is determined by reference to the Company’s annual
financial results and other allowance and benefits in kind under

applicable PRC law and regulations.

None of the directors or supervisors had entered into or proposed
to enter into, any service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION

The directors’ and supervisors’ fees are subject to shareholders’
approval at general meetings. Other emoluments are determined
by the Board with reference to directors’ and supervisors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.
The Company has established a remuneration committee to
formulate compensation policies and to determine and manage the
compensation of the Company’s senior management. Details of the
directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration are disclosed in note (VIl) 4(2)

to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS

None of the directors and supervisors had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of
the Group to which the Company, its controlling shareholder, or any of

their subsidiaries was a party during the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS IN
ACQUIRING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At no time during the Reporting Period were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or its subsidiaries granted to any directors and supervisors
or their respective associates, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors and supervisors and other body

corporate to acquire such rights.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and positions of the
directors, supervisors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)), which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, were as

follows:

Long positions in the domestic shares of the Company

ES -EERIETRAERRKRSG - HER
R EREED S

RZBE—=F+-A=1+—R ARAEF &
EREBITRABRARR RABEEE(RE
7 RGP EXVERFT R EE ) A - HRAAR
Mk ERET - FERB(ESZRBAEHEDEXV
FBEE7 X8 BR A K& AN N B K Bk 32 P 6 2 KR
B (BERB(EZRBREEIDBRGEIRE - &
EWEFXIRRERNERZIRR) - HRE(E
LB RO EI2EMEBLARRBFEE

okt

M AR FAR - R TR R &R
ZETRDRE - BAEG AR T R Fra s SR
wmr

g

ERNBANERZEFR

Approximate

Approximate

Total number percentage percentage

of domestic of total issued of total

Name Capacity shares held domestic shares issued shares

HERITRER HE BITHERA

e 14 FiRRERRE BHED BOBEIL

(%) (%)

Li Jianwen Personal 1,482,579 0.64 0.36
ES =5 (EPN

Li Chunyan Personal 395,992 017 0.10
FEK (EPN

Liu Yuejin Personal 375,151 0.16 0.09
Eillz31E3 fEA

Wei Tingzhan Personal 1,645,104 0.67 0.37
EIEE A

Gu Hanlin Personal 797,203 0.35 0.19
REOZM fEA

Li Shunxiang Personal 5,210,428 2.26 1.26
& :pe PN

Yang Baoqun Personal 1,042,086 0.45 0.25
58 BF fEA

Liu Wenyu Personal 265,151 0.12 0.06
2> fEA

Yao Jie Personal 125,051 0.05 0.03
ok fEA

Wang Hong Personal 82,5625 0.04 0.02
FiT fEA

2013 3

ERREEEEEERNBRAF

59




60

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EEgWmE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the
directors, supervisors or chief executives of the Company nor any of
their associates and any interest and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within he meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they ere taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2013 so far as is known to the directors,
supervisors or chief executive of the Company, the persons (other than
a director, supervisor or chief executive of the Company) had, or were
deemed or taken to have interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under

Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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Long positions in the domestic shares of the Company

Name Capacity

=L g1
Beijing Chaoyang Auxiliary Food

Company
BB L CUNG

Beneficial owner

BEHmBEAA

Positions in the H shares of the Company

Name

=L

Commonwealth Bank of Australia (Note 1)(Fff&E1)
JPMorgan Chase & Co. (Note 2)(F7£2)

Schroders Plc (Note 3)(Ff3E3)

Templeton Asset Management Limited (Note 4)(Fff7£4)

Prudential plc (Note 5)(Hf5E5)

Schroder Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited
(Note 6)(Ff7+6)

The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation (Note 7)(Ff:£7)

Genesis Asset Managers, LLP (Note 8)(Ff{7t8)
Genesis Emerging Markets Opportunities Fund Limited
(Note 9)(FM5¥9)

(L) - Long Position
(P) - Lending Pool
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EARRNERZHR

Approximate Approximate

Total number percentage percentage
of domestic of total issued of total
shares held domestic shares issued shares

HERITRER HE BT

s ERNERE BHEIE ARFEIEI L

(%) (%)

167,409,808 72.77 40.61
RAERARHR ZHE

Approximate Approximate

percentage percentage
Total number of of total of total
H shares held issued H shares issued shares
FrisEE 81T HEBITHR HEBITH
HIRIRE AN HIEIE BRANENEDE
(%) (%)
25,172,000 (L) 13.82 6.11
23,680,900 (L) 13.00 5.74
23,680,900 (P) 13.00 5.74
19,977,000 (L) 10.96 4.85
18,314,900 (L) 10.05 4.44
14,899,000 (L) 8.18 3.61
18,036,000 (L) 7.16 3.16
12,768,739 (L) 7.01 3.10
12,758,739 (P) 7.00 3.10
12,749,000 (L) 6.99 3.09
12,749,000 (L) 6.99 3.09
L -H&
(P) —AIEELHRG
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Note:

1. Commonwealth Bank of Australia was deemed to have an interest in the

25,172,000 H shares through its interest in its controlled corporations.

2. These 23,680,900 H shares were held by JP Morgan Chase & Co.
of which 23,680,900 H shares were Lending Pool in its capacity as a

custodian corporation/an approved lending agent.

3. These 19,977,000 H shares were held by Schroders Plc in its capacity as

an investment manager.

4. These 18,314,900 H shares were held by Templeton Asset Management

Limited in its capacity as an investment manager.

5. Prudential plc was deemed to have an interest in the 14,899,000 H shares

through its interest in its controlled corporations.

6. These 13,036,000 H shares were held by Schroder Investment
Management (Hong Kong) Limited in its capacity as an investment

manager.

7. The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation was deemed to have an
interest in the 12,768,739 H shares through its interest in its controlled

corporations, of which 12,758,739 H shares were Lending Pool.

8. These 12,749,000 H shares were held by Genesis Asset Managers,LLP in

its capacity as an investment manager.

9. These 12,749,000 H shares were held by Genesis Emerging Markets
Opportunities Fund Limited in its capacity as an investment manager.

Save as disclosed above, as far as is known to the directors,
supervisors or chief executive of the Company, as at 31 December
2013, no other persons (not being a director, supervisor or chief
executive of the Company) had, or were deemed or taken to have
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

=
=
R

1. Commonwealth Bank of Australiai® i H 7 E FriE
IR R B R - AR AR 5%25,172,00008HA%
WEER -

2. k%23,680,900/&HAXBIJP Morgan Chase & Co.
AR - 1L523,680,9008 HA% 15 & A 18 H 79
B&15 - HLMRENEE REEEREBASGREE
PR o

3. £%19,977,0008%HA% A Schroders PlchA % & & 18
B H DS E R

4. 1b5518,314,900%HA% FR Templeton Asset Management
Limited AR E 438 S0 5 A 1%

5. Prudential plci&EiBEREATIEH A EMAER -
R AF%14,899,00008 HAIG F B #E2s o

6.  Ith5513,036,000%H% F3Schroder Investment Management
(Hong Kong) Limited A% B AT & (n 5 A #eas ©

7. 512,768,739 HAZ FH The Bank of New York Mellon
Corporationi i £ 7 H Frs § K = B A 5 15 5 1
#5 o HAP12,758, 730k HAR A A (& R A AR -

8. b5 12,749,000/ HA% 1 Genesis Asset Managers,
LLPARE KBS I5E o

9. £ 12,749,0008%HM% F1 Genesis Emerging Markets
Opportunities Fund Limited A1 & 4818 5 ) 15 5 1%

¢
e

BEXHBEEEN  BARBESE BERIR
THRABRHM R_T—-—=F+-_HA=+—8"
BBEITAAL(XARBRES EFTHETBTRAR
BRANRARBNERD - HERODHEST - #E
HHBAR AT E RIBCGEF M E IGH)EXVERE2 R
3D HAMEARRR R FORR - iR
B(RRF M RGN DEIIGRLARRAFEE
AR SORE -



REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EEgWE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group entered into the following

continuing connected transactions:

FEREXS
BEHAR  AKBETTOTHERERS

2013 2012

—E-=fF —E-_F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBTT

1 Lease of properties by Chaoyang Auxiliary to the $ARIARHBEWMETFTAAE (1) 1,327 745
Company (note 1)

2 Lease of a property by Tengyuan Xingye to the — BEEBEHAEYME T AR R (HE2) 3,204 2,678
Company (note 2)

3 Lease of property by Chaoyang Auxiliary to BRI ARHEWMETIRGEN S 17

Xinyang Tongli (note 3) (M7E3)

All the above continuing connected transactions are also reported as
related party transactions as disclosed in note (VII) 4(1) to the financial

statements.

Notes:

1. Pursuant to the three lease agreements, the three supplemental lease
agreements, a confirmation letter and a memorandum entered into
between the Company and Beijing Chaoyang Auxiliary Food Company
(“Chaoyang Auxiliary”) during the period from 30 April 2004 to 12
August 2008, Chaoyang Auxiliary agreed to lease to the Company
certain properties (referred to as the JKL Properties on page 110 of the
introduction document dated 29 June 2007 in connection with the Main
Board Migration (the Introduction Document)) for terms of between 10
years to 20 years commencing on 1 January 2004, 1 July 2005 and 1
July 2006 (as the case may be) with fixed annual rentals (inclusive of the
relevant business and property taxes) for four to six year periods (as the
case may be). The rental is paid in advance on a quarterly or half-yearly
basis (as the case may be).

On 30 June 2011, the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of Beijing Chaoyang District (“Chaoyang SASAC”) approved
the transfer of the properties aforesaid, except the five properties which
the company continued to rent and five properties which the lease are
terminated undermentioned (the “transferred assets”) from Chaoyang
Auxiliary to Beijing Hongchao Weiye Company limited, a state-owned
company wholly owned by Chaoyang SASAC (“Hongchao Weiye”) at nil
consideration. On 1 July 2011, a modification agreement of the lease
agreement was entered into between the Company, Chaoyang Auxiliary
and Hongchao Weiye under which the Company agreed to continue to
rent the transferred leased properties from Hongchao Weiye, to continue
to rent five properties from Chaoyang Auxiliary, and to cease to rent five
other properties from Chaoyang Auxiliary.
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On 18 June 2012, a supplemental lease agreement (the “Supplemental
Lease Agreement”) was entered into between the Company and Chaoyang
Auxiliary in relation to the properties of Chaoyang Auxiliary. Pursuant
to the Supplemental Lease Agreement, the Company and Chaoyang
Auxiliary agree to (i) increase the leasing area of one of the properties
leased from Chaoyang Auxiliary to operate as the training centre, and (ji)
adjust the rental payable for all five properties leased from the Chaoyang
Auxiliary according to the rental evaluated by the property assessment
firm with 31 December 2011 as the case assessment date, with increase

in accordance with the term.

Chaoyang Auxiliary is the controlling shareholder of the Company which
owns approximately 40.61% of the issued share capital of the Company,
and is also one of the promoters of the Company.

All the leased properties (with a total gross area of approximately 5,607
sq.m) are located in the Chaoyang District in Beijing, Beijing and are
principally used by the Company to operate 4 convenience stores and 1

training centre.

The aggregate rental paid to Chaoyang Auxiliary was approximately
RMB1,327,000 for the year ended 31 December 2013, and ranging from
approximately RMB1,327,000 to approximately RMB1,407,000 per annum
during the period from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2023.

Pursuant to the lease agreement dated 2 July 2007 entered into between
the Company and Beijing Tengyuan Xingye Automobile Service Company
Limited (“Tengyuan Xingye”), a subsidiary of Chaoyang Auxiliary, Tengyuan
Xingye agreed to lease to the Company a property (“Tengyuan Property”)

for a term of 15 years commencing on 1 April 2007.

On 1 July 2011, a “Termination Agreement in respect of Property Leasing
Agreement” was entered into between the Company and Tengyuan
Xingye, pursuant to which the Company and Tengyuan Xingye agreed that
the Company shall (i) cease to rent the Tengyuan Property and (i) pay a
property occupation fee on the basis of the rental immediately before the
said cessation of rent to Tengyuan Xingye until the Company returned the
Property to Tengyuan Xingye.
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On 18 June 2012, a new lease agreement (the “Tengyuan Lease
Agreement”) was entered into between the Company and Tengyuan
Xingye. Pursuant to the Tengyuan Lease Agreement, Tengyuan Xingye
agrees to lease the Tengyuan Property to the Company for a term from
1 July 2012 to 31 March 2022, and re-assessed the leased area of the
Tengyuan Property. The rental payable is set according to the rental
evaluated by the property assessment firm with 31 December 2011 as the
case assessment date, with increase in accordance with the term of the

lease.

Tengyuan Xingye is a 82% subsidiary held by Chaoyang Auxiliary.

The Tengyuan Property is located No.52 Jiuxiangiao Road in the Chaoyang
District, Beijing, adjacent to a department store and a hypermarket owned
by the Company. It has a total gross area of approximately 7,195 sg.m.
and used by the Company as office, staff canteen and quarter, which to
support the aforesaid department store and hypermarket. The Tengyuan
Property is owned by Chaoyang Auxiliary, which has authorized Tengyuan

Xingye to lease and manage the Tengyuan Property.

The aggregate of the rentals and management fees payable to Tengyuan
Xingye by the Company shall be approximately RMB3,204,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2013, and ranging from approximately
RMBS3,204,000 to approximately RMB3,364,000 per annum during the
period from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2023.

Pursuant to a lease agreement dated 1 July 2004 and a supplemental
lease agreement dated 25 July 2005 entered into between Chaoyang
Auxiliary and Beijing Xinyang Tongli Commercial Facilities Company
Limited (“Xinyang Tongli”), Chaoyang Auxiliary agreed to lease to Xinyang
Tongli certain property (referred to as the “Xinyang Property” on page 123
of the Introduction Document) for a term of 20 years commencing on 1
January 2004 with a fixed annual rental (inclusive of the relevant business
and property taxes) for each five year period. The rental is paid in advance

on a half-yearly basis.

On 14 December 2012, after trading hours, the Compensation
Agreement was entered into between the Xinyang Tongli and Chaoyang
Auxiliary, pursuant to which Xinyang Tongli and Chaoyang Auxiliary has
agreed to terminate the lease agreement aforesaid due to the property
demolition policy, and Chaoyang Auxiliary has agreed to pay part of the
governmental compensation for the relevant property demolition received
by it to Xinyang Tongli as compensation. Further details were set out in

the announcement dated 14 December 2012.
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Xinyang Tongli is an approximately 52.03% held subsidiary of the
Company.

The leased property is located in the Chaoyang District, Beijing for
commercial, office, warehouse and industrial uses, with a total gross area

of approximately 1,362 sg.m..

The aggregate rental was approximately RMB17,000 for the year ended
31 December 2012. Xinyang Tongli did not pay any rental to Chaoyang
Auxiliary from 1 January 2013.

In connection with each of the continuing connected transactions for items
1 to 2 (on an aggregated basis), the directors estimate that the annual
caps for each of the three years ending 31 December 2014 will exceed
0.1% but less than 5%, of the applicable percentage ratios (other than
the profits ratio) under Rule 14A.34 (1) of the then Listing Rules. Hence,
the continuing connected transactions are only subject to the reporting
and announcement requirements pursuant to Rules 14A.45 to 14A.47
of the Listing Rules and are exempt from independent shareholders’
approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The relevant
announcements have been made on 18 June 2012 and 14 December
2012.

The directors (including the independent non-executive directors)
have reviewed all the above continuing connected transactions during
the Reporting Period and confirmed that such continuing connected

transactions are:
a. in the ordinary and usual course of the Group’s business;

b. on normal commercial terms or, if there are no sufficient comparable
transactions to judge whether they are on normal commercial terms,
on terms no less favourable to the Group than those available to or
from (as appropriate) independent third parties; and

(% in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

shareholders of the Company as a whole.
The Board has received a letter from the external auditors in relation to
the above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that these

continuing connected transactions:

a. have been approved by the Board;
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b.  have been entered into in accordance with the terms of the
respective agreements governing the transactions; and

(e have not exceeded their respective annual caps as disclosed in the

announcements dated 18 June 2012 and 14 December 2012.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in

accordance with and Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on public information and within the knowledge of the directors,
the Company’s public float complied with the applicable requirements
of the Listing Rules from 1 January 2013 and up to the date of this

report.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTEREST

None of the directors, supervisors, the controlling shareholder or the
substantial shareholders of the Company or any of their respective
associates had engaged in any business that competed or might
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group,
or had any other conflict of interests with the Group during the

Reporting Period.

AUDITORS

The financial statements in this annual report for the year ended 31
December 2013 have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA
LLP (B FE X G5B EBH AR BB E %)) (‘Deloitte CPA”), whose
term of appointment will expire at the conclusion of the forthcoming

2013 annual general meeting.
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The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011 have
been audited by Ernst & Young (Z kK &&THIEFT). The financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 in 2012 annual
report have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu ({£%)e
R R 77 @5tEM1T). Deloitte CPA was appointed as the auditor of the
Company, and not appoint the PRC and non-PRC auditors separately,
which was approved by the shareholders on the 2012 Annual General
Meeting. Deloitte CPA is the only auditor auditing the Company’s
financial statements after the appointment at the 2012 Annual General
Meeting in accordance with China Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises. Further details about the change of auditors and adoption
of China Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises were set out
on the announcements dated 12 April 2013, 27 March 2013 and 28
March 2013.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general

meeting for the re-appointment of Deloitte CPA.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Li Jianwen

Chairman

Beijing, PRC
28 March 2014
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE
S

To the shareholders,

Since the incorporation of the Company, the supervisory committee
of the Company (the “Supervisory Committee”) adheres to principles
of honesty and integrity in discharging its supervisory duties and
obligations loyally and diligently in accordance with the Listing Rules
of the Stock Exchange, the requirements under the relevant laws
and regulations of the PRC and Company’s Articles of Association to

safeguard the interests of the shareholders and the Company.

All the supervisors were re- election as supervisors at the 2012 Annual
General Meeting or the worker’s congress (as case may be) for a
three-year term, with effect from 2012 Annual General Meeting or the
worker’s congress and will expire at the end of 2015 Annual General

Meeting or the worker’s congress.

During the Reporting Period, five meeting of the Supervisory
Committee were held for reviewing the 2012 annual report, the report
of the Supervisory Committee for 2012, re-appointment of chairman
of Supervisory Committee, and the 2013 quarterly and interim results.
The attendance records of the Supervisors attending such meetings in

person are set out below:

Ms. Liu Wenyu (Chairman) 2wzt (EE)

Ms. Wang Hong Tyl %+
Ms. Yao Jie kg +
Mr. Chen Zhong FREE S 4
Ms. Cheng Xianghong szt
Mr. Yang Baoqun HEELE

HARE

BARRRRIZBR ARARAEFE(EFEE))
BRI ETRA - PRABERERZIRTE
RARRER  BTHERY LE- HHET
HEBBE  BERRRARR 2 -

MEBEEROR T —_FRRBFRAEXBITA
RRE(RBERAME) L BERRARES £
HA=F B Z—_FRREFASHIBIN
RAGHAZER ZE_ZT-—AFRIRBFRE
ERIBITRERGAB Z BEHER -

&

i

\

FEMA EFEEHEBHARER  BREEEL
RA—F—_F#H - ——FREFERE
ENZEF - EEFEIF RFE_T—=
FEESE —TZFPHXE - FREEFEHY

HERCENT

Attendance/Number of meetings

HE EERE

5/5
5/5
5/5
5/5
5/5
5/5
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i

HE

The major work performed by the Supervisory Committee included the
attendance of Board meetings and general meetings; inspection of
resolutions made by the Board, review of internal control system, strict
and effective monitoring of whether the policies and decisions made
by the management of the Company had confirmed with the relevant
laws and regulations and the Company’s Articles of Association,
safeguarding the interest of the Company and shareholders. The
Supervisory Committee has also reviewed the performance of the
directors and senior management in their daily operation activities
by various means, and examined the Group’s financial affairs and
connected transactions. As a result of our work, the Supervisory

Committee concluded that:

1. The decision-making process of the Company is in compliance
with the Company’s Article of Association. Proper and adequate
internal control system has been established. The directors and
senior management observed their fiduciary duties and worked
diligently, loyally and legally. The Supervisory Committee is not
aware of any breach of the relevant laws and regulations and the
Company’s Articles of Association or actions against the interests
of shareholders by the directors and senior management of the

Company.

2. The Company’s 2013 financial statements reflected a fair view
of the financial position and operating results of the Group in

material aspects.

3. All continuing connected transactions and connected transaction
conducted in the Reporting Period between the Group and its
connected persons were in the ordinary course of business
and carried out pursuant to the terms of the agreement for the
transactions, and no act that prejudiced the interests of the

Company and shareholders has been found.

4. The Group did not encounter any major litigation during the

Reporting Period.
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ESeWE

We would like to express our appreciation to the strenuous supports
of the shareholders, directors and all staff to the Supervisory

Committee during the Reporting Period.

BY ORDER OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE
Liu Wenyu

Chairman

Beijing, PRC
28 March 2014
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Jianwen, aged 53, is the Chairman of the Board and an

executive director. He worked in Beijing Jingkelong Shang Sha
(“Jingkelong Shang Sha”), the predecessor of Beijing Jingkelong
Supermarket Chain Group Company Limited (“Jingkelong
Supermarket”) (the predecessor of the Company) as the deputy
general manager from 1998 to 2002. From 2002 to 2004, he was a
director and the deputy general manager of Jingkelong Supermarket.
From November 2004 to June 2013, he was the managing director
of the Company. He has been the Chairman of the Board of the
Company since 28 June 2013. He is also a director of Chaopi Trading,
an approximately 79.85% directly owned subsidiary of the Company.

Ms. Li Chunyan, aged 41, is an executive director. Ms. Li obtained
a bachelor’s degree in law and subsequently a master’'s degree in
private international law from China University of Politics & Law of
China. Ms. Li is a member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. She was the Officer of the Bureau of Law of Jingkelong
Shang Sha from 2001 to 2002. In addition, she was the Officer of
the Bureau of Law and the Secretary to the board of directors of
Jingkelong Supermarket from 2002 to 2004. Since November 2004,
she has been one of the executive directors of the Company. She has
been appointed as the Company’s Chief Financial Officer and deputy

general manager since December 2008.
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Mr. Liu Yuejin, aged 54, is an executive director. From 2000 to 2004,
he was the general manager of Jingkelong Langfang. Between 2002
and 2004, he was one of the directors of Jingkelong Supermarket.
Since November 2004, he has been an executive director of the
Company. From 2005 to 2009, Mr. Liu had held various positions in
the Company, including the manager of the First Operation Division,
the manager of the Jiuxiangiao Community Shopping Centre and the
manager of the Operation Division of Shopping Centre. From 2009
to 2012, he had been the manager of the First Operation Division of
Supermarkets of the Company. Since March 2012, he has been the

manager of the Operation Division of Hypermarkets of the Company.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wei Tingzhan, aged 60, a senior economist, is a non-executive
director. From 1991 to 1994, Mr. Wei was the general manager of
Beijing Chaoyang Auxiliary Company Limited (“Chaoyang Auxiliary”).
From 1994 to 2002, he was the general manager of Jingkelong
Shang Sha. He was the managing director of Jingkelong Supermarket
from 2002 to 2004. From November 2004 to June 2013, he was the
Chairman of the Board. Since 28 June 2013, he has been a non-
executive director. In December 2008, he was honoured with the title
of “Outstanding figure of Chinese commerce & service industry during
the 30 years of reform and opening-up (47 Bl 2 AR E ek ERIM =
+iRF S AY) by the China General Chamber of Commerce and
China Business Herald. He was elected as a representative of the 13th

Session of the People’s Congress of Beijing.

Mr. Gu Hanlin, aged 61, is a non-executive director. From 2002 to
2004, he was a chairman of the Board of Jingkelong Supermarket.
From May 2004 to October 2012, he has been the general manager
of Chaoyang Auxiliary. Since November 2004, he has been a non-

executive director of the Company.
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Mr. Li Shunxiang, aged 61, is a non-executive director. From
2000 to 2010, he was the general manager of Beijing Zhonglianjian
Construction Company Limited. From 2002 to 2004, he was a non-
executive director of Jingkelong Supermarket. Since November 2004,

he has been a non-executive director of the Company.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Liping, aged 56, is an independent non-executive director.
Mr. Wang obtained a master’s degree in Economics and a PhD in
Management from Renmin University of China in 1985 and 2004,
respectively. He is currently the professor and doctorial supervisor
at the Institute of Business Organisation and the faculty of Human
Resources Management at Renmin University of China. He has
also been an independent non-executive director of China Haisum
Engineering Co. Ltd. (P BI/&E# TR B+ 1% B R QR since April
2009, which is listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Since June

2010, he has been an independent non-executive director.

Mr. Chen Liping, aged 52, is an independent non-executive director.
Mr. Chen obtained a master’s degree in Business Operation from Aichi
University of Japan in 1999 and a PhD in Economics from Circulation
University of Economics of Japan in 2008. He is currently the Head,
professor and master supervisor of the faculty of Marketing in the
Institute of Business Management at Capital University of Economics
and Business of China. Since June 2010, he has been an independent

non-executive director.
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Mr. Choi Onward, aged 43, is an independent non-executive director
of the Company and the chairman of the audit committee. Mr. Choi
currently serves as the acting chief financial officer of NetEase, Inc.
(NASDAQ: NTES) and an independent non-executive director of China
ITS (Holdings) Company Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (SEHK: 1900). Mr. Choi is a member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
a fellow member of the CPA Australia, a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a registered
practicing Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong. Mr. Choi holds
a Bachelor of Arts degree in accountancy with honors from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Choi has been an independent non-

executive director since June 2010.

SUPERVISORS

Ms. Liu Wenyu, aged 42, is the chairman of the Company’s
Supervisory Committee. During the period from 1999 to 2008, Ms.
Liu has been appointed as the vice-chairman of the labour union of
Chaoyang Auxiliary and the Company, the deputy manager of the
First Operation Division and the officer of the Office of the Jiuxiangiao
Community Shopping Center coordination team of the Company.
Since October 2008, she has been the chairman of the labour union
of the Company. Since June 2010, she has been the chairman of the

Company’s Supervisory Committee.

Mr. Yang Baoqun, aged 61, is a supervisor of the Company. He was
a supervisor of Jingkelong Supermarket from 2002 to 2004. Since

November 2004, he has been a supervisor of the Company.
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Mr. Chen Zhong, aged 50, is a supervisor of the Company. Mr.
Chen obtained his doctorate from Peking University in 1989. He is
currently a professor of the School of Electronics Engineering and
Computer Science, the Head of Department of Computer Science
and Technology and the Head of the Advanced Financial Information
Research Centre at Peking University. Since June 2002 to July 2010,
he had been a professor and the Head of the School of Software and
Microelectronics, Peking University. Since January 2005, he has been

a supervisor of the Company.

Ms. Cheng Xianghong, aged 42, is a supervisor of the Company.
Ms. Cheng obtained her bachelor’s degree and master’s degree
in management from Renmin University of China. She is a qualified
accountant, certified public valuer and registered tax agent. She had
previously worked in Beijing Ding Xin Li Accounting Firm. She has
been the deputy general manager and financial controller of Beijing
Zhongguancun City Construction Company since December 2003.
Since January 2005, she has been a supervisor of the Company.

Ms. Wang Hong, aged 43, is a supervisor of the Company. Ms.
Wang is a senior economist. She worked in Beijing Ruida Frozen
Foods Company Limited for about nine years and was appointed as
the assistant to general manager before joining the Company. Since
September 2003 to March 2012, she had been appointed as the
deputy officer of the Office of Managers, the purchase manager of
the In-house Brand Division of Purchase Center and the manager
of the Marketing Department of the Company. From March 2012 to
July 2012, she had been appointed as the deputy manager and the
manager of the Human Resources Department. Since August 2012,
she has been the Chief Human Resources Officer and the manager of
the Human Resources Department. Since June 2010, she has been a

staff-appointed supervisor of the Company.
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Ms. Yao Jie, aged 51, is a supervisor of the Company. From 2002 to
2004, she was the deputy officer of the Human Resources Department
of Jingkelong Supermarket. Since November 2004 to July 2009, she
has been the deputy officer of the Human Resources Department
of the Company. From July 2009 to March 2012, she has been the
officer of the Manager Office of the Company. Since April 2012, she
has been the vice-chairman of the labour union of the Company. Since
November 2009, she has been a staff-appointed supervisor of the

Company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Wei, aged 50, is the General Manager of the Company. Mr.
Li had held various positions in Beijing Blue Island Da Sha Company
Limited (“Beijing Blue Island”), including being the market manager, the
purchasing manager, the manager of development department and
the manager’s assistant from August 1993 to November 2005. From
November 2005 to November 2008, he had been the deputy general
manager of Beijing Blue Island. From November 2008 to May 20183,
Mr. Li was a director and the general manager of Beijing Blue Island.
From 28 June 2013, Mr. Li was has been appointed as the general

manager of the Company.

Mr. Gao Jingsheng, aged 59. From 1998 to 1999, Mr. Gao was the
assistant general manager of Jingkelong Shang Sha. From 1999 to
2002, he was the assistant general manager of Chaoyang Auxiliary.
From 2002 to 2004, he was the assistant general manager of
Jingkelong Supermarket. He has been the assistant general manager

of the Company since November 2004.
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Mr. Li Shenlin, aged 50. Mr. Li acted as the manager of several retail
outlets of the Company from 1997 to 2007. From 2007 to 2009, he
was the manager of the Operation Division of Hypermarkets and the
assistant to the manager of the Company. Since August 2009, he has

been the assistant general manager of the Company.

Mr. Shang Yongtian, aged 52. Mr. Shang acted as the manager
of several retail outlets and the department manager of Chaoyang
Auxiliary from 1991 to 2004. From 2005 to 2009, he was the manager
of the Operation Division of supermarkets of the Company and the
manager of the Operation Division of Hypermarkets of the Company.
From January 2010 to April 2013, he was the assistant to the manager
of the Company. Since April 2013, he has been the assistant general

manager of the Company.

Mr. Li Bo, aged 35, is the Company Secretary of the Company. He
graduated from Capital University of Economics and Business with
a bachelor’'s degree of economics in 2001 and obtained a master
degree of accounting from Macquarie University of Australia in 2004.
Mr. Li is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and Certified Practising Accountant of Australia. Mr. Li
worked for Bank of Beijing from July 2001 to June 2002 as Loan
administration officer. He served as an auditor in Deloitte Beijing office
from December 2004 to July 2007. He served as a senior auditor in
the Audit office of New South Wales in Australia from August 2007
to September 2010, then served in Sinolink securities as a project
manager from September 2010 to March 2011. Mr. Li joined the
Company on 18 March 2011. From November 2013 till now, Mr. Li

also served as the Company secretary for Yunnan Water Industry

Investment and Development Company.
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Mr. Luan Jie, aged 32, is the secretary to the Board of the Company.
He graduated from law school of Beijing University of Chemical
Technology with a bachelor of law degree. Mr. Luan served as an
legal clerk in Chaopi Auxilary Company from 2004 to 2007. From
2007 to 2008, he served as an legal practitioner in Beijing Jingdu Law
Firm. Since 2008, he served as deputy manager and manager in the
Company’s securities and legal department. He was appointed as

secretary to the Board of the Company from February 2010.
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AUDITOR’S REPORT
AT S

Deloitte.

EEIE XS ITITE ST (BB EAIK) Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA Ltd.

/, $ hE LB ERRIE2222 Certified Public Accountants LLP
1 — SRR IL 308 30/F Bund Center
IO\ HRERSRES : 200002 222 Yan An Road East

To the Shareholders of Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Beijing
Jingkelong Company Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the
Company’s and consolidated balance sheets as at 31 December
2013, and the Company’s and consolidated income statements, the
Company’s and consolidated statements of changes in shareholders’
equity and the Company’s and consolidated cash flow statements for

the year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements.

1. Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of these financial statements. The
responsibilities include: (1) preparing the financial statements in
accordance with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
to achieve fair presentation of the financial statements; (2)
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control that is
necessary to ensure that the financial statements are free from

material misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

2. Certified public accountants’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an audit opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with China Standards on Auditing. China Standards
on Auditing require that we comply with the Code of Ethics for
Chinese Certified Public Accountants and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements are free from material misstatement.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

Shanghai 200002, PRC
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An audit involves performing audit procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the certified
public accountants’ judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
Certified Public Accountants consider the internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

3. Audit opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements of the Company present
fairly, in all material respects, the Company’s and consolidated
financial position as of 31 December 2013, and the Company’s
and consolidated results of operations and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Accounting Standards for

Business Enterprises.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA LLP.
Shanghai, China

Certified Public Accountants of China

Zhou Ying

Fu Yanjun

28 March 2014
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
afEERER

At 31 December 2013 2013412531 H 1L FE

2013.12.31 2012.12.31
—g—-= —E——F
+=A=+-8B | +tZA=+—8H
RMB RMB
AR%T AR¥TT
Current Assets: RBEE:
Cash and bank balances E%ES 601,588,771 465,268,591
Accounts receivable FEUBR X 1,658,164,932 1,399,046,174
Prepayments TEfTFRIA 550,729,655 407,513,831
Other receivables H b WK 129,135,310 97,929,540
Inventories FE 1,481,250,484 1,5635,945,684
Other current assets Hi R &E 247,122,377 231,554,010
Total Current Assets REEEST 4,667,991,529 4,137,257,830
Non-current Assets: FRENEE :
Available-for-sale financial assets AL ESRIAE V7 3,860,000 8,332,000
Investment properties REMNEE v18 128,243,912 107,081,052
Fixed assets ElE&E (V)9 1,279,327,711 1,185,622,309
Construction in progress FEEIRE (V10 94,067,053 163,391,925
Intangible assets B EE (V11 197,500,316 196,600,805
Goodwill EES (vnt12 86,673,788 86,673,788
Long-term prepaid expenses REIFFHER (V13 565,226,236 599,225,992
Deferred tax assets RIEFTSHEE (V)14 20,478,748 16,542,792
Other non-current assets HEIERBEE (V16 106,689,056 13,780,628
Total Non-current Assets EREBEES 2,482,066,820 2,377,251,291
TOTAL ASSETS EEA 7,150,058,349 6,514,509,121
Current Liabilities: REBEE
Short-term borrowings EEMER 1,860,977,942 2,337,706,849
Notes payable e RIE 56,677,291 20,791,692
Accounts payable FERTRREX 1,138,958,035 1,054,796,045
Advances from customers B FIE 503,311,013 466,999,477
Employee benefits payable JFEE {<F B8k T % B 3,128,350 8,298,385
Dividends payable JEAAEF 5,000 4,000
Taxes payable EXTE 25,866,834 16,223,894
Other payables H A FE AT 5K 216,163,456 155,181,904
Bonds payable EES 199,979,167 199,650,000
Long-term borrowings due within —FREENRBE R
one year 10,000,000 =
Other current liabilities HEtnsasE 49,837,305 28,196,939
Total Current Liabilities REBRES 4,064,904,393 |  4,287,849,185
Non-current Liabilities: kRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities BEFTSTHRER 9,727,229 11,060,800
Bonds payable FEE S 743,553,870 =
Long-term borrowings RAEAER 234,000,000 200,000,000
Provisions SCE=Li 910,612 -
Other non-current liabilities HiIEReaE 20,611,219 15,551,326
Total Non-current Liabilities kREBEBE 1,008,802,930 226,612,126
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEEs 5,073,707,323 4,514,461,311

ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
afEERRE

At 31 December 2013 2013412531 H 1L FE

2013.12.31 2012.12.31
—E-=F —E—_fF
+=A=+—-8 | +ZA=+—H
Notes RMB RMB
P& AR® T ARHETT
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY: IRER RS
Share capital A& (V)30 412,220,000 412,220,000
Capital reserve BERRE (V)31 613,424,939 617,477,216
Surplus reserve BHATE (V)32 129,500,819 121,313,202
Undistributed profits Ko BLHHE (V)33 499,634,209 493,083,750
Total Equity Attributable to BEREATRRERST
Shareholders of the Parent Company 1,654,779,967 1,644,044,168
Minority interests DHRRER 421,571,059 356,003,642
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY BREREET 2,076,351,026 2,000,047,810
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND BENMRRERATT
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 7,150,058,349 6,514,509,121
The notes form an integral part of the financial statements. MisE RS IRER AR D -

The financial statements as set out from pages 82 to 319 have been FE2EEEII9EMIBHEABA TIEEA
signed by: %
TEX ZHHK FER
Legal Representative Chief Financial Officer Chief Accountant
JEERZEA FEEFITIEBEA BEIHEBEREA
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BALANCE SHEETS OF THE COMPANY
NAIEERER

At 31 December 2013 2013412531 H 1L FE

2013.12.31 2012.12.31
—g—-= —E——F
+=ZB=+—-8| +tZA=+—H
Notes RMB RMB
g AR¥ T AR
Current Assets: REBEE -
Cash and bank balances HEe (X1 255,644,218 236,502,341
Entrusted loans EHEEX Xin2 250,000,000 330,000,000
Accounts receivable FEURBR 3R X3 269,182,947 227,548,888
Prepayments A IE (Xina 1,596,853 3,506,250
Other receivables H At EU R (XI5 166,213,069 89,084,293
Inventories PEA< Xine 336,898,450 327,722,145
Other current assets EfmeEE X7 117,620,036 99,395,116
Total Current Assets REBEEST 1,397,155,573 1,313,759,033
Non-current Assets: EREBEE :
Entrusted Loans EEEX X8 350,000,000 =
Long-term equity investments REIRERE XI9 973,635,094 833,144,770
Investment properties REEEHE (Xin1o 37,485,364 39,140,011
Fixed assets BE&E (XI)11 985,754,778 939,487,935
Construction in progress HEEIRE X2 91,237,506 142,927,311
Intangible assets mAE (Xin13 91,429,917 89,722,300
Long-term prepaid expenses RHAGFHER Xin14 456,988,860 510,274,637
Other non-current assets HEMIERBEE Xin1s 50,795,094 6,306,235
Total Non-current Assets kRBEESST 3,037,326,613 2,561,003,199
TOTAL ASSETS BEA 4,434,482,186 3,874,762,232
Current Liabilities: REAE:
Short-term borrowings REMER xinie 400,000,000 810,000,000
Accounts payable FERRRER X1z 758,543,948 650,803,748
Advances from customers TEW IR Xin18 457,541,118 470,506,083
Employee benefits payable AT B T S (Xin19 1,467,858 4,993,456
Dividends payable JE AR 5,000 4,000
Taxes payable ERHE (XIn20 9,195,320 1,143,315
Other payables H At FERTR (Xin21 132,650,324 112,181,305
Bonds payable EES Xin22 199,979,167 199,650,000
Long-term borrowings due within —FRIHNRIPER (XIn23
one year 10,000,000 =
Other current liabilities Hibnsaf (X124 35,614,133 16,902,326
Total Current Liabilities rBaEes 2,004,996,868 2,266,184,233
Non-current Liabilities: ERBAME :
Bonds payable FEfHEFH (Xin22 743,553,870 -
Long-term borrowings RAEAER (Xin25 234,000,000 200,000,000
Deferred tax liabilities BELEMSHARE (X126 7,274,369 7,928,484
Provisions TR AE 910,612 -
Other non-current liabilities HipIERBas Xina7 12,039,449 9,596,666
Total Non-current Liabilities FRBABE 997,778,300 217,525,150
TOTAL LIABILITIES aEa 3,002,775,168 2,483,709,383
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BALANCE SHEETS OF THE COMPANY
NAAERE

At 31 December 2013 2013412531 H 1L FE

2013.12.31 2012.12.31
—E—= —ET——F
+=A=+—-B | tZA=1+—8
RMB RMB
AR¥T AR
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY: RERER

Share capital A% 412,220,000 412,220,000
Capital reserve ET VN 610,293,521 610,293,521
Surplus reserve Bt ATE 105,723,585 97,535,968
Undistributed profits KA BEFE 303,469,912 271,003,360
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY BERESSFT 1,431,707,018 1,391,052,849

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND BEMBRRERET

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

4,434,482,186

3,874,762,232

The notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

The financial statements as set out from pages 82 to 319 have been

signed by:

TEX
Legal Representative

EEREZA

ZEH

Chief Financial Officer

FESIIEEEA

MR TSR AR D ©

RER

FER2EEFEII90EMPHBHRERATIEEAEE :

Chief Accountant

EHBRAA
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
EXARAVEES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

2013 2012
—E-CZHFE —FEE
Notes RMB RMB
gz AR® T ARETT
I Total operating income — WA (V)34 10,403,753,477 9,831,275,750
Less: Operating costs W EFERCR (V134 8,309,825,077 7,826,352,943
Business tax and surcharges RIS KN (V)35 67,021,690 60,533,460
Operating expenses LEBR (V)36 1,484,512,031 1,328,499,563
Administrative expenses EEER (V)37 266,231,417 265,792,069
Financial expenses B & (V38 158,068,655 154,217,524
Impairment losses on assets EEREERE (V)39 1,337,228 1,708,079
Add: Investment income e RERE (V)40 2,078,247 806,279
Il. Operating profit — - BERHE 118,835,626 194,983,391
Add: Non-operating income N EEESMNIA (V41 34,070,038 38,855,166
Less: Non-operating expenses o EEINT (V42 9,420,616 4,209,968
Including: Losses from disposal Hep : ERBEE
of non-current assets BEEX 3,297,069 3,096,917
ll. Total profit = Flse 143,485,048 229,628,589
Less: Income tax expenses T Ffr %REFH (V43 43,168,935 57,823,961
IV. Net profit M FRE (V)44 100,316,113 171,804,628
Net profit attributable to shareholders BEREARMES
of the parent company D= IpE 57,055,711 105,104,506
Profit or loss attributable to minority DEAR R IB S
interests 43,260,402 66,700,122
V. Eamings per share: f o BARWE
() Basic earnings per share (—)EAFRME (V45 0.14 0.25
() Dilutive earnings per share SRR )45 N/A FiE A N/A T@EH
VI. Other comprehensive income 7~ Higra e (3,354,000) 1,513,500
ltems will be reclassified to gains et HEE R
(losses) in subsequent accounting TGRS EDE
period if certain requirements are met HEBZRAIE R
Net gains (losses) arising from AtEESREEE (V)46
available-for-sale financial assets BFRE(ER) S (3,354,000) 1,513,500
VII. Total comprehensive income + - RENEETE 96,962,113 173,318,128
Total comprehensive income attributable to 3B A RIFIEE
shareholders of the parent company MR A WS a%E 53,701,711 106,618,006
Total comprehensive income attributable to %‘%75"9\%5{ %E’\]
minority interests Blssas 43,260,402 66,700,122

The notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

The financial statements as set out from pages 82 to 319 have been

signed by:

FEX

Legal Representative

SEERRA
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INCOME STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY
ANSIRIINEES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

2013 2012

—E-=FE TE-FF

Notes RMB RMB

Pt s AR®T AR

| Total operating income — EERA (XIn32 4,614,848,850 4,596,722,525

Less: Operating costs B B EER AR (X132 3,658,535,498 3,701,966,183

Business tax and surcharges BER S KM (X33 31,939,257 27,667,554

Operating expenses EEER X34 696,999,480 651,018,978

Administrative expenses EIEE M (X135 157,383,003 159,028,729

Financial expenses 758 A (XIN36 41,270,283 55,096,069

Impairment loss on assets BEREBX Xin37 1,337,228 1,703,079

Add: Investment income o B (XI)38 60,182,001 65,578,913

Il.  Operating profit = BERE 87,566,102 65,820,846

Add: Non-operating income o EEINIA (XIn39 6,324,744 11,908,030

Less: Non-operating expenses oINS (Xin40 4,517,464 2,154,526
Including: Losses from disposal of Hop : JEREBEE

non-current assets BEIEK 2,120,920 1,584,242

lll. Total profit = FEEzE 89,373,382 75,574,350

Less: Income tax expenses o FTB R E (X1p41 7,497,213 2,134,641

IV. Net profit /- FEFE 81,876,169 73,439,709

V. Other comprehensive income f - Hfbfra s - -

VI. Total comprehensive income IS iR ERE 81,876,169 73,439,709

The notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

The financial statements as set out from pages 82 to 319 have been

M E R TS MR AR AR D ©

FE2HEEFII0EMIHHREATIEBEAES

signed by:
FEX Z=EHK xER
Legal Representative Chief Financial Officer Chief Accountant
JEERERA FEBIIIEAEEA B HEREEA
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

BfftRTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

Cash Flows from Operating
Activities:

Cash received from selling goods and
rendering services

Other cash received relating to
operating activities

Sub-total of cash inflow from
operating activities

Cash paid for purchasing goods and
receiving services

Cash payments to and on behalf of
employees

Taxes and surcharges paid

Other cash paid relating to
operating activities

Sub-total of cash outflow from
operating activities

Net cash flows from operating activities

. Cash Flows from Investing
Activities:
Proceeds from short-term investment/
interest income

Net cash received from disposal of
fixed assets and
other long-term assets

Principal received from financial product

Cash received from withdrawal of
pledged time deposits

Sub-total of cash inflow from
investing activities

Cash paid for acquisition of
fixed assets, construction in
progress, intangible assets and
other long-term assets

Cash paid for placement of
pledged time deposits

Principal paid for financial product

Cash paid for other investment activities
Sub-total of cash outflow from

investing activities
Net cash flow from investing activities

v

— REEHELEN

RERE
HEMM - RIESH
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W B H o R AT 8 E B
BENBRS
ETEBIR R A/ NG

BEEm  BXEH
XFERE
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FE:

RSB HIRE R
FLE U A BT U R 8
B

BREETEEREM
REABEMRWE R
RE

Ug o] 32 B 22 A U B Y

NG

Y Bl 67 & & 17 ST U )
HWIRE
RERHREARANE

BERETEE £&
T2 BEEEM
Hi REPEEL
Sy

EINREB S ERATLAS
Eopie

BEBHEMT HH
FiNc

AT HE RIS E R
BEMES

WEEBRE RN

BRERYPELNRE

mEFE

2013
—z-==g
RMB
ARMT

11,786,993,682

222,498,160
12,009,491,842
(9,880,850,345)

(609,867,342)
(286,472,926)

(924,860,727)
(11,702,051,340)

307,440,502

14,978,044

18,885,543
2,124,210,000
641,870,247

2,799,943,834

(259,146,323)
(649,747,367)
(2,164,210,000)
(47,500,000)
(3,120,603,690)

(320,659,856)

2012
—E-FE
RMB
ARETT

11,347,5662,257
187,251,934

11,534,814,191

(9,761,395,278)

(567,938,388)
(332,615,298)

(826,316,684)
(11,488,265,648)

46,548,543

14,400,519

1,229,047
519,400,000
114,012,210

649,041,776

(289,163,658)

(81,819,398)
(544,400,000)
(915,383,056)

(266,341,280)

ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
afEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

Cash Flows from Financing
Activities:
Cash received from investments
Including: cash received from capital
contributions from minority
shareholders of subsidiaries
Proceeds from disposal of interests of
subsidiaries
Cash received from borrowings
Cash received from issue of bonds
Sub-total of cash inflow from
financing activities
Cash paid for repayment of liabilities
Cash paid for repayment of bonds
Cash paid for acquisition of
minority interests of subsidiaries
Cash paid for dividends and interest

Including: Dividend paid by subsidiaries
to minority shareholders

Sub-total of cash outflow from
financing activities
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities

. Effect on cash and cash equivalents g

due to change in foreign currency
exchange rate

Net Increase in Cash and
Cash Equivalents
Add: Balance of cash and i
cash equivalents at
the beginning of the year

Balance of cash and cash
equivalents at the end of the year

-

= -BEEHELEN

REnE
R E R E RS
Hep o FRARKDH
PRI E U E
MR E
HEFREED I
FTIREIR IR &
BRI R R 2
BEFBEMBIINIRS
LREBHRSRANG

EEBRBXNNERS
EEEFXNHRE
Wi+ R D BR
BB S
7 BB R B B ) 8
XHHBRE
Hep: FREX 4
DBARERH
PR
- OEE DBk ntastl A

LREPELANRS

EFE
ERSBHURERAS
ZEMNTE

RERREEEY
RAE A, ORS)

FFNRENREE

BYERE

A FERRERFAEEE

YIERER

Notes
b

(VI)48(1)
(V1)48(2)

(V)48(2)

2013
—e-c=&g
RMB
ARMT

35,452,474

35,452,474
34,300,000
3,892,246,724
942,826,792
4,904,825,990
(4,324,975,631)
(200,000,000)
(960,000)

(237,331,429)

(48,229,371)

(4,763,267,060)

141,558,930

103,484

128,443,060

461,110,253

589,553,313

2012
—E——FF
RMB
AREET

58,447,600

58,447,600
9,100,000
4,106,068,140
199,300,000
4,372,915,740

(3,679,880,729)
(300,000,000)

(292,372,406)

(50,489,970)

(4,272,253,135)

100,662,605

(414,831)

(119,544,963)

580,655,216

461,110,253

The notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

The financial statements as set out from pages 82 to 319 have been

signed by:

FTEX
Legal Representative

EEREA

FHHK

B E AR S A MMM ED S ©

$£82HZE

Chief Financial Officer

FEEITTIIEBEA

*ER

FEIOEMPBHREA TIEEARE :

Chief Accountant

BIEBREA
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY

NARREMER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

Cash Flows from Operating
Activities:

Cash received from selling goods and
rendering services

Other cash received relating to
operating activities

Sub-total of cash inflow from
operating activities

Cash paid for purchasing goods and
receiving services

Cash paid to and on behalf of
employees

Taxes and surcharges paid

Other cash paid relating to
operating activities

Sub-total of cash outflow from
operating activities

Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing
Activities:

Proceeds from short-term investment/
interest income

Net cash receipts from disposal of
fixed assets and
other long-term assets

Principal received from
financial product

Cash received from entrust loans

Cash received from distribution of
dividends

Sub-total of cash inflow from
investing activities

Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets,
construction in progress, intangible
assets and other long-term assets

Cash paid for entrusted loans
Net cash paid for

capital injection to subsidiaries
Principal paid for financial product

Cash paid for other investment activities
Sub-total of cash outflow from

investing activities
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities

v
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EHENRE
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Notes
BiaE

(Xin42(1)

XI)42(2)

2013
—z-==g
RMB
ARMT

5,132,461,234
124,960,966
5,257,422,200
(4,146,093,548)

(346,531,829)
(121,716,370)

(363,176,039)
(4,977,517,786)

279,904,414

34,037,652

18,770,342
515,210,000
430,000,000

59,104,400

1,057,122,394

(165,290,657)
(700,000,000)

(140,490,324)
(535,210,000)
(60,000,000)
(1,600,990,981)

(543,868,587)

2012
—E-FE
RMB
ARETT

5,246,651,000

118,347,310
5,364,998,310
(4,219,981,219)

(327,601,689)
(119,843,385)

(348,316,347)
(5,015,742,640)

349,255,670

18,639,262

672,905
249,900,900
200,000,000

64,981,540

534,194,607

(184,510,314)
(380,000,000)

(249,900,900)

(814,411,214)

(280,216,607)
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY
NSNS i

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

lll. Cash Flows from Financing

Activities:

Cash received from borrowings

Cash receipts from issue of bonds

Sub-total of cash inflow from
financing activities

Cash paid for repayment of liabilities

Cash paid for repayment of bonds

Cash paid for dividends and interests

Sub-total of cash outflow from
financing activities
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities

IV. Effect on cash and cash
equivalents due to change in
foreign currency exchange rate

V. Net Increase in Cash and
Cash Equivalents
Add: Balance of cash and
cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year

VI. Balance of cash and cash
equivalents at the end of the year

2013
“E-=FE
Notes RMB
Pt s AR®T
= EETHEENRS
RE
BRI EIR IR & 1,037,296,661
BEHFEEMKEINRS 942,826,792
EEFHRESRANET
1,980,123,453
EREBNNEE (1,403,296,661)
BRESFINNAS (200,000,000)
2 LA A KA FILE
SRR (93,824,226)
EEFHRES AL/t
(1,697,120,887)
EREHELENTS
MEFRE 283,002,566
M ERSEHHRESR
ReEEYNTE
103,484
T -BeRELEENTF (XInas(1)
EmEE, R 19,141,877
m: FEReRRE (XIN43(2)
LEYHRE
236,502,341
A FRESRESEEY  (X1)43(2)
BREE 255,644,218

2012
—E——FF
RMB
AREET

1,811,115,873
199,300,000

2,010,415,873
(1,647,089,779)
(300,000,000)
(150,905,883)
(2,097,995,662)

(87,5679,789)

(414,831)

(18,955,557)

255,457,898

236,502,341

The notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

The financial statements as set out from pages 82 to 319 have been

signed by:

FEX

Legal Representative

EEREZA

FHEK
Chief Financial Officer

FEERFIEEERA

M FE R TS MR AR AR D ©

FE2HEEFII0EMIHHREATIEBEAES

KER

Chief Accountant

BT HERAA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
IR Em B E)R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

Attributable to shareholders of the parent company

FRREATRFER
Share Capital Surplus  Undistributed Minority Total
capital reserve reserve profits interests equity
RA BADE BHAR  ROEAE DHRREZ RREZSH
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
ANEET AR AR AR AR AR
2012.1.1 2012F1R1R5E 412,220,000 615,963,716 113,969,231 477,717,215 272,245,890 1,892,116,052
. Changes for the year — KEREEHLE
(I} Net profit (=) Z7E = - - 105,104,506 66,700,122 171,804,628
() Other comprehensive income (Z) Hplralas S 1,513,500 S S S 1,513,500
Subtotal of (/) and (Il) i (=)M(=) /st - 1,513,500 - 105,104,506 66,700,122 173,318,128
() Owner's contribution and (Z) BRERARRLER
reduction in capital
1. Capital contribution from 1. DERREA
minority shareholders BR - - - - 58447600 58,447,600
2. Sales of minority shareholders’ 2 HEFRAVE
equity of subsidiaries R E = = = S 9,100,000 9,100,000
(IV) Profit distribution (m) FEHE
1. Transfer to statutory reserve 1 REBBLE - - 7343971 (7,343,971) - -
2. Distributions to shareholders 2 HRENOR S = - (82,444,000) - (82,444,000)
3. Distributions to minority 3 FREHIY
shareholders by subsidiaries RENDE = - - - (50,489,970)  (50,489,970)
2012.12.31 2012612731 BB E 412,220,000 617,477,216 121,313,202 493,033,750 356,003,642 2,000,047,810
. Changes for the year —\miiﬂa"}}ﬁﬁ@]ﬁ%ﬁ
() Net profit (=) BFH - - - 57,085,711 43,260,402 100,316,113
() Other comprehensive income (Z) Efrsale - (3,354,000 = = - (3,354,000
Subtotal of () and () HiR(=)AM(Z)/ st - (3,354,000 - 57,055711 43260402 96,962,113
() Owners’ contributions and (Z) BRRBAFFESER
reduction in capital
1. Capital contribution from 1. DEREERA
minarity shareholders B - - - - 35452474 35452474
2. Acquire minority shareholders' 2. WETLRIH
equity of subsidiaries PRER R E - (698,277) S = (261,723) (960,000)
3. Sales of minority shareholders’ 3 HEFRALH
equity of subsidiaries RRME - = S (1,045,635) 35,345,635 34,300,000
(IV) Profit distribution (MAEAE
1. Transfer to surplus reserve 1 REEHLE - - 8187617  (8,187,617) S S
2. Distributions to shareholders 2 HERHOE - = - (41,222,000) - (41,222,000)
3. Distributions to minority 3 FAREDH
shareholders by subsidiaries RROAE - - - - (48229371)  (48,229,371)
2013.12.31 201312 A1 BRE 412,220,000 613,424,939 129,500,819 499,634,209 421,571,059 2,076,351,026
The notes form an integral part of the financial statements. M EE R SRR VAR B S -
The financial statements as set out from pages 82 to 319 have FO2EEFIIOEMMBHREATIEEFA
been signed by: %=
FEX =HEK FER
Legal Representative Chief Financial Officer Chief Accountant
EEREA FEESITIIEERA EiEEERA
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY OF THE COMPANY
AR RSB

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

Share Capital Surplus  Undistributed Total
capital reserve reserve profits equity
RA BERDHE BHAE AAEAE RREZSH
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARET ARET ARET ARET ARET
201211 2012F1B1H%E 412,220,000 610,293,521 90,191,997 287,351,622 1,400,057,140
. Changes for the year — AEEREYLE
() Net profi (—) 5B - - - 73439,709 73,439,709
() Profit distribution (Z) FESE
1. Transfer to surplus reserve 1 REEHLE - - 7,343,971 (7,343,971) =
2. Distributions to shareholders 2 HEENHE = = - (82,444,000)  (82,444,000)
2012.12.31 2012612 A31 A% 412,220,000 610,293,521 97,635,968 271,003,360 1,391,052,849
. Changes for the year — AFEEEHEH
() Net profit (=) F#E - - - 81876169 81,876,169
(I Profit distribution (Z) FIiEDE
1. Transfer to surplus reserve 1 RDE#HLE - - 8,187,617 (8,187,617) =
2. Distributions to shareholders 2 HBREHHE - - - (41,222,0000  (41,222,000)
2013.12.31 2013F12A31 B 412,220,000 610,293,521 105,723,585 303,469,912 1,431,707,018

The notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

The financial statements as set out from pages 82 to 319 have been

signed by:

FEX
Legal Representative

EEREZA

FEHE&K

B E AR TS IMAR AR ED S ©

$£82HEHE319H

Chief Financial Officer

FEEHIEBEA

M BHRERA TIEEARE

EER
Chief Accountant

i HBRAA

2013 4§
ERREEEEERRNBRAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

A

il

GENERAL INFORMATION

Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited (the “Company”) is a joint
stock limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”). On 1 November 2004, upon the approval
by Beijing Administration for Industry and Commerce (It T
7 /@), the Company was transformed from Beijing Jingkelong
Supermarket Chain Group Limited (“Beijing Jingkelong
Supermarket Chain Company Limited” before renamed) and the
registered capital of the Company was RMB246,620,000. The
Business License No. is 1100001231592. The registered office
and the principal place of business of the Company is located
at Block No. 45, Xinyuan Street, Chaoyang District, Beijing.
The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the retail and wholesale

distribution of daily consumer products.

On 25 September 2006, the Company was listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“SEHK”) through the issue of H shares. On 26 February 2008, all
the ordinary shares were transferred to the Main Board for listed
trading. The Company issued a total of 412,220,000 ordinary
shares as at 31 December 2013 (Note (VI) 30).

The controlling shareholder of the Company is Beijing Chaoyang
Auxiliary Food Company (“Chaoyang Auxiliary”), an enterprise
established in the PRC.

The Company’s and consolidated financial statements were
approved by the board of directors on 28 March 2014. And the
Company’s and consolidated financial statements are subject to
consideration at the general meeting pursuant to the Articles of

Association of the Company.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Basis of preparation

The Group has adopted the Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises and its guidelines, interpretations
and other related provisions (collectively referred to as
“ASBE”) issued by the Ministry of Finance (“MOF”), with
earlier adoption of ASBE 9 — Employee Benefits, ASBE 30 —
Financial Statements Presentation, ASBE 33 — Consolidated
Financial Statements, ASBE 39 — Fair Value Measurement,
ASBE 40 - Joint Arrangements and ASBE 2 — Long-
term Equity Investments, which were issued by the MOF
from January to March 2014. In addition, the Group also
discloses relevant financial information required by the
Companies Ordinance of Hong Kong and the Listing Rules

of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Basis of preparation and principle of measurement

The Group’s financial statements have been prepared on an
accrual basis. Except for certain financial instruments which
are measured at fair value, the financial statements are
prepared under the historical cost convention. In the event
that impairment of assets occurs, a provision for impairment

is made in accordance with the relevant requirements.

Statement of compliance with ASBE

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance
with the ASBE to truly and completely reflect the Company’s
and consolidated financial position as at 31 December 2013
and the Company’s and consolidated results of operations

and cash flows for the year then ended.

Accounting period

The financial year of the Group is from 1 January to 31

December of each calendar year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 RaR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

4.

Reporting currency

Renminbi (“BRMB”) is the currency of the primary economic
environment where the Group operates, and the Group’s
reporting currency is Renminbi. The financial statements of

the Group have been prepared in Renminbi.

The accounting treatment of business combinations

not involving enterprises under common control

A business combination not involving enterprises under
common control is a business combination in which all of
the combining enterprises are not ultimately controlled by

the same party or parties before and after the combination.

The cost of combination is the aggregate of the fair values,
at the acquisition date, of the assets given, liabilities incurred
or assumed, and equity securities issued by the acquirer
in exchange for control of the acquiree. The intermediary
expenses incurred by the acquirer in respect of auditing,
legal services, valuation and consultancy services, etc. and
other associated administrative expenses attributable to
the business combination are recognised in profit or loss
when they are incurred. Where a business combination not
involving enterprises under common control is achieved
in stages that involve multiple transactions, the cost of
combination is the sum of the consideration paid at the
acquisition date and the fair value at the acquisition date of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree. The
equity interest in the acquiree held before the acquisition
date is remeasured at its fair value at the acquisition date,
with any difference between its fair value and its carrying
amount being recognised as investment income. The other
comprehensive income of the acquiree before the acquisition
date relating to the previously held interest in the acquiree is

transferred to investment income.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 RaR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

Il. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

5.

The accounting treatment of business combinations
not involving enterprises under common control

(Continued)

The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities, acquired by the acquirer in a business
combination, that meet the recognition criteria shall be
measured at fair value at the acquisition date. Where the
cost of combination exceeds the acquirer’s interest in
the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, the
difference is treated as an asset and recognised as goodwill,
which is measured at cost on initial recognition. Where the
cost of combination is less than the acquirer’s interest in
the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, the
acquirer firstly reassesses the measurement of the fair values
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities and measurement of the cost of combination. If
after that reassessment, the cost of combination is still less
than the acquirer’s interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets, the acquirer recognises the remaining

difference immediately in profit or loss for the current period.

If either the fair values of identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired in a combination or the cost of
business combination can be determined only provisionally
by the end of the period in which the business combination
was effected, the acquirer recognises and measures the
combination using those provisional values. Any adjustments
to those provisional values within twelve months after the
acquisition date are treated as if they had been recognised

and measured on the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on a business combination is measured at
cost less accumulated impairment losses, and is presented
separately in the consolidated financial statements. It is

tested for impairment at least at the end of each year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(5}

The accounting treatment of business combinations
not involving enterprises under common control

(Continued)

When conducting the impairment test for goodwill, the test
is conducted through combination with its related asset
group or portfolio of asset group. That is, the carrying value
of goodwill is allocated to the relevant asset group since the
acquisition date. If the carrying value of goodwill is unable to
be allocated to asset group, the carrying value of goodwill
will be allocated to asset portfolio. If the recoverable amount
of asset group or portfolio of asset group containing the
allocated goodwill is lower than its carrying value, relevant
impairment loss is recognised. The amount of impairment
loss is first written-down and allocated to the carrying
amount of the goodwill of that asset group or portfolio of
asset group, and is then written down to the carrying value
of all other types of assets proportionally according to the
weighting of the carrying value of all other types of assets

other than goodwill within asset group or portfolio of asset

group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

Il.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

5.

The accounting treatment of business combinations
not involving enterprises under common control

(Continued)

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and the present value of the
future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset.
An asset’s fair value is the price in a sales agreement in an
arm’s length transaction. If there is no sales agreement but
the asset is traded in an active market, fair value shall be
determined based on the bid price. If there is neither sales
agreement nor active market for an asset, fair value shall be
based on the best available information. Costs of disposal
are expenses attributable to disposal of the asset, including
legal fee, relevant tax and surcharges, transportation fee
and direct expenses incurred to prepare the asset for its
intended sale. The present value of the future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset over the course
of continued use and final disposal is determined as the
amount discounted using an appropriately selected discount

rate.

An impairment loss recognised on goodwill shall not be

reversed in a subsequent period once recognised.

Preparation of consolidated financial statements

The scope of consolidation in the consolidated financial
statements is determined on the basis of control. Control
is the power to influence the investee and participate in its
operating activities to obtain benefits, the amount at which

shall be effected by the power.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

6.

Preparation of consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

For a subsidiary disposed of by the Group, the operating
results and cash flows before the date of disposal (the date
when control is lost) are included in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated statement of cash flows, as

appropriate.

For a subsidiary acquired through a business combination
not involving enterprises under common control, the
operating results and cash flows from the acquisition date
(the date when control is obtained) are included in the
consolidated income statement and consolidated statement
of cash flows, as appropriate, and adjustment is made
to the opening balances and comparative figures in the

consolidated financial statements.

Major accounting policies and accounting periods
adopted by the subsidiaries are defined according to the
standardized accounting policies and accounting periods

stipulated by the Company.

All significant intra-group balances and transactions are

eliminated on consolidation.

The portion of a subsidiary’s equity that is not attributable to
the Company is treated as minority interests and presented
as “minority interest” in the consolidated balance sheet
within shareholders’ equity. The portion of net profits or
losses of subsidiaries for the period attributable to minority
interests is presented in the consolidated income statement

under the “net profit” item as “minority interests”.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Il.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

6.

Preparation of consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

When the amount of loss for the period attributable to
the minority shareholders of a subsidiary exceeds the
minority shareholders’ portion of the opening balance of
owners’ equity of the subsidiary, the excess amount are still

allocated against minority interests.

For the transaction of acquiring minority interests of its
subsidiaries or disposing part of its subsidiaries’ equity
without losing control, treated as equity transaction, the
book value of shareholder’s equity attributed the company
and that of minority interest should be adjusted to reflect
the change in the company’s interest in the subsidiaries.
Differences between the adjustment of minority interests
and the fair value of consideration are adjusted to capital
reserve. If the differences exceed capital reserve, retained

earnings shall be adjusted.

Recognition criteria of cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and deposits that can be
readily withdrawn on demand. Cash equivalents are the
Group’s short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are

subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

Il. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

8.

Translation of transactions and financial statements

denominated in foreign currencies

On initial recognition, foreign currency transactions are
translated into the reporting currency using the spot
exchange rate prevailing at the date of transaction. As at
the balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in
foreign currency are exchanged to Renminbi by adopting
the prevailing exchange rate on that date. Foreign exchange
difference arising from the difference between the prevailing
exchange rate on that date and the prevailing exchange rate
on initial reorganization or on the previous balance sheet

date is all credited to profit or loss for the current period.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. For financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs are immediately recognised in profit
or loss. For other financial assets and financial liabilities,
transaction costs are included in their initial recognised

amounts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

Il. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

9. Financial instruments (Continued)

9.1.

9.2.

Method of determination of the fair value

The fair value refers to the amount at which both willing
parties to a fair transaction who are familiar with the
condition exchange their assets or clear off their debts
under fair conditions. For a financial instrument which
has an active market, the fair value is established
using the quoted price in the active market. While
financial instruments do not exist in an active market,
the fair value is determined using valuation techniques.
Valuation technologies include reference to be familiar
with situation and prices reached in recent market
transactions entered into by both willing parties,
reference to present fair values of other similar financial
instruments, cash flow discounting method and option

pricing models.

Effective interest method

Effective interest method represents the method for
calculating the amortized costs of financial assets
or financial liabilities (inclusive of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities) and interest income
or expense of each period in accordance with the
effective interest rate. Effective interest rate represents
the rate that discounts the future cash flow over
the expected subsisting period or shorter period, if
appropriate, of the financial asset or financial liability
to the current carrying value of such financial asset or

financial liability.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

Il. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

9. Financial instruments (Continued)

9.2.

9.3.

Effective interest method (Continued)

When calculating the effective interest rate, the
Group will consider the anticipated future cash flow
(not considering the future credit loss) on the basis
of all contract clauses of financial assets or financial
liabilities, as well as consider all kinds of charges,
transaction fees and discount or premium paid forming
an integral part of the effective interest rate paid or
received between both parties of financial asset or

financial liability contract.

Classification, recognition and measurement of the

financial assets

Financial assets are divided into loans and the
accounts receivable and available for-sale financial
assets when they are initially recognised. Financial
assets purchased and sold in regular way are
recognised and derecognised based on the accounting

at transaction date.

9.31. Loans and accounts receivable

Loans and accounts receivable are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Financial assets, including cash and bank
balances, entrusted loans, accounts receivable
and other receivables, are classified as loans and

accounts receivable by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

9.3. Classification, recognition and measurement of the

financial assets (Continued)

9.3.1. Loans and accounts receivable (Continued)

Trust loans and accounts receivable adopt the
actual interest rate method to carry out the
ongoing measure based on amortized costs.
On de-recognition, profit or loss arising from
impairment or amortization is carried at profit or

loss for the current period.

9.3.2. Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets include non-
derivative financial assets that are designated
on initial recognition as available for sale, and
financial assets that are not classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans

and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

Il. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

9. Financial instruments (Continued)

9.3. Classification, recognition and measurement of the

financial assets (Continued)

9.3.2. Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently
measured at fair value, and gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value are recognised as
other comprehensive income and included in the
capital reserve, except that impairment losses
and exchange differences related to amortised
cost of monetary financial assets denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss,
until the financial assets are derecognised, at
which time the gains or losses are released and

recognised in profit or loss.

Interests obtained and the dividends declared
by the investee during the period in which the
available-for-sale financial assets are held, are

recognised in investment gains.

For investments in equity instruments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured,
and derivative financial assets that are linked to
and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted

equity instruments, they are measured at cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

9.4. Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date the
carrying amounts of financial assets other than those
at fair value through profit or loss. If there is objective
evidence that a financial asset is impaired, the Group
determines the amount of any impairment loss.
Objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired
is evidence that, arising from one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset,

which can be reliably measured, have been affected.

Objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired

includes the following observable events:

(1) Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
obligor;

(2) A breach of contract by the borrower, such as
a default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

(8) The Group, for economic or legal reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty, granting a
concession to the borrower;

(4) It becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisations;

(5) The disappearance of an active market for that

financial asset because of financial difficulties of

the issuer;
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

Il. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND (D) AAEEEFTBERNEHEEHE)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

9. Financial instruments (Continued) 9. SRWMIAE)
9.4. Impairment of financial assets (Continued) 9.4. THMEERE(E)

(6) Upon an overall assessment of a group of 6) BEHR—HCREEPH
financial assets, observable data indicates that XEEENREREREE
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated KR BIRE AR EE
future cash flows from the group of financial HEETHBETERER
assets since the initial recognition of those assets, ZHECREEB YRR
although the decrease cannot yet be identified RETEETRARREREREE
with the individual financial assets in the group. WA BREHE - BIE

Such observable data includes:

- Adverse changes in the payment status of - RHATRMEEMNEBA
borrower in the group of assets; SNBSS R
- Economic conditions in the country or region - EBEBARMEERSME
of the borrower which may lead to a failure 4E IR T Al BE B B
to pay the group of assets; HeMBEELIINN
AT
(7) A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value 7)) HaIAEREMNAAEMBER
of an investment in an equity instrument below its ERRESIEE R T
cost;
(8) Other objective evidence indicating there is an B HMEXHAEMEEZLRE
impairment of a financial asset. HEEFIR
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

Il.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(D) R AEESHBERMETEE(E)

9. EWMIAME)

9. Financial instruments (Continued)

9.4. THEEREE)

9.4. Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets measured at — DEBKAGTEN M EE
amortised cost JE1E
If financial assets carried at amortised cost are NEBBKATENCREE

impaired, the carrying amounts of the financial
assets are reduced to the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future

credit losses that have not been incurred)

BHERMER  BHEEEEE
L ERRZEBREENR
BERM R E R B R
KREEREB(TEIEHARELE

discounted at the financial asset’s original HRRERABLR)RE - B
effective interest rate. The amount of reduction CHEERAREBL A

is recognised as an impairment loss in profit
or loss. If, subsequent to the recognition of an
impairment loss on financial assets carried at
amortised cost, there is objective evidence of a
recovery in value of the financial assets which
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment is recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed. However,
the reversal is made to the extent that the
carrying amount of the financial asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

9.

Financial instruments (Continued)

9.4. Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets measured at

amortised cost (Continued)

For a financial asset that is individually significant,
the Group assesses the asset individually for
impairment. For a financial asset that is not
individually significant, the Group assesses the
asset individually for impairment or includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. If the Group determines that
no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset (whether
significant or not), it includes the asset in a
group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively reassesses them
for impairment. Assets for which an impairment
loss is individually recognised are not included in

a collective assessment of impairment.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

When an available-for-sale financial asset is
impaired, the cumulative loss arising from
decline in fair value previously recognised
directly in capital reserve is reclassified from
the capital reserve to profit or loss. The amount
of the cumulative loss that is reclassified from
capital reserve to profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial

asset previously recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

Il.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND =
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

) AR EREFBERMEHE (&)

9. EWMIAME)

9. Financial instruments (Continued)

9.4. LHEERME ()

9.4. Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

(Continued)

If, subsequent to the recognition of an impairment
loss on available-for-sale financial assets, there is
objective evidence of a recovery in value of the
financial assets which can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment is

recognised, the previously recognised impairment

- HHRLEEHEEREE)

ERRBRERKE  HR®M
EEBRBRAZEREE
EBECDWKE BFE CEE
BZBRREENEERSR
B RERABERK TN
Eo AHEERSTAR

loss is reversed. The amount of reversal of BRBEELAEDERAA
impairment loss on available-for-sale equity HEEARFTFAERA
instruments is recognised as other comprehensive A EES T AR

income and included in the capital reserve, while
the amount of reversal of impairment loss on
available-for-sale debt instruments is recognised

in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets measured at cost

If an impairment loss has been incurred on an
investment in unquoted equity instrument (without
a quoted price in an active market) whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured, or on a
derivative financial asset that is linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity

instrument, the carrying amount of the financial

ERREOGF AE AR -
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EERTSERLERERE
RNRBETREAETSHE
wITARE EZERT
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TAAEENTESREER
ERER - SEEEEER
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asset is reduced to the present value of estimated MZREEHRRRERE
future cash flows discounted at the current WIREEMNIEE  RiLtHE
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. BRABBEEL  GTAEH

The amount of reduction is recognised as an
impairment loss in profit or loss. The impairment
loss on such financial asset is not reversed once

it is recognised.
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1:||||/

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

9.

Financial instruments (Continued)

9.5.

9.6.

Transfer of financial assets

Financial asset that satisfied any of the following
criteria shall be derecognised: (1) the contracted right
to recover the cash flows of the financial asset has
expired; (2) the financial asset, along with substantially
all the risk and return of the ownership of the financial
asset, has been transferred to the transferee; and
(3) the financial asset has been transferred to the
transferee, and the transferor has given up the control
on such financial asset, though it does not transfer or
retain substantially all the risk and return arising from

the ownership of the financial asset.

Where the entire transfer of financial assets meets
conditions applicable to de-recognition, the difference
between the following amounts is recognised in profit
or loss for the current period: the carrying amount of
the financial asset being transferred and the sum of
the consideration received from the transfer and any
accumulated gain or loss that had been recognised in

equity.

Classification recognition and measurement of

financial liabilities

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are
classified into financial liabilities or equity on the basis
of the substance of the contractual arrangements and
definitions of financial liability and equity instrument.
The financial liabilities of the Group are other financial

liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

Il.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

9. Financial instruments (Continued)

9.6.

9.7.

Classification recognition and measurement of

financial liabilities (Continued)

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
Gains or losses arising from de-recognition or
amortization is recognised in profit or loss for the

current period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are derecognised in full or in
part only when the underlying present obligation is
discharged in full or in part. An agreement is entered
into between the Group (borrower) and a lender to
replace the original financial liabilities with new financial
liabilities with substantially different terms, derecognize
the original financial liabilities as well as recognize the

new financial liabilities.

When financial liabilities is derecognised in full or in
part, the difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liabilities derecognised and the consideration
paid (including transferred non-cash assets or new
financial liability assumed) is recognised in profit or loss

for the current period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

1:||||/

(D) DRAEEGTHHREME G ()

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

9.

Financial instruments (Continued)

9.8. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Where the Group has a legal right that is currently
enforceable to set off the recognised financial assets
and financial liabilities, and intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the financial asset and settle the

financial liability simultaneously, a financial asset and a

financial liability shall be offset

presented in the balance sheet. Except for the above
circumstances, financial assets and financial liabilities

shall be presented separately in the balance sheet and

shall not be offset.

10. Receivables

10.1. Receivables that are individually significant and for

which bad debt provision individually assessed

Basis or monetary criteria A
for determining an
individually significant
receivable

BIES FEE K EUGRIER
ERRAE

Method of determining
provision for receivables
that are individually
significant and for which
bad debt provision is
individually assessed
EIH S FHE K EUGRIE
ERERBNFHRS A
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and the net amount is
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101, EELHEEAWE B IEERER
HIE YW 318

receivable that exceeds RMB5,000,000 is deemed as an individually
significant receivable by the Group.

AEERSER/ARES00E LA LN RKFIRER RERSEEANREK

A °

For receivables that are individually significant, the Group assesses the

receivables individually for impairment. For a financial asset that is not
impaired individually, the Group includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Receivables for which an impairment loss is individually
recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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Il. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND (D) AR EERTTERME A (&)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

10. Receivables (Continued) 10~ EWFRIE(E)
10.2. Receivable which bad debt provision is collectively 102 #EFRBRERASEZHESIER
assessed on portfolio basis BEALERF BRI EERERE
FREHEH T 1250
Basis for determining a The Group classifies the receivables that are not individually significant and those that
portfolio according to the are individually significant but are not impaired individually into groups of financial
credit risk characteristics assets according to the similarity and relevance of credit risk characteristics. These

credit risks usually reflect the debtors’ ability to pay the amounts due at maturity
under contractual terms of related assets and are related to the estimation of future
cash flows of the assets subject to assessment.

ERRREEAEH AEBHERSETEAULERERNEERYARBLBENERFOR - 1
ETE KR ERARRFERAUENRAEES SREELETOMA - ELERELRER MR

BEHARBZFEENGRGHEEMEIHSBENE N - WARKRESR
ENARKRREREREIEA -

Bad debt provision method for As collectively assessing the impairment on portfolio basis, the amount of bad debt
a portfolio according to the provision is determined according to that the historical experience on losses and
credit risk characteristics current economic conditions for the receivables’ portfolio structure and similar credit
risk and predicted impairment losses that have been existed in the portfolio.
REFRARSEESET RESHTAEMREIZR  ZREBLBARBERUIIEESEBREAMUER
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Il. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

10. Receivables (Continued)

10.3.

Accounts receivable that are not individually
significant but for which bad debt provision is

individually assessed

Reasons for making
individual bad debt
provision

BIEFHRERERNER  ERSBETERNEEER

(=

JRAREE

10~ FERE

10.3.

CBEBER - WEBAHRE

AREMETARE - RAECDHARE -

S BERME AR ()

RIE (&)
ERSHETEXDER12RR
EEHERRL -

Accounts receivable that are not individually significant are deemed to be

impaired by evidences such as controversial debt that are unlikely to recover.

X EFEMAE

Bad debt provision methods Impairment test is individually conducted on accounts receivable that are not

individually significant but deemed to be impaired by objective evidence to

determine the impairment losses recorded in profit or loss.

BB RTE

11. Inventory

11.1.

11.2.

Categories of inventories

Inventories of the Group mainly include raw materials,
products and finished products. Inventories are
initially measured at cost. Cost of inventories includes
purchasing cost, processing cost and other expenses
that help deliver the inventories to the current location

and situation.

Valuation method of inventories delivered

When inventories are delivered, first-in-first-out is
adopted to determine the actual cost of inventories

delivered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

Inventory (Continued)

11.3. Recognition of net realizable value of inventory and

provision for inventory impairment

At the balance sheet date, inventories are measured
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. If the
net realisable value is below the cost of inventories, a
provision for decline in value of inventories is made.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion, the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale and relevant taxes. Net realisable value
is determined on the basis of clear evidence obtained,
and takes into consideration the purposes of holding

inventories and effect of post balance sheet events.

For inventories with tremendous number and
relatively low unit price, inventory impairment loss is
provided according to the type of inventory; For other
inventories, inventory impairment provision is provided
at the difference of cost of a single item of inventory

exceeding its net realizable value.

]|E|E||/

D) RAREERS A BERMET A (E)

4GP
113 ZFETEL FENEERBERFE

BEEEA T 12 SE
BEAERA  FEERRAERY
BHRFENKTE - EHAER
FEERKAR - RIRFERESE
e IERFEREEARED
o FENGFEEREGEEH
EERANRERRERNERE - &
BEFENAERFER - UEEF
MERBRAEN  ANEERE
FENEMUAREERBERARS
TS

HNBEESY  BERENEE
BERGERERNIRFERELRE
Hifr EiRE EFEERANOKAR
REFZRFENZEAETFEK
BEEE -

2013 £
ERREEEEEERNBRAF

117




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

Il. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND (D) AAEEEFTBERNEHEEHE)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

11. Inventory (Continued) 11 FE#E)

11.3. Recognition of net realizable value of inventory and 1.3 FEISEFENEEXERFE
provision for inventory impairment (Continued) BEEF R 1205 % (4E)
After the provision for decline in value of inventories AR EBREEERE - MRUBDR
is made, if the circumstances that previously caused ATEEENFEREZDLHEL
inventories to be written down below cost no longer BYFEMA SR FESNERA
exist so that the net realisable value of inventories is BEN EREENTFELBEAE
higher than their cost, the original provision for decline HEEATNEL SRS TET
in value is reversed and the reversal is included in profit AEHERE -

or loss for the period.

11.4. Inventory count system 11.4. ZFEWBFHE
The perpetual inventory system is maintained for stock FERFHIE RKERTH -
system.

11.5. Amortization of low-cost and short-lined 11.5. 16185 FEB Ry EE 75 %
consumables
Low-cost and short-lived consumables are amortized FEMEA A —REHEETE
by immediate write-off. 8 o
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Il. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

12. Long-term equity investments

12.1.

12.2.

Determination of initial investment cost

For a long-term equity investment acquired through
a business combination involving enterprises under
common control, the initial investment cost of the long-
term equity investment shall be the absorbing party’s
share of the carrying amount of the owner’s equity of
the party being absorbed at the date of combination.
For a long-term equity investment acquired through
business combination involving enterprises not under
common control, the initial investment cost of the long-
term equity investment acquired shall be the cost of
acquisition. The long-term equity investment acquired
through means other than a business combination shall

be initially measured at its cost.

Method for subsequent measurement and profit or

loss recognition

122.1. Long-term equity investment accounted for using

the cost method

For long-term equity investments over which the
Group does not have joint control or significant
influence and without quoted prices in an active
market and that fair values cannot be reliably
measured, the Group accounts for such long-
term equity investments using the cost method.
Besides, long-term equity investments in
subsidiaries are accounted for using the cost
method in the Company’s separate financial
statements. A subsidiary is an investee that is

controlled by the Group.

]|E|E||/
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Il. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

12. Long-term equity investments (Continued)

12.2. Method for subsequent measurement and profit or

loss recognition (Continued)

122.1. Long-term equity investment accounted for using

the cost method (Continued)

Under the cost method, a long-term equity
investment is measured at initial investment cost.
Except for cash dividends or profits already
declared but not yet paid that are included in
the price or consideration actually paid upon
acquisition of the long-term equity investment,
investment income is recognised in the period in
accordance with the attributable share of cash
dividends or profit distributions declared by the

investee.

. Disposal of long-term equity investments

On disposal of a long term equity investment,
the difference between the carrying amount of
the investment and the actual consideration paid
is recognised in profit or loss for the period. On
disposal of a long-term investment under equity
method, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognized in other comprehensive
income in relation to that investee on the same
basis as would be if that investee had directly

disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

12. Long-term equity investments (Continued)

12.3. Basis for determining joint control and significant

12.4.

influence over investee

Control is the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control over an economic activity,
and exists only when the strategic financial and
operating policy decisions relating to the activity require
the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.
When determining whether an investing enterprise is
able to exercise control or significant influence over
an investee, the effect of potential voting rights of
the investee (for example, warrants and convertible
debts) held by the investing enterprises or other parties
that are currently exercisable or convertible shall be

considered.

Methods of impairment assessment and

determining the provision for impairment loss

The Group reviews the long-term equity investments at
each balance sheet date to determine whether there
is any indication that they have suffered an impairment
loss. If an impairment indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. If such recoverable amount is less
than its carrying amount, a provision for impairment
losses in respect of the deficit is recognised in profit or

loss for the period.

Once an impairment loss is recognised for a long-
term equity investment, it will not be reversed in any

subsequent period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

13. Investment properties

Investment property refers to real estate held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation, or both, including leased land
use rights, land use rights held and provided for transfer

after appreciation and leased construction, etc.

Investment property is initially measured at cost. Subsequent
expenditures related to an investment property shall be
included in cost of investment property only when the
economic benefits associated with the asset will likely flow
to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably. All
other subsequent expenditures on investment property shall
be included in profit or loss for the current period when

incurred.

The Group adopts cost method for subsequent
measurement of investment property, which is depreciated
or amortized using the same policy as that for buildings and

land use rights.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is any indication that any investment properties may
be impaired. If there is any evidence indicating that an asset
may be impaired, recoverable amount shall be estimated
for the individual asset. If it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the Group
shall determine the recoverable amount of the asset group
to which the asset belongs. If the recoverable amount of
an asset is less than its carrying amount, a provision for
impairment loss of the asset will be made for the reduction

and is charged to profit or loss for the current period.

An impairment loss recognised on investment property shall

not be reversed in a subsequent period.
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eI
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Il.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

13.

14.

Investment properties (Continued)

When an investment property is sold, transferred, retired
or damaged, the amount of proceeds on disposal of the
property net of the carrying amount and related taxes and
surcharges is recognised in profit or loss for the current

period.

Fixed assets

14.1. Recognition criteria of fixed assets

Fixed assets are tangible assets that are held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services, for
rental to others, or for administrative purposes and
have a useful life of more than one accounting year.
Fixed assets are only recognised when its related
economic benefits are likely to flow to the Group and
its cost can be reliably measured. Fixed assets are

initially measured at cost.

For subsequent expenses related to fixed assets, if
the economic benefits related to such fixed assets is
likely to inflow and its cost could be reliably measured,
they are capitalised to fixed assets cost and the
carrying amount of replacement will be derecognised.
Other subsequent expenses other than the above are
charged to profit or loss for the current period when

incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

14. Fixed assets (Continued)

14.2. Method for depreciation of different fixed assets

Depreciation is provided over their estimated useful
lives from the month after they have reached the
working condition for their intended use using the
straight-line method. The useful life, estimated residual
value and annual depreciation rate of each category of

fixed assets are as follows:

Buildings B EEEY)
Machinery and equipment 2R
Electronic equipment and other  ## A& &
Vehicles ETH

(Z)RAEE

14 BEE

14.2.

Depreciable
life (year)
EdEESE

20-35
5-10
5

5-8

S BERME AR ()

BE(E)

EHEEBENTER

B 7E & EWE R T8 E AlE AR Ay
RAR  RRAFRFGEEERS
MARTRITE - SPETEEMNE
RS - BrHFREMFTERD
T

Estimated Annual
residual depreciation
value rate rate
FEEFEBRER FHEXR

3%-4% 2.70%-4.85%
3%-4% 9.60-19.40%
3%-4% 19.20%-19.40%
3%-4% 12.00%-19.40%

Estimated net residual value of a fixed asset is the
estimated amount that the Group would currently
obtain from disposal of the asset, after deducting the
estimated costs of disposal, if the asset were already
of the stage and in the condition expected at the end

of its useful life.
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Il. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

14. Fixed assets (Continued)

14.3. Impairment testing methods and provision for

14.4.

impairment methods on fixed assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is any indication that any fixed assets
may be impaired. If there is any evidence indicating that
an asset may be impaired, recoverable amount shall be
estimated for the individual asset. If it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual
asset, the Group shall determine the recoverable
amount of the asset group to which the asset belongs.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its
carrying amount, a provision for impairment loss of the
asset will be made for the reduction and is charged to

profit or loss for the current period.

An impairment loss recognised on the assets
mentioned above shall not be reversed in any

subsequent period.

Other explanations

The Group reviews the useful life and estimated net
residual value of a fixed asset and the depreciation
method applied at least at each financial year-end. A
change in the useful life or estimated net residual value
of a fixed asset or the depreciation method used shall

be accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.

When a fixed asset is sold, transferred, retired or
damaged, the Group shall recognize the amount of any
proceeds on disposal of the asset net of the carrying
amount and related taxes in profit or loss for the

current period.

(Z)RAEXE

1:||||/

B BENE G (@)

14 BEEBEE)
14.3. BIEBERRERHL 2R EE

(LI

rEEES-EEEABRARSE
B EEEGFHERIEELREN
PR - MRZEEFERENR
AMEEtE AT IREI 2% - At EE
R AT El £ BRIAFIRE ERER -
IMRENHEREENATREEER
BTN - RIAZEEMBHNE
EARERETEEAN T RE 2
B MREESXBEEANATRDE
BEREEEEE  REZHIR
BEREER Yt AEHER -

BEEERERL —KLHER - ENU
gEtHEsTED -

14.4. Hftha 8

AEBELRFERTHHETE

ENERSS - BiHFREMFE

FOREITEZ - WBERERMER
SEHERTEERE

EETEERNEERENTEHB
B ANEE N REE LR E R o
CRIEERZEEEE - BIEE
EHE  BF  BEIXRBNEE
WA EEREEEMERERER
HZRRET AR B8

2013 1R
IR R EEAEEEROBRAR]




126
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

1:||||/

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

15.

16.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress is recognised at its actual
construction cost, including all expenditures incurred for
construction projects, capitalized borrowing costs for the
construction in progress before it is ready for intended use,
and other related expenses during the construction period.
A construction in progress is transferred to fixed assets

when it is ready for intended use.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is any indication that any construction in progress
may be impaired. If there is any evidence indicating that
an asset may be impaired, recoverable amount shall be
estimated for the individual asset. If it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the
Group shall determine the recoverable amount of the asset
group to which the asset belongs. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is less than its carrying amount, a provision for
impairment loss of the asset will be made for the reduction

and is charged to profit or loss for the current period.

An impairment loss recognised on the assets mentioned

above shall not be reversed in any subsequent period.

Intangible assets

16.1. Intangible assets

Intangible assets include land use rights, software

development costs and distribution network software.

An intangible asset shall be measured initially at cost.
When an intangible asset with a finite useful life is
available for use, its original cost is amortised using

straight-line method over its estimated useful life.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

Il. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

16. Intangible assets (Continued)

16.1. Intangible assets (Continued)

For an intangible asset with a finite useful life, the
Group reviews the useful life and amortisation method
at the end of the period, and makes adjustments when

necessary.

16.2. Method for intangible assets impairment test and
impairment provision
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is any indication that any intangible
assets with a finite useful life may be impaired. If
there is any evidence indicating that an asset may be
impaired, recoverable amount shall be estimated for
the individual asset. If it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of the individual asset, the Group
shall determine the recoverable amount of the asset
group to which the asset belongs. If the recoverable
amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, a
provision for impairment loss of the asset will be made
for the reduction and is charged to profit or loss for the

current period.

An impairment loss recognised on the assets
mentioned above shall not be reversed in any

subsequent period.

17. Long-term prepaid expenses

Long-term prepaid expenses are expenses which have
incurred but shall be amortized over the current year and
subsequent periods of more than one year. Long-term
prepaid expenses are amortized evenly over the estimated

benefit period.
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/

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

18. Revenue

18.1. Revenue from sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when the Group has transferred
to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods, retains neither continuing
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control over
the goods sold, and will receive the economic benefits
associated with the transaction, and can reliably

measure the relevant amount of revenue and costs.

For sale of goods that result in award credits for
customers, the consideration received or receivable is
allocated between the revenue from sale of goods and
the fair value of the award credits. The consideration
received or receivable after deduction of the portion
attributable to the fair value of the award credits is
recognised as revenue, and the portion attributable
to the fair value of the award credits is recognised as

deferred income.

When a customer redeems the award credits, the
Group reclassifies the amount associated with the
credits redeemed from deferred income to revenue.
The amount of revenue recognised is based on the
number of award credits that have been redeemed in
exchange for awards, relative to the total number of

award credits expected to be redeemed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

18. Revenue (Continued)

18.2. Revenue from rendering of services

When the result of provision of services can be
measured reliably, the Group recognizes related
revenue from services in accordance with the
percentage of completion as at the balance sheet
date. The completion progress of service transaction is
recognised by service cost incurred as a percentage of

estimated total cost.

If the result of provision of service transaction cannot
be reliably estimated, revenue from provision of service
is recognised at the service expenses incurred and
estimated to receive as compensation, and service
cost incurred will be regarded as the current cost. If
service cost incurred is compensated as anticipated,

no revenue will be recognised.

The Group’s revenue from service mainly include
the promoting activities. Revenue from rendering of
services is recognised when the various services have
been provided and related economic benefits will

probably flow to the enterprise.

When the Group enters into contract or agreement with
other parties which contains both sale of goods and
rendering of services, if the portion of sale of goods
and rendering of services can be separately measured,
the portion of sale of goods and rendering of services
are measured individually. If the portion of sale of
goods and rendering of services cannot be separately
measured or even if it can be separately measured but
cannot be measured individually, it is deemed to be

sale of goods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

19. Government grants

Government grants are transfer of monetary assets and
non-monetary assets from the government to the Group at
no consideration. A government grant is recognised only
when the Group can comply with the conditions attaching

to the grant and the Group will receive the grant.

If a government grant is in the form of a transfer of a
monetary asset, it is measured at the amount received or
receivable. The government grant will be classified as asset-
related or revenue-related in accordance with the nature of

government grant by relevant governments’ requirement.

A government grant related to an asset is recognised as
deferred income, and evenly amortized to profit or loss over

the useful life of the related asset.

For a government grant related to income, if the grant
is a compensation for related expenses or losses to be
incurred in subsequent periods, the grant is recognised as
deferred income, and recognised in profit or loss over the
year in which the related costs are recognised. If the grant
is a compensation for related expenses or losses already
incurred, the grant is recognised immediately in profit or loss

for the current period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Il. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

20. Deferred tax assets/deferred tax liabilities

The income tax expenses include current income tax and

deferred income tax.

20.1. Current income tax

At the balance sheet date, current income tax liabilities
(or assets) for the current and prior periods shall be
measured at the amount expected to be paid (or

recovered) according to the requirements of tax laws.

20.2. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

Temporary differences arising from the difference
between the carrying amount of an asset or liability and
its tax base, and the difference between the tax base
and the carrying amount of those items that are not
recognised as assets or liabilities but have a tax base
that can be determined according to tax laws, shall be
recognised as deferred income tax assets and deferred

tax liabilities using the balance sheet liability method.

All temporary differences are generally recognised for
relevant deferred income tax. However, for deductible
temporary difference, the Group recognizes relevant
deferred income tax assets to the extent of income
tax payable available for deducting deductible
temporary difference. In addition, for those related
to the initial recognition of goodwill and does not
belong to business combination, and neither affect the
accounting profit nor the temporary difference related
to the initial recognition of assets or liabilities incurred
in transaction of income tax payable (or deductible
loss), related deferred income tax assets or liabilities

will not be recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

Il. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND (D) AAEEEFTBERNEHEEHE)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

20~ EEFISHEE ELFESHAEE)

20. Deferred tax assets/deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

20.2. FEEFTEHEERELZFSHERE

20.2. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

132

(Continued)

The Group recognizes a deferred income tax asset for
the carry forward of deductible losses and tax credits
to subsequent periods, to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which

the deductible losses and tax credits can be utilized.

The Group recognizes deferred tax liabilities arising
from the temporary difference on tax payable related
to investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, unless the Group could control the timing
of write back of the temporary difference, and such
temporary difference is unlikely to be written back
in foreseeable future. For the deductible temporary
difference related to investment in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, the Group will only
recognize deferred income tax assets when temporary
difference is likely to be written back in the foreseeable
future and income tax payable could be utilized to

deduct the deductible temporary difference.

At the balance sheet date, deferred income tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the year when the
asset is realized or the liability is settled, according to

the requirements of tax laws.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

20. Deferred tax assets/deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

20.2. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

(Continued)

Current and deferred tax expenses or income are
recognised in profit or loss for the period, except
when they arise from transactions or events that
are directly recognised in other comprehensive
income or in shareholders’ equity, in which case
they are recognised in other comprehensive income
or in shareholders’ equity; and when they arise from
business combinations, in which case they adjust the

carrying amount of goodwill.

At the balance sheet date, the Company shall review
the carrying amount of a deferred income tax asset.
If it is probable that sufficient taxable profits will not
be available in future periods to allow the benefit
of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized, the
carrying amount of the deferred income tax asset
shall be reduced. Any such reduction in amount shall
be reversed when it becomes probable that sufficient

taxable profits will be available.

When the Group has a legal right to settle on a net
basis and intends either to settle on a net basis
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, current tax assets and current tax

liabilities are offset and presented on a net basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

Il. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

20. Deferred tax assets/deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

21.

20.2. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

(Continued)

When the Group has a legal right to settle current
tax assets and liabilities on a net basis, and deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either
the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis or to realise the assets and
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax assets or liabilities
are expected to be reversed, deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities are offset and presented on a net

basis.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying asset are capitalised
when expenditures for such asset and borrowing costs
are incurred and activities relating to the acquisition,
construction or production of the asset that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale have
commenced. Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when
the qualifying asset being acquired, constructed or produced
becomes ready for its intended use or sale. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended during periods in which the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset
is suspended abnormally and when the suspension is for a
continuous period of more than 3 months. Capitalisation is
suspended until the acquisition, construction or production
of the asset is resumed. Other borrowing costs are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are

incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Il.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

21.

22.

Borrowing costs (Continued)

Where funds are borrowed under a specific-purpose
borrowing, the amount of interest to be capitalised is the
actual interest expense incurred on that borrowing for
the period less any bank interest earned from depositing
the borrowed funds before being used on the asset or
any investment income on the temporary investment of
those funds. Where funds are borrowed under general-
purpose borrowings, the Group determines the amount of
interest to be capitalised on such borrowings by applying
a capitalisation rate to the weighted average of the excess
of cumulative expenditures on the asset over the amounts
of specific-purpose borrowings. The capitalisation rate is
the weighted average of the interest rates applicable to the

general-purpose borrowings.

Operating lease

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

22.1. Operating lease business with the Group recorded

as lessee

Lease payment for operating lease is recognised in
profits and losses for the current period using the
straight-line method over the lease term. The initial
direct cost is directly accounted in profit or loss for the
current period. Contingent rent is recognised as profit

or loss for the current period upon occurrence.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

22.2. Operating lease business with the Group recorded

as lessor

Rental income of operating lease is recognised in
profit or loss for the current period using the straight-
line method over the lease term. The initial direct
cost where the amount is larger is capitalized when
incurred, and accounted for as profit or loss for the
current period on the same basis as recognition of
rental income over the entire lease period. The initial
direct cost where the amount is smaller is accounted
for as profit or loss for the current period when
incurred. Contingent rental is accounted for as profit or

loss when which it is incurred.

23. Other significant accounting policies, accounting

estimates, and preparation of financial statements

23.1. Employee benefits

In the accounting period in which an employee has
rendered services, the Group shall recognize the
employee benefits payable as a liability excluding for

compensation for cease of employment.

The Group participates in social security systems
operated by the government as required. Payments
of social security contributions for employees, such
as premiums or contributions on pensions, medical
insurance, payments of housing funds and other social
welfare contributions shall be included in the cost of

related assets or profit or loss when they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

Il.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(D) R AEESHBERMETEE(E)

23 b EEEEBR - SR A MME
WRRmRTTE(E)

23. Other significant accounting policies, accounting
estimates, and preparation of financial statements

(Continued)

23.1. Employee benefits (Continued) 23.1. BT HB ()

When the Group terminates the employment
relationship with employees before the expiry of the
employment contracts or provides compensation
as an offer to encourage employees to accept
voluntary redundancy, if the Group has a formal plan
for termination of employment relationship or has
made an offer for voluntary redundancy which will
be implemented immediately, and the Group cannot
unilaterally withdraw from the termination plan or the
redundancy offer, a provision for the compensation
payable arising from the termination of employment
relationship with employees is recognised with a
corresponding charge to the profit or loss for the

period.

23.2. Exchange of non-monetary assets

Exchange of non-monetary assets, is mainly consisted
of the exchange of inventories, fixed assets, intangible
assets and long-term equity investments. This
exchange doesn’t involve or lightly involves monetary

exchange.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

Il. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

23. Other significant accounting policies, accounting

estimates, and preparation of financial statements

(Continued)

23.2.

23.3.

Exchange of non-monetary assets (Continued)

If an exchange of non-monetary assets has
commercial substance and the fair value of either the
asset received or the asset given up can be reliably
measured, the cost of the asset received is measured
at the fair value of the asset given up (unless there
is conclusive evidence that the fair value of the asset
received is more reliable) plus any related taxes, and
the difference between the fair value used and the
carrying amount of the asset given up is recognised in
profit or loss. If an exchange of non-monetary assets
fails to meet the above conditions, the cost of the
asset received is measured at the carrying amount of
the asset given up plus any related taxes, and no gain

or loss is recognised.

Related Party

Where one party has control, joint control, or major
impact on the other party, or where the two parties
or more are under control of the same party, the two

parties shall constitute related parties.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS MADE IN THE
APPLICATION OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
KEY ASSUMPTIONS AND UNCERTAINTIES IN
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note Il, the Group is required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of items
in the financial statements that cannot be measured accurately,
due to the internal uncertainty of the operating activities. These
judgements, estimates and assumptions are based on historical
experiences of the Group’s management as well as other factors
that are considered to be relevant and the actual results may

differ from these estimates of the Group.

The Group regularly reviews the aforesaid judgments, estimates
and assumptions on the basis of continuous operation. Where
the changes in accounting estimates only impact the current
period, the impact shall be recognised during the current period;
where such changes impact both the current and future periods,
the impact shall be confirmed during the current and future

periods when such changes occur.

Significant judgement made in the application of
accounting policies
The following are the significant judgement which may have

significant influence to the financial statements:

Operating lease - as the lessor

The Group had contract on the investment properties. The Group
retains all the significant risks and rewards according to the lease

contract and thus accounts for the operating lease.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS MADE IN THE
APPLICATION OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
KEY ASSUMPTIONS AND UNCERTAINTIES IN
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

Critical assumptions and uncertainties in the application

of accounting estimates

At the balance sheet date, the following are the critical
assumptions and uncertainties which may have significant

influence to the financial statements:

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests whether the goodwill is impaired at least
annually. This requires the evaluation of the present value of the
future cashflows on the groups of assets or group of assets with
allocated goodwill. Upon the evaluation of the present value,
the Group should evaluate the future cashflows of the group
of assets or groups of assets using the appropriate discounted
rate. When the actual cashflows are lower than the predicted
cashflows, there might be material impairment. More informations

relating to goodwill and impairment test are in Note (VI) 12.

Provision for inventory impairment based on the net

realisable value

The Group recognizes provision for inventory impairment
according to the net realizable value of the inventory. Provision
for inventory impairment is required to be recognised when there
is sign showing that the net realizable value is lower than cost.
The Group will reevaluate whether the inventory is obsolete and
slow-moving, and the net realizable value is lower than the cost
at each year end. If the result of new estimation differs from
current estimation, such difference will impact the book value of

inventory for the corresponding period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS MADE IN THE
APPLICATION OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
KEY ASSUMPTIONS AND UNCERTAINTIES IN
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

Critical assumptions and uncertainties in the application

of accounting estimates (Continued)

Provision for bad debt of receivables

The Group recognizes provision for bad debts according to
the management’s judgement on recoverability of receivables.
When there is sign showing that a the recoverable amount is
lower than its book value, provision for bad debts is required to
be recognised. The management will conduct the revaluation
each year end. If the result of new estimation differs from
current estimation, such difference will impact the book value of

receivables for the corresponding period.

Depreciation

As stated in Note (ll) 14, the Group accounts for the depreciation
on straight-line basis in the predictable useful life after considering
the residual value. The Group reviews the predictable useful life
to calculate the amount of depreciation in the reporting period.
The Group estimates the useful life of fixed assets based on
experience of actual useful life of fixed asset of similar nature and
function. Significant changes relating to the estimation will result

in adjustment of depreciation in future periods.

(Z)ERETBRERBRIPAENEZHEM

BT AT RANEERRNTRER
=#®)

A RANBEEBRRNTRERE
(%)

WK BB RARE

U FENEREHREEEREZ ERK
FABMRMEBEREE - BEAERA
BT REFRET NS REREREEE
B RHRIERER - ERERNEBFFRE
it EtERER - MEHMAAERERARL
AEEEZR  RERBEREMIEEHRE
) EUGIRRRE (B ©

wE

WHIEE(=Z) 4P - ARBEHEEEER
EZEERER  ERFAERFRAZER
ERHRITE - ARBEERERMBFAIEAF
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SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS MADE IN THE
APPLICATION OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
KEY ASSUMPTIONS AND UNCERTAINTIES IN
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

Critical assumptions and uncertainties in the application

of accounting estimates (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

At the balance sheet date, the Group will assess whether the
recognition of the deferred tax assets will be made. A deferred
tax asset should be recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences or unused tax losses can be utilised and
the Group should make appropriate estimates and judgements
when considering whether there will be enough taxable profit.
Deferred tax assets should be measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled. If the actual earnings accrued in the future
is more than estimates, or the actual tax rate is higher than
estimates, such deferred tax asset shall be recognised in the
consolidated income statement in the six months in which they

are incurred.

Group’s customer loyalty programme

As is stated in Note (VI) 26, sales of goods that result in award
credits for customers, under the Group’s customer loyalty
programme, are accounted for as multiple element revenue
transactions and the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable is allocated between the goods sold and the award
credits granted. The consideration allocated to the award credits
is measured by reference to their fair value. Such consideration
is not recognised as revenue at the time of the initial sale
transaction but is deferred and recognised as revenue when the
award credits are redeemed and the Group’s obligations have
been fulfilled.
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IV. TAXATION

1. Major tax types and tax rates
Tax type
BE
Value-added tax
EEB

Business tax

BEM

Consumption tax

HER

City construction and
maintenance tax

YR T A R AR

Education surcharges

B B

Local education surcharges

15 HE B

Income tax
EMREH

()"

1. FEBERBE

Basis Tax rate

BRI wE

Note 1 17%/13%/11%/6%

Ea

Service income 5%

BRI A

Income tax subject to consumption tax 5%

HEBERIA

Value-added tax, consumption tax and 5%/7%
business tax

AT EET

Value-added tax, consumption tax and 3%/4%
business tax

FERZ R

Value-added tax, consumption tax and 2%
business tax

FEAZ

Taxable income 25%

FEANTR PS8

Note 1: The value-added tax payable is the residual value of the
output value-added tax after deduction of input value-added
tax. The output value-added tax is computed on a basis of

sales resolved by relevant tax laws.

2. Tax incentives and approvals

According to the Circular of the paragraph 86, item 1, point
7 the scope of the preferential policy of primary processing
of agricultural products relating to the business tax issued
by the Ministry of Finance and State Administration of
Taxation on 20 November 2008, the Company obtained the
right of exemption of relevant income tax of the primarily

processed agricultural products in the fresh logistics center.

¢ FE AR (E R 2 SH TR AR BEUR A RN TR A
BAVEREE - SRR ERIBABTUERE
AHEMEEREE

2. BWEERHX

HRIR B B B B R AR s 48 /B 2008 6 11
A20B BEHEAKBRBEHRZEZCEMB
BEBRRRNEER VM IEHE(HT)
BB )EBGIR(—)ETHENME - AQ
B R A BB X PO B E R AR N
TEMNIAEBHEHERESH o
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V. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at 31 December 2013, the subsidiaries of the Company did

not have any debentures in issue. The information of subsidiaries

is as follows:

(H) EXEHREHHBRE

R2013F 128318 * ARG Z FRAREEE

T8 - "RRFRATERWAT

1. Subsidiaries held by the Company during the (1) BEHARQATFESENTFAA
reporting period
Amount in
minority
interests
used
to absorb
the profit
or loss
attributable
to minority
interests
SURR
Proportion  Proportion  Whether Minority Bi
Place of Business Registered ~ Scope of of ownership of voting consolidated interests PR
Full name of subsidiaries Type registration  nature capital  business interests (%)~ power (%) 2& 2% DHKRE  Notes
AR FRUEY i EHtE - L) KRG FABLAC) SfFEx  RREE* BENEE R
RMB RMB
ARET AR®T
Beiing Jingkelong (Langfang) Co., Ltd. Limited company ~ Langfang, PRC  Retall 80,000,000  Retall of general 100 100 Yes - -
(Jingkelong Langfang) BREALE  BH TE% merchandise 4
FRRRE(BS)ERAT SERE ARER-
(A THRIREEES)) Am HERE
Beiing Jingkelong Supermarket Chain Limited company ~ Beiing, PRC ~ Retall 29,000,000 Retail of general 100 100 Yes - -
Co., Ltd. Jingkelong Tongzhou) BRERRE AR TE% merchandise z
IRrERBTERERAR TERY ARER
(ATERIREEN ) A RS
Befiing Xinyang Tongli Commercial Facilties  Limited company ~ Bejing, PRC ~ Manufacture 3,200,000  Production of plastic 52,03 5203 Yes 3,905,194 -
Co,Ltd. (Xinyang Tongi) EREfRA ER gz packing materials g
IRMGRNEEREERLA and installation and
(AT HRImERN]) maintenance of
commercial equipment
MI%E: 58 B2
SR 2R
URE RREER
Beiing Jingkelong Shouchao Commercial Limited company ~ Befing, PRC ~ Retall 398,453,439 Retail of general 100 100 Yes = - Notet
Co., Ltd. (Shoulian Supermarket) EREALNR  dR ez merchandise % 1
IRREEEREZERAR ZERE RARR-
UL =l) 0 HERE
Beijing Shoulian Jiulong Supermarket Co., Ltd  Limited company  Beiing, PRC ~ Retall 10,000,000  Retail of general 100 100 Yes - -
(Shoufian Jiulong) BREALA 4R TEX merchandise 2
IR ERARRTERAR SERE - ARRG
(AT ERAR ) AR FRRS
Beijing Chaopi Trading Co., Ltd. Limited liabiity ~ Bejing, PRC ~ Wholesale 500,000,000  Wholesale of general 79.85 79.85 Yes 165,617,702 - Note2
(Chaopi Trading) company bl bigiE merchandise & #2
IR EERHERAT BhERAR HEAE . BRER
(AT ERIEsAE)) i HERE
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V. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND CONSOLIDATED (R)ESHREHUEHRERE)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. Subsidiaries held by the Company during the (1) BEHAXRQARNFEFENFLARGE)

reporting period (Continued)

Amount in
minority
interests
used
to absorb
the profit
or loss
attributable
to minority
interests
SRR
Proportion  Proportion  Whether Minority Eie
Place of Business Registered ~ Scope of of ownership of voting consolidated interests MR
Full name of subsidiaries Type registration  nature capital  business interests (%) power (%) =& S8 DERR  Notes
FRARE g i EBHE ifEs  £E4E BRI RAELA%) SHE%x  RRER BENGE A
RMB RMB
AR%T AR®T
Befiing Chaopi Shuanglong Alcohol Sales Limited company ~ Befjing, PRC ~ Wholesale 110,160,000  Wholesale of beverages 471 50.00 Yes 76,177,397 - Noted
Company Limited (Chaopi Shuanglong* ~~ AREEAR IR ik HEEER R 3
FRTEREE HEARAR)
(AT ERIaneE )
Befiing Chaopi Huaging Beverage Company  Limited company ~ Bejing, PRC ~ Wholesale 56,000,000  Wholesale of drinks and 42.66 5343 Yes 42,079,378 - Note4
Limited (Chaopi Huaging)* BREFAA AR BEE food £ B2l
PR ERRHEREALR HERR  RHF(RNE
(AT eI s BEFAAERRI
Befing Chaopi Flavourings Company Limited ~ Limited company ~ Befjng, PRC~ Wholesale 50,000,000  Wholesale of edible of 42,03 52.63 Yes 41,353,394 - Noted
(Chaopi Flavourings)* BREAAF  EE ki and food I 5
IR ERGERAEAR fEEase ARG
(AR Rs R ) REW @Re &3
S(RREEETER
Bab)
Beijing Chaopi Jinglong Oil Sales Company ~ Limited company ~ Bejing, PRC ~ Wholesale 36,000,000  Wholesale of edible o 4330 5423 Yes 23,107,918 -
Limited (Chaopi Jinglong Oil Sales)* EREMAT AR biEE HERTBERR B 3
IR R HEERAR HnREERE
(AR e ot )
Shiiazhuang Chaopi Xinlong Trading Limited company ~ Shijangzhuang, Wholesale 5,000,000  Wholesale of alcoholic 79.85 100 Yes - -
Company Limited* BREMLRA PRC biEE beverages &
RSP AREEERAT P HEERES A&
LERES(RNEEE
BRERELTA)
Qingdao Chaopi Jinlong Trading Company ~ Limited company ~ Qingdao, PRC ~ Wholesale 5,000,000  Wholesale of alcoholic 79.85 100 Yes - -
Limited ERELRE  FB i £ YERREE RG- IS
R BERZERAR TERES(RDEEE
AR
Beijing Chaopi Zhongde Trading Company ~ Limited company ~ Beijng, PRC ~ Wholesale 50,000,000  Wholesale of consumer 79.85 100 Yes - - Note 6
Limited (Chaopi Zhongde)* BREANA  EE HEE sanitary products & 6
R EHEERAR HERAR  BE -
VA EE B TERSR
LREneRig
2013 F#f
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V. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(R)EEEHREHUBEHRERE)

1. Subsidiaries held by the Company during the (1) BEHARARFERENTFLATE)
reporting period (Continued)
Amount in
minority
interests
used
to absorb
the profit
or loss
attributable
to minority
interests
SHBRR
Proportion  Proportion  Whether Minority B
Place of Business Registered ~ Scope of of ownership of voting consolidated interests R
Full name of subsidiaries Type registration  nature capital  business interests (%) power (%) E& 28 DEER  Notes
2R FARER i EBHE gk E2EE BRI RABLO%) AFERx  RRER" BENGE AR
RMB RMB
ARET AR®T
Beiing Chaopi Hullong Trading Company Limited company ~ Befing, PRC ~ Wholesale 24,000,000  Wholesale of alcoholic 55.10 69 Yes 3,429,156 - Note7
Limited (Chaopi Hulong)* BRERRA AR ik beverages % #1
IREHEERSERAT HEEEAA
(TR ER )
Taiyuan Chaopi Trading Company Limited* ~ Limited company ~ Taiyuan, PRC ~ Wholesale 5,000,000  Wholesale of general 79.85 100 Yes - -
ARSHEEARAT BREfRA AR ik merchandise 2
¥EEARAm ER
BE 14RE AE
Bl EHHRER
ENERRE
Tangshan Chaopi Trading Company Limited*  Limited company  Tangshan, Wholesale 5,000,000  Wholesale of general 79.85 100 Yes - -
EUSHEEERAR BREMLR PRC HEg merchandise 2
1] YEAREE AR
BEREE(ADGEE
FAMEERS)
Tianjin Chaopi Trading Company Limited" Limited company ~ Tianjin, Wholesale 15,000,000  Wholesale of general 79.85 100 Yes - -
RERHEEARAR: ERERLE PRC ik merchandise &
P HEBREE A&
LERES(RNREE
BEERELI)
Beifing Chaopi Yuli Trading Company Limited”  Limited company ~ Bejing, PRC ~ Wholesale 12,000,000  Wholesale of general 30.31 70 Yes 4,812,709 -
IR EE SRR BRERLR 4R ik merchandise 3
HEEREE AR
e
Beiing Chaopi Fangsheng Trading Company ~ Limited company ~ Befing, PRC ~ Wholesale 12,000,000 Wholesale of general 63.88 80 Yes 2,587,192 -
Limited" EREMRA 4R bigEd merchandise &

IR EHRARAR

HEARES
Rm- LEXERH
i
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V. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(R)EEEHREHMBRRE)

1. Subsidiaries held by the Company during the (1) BEHAXRQARNFEFENFLARGE)
reporting period (Continued)

Amount in
minority
interests

used

to absorb
the profit
or loss

attributable

to minority
interests
SERR

Proportion  Proportion  Whether Minority E&A
Place of Business Registered ~ Scope of of ownership of voting consolidated interests MR
Full name of subsidiaries Type registration  nature capital  business interests (%) power (%) =& S8 DERR  Notes
FRA2E g i EBHE ifEs  £E4E BRI RAELA%) SHE%x  RRER BENGE A
RMB RMB
AR%T AR®T
Jinan Chaopi Linda Trading Company Limited  Limited company ~ Jinan, PRC Wholesale 26,000,000  Wholesale of general 51.90 65 Yes 10,197,978 - Note8
(Chaopi Jinan)* EREMRA  EE i merchandise & i
BB MERERRAR HEEREE  RERE
(T HERIAsEE )
Beifing Chaopi Shenglong Trading Company  Limited company ~ Befing, PRC ~ Wholesale 20,000,000  Wholesale of packed food, 4711 59 Yes 7,086,839 - Note9
Limited (Chaopi Shenglong)* BREANE ER figied package and storage 4 9
B REREERAR senvice
(AT A e ) yEEARAM  BER
1 BRRE
Beiing Chaopi Tianhua Trading Company Limited company ~ Befiing, PRC ~ Wholesale 10,000,000  Wholesale of packed food, 42.66 5343 Yes 5,061,891 - Note 10
Limited (Chaopi Tianhua)* BREMRE 4R iR package and storage 3 510
HREHRERZERAA senvice
VI YEERERR  BXR
- eER%
Datong Chaopi Beichen Trading Company ~ Limited company ~ Datong, PRC ~ Wholesale 26,000,000  Wholesale of packed food, 55.90 70 Yes 7,918,946 - Note 11
Limited (Chaopi Datong)" EREFAA AR ik package and storage 2 #11
ARSI REEERAR senice
(AT ERIBAR ) HERERAR  BER
% 2ERE
2013 F#f
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V. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(2) Subsidiaries acquired or established through

investment during the reporting period

(R)EEEHREHUBEHRERE)

(2) AATHREWNBEBR LB RIEMH
FAH

Amount in
minority
interests
used to
absorb the
profit or
loss
attribute to
minority
interests
Proportion of  Proportion SURR
Registered ownership  of voting  Whether Minority Ei
Business capital interests  power (%) consolidated Interests* AR
Full name of subsidiaries nature HMER/  Scope of business (%) FAE RE 28 DEER  Notes
FhARE £HtE  RRAe  SeER BREAG) B AMER  BRER* BENGE fE
RMB RMB
ARET AR®T
Datong Chaopi Ant Trading Company Limited Retal 5,000,000  Retail of general 55.90 100 Yes - Note 12
(Chaopi Ant) E% merchandise and 4 #12
AREHEEHEERAR storage senvice
(AT ER A EE ) ZERE Am BRE
- eERES
Tangshan Chaopi Baishun Trading Company Wholesale 30,000,000  Wholesale of general 55.90 70 Yes 9,399,994 - Note 13
Limited (Chaopi Baishun)* HEE merchandise, freight -3 #13
ELSHAEREERAR and exhibition senvice
VRN HEARR BEER
0 LAEE ANg
ZREERKS
Beijing Chaopi Maolisheng Trading Company Wholesale 50,000,000  Wholesale of general 51.90 65 Yes 18,835,371 - Note 14
Limited (Chaopi Maolisheng)* bikiEd merchandise I 14
IR RHABERRAR HEERR HHRG-
(TR ) B 18%E (I
En(FahitEm)
£
Hong Kong Chaopi Asia Company Limited Wholesale ~ HKD10,000  Merchandise trading 4203 100 Yes - - Note15
(Chaopi Hong Kong) ik 81000 BHREH & #15
AEYENERAR
(AT BRI EE )
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V. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND CONSOLIDATED (R)ESHREHUEHRERE)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(2) Subsidiaries acquired or established through (2 AATBEHRBBRLAFNIEN
investment during the reporting period (Continued) FRTE (&)
Except for the newly acquired subsidiaries through MRS BRI F AR - AR
investment, there was no change in the scope of B R2013%F & K2012F [E A #8175 R
consolidated financial statements for 2013 and 2012. REEGEB

nulr

Chaopi Trading holds more than 50% of the equity interests Z 5N A B AR B A B iB50%H)

of those companies which are deemed to be the subsidiaries. Em WRRERAPREE 2 FRA
As the Company holds 79.85% of Chaopi Trading, the holding ARARBEEF BRI HET9.85%
percentage is different with the voting power percentage. K - AR RIBRAM EER RS
BZER R FRL G R RORRE LI
EIB
** The minority interests are stated in respect of the shareholders’ = ROHRRRSERE T ARMBE RS
equity of subsidiaries that are not owned by the direct FRBREEFERIRREENERS
controlling shareholders. And the equity of the subsidiary of e AP EE 2 DB HE BB
Chaopi Trading indirectly held by the minority shareholders of EMERERERNEEZ FTRBIMNER
Chaopi Trading is included in the minority shareholders’ equity NEDESEAREE D ERFEEEF
of Chaopi Trading.
Information of Subsidiaries FRFIER
Set out below is the analysis of the movements in MRS - FATNEMERUR
registered capital of subsidiaries and ownership interests DTV F D TR R 3 R K b 5] s
and percentages of voting rights held by the Company in BAFOT
subsidiaries during the Reporting Period:
Note 1: On 31 July 2013, Shoulian Supermarket merged its 51 001347 HE31H - AT WU
wholly-owned subsidiary Beijing Shoulian Haotian AREAEF AT O EHE R
Trading Company Limited (“Shoulian Haotian”). BERSEQAT(ATEE &K
Shoulian Supermarket became the entity in existence XD BEBBTESEENA
with registered capital remaining unchanged. Shoulian T B ARETE o R2014E3
Haotian completed the cancellation procedures on 5 H5H & Bl SRS TFE o

March 2014.
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V. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

)

Subsidiaries acquired or established through

investment during the reporting period (Continued)

Information of Subsidiaries (Continued)

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

As authorized by Beijing Administration for Industry
and Commerce on 22 July 2013, the Company and
other equity holders respectively contributed additional
RMB140,490,324 and RMB35,452,474 into Chaopi
Trading. As of the date, the registered capital of
Chaopi Trading increased to RMB500,000,000. Upon
completion of the capital increase, the Company directly
held 79.85% equity interest in Chaopi Trading, which
was verified by the capital verification report (Rui Hua
Yan Zi [2013] No. 201C0002).

As authorized by Beijing Administration for Industry
and Commerce on 20 November 2012, the Company’s
subsidiary Chaopi Trading and other equity holders
respectively contributed additional RMB26,762,400 and
RMB18,597,600 into Chaopi Shuanglong. As of the date,
the registered capital of Chaopi Shuanglong increased
to RMB110,160,000. Upon completion of the capital
increase, the equity interest in Chaopi Shuanglong was
directly held by Chaopi Trading as to 59%, and indirectly
held by the Company through Chaopi Trading as to
47.11%. The capital increase was verified by the capital
verification report (Guo Hao Yan Zi [2012] No. 201C205).

As authorized by Beijing Administration for Industry
and Commerce on 10 August 2012, the Company’s
subsidiary Chaopi Trading and other equity holders
respectively contributed additional RMB10,686,000 and
RMB9,314,000 into Chaopi Huaqging. As of the date,
the registered capital of Chaopi Huaqging increased
to RMB56,000,000. Upon completion of the capital
increase, the equity interest in Chaopi Huaging was
directly held by Chaopi Trading as to 53.43%, and
indirectly held by the Company through Chaopi Trading
as to 42.66%. The capital increase was verified by the
capital verification report (Guo Hao Yan Zi [2012] No.
201C98).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

V. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(2) Subsidiaries acquired or established through

investment during the reporting period (Continued)

Information of Subsidiaries (Continued)

Note 5:

Note 6:

As authorized by Beijing Administration for Industry
and Commerce on 9 August 2012, the Company’s
subsidiary Chaopi Trading and other equity holders
respectively contributed additional RMB13,815,000
and RMB12,435,000 into Chaopi Flavourings. As of
the date, the registered capital of Chaopi Flavourings
increased to RMB50,000,000. Upon completion of the
capital increase, the equity interest in Chaopi Flavourings
was directly held by Chaopi Trading as to 52.63%, and
indirectly held by the Company through Chaopi Trading
as to 42.08%. The capital increase was verified by the
capital verification report (Guo Hao Yan Zi [2012] No.
201C99).

As authorized by Beijing Administration for Industry
and Commerce on 20 November 2012, the Company’s
subsidiary Chaopi Trading contributed additional
RMB22,000,000 into Chaopi Zhongde. As of the date,
the registered capital of Chaopi Zhongde increased to
RMB50,000,000, in which the Company indirectly held
79.85% equity interest through Chaopi Trading. The
capital increase was verified by the capital verification
report (Guo Hao Yan Zi [2012] No. 201C206).
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(R)EEEHREHMBRRE)

(2) EAFREHABBRIAXNEEH
FRT(E)
FREER(E)
25 HR2012F8A9R LI R I EmITH

ERBRZAE ARRZ AR
P REMIRE 7 R R B
B M E AR ¥13,815,0007T &
AR #12,435,0007t - B =% B -
AR ARMOTAMEREEARE
50,000,0007C - &% - AL EHE
NE#Z#EEES2.63%M s - BIA
A BRI N B R e A B AL AR
(042.03% M) s o ZIHILE ZEL(H
JEERF(2012)58201CO05 YR & &
B -
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7 o AW E FE(EERT(2012)
£5201C2065% )R B R E RS -

2013 4§
ERREEEEERRNBRAR

151




152

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

cember 2013 2013412531 H 1 F/E

For the year ended 31 De

V. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(2) Subsidiaries acquired or established through

investme

nt during the reporting period (Continued)

Information of Subsidiaries (Continued)

Note 7:

Note 8:

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

As authorized by Beijing Administration for Industry
and Commerce on 6 December 2012, the Company’s
subsidiary Chaopi Trading and other equity holders
respectively contributed additional RMB6,756,000 and
RMB5,244,000 into Chaopi Huilong. As of the date,
the registered capital of Chaopi Huilong increased
to RMB24,000,000. Upon completion of the capital
increase, the equity interest in Chaopi Huilong directly
held by Chaopi Trading decreased from 73.70% to 65%,
in which the Company indirectly held 51.90% equity
interest through Chaopi Trading. The capital increase
was verified by the capital verification report (Guo Hao
Yan Zi [2012] No. 201C240).

On 27 December 2013, the Company’s subsidiary
Chaopi Trading acquired 4% equity interest in Chaopi
Huilong from its minority shareholders at a cash
consideration of RMB960,000. The total investment of
Chaopi Trading in Chaopi Huilong remained unchanged
at RMB16,560,000, while its direct interest increased
from 65% to 69%. A loss of RMB698,277 was incurred
from the acquisition. As of the date, the Company
indirectly held 55.10% equity interest in Chaopi Huilong
through Chaopi Trading.

On 27 July 2012, the Company’s subsidiary Chaopi
Trading disposed of 35% equity interest in Chaopi Jinan
to a natural person at a consideration of RMB9, 100,000,
decreasing its direct interest from 100% to 65%. As of
the date, the Company indirectly held 51.90% equity
interest in Chaopi Jinan through Chaopi Trading.

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

V. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(2) Subsidiaries acquired or established through

investment during the reporting period (Continued)

Information of Subsidiaries (Continued)

Note 9:

Note 10:

As authorized by Beijing Administration for Industry
and Commerce on 11 September 2012, the
Company’s subsidiary Chaopi Trading and other equity
holders respectively invested RMB11,800,000 and
RMB8,200,000 to establish Chaopi Shenglong as a
subsidiary of Chaopi Trading, with registered capital of
RMB20,000,000. The investment was verified by the
capital verification report (Guo Hao Yan Zi [2012] No.
201C137). As of the date, the equity interest in Chaopi
Shenglong was directly held by Chaopi Trading as
to 59%, and indirectly held by the Company through
Chaopi Trading as to 47.11%.

As authorized by Beijing Administration for Industry and
Commerce on 13 September 2012, the Company’s
subsidiary Chaopi Trading and other equity holders
respectively invested RMB5,343,000 and RMB4,657,000
to establish Chaopi Tianhua as a subsidiary of Chaopi
Trading, with registered capital of RMB10,000,000. The
investment was verified by the capital verification report
(Guo Hao Yan Zi [2012] No. 201C141). As of the date,
the equity interest in Chaopi Tianhua was directly held
by Chaopi Trading as to 53.43%, and indirectly held by
the Company through Chaopi Trading as to 42.66%.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

V. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(2) Subsidiaries acquired or established through

investme

nt during the reporting period (Continued)

Information of Subsidiaries (Continued)

Note 11:

Note 12:

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

As authorized by Datong Administration for Industry and
Commerce in Shanxi province on 19 December 2012,
the Company’s subsidiary Chaopi Trading established
Chaopi Datong as a wholly-owned subsidiary with
registered capital of RMB26,000,000, in which the
Company indirectly held 79.85% equity interest through
Chaopi Trading. The investment was verified by the
capital verification report (Jin Zhen Cheng Yan [2012]
No. 0118).

On 24 January 2013, the Company’s subsidiary Chaopi
Trading disposed of 30% equity interest in Chaopi
Datong to an independent third party natural person at
a consideration of RMB7,800,000, decreasing its direct
interest in Chaopi Datong from 100% to 70%. As of the
date, the Company indirectly held 55.90% equity interest
in Chaopi Datong through Chaopi Trading.

As authorized by Datong Administration for Industry
and Commerce on 7 January 2013, the Company’s
subsidiary Chaopi Datong established Chaopi Mayi as
a wholly-owned subsidiary with registered capital of
RMB5,000,000. The investment was verified by the
capital verification report (Jin Zhen Cheng Yan [2012] No.
0122). As set out in Note 11, as at 24 January 2013,
the equity interest in Chaopi Datong directly held by the
Company’s subsidiary Chaopi Trading decreased from
100% to 70%. Accordingly, as of the date, the Company
indirectly held 55.90% equity interest in Chaopi Mayi,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Chaopi Datong, through
Chaopi Trading and Chaopi Datong.

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

V. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(2) Subsidiaries acquired or established through

investment during the reporting period (Continued)

Information of Subsidiaries (Continued)

Note 13:

Note 14:

As authorized by Tangshan Administration for Industry
and Commerce on 3 May 2013, the Company’s
subsidiary Chaopi Trading established Chaopi Baishun
as a wholly-owned subsidiary with registered capital of
RMB30,000,000. The investment was verified by the
capital verification report (Da Tang Yan Zi [2013] No.
200). On 18 June 2013, Chaopi Trading disposed of
30% equity interest in Chaopi Baishun to an independent
third party natural person at a consideration of
RMB9,000,000, decreasing its direct interest in Chaopi
Baishun from 100% to 70%. A loss of RMB251,225 was
incurred from the disposal. As of the date, the Company
indirectly held 55.90% equity interest in Chaopi Baishun
through Chaopi Trading.

On 22 August 2013, the Company’s subsidiary
Chaopi Trading established Chaopi Maolisheng as
a wholly-owned subsidiary with registered capital of
RMB50,000,000. The investment was verified by the
capital verification report (Rui Hua Yan Zi [2013] No.
201C0004). As of the date, the equity interest in Chaopi
Maolisheng was 100% held by Chaopi Trading, and was
indirectly held by the Company through Chaopi Trading
as to 79.85%.

On 6 December 2013, the Company’s subsidiary Chaopi
Trading disposed of 35% equity interest in Chaopi
Maolisheng to an independent third party natural person
at a consideration of RMB17,500,000, decreasing its
direct interest in Chaopi Maolisheng from 100% to 65%.
A loss of RMB794,410 was incurred from the disposal.
As of the date, the Company indirectly held 51.90%
equity interest in Chaopi Maolisheng through Chaopi
Trading.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

V. BUSINESS C

OMBINATION AND CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(2) Subsidiaries acquired or established through

investment during the reporting period (Continued)

Information of Subsidiaries (Continued)

Note 15:

On 9 September 2013, Chaopi Flavourings, a subsidiary
of the Company’s subsidiary Chaopi Trading, established
Chaopi Hong Kong as a wholly-owned subsidiary in
Hong Kong, with registered capital of HK$10,000. Upon
its establishment, the equity interest in Chaopi Hong
Kong was held by Chaopi Trading through Chaopi
Flavourings as to 52.63%, and indirectly held by the
Company through Chaopi Trading as to 42.03%.
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SR EHE42.03% KR

VIl. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED (R)EHERREE R
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Cash and bank balances 1. EBES
2013.12.31
—E-Z=ZF+ZHA=+—H
Foreign
currency Exchange Amount in
amount rate RMB
HNEESEE wE=E ARMESHE
RMB RMB
AR¥T AR%T
Cash: B -
RMB AR 28,422,743
usb ESH 482 6.1017 2,941
HKD B 1,650 0.7861 1,297
GBP TEEE 193 10.0363 1,937
SGD NS 2,026 4.7853 9,695
Bank deposits: HRITIER
RMB AR 561,114,700
HKD B
Other currencies-RMB HihEEES - ARE
Bank acceptance margin RITERFIEZRE
deposit (Note 1) FR(GET) 11,335,458
Deposit for letter of credit ERRESEFER(GE2)
(Note 2) 700,000
Total A&t 601,588,771
ANNUAL REPORT 2013

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED




VIl. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1.

Cash and bank balances (Continued)

(RN)EHt /KRB TB(E)

1 ERES(HE)

2012.12.31
—T——F+-A=+—H
Foreign
currency Exchange Amount in
amount rate RMB
HNES S RE WHE= AR S%E
RMB RMB
AR AR®ET
Cash: S
RMB AR 23,074,938
usD ETT 482 6.2946 3,034
HKD B 2,331 0.8114 1,892
GBP g 193 10.1140 1,952
SGD AN 2,026 5.0889 10,310
Bank deposits: RITIFR
RMB AREE 437,959,647
HKD B 72,073 0.8114 58,480
Other currencies-RMB EMEEES - AR
Bank acceptance margin RITENEZRE
deposit (Note 1) R (EE1) 4,158,338
Total = 465,268,591
Note 1:  As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s bank acceptance 1 R2013F12A318 * A5EKNME

margin deposits with use restrictions amount to
RMB11,335,458 (31 December 2012: RMB4,158,338).
See Note (VI) 18.

Note 2: As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s deposit for letter
of credit with use restrictions amount to RMB700,000 (31

December 2012: Nil). See Note (VI) 19.
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A R #4,158,3387T ) °

(7") -~ 18-

=2 M2013%F12A31H

2 8 &

 AREHHA

BZIRHNDERRESERABA
R #700,0007T(2012412 83108 -

) - 2RKEGR)

~ 190

2013 3}

ERREEEEEERNBRAF




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

VIl. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Accounts receivable

(1) 31 December 2013

Disclosure of accounts receivable by categories:

(R)EHMBH/RRBETRE)

2 FEBRERR

(1) 2013%12H31H
JEURBR IR TEARIR FE

2013.12.31
ZE-Z5+tZA=t-H
Carrying amount Bad debt provision
RESRE BIRER
Amount Proportion (%) Amount Proportion (%)
&8 EE (%) k2] EE (%)
RMB RMB
AR AR
Accounts receivable that are individually EIE4%EE AW EBEARER
significant and for which bad debt EEHERER
provision has been
assessed individually 995,129,237 60 - -
Accounts receivable for which bad RIBAFIRERER
debt provisions has been MR
assessed by portfolios
Accounts receivable that are not EESBIEANERERRR
individually significant but have HEEARZAAHER
significant risk when divided into BAREIER
a portfolio by similar credit risk
characteristics 502,327,589 30 - -
Other insignificant accounts receivable  E A E A NI 160,708,106 10 - -
Total of portfolio Ba Nt 663,035,695 40 - -
Accounts receivable that are not BESEIEAEEE R
individually significant but for which ZEREBRNEKEER
bad debt provision has been
assessed individually 1,890,579 - 1,890,579 100
Total At 1,660,055,511 100 1,890,579 100
ANNUAL REPORT 2013

158 BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

VIl. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

2. Accounts receivable (Continued)

(1) 31 December 2013 (Continued)

Aging of accounts receivable is as follows:

Within 1 year
1- 2 years
3- 4 years
Total

1EBAA
122F
354

ait

(RN)EHt /KRB TB(E)

2

P& W BR R (42)

(1) 2013%12531H(#%&)

1,660,055,511

FEWER AR IAT ¢
2013.12.31
“8-=ff-A=1-H
Bad debts Carrying
Amount Proportion (%) provision amount
¢8 £ 8(%) BRERE REEE
RMB RMB RMB
AR ARBT AR
1,556,171,061 94 - 1,556,171,061
23,884,450 1 1,890,579 21,993,871
80,000,000 5 - 80,000,000

100 1,890,579  1,658,164,932

Provision for bad debts of accounts receivable that

are not individually significant but for which bad debt

provision has been assessed individually is as follows:

Content of
accounts receivable
BYRERERARE

Liu Liangguo
255 B

BIRSEIEANEBEERERE
R BB ARFURIRAT IR EFBT ¢

Carrying
amount

AREIEREE
RMB

AR¥T

1,890,579

Amount of
bad debt
HESHE
RMB
AR

1,890,579

Proportion of Reason for
provision (%) the provision

FHREEBI(%) EH

100 Controversial debts which
are unlikely to be
recovered

BRAHIREFEREEM
[ A B R K

ERREEEEERRNBRAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

VIl. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED (R)EHHMEHRREETR(E)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Accounts receivable (Continued) 2 FEWERR(E)

(2) 31 December 2012 (2) 2012#12H31H
Disclosure of accounts receivable by category: JEURBR IR TE SR 7R

2012.12.31
—E-—&+-fA=1-H
Carrying amount Bad debt provision
FEHE SRR

Amount  Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%)
H EL£A (%) &8 EL51(%)
RMB RMB

ARET ARET

Accounts receivable that are individually EB&ZE AN BIEHEEHR

significant and for which bad debt EENEIER

provision has been assessed

individually 1,183,671,661 85 - -
Accounts receivable for which bad RRARERERNRRER

debt provisions has been assessed

by portfolios
Accounts receivable that are not EESBIEANERERRR

individually significant but have REHERZAENER

significant risk when divided into BRH IR

a portfolio by similar credit risk

characteristics 172,220,960 12 - -
Other insignificant accounts receivable — E b~ & A fEUER T 43,153,553 3 - -
Total of portfolio Haha 215,374,513 15 = =
Accounts receivable that are not BRGBTENAEEN TR

individually significant but for which ~ BRE&HIEUEEZ
bad debt provision has been

assessed individually 1,890,579 - 1,890,579 100
Total At 1,400,936,753 100 1,890,579 100
ANNUAL REPORT 2013

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

VIl. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Accounts receivable (Continued)

(2) 31 December 2012 (Continued)

(RN)EHt /KRB TB(E)

2 BWEHRMRE)

(2) 2012%412531H (%)

Aging analysis of accounts receivable is as follows: FEUBRFARER AN T ¢
2012.12.31
ZE-ZFTZA=T-A
Bad debts Carrying
Amount  Proportion (%) provision amount
£ EL1(%) BRER REEE
RMB RMB RMB
ARET ARET ARET
Within 1 year 1ELAA 1,310,123,688 93 1,890,579  1,308,233,109
1- 2 years 120F 10,813,065 1 - 10,813,065
2- 3 years 2535 80,000,000 6 - 80,000,000
Total At 1,400,936,753 100 1,890,679  1,399,046,174
Bad debts provision of accounts receivable that are not BIHESHAETENBEEEERE
individually significant but for which bad debt provision ER ENER R BRFHR BT
has been assessed individually are as follows:
Content of Carrying Amount of  Proportion of
accounts receivable amount bad debt  provision (%)  Reason for the provision
JEW IR AR AR RREE EREE  FHRLAI%) B/
RMB RMB
AR¥TT AR
Liu Liangguo 1,890,579 1,890,579 100  Controversial debt which are

2%

unlikely to be recovered
BT A B R T i i U (2]
AR

ERREEEEERRNBRAR




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED (R)EHHMEHRREETR(E)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Accounts receivable (Continued) 2 FEWERR(E)

(3) Top five entities with the largest balances of 3) FERRFLHEITEENER

accounts receivable

31 December 2013 2013%F12H31H
Proportion of
the amount
to the total
accounts
Relationship with the receivable (%)
Name of entity Company Amount Age EW RSB
BUER BANTBE 8 £R 9L 41(%)
RMB
ARET

Beiing Wu-mart Supermarket St R¥IELGABMAERLA  Independent third party | 440,821,311 Within 1 year 26
Co., Ltd. (Hereinafter refered (AT ESTE[ L RME]) BUE=H 1EHR
to as “Beijing Wu-mart”)

Beijing Lotus Supermarket Chain 1t R S ¥E @B H Independent third party | 111,294,289 Within 2 years 7
Store Co., Ltd. (Hereinafter BERDA BIE=F PEDN
referred to as “Beijing Lotus”) (LA TERE[ LR SMEE])

Beijng Carrefour Commercial It RRLBHEBRAA Independent third party | 103,270,313 Within 1 year
Co., Ltd. (Hereinafter referred  (ATHBIERRER]) BuE=H 15 R
to as “Beijing Carrefour”)

[=2]

Beijing Shoulian Commercial  JtREHEEXEEERARF  Independent third party 80,000,000 3-4years 5
Group Ltd. (Hereinafter referred (AT ESTE[ BEEEE ) BUE=H 3-4%
to as “Shoulian Group”)

Beijing Hualian Comprehensive 4t REB A BMR D Independent third party 65,702,161 Within 1 year 4
Supermarket Co., Ltd. BRAH BUE=H 15 0R
Total At 801,088,074 48

162 ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.

Accounts receivable (Continued)

3

Top five entities with the largest balances of

accounts receivable (Continued)

31 December 2012

(RN)EHt /KRB TB(E)

2 FEWRRR(E)
(3) BUERHLHIEEENEL(E)

201212 A31H

Proportion of
the amount to

the total
accounts
Relationship with the receivable(%)
Name of entity Company Amount Age {h MRS B
Bh A v NS £ R H9LL01(%)
RMB
ARET
Beijing Wu-mart Independent third party 458,910,622 Within 1 year 33
BlA=t S BUE=H 1EUR
Beijing Lotus Independent third party 86,547,627 Within 1 year 6
LR 5 MEE BUE=H 1FLAR
Shoulian Group Independent third party 80,000,000 2 -3 years 6
EHEE BUE=H 2-3F
Beijing Carrefour Independent third party 60,595,752 Within 1 year 4
T RRER BUE=H 1F AR
Beijing Hualian Comprehensive Independent third party 50,489,711 Within 1 year 4
Supermarket Co., Ltd.
RERGEBETRHER AR BUE=H 1ER
Total
ot 785,543,612 53
2013 F#f

ERREEEEEERNBRAF

163




164

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Accounts receivable (Continued)
(3) Top five entities with the largest balances of
accounts receivable (Continued)

Aging analysis of accounts receivable due from

Shoulian Group is as follows:

(R)EHMBH/RRBETRE)

2

FEWBRRR ()
(3) EHIEHEHEIEEENER(E)

HEBEBENRUCRRREDT :

2013.12.31 2012.12.31

—E-=F —F——F

t=A=t-8| t-A=t-=

RMB RMB

AR¥T ARBT

2 - 3 years 2E3F = 80,000,000
3 - 4 years 3E44F 80,000,000 S
Total a5t 80,000,000 80,000,000

On 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the
Group had an amount of RMB80,000,000 due from
Shoulian Group, and it was already overdue more
than 3 months. In the opinion of the directors, no
impairment is necessary on 31 December 2013 and 31
December 2012 in view of the following consideration:
the accounts receivable bear interest at the rate stated
below and all the interest has been received in full.
Moreover, one piece of land and related buildings with
a total value of not less than the overdue accounts

receivable has been pledged in favor of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(RN)EHt /KRB TB(E)

2. Accounts receivable (Continued) 2 FEWERR(E)

(3) BUERHLHIEEENEL(E)

(3) Top five entities with the largest balances of

accounts receivable (Continued)

The Group normally allows a credit period of no
more than 90 days to its customers. A longer credit
period is granted to its major customers with 180
days. Accounts receivable bear no interest except the
amount due from Shoulian Group which bears interest
at a rate of 6.40% and 6.63% per annum in 2013 and
2012, respectively.

On 31 December 2013, the total accounts receivable
due from Beijing Wu-mart, Auchan (China) Investment
Co. Ltd., Beijing Carrefour and Beijing Lotus
amounted to RMB206,767,979 (31 December 2012:
RMB89,633,545) were limited by being factored to
secure certain bank loans of the Group. See Note (VI)

17.

On 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, there
were no accounts receivable due from shareholders
holding 5% or more of the Company’s shares with

voting power.

EWERFERBHBEROKR - X
ERFAIUEREIS0K - REH
5 5= [ ) JE U BR RN 2013F B &
20124 & 9 Bl 4% & 7 %£6.40% &
6.63%H 851+ H AR AR AL

AR e

M2013%F12831H + # it =¥
E -BH(FER)EEARAR -
IRREBRIEE S VELNHE
W iR A 5t A R #5206,767,979
JL(2012%F12A31H: A R #
89,633,5457L ) I FT B #E - EAE
BRREZHESRITERMZE
BRI o 2RMFEGR) ~ 17 o

#2013 12 A31H %2012 128
3B FRERPERBKZEA
B15% (&5%) LA &R RHEMRD HIAK
RE)FRIE -
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NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Prepayments

Aging analysis of prepayments is as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

(R)EHMB|MRIBE ERE)

3 FEMNFE

BN FRRRER R -

2013.12.31 2012.12.31
“2-=#+-A=t+-H ZF-Z5+-A=1-H

Amount  Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%)
£8 EL4(%) 8 L1 (%)

RMB RMB

AR¥R ARER
550,729,655 100 | 405,676,277 100
- - 1,837,554 -
550,729,655 100 | 407,513,831 100
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3.

Prepayments (Continued)

(1) Top five entities with the largest balances of

prepayments

31 December 2013

(RN)EHt /KRB TB(E)

3 BENREGE)

(1) FAMASELEIAEENIESR

2013%12A31H

Relationship with Reason for
Name of entity the Company Amount Age unsettlement
A BEANRBE E2 FR AGHRE
RMB
AR
Yibin Wuliangye Liquor Sales Company Limited Independent third party 119,365,649 Within 1 year Goods not received
HERRRBRHEEEREAAT BUE=H 1ENUR mREEIED
Shanghai Nestle Products Services Company Limited Independent third party 81,959,759 Within 1 year Goods not received
HEEEERREARAR BUE=H 1ENR HREEIED
Hebei Chengde Lulu Company Limited Independent third party 48,471,079 Within 1 year Goods not received
MAEEERNERRAR Bug=hH 1ERR mRYEIEY
Luzhou Laojiao Northern Wine Company Limited Independent third party 32,865,795  Within 1 year Goods not received
ENEEERBHENHBEEARDA BuE=H 1EUR mRYEIED
Maotai Liquor (Guizhou Renhuai) Independent third party 29,699,517 Within 1 year Goods not received
Marketing Company Limited BUE= 1ELR BARREED
BBFa(ENCE)EHERAR
Total 312,361,799
aEf
2013 3
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED (R)EHHMEHRREETR(E)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. Prepayments (Continued) 3. ENREE)

(1) Top five entities with the largest balances of (1) FARFBELHBEHEEENIER(E)

prepayments (Continued)

31 December 2012 2012612H31H
Relationship with the
Name of entity Company Amount Age Reason for unsettlement
BULE BARTBE Ex FR AEERE
RMB
ARET
Luzhou Laojiao North Wine Company Limited Independent third party 92,812,437 Within 1 year Goods not received
BMNEEZLELRAERLA BIE=H 1EUR mRREIEY
Shanghai Nestle Products Services Independent third party 51,666,411 Within 1 year Goods not received
Company Limited BUE=F TELR WARREED
PEEEERRBARRF
Maotai Liquor (Guizhou Renhuai) Marketing Independent third party 28,166,573 Within 1 year Goods not received
Company Limited BUE=F TER WRREEY

EES & (BN 2HERAT

Yibin Wuliangye Liquor Sales Company Limited Independent third party 24,488,162 Within 1 year Goods not received

HELBREAREEREELA BUE=FR TELA HARYEIEY
Beijing Chuangyitang Trading Company Limited Independent third party 21,003,815 Within 1 year Goods not received
LREBEBEER AT BUE=}H 1EUR mARMEIED

Total 218,137,398

Akt
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. Prepayments (Continued)

(2) Disclosure of prepayments by category:

(RN)EHt /KRB TB(E)

3-

BNREE)

(2) BNHBRZERKE -

2013.12.31 2012.12.31
-g—= T
t=A=+—-RA | t=A=+—H
RMB RMB
ARY T AR¥ETT

Prepayments which are BIHESEEAMBANKIEA
individually significant 387,112,212 291,947,499
Other insignificant prepayments — E-{th 7~ & A ) 78 {5008 163,617,443 115,566,332
Total A&T 550,729,655 407,513,831

Prepayments exceeding RMB5 million are classified as

individually significant by the Group.

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012,
there were no prepayments due from shareholders
holding 5% or more of the Company’s shares with

voting power.

AEEBESEEEARBS008 T
BN RERRAEBESEEKN

R TR SRR

H2013F12A31H k20125124
31H - ENREBEREEMNFEAL
NE5% (B5%) A FRRHERMDH

IR R HYFRIR -
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. Other receivables

(1) 31 December 2013

Disclosure of other receivables by category:

(R)EHMBH/RRBETRE)

4~ HEWR

(1) 2013%12H31H
H i GRIRTE R

2013.12.31
ZE-Zf+tZA=t-H
Carrying amount Bad debt provision
REEE BRER
Amount  Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%)
&8 L fl(%) &8 L fl(%)
RMB RMB
AR®R IN:
Other receivables that are individually ~— BIESEEA Y EIE:HR
significant and for which bad debt BERERDEMEYRR
provision has been assessed
individually 25,756,230 19 6,687,500 85
Other receivables for which bad REAGTREREER
debt provisions has been assessed  EAfElE
by portfolios
Other receivables that are not B ETENERERRR
individually significant but have FHEAR MBS NER
significant risk when divided BRME I
into a portfolio by similar credit
risk characteristics 93,563,316 68 - -
Other insignificant other receivables H R E R E M E YR 15,623,736 12 - -
Total of portfolio BANE 109,187,052 80 - -
Other receivables that are not BEGBIEAAEER
individually significant but for which ~ SEER AV E e IR
bad debt provision has been
assessed individually 2,051,300 1 1,171,772 15
Total At 136,994,582 100 7,859,272 100
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. Other receivables (Continued)

(RN)EHt /KRB TB(E)

4 ~

HAib WK ()

]|E|E||/

(1) 31 December 2013 (Continued)

Aging analysis of other receivables is as follows:

(1) 2013F12H31H(#&)
Hth FEUGRBRES AT

2013.12.31

—E-Zf+=-fA=1+-H
Bad debt Carrying
Amount  Proportion (%) provision amount
&8 Le Al (%) BREE RHEEE
RMB RMB RMB
AR¥TR NG AR%R
Within 1 year 1R 123,483,307 90 - 123,483,307
1 -2 years 122% 2,223,775 2 1,171,772 1,052,003
3 -4 years 3B4F 11,287,500 8 6,687,500 4,600,000
Total At 136,994,582 100 7,859,272 129,135,310

Bad debt provision of other receivables which are

individually significant is as follows:

Amount of

Content of other Carrying bad debt
receivbles amount provision
HitEWRR R BRTH BREE RS
RMB RMB

AR AR® T

Beijing Guanyuan 6,687,500 6,687,500

Wholesale Market

Company Limited
IR EEEmBE

M AR AR

EReBEANEMERKTORRT
REBIT

Proportion of
provision (%) Reason for provision

sHRLEAI(%) HE

100 Controversial debts which
are unlikely to recover
BERAYRRIFEFZ
if W [B1 BT g 14 S K

Bad debt provision of other receivables which are not

individually significant is as follows:

Amount of

Content of other Carrying bad debt
receivbles amount provision
HitERRAR BRTHI BREE RIRSHE
RMB RMB

AR® T AR® T

Beijing Baili Tongda 2,051,300 1,171,772

Trading Company

BERSETEANH M EUFIRR
SHEEEEIT

Proportion of
provision (%) Reason for provision

FHRLEAI(%) HEHh

57 Controversial debts which are
unlikely to recover

Limited BEBABRKFEFH
il:ELE?’F'J EEE Y E AT BE MR
BRA

ERREEEEEERNBRAF
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
4. Other receivables (Continued) 4

(1) 31 December 2013 (Continued)

Reversals and collections during the current year:

(R)EHMBH/RRBETRE)

Htt YR (&)

(1) 2013%12531H(#&)

RESEHERDT -

Accumulated
bad debt

Basis of provision prior
determining the to reversals
Reasons for original bad or collections Amount of
Content of reversals or debt provision LEAEIEE=S reversals
other receivables collections BERER BEHRMEER  or collections
HitEBRAR EBRHWREA EBNKE EESE EHE$H
RMB RMB
AR¥RT AR
Beijing Guanyuan Partially recovered Controversial debts 6,812,500 125,000
Wholesale Market B85 ik which are unlikely to
Company Limited recover
IR EEEmitETS BEBABRREFLEFH
BRAF] el Ay §E 1 K
(2) 31 December 2012 (2) 2012%12A31H
Disclosures of other receivables by category: A EAGRL BRI -
2012.12.31
¥ ZFTZA=T-A
Carrying amount Bad debt provision
Amount  Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%)
Ea EL1(%) Eac ELA (%)
RMB RMB
ARET ARETL
Other receivables that are individually ~— EIESEE AN BIA 2R
significant and for which bad debt EFHRLRYG
provision has been assessed
individually 6,812,500 7 6,812,500 100
Other receivables for which bad RIAAHRZREGN
debot provisions has been assessed e
by portfolios
Other receivables that are not SESEIENERERARR
individually significant but have BEESEZESNER
significant risk when divided into BARE MR
a portfolio by similar credit risk
characteristics 77,220,936 74 = S
Other insignificant other receivables ~ Efti A B A E MY 20,708,604 19 - -
Total of portfolio BA NG 97,929,540 93 = -
Other receivables that are not EESBIEANBEERR
individually significant and for FEERNE R
which bad debt provision has
been assessed individually - - - -
Total A&t 104,742,040 100 6,812,500 100
ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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]|E|E||/

VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED (R) et BHRBEETRE)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. Other receivables (Continued) 4~ HbEWR(E)
(2) 31 December 2012 (Continued) (2) 2012%12H31H (%)
Aging analysis of other receivables is as follows: HAb EYCRERER AT -
2012.12.31
“E——Ht-A=t—H
Bad debt Carrying
Amount  Proportion (%) provision amount
Ead EL11(%) BRER REEE
RMB RMB RMB
ARET ARETL ARET
Within 1 year 1R 92,519,915 88 - 92,519,915
1 -2 years 1828 809,625 1 - 809,625
2 - 3 years 2%3F 11,412,500 il 6,812,500 4,600,000
Total At 104,742,040 100 6,812,500 97,929,540
Bad debt provision of other receivables which are BIHS RHE AR E M ERGERE
individually significant is as follows: REBOT :
Content of Carrying Amount of  Proportion of
other receivables amount provision  provision (%) Reason for provision
HitERRAR BRTH BAEE HRSHE  FHRHSI(%) A
RMB RMB
AR¥R AR¥T
Beijing Guanyuan 6,812,500 6,812,500 100 Controversial debts which are
Wholesale Market unlikely to recovgr
Company Limited BEHEAH KR FEFEMEE
bR E B mAE ATRE TR
M5 HER AR
REBEHERNT

Reversals and collections during the current year:

Accumulated

bad debt
Basis of provision prior
determining the to reversals
Reasons for original bad or collections Amount of
Content of reversals or debt provision LTS reversals
other receivables collections BERER BEHEMEIR  or collections
HitEWRAR BEHNEREERA EHENKE 2EEHE EE e
RMB RMB
AR%T AR® T
Beijing Guanyuan Partially recovered Controversial debts 7,000,000 187,500
Wholesale Market B &5 =K which are unlikely to
Company Limited recover
It REE ML ETS BEAGRRFEFZ
BRAA iU [el A g 1 S K
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VI.

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(R)EHMBH/RRBETRE)

4. Other receivables (Continued) 4 HEWRE)
(3) Top five entities with the largest balances of other 3 EMEKZGLHEITEENESR
receivables
31 December 2013 2013%F12H31H
Proportion
of the
amount to
total other
Relationship with the receivables (%)
Name of entity Company Amount  Age R ERR
AL RANTBE 28 R AEMELBI(%)
RMB
ARETL
Beijing Hongchao Weiye SOE Management Co., Ltd. Independent third party 19,068,730 Within 1 year 14
(*Hongchao Weiye”) (Note (VI 4(1) Note 1) BIE=H 1ELAR
IR AEREAAEMERRALAR
(TR E D (M3 (1) 4 (1))
Beijing Guanyuan Wholesale Market Company Limited ~ Independent third party 6,687,500  Over 3 years 5
T REEER ETSERAR BUE=H 3EN L
Beifing Guibao Baodi Hotel Management Independent third party 4,600,000  Over 3 years 3
Company Limited BUE=H SEALE
ERREEHEEERERAT
Beijing Yanghe Trading Co., Ltd. Independent third party 2,959,935  Within 1 year 2
EREBEERAR BUE=H 1ELA
Johnson & Johnson (China) Company Limited Independent third party 2,818,275 Within 1 year 2
RE(RE)REFRATA BUE=H 1EMRA
Total 36,134,440 26
aif
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4.

Other receivables (Continued)

receivables (Continued)

31 December 2012

(3) Top five entities with the largest balances of other

4 ~

(RN)EHt /KRB TB(E)

Htt YR (&)

(%)

(3 EMEKRFTHEITLEENER

201212 A31H

Proportion
of the
amount to
total other
Relationship with the receivables (%)
Name of entity Company Amount  Age HE MR
BU£HE HEANFHE 28 FR AEMELBI(%)
RMB
ARET
Beijing Guanyuan Wholesale Market Company Limited ~ Independent third party 6,812,500  Over 2 years 7
I REEERSEMSERAR BUE=H 2FNE
Beijing Guibao Baodi Hotel Management Independent third party 4,600,000  Over 2 years 4
Company Limited BUE=H 2F AL
KRB R EEEEARAR
Beijing Fupai Food Company Limited Independent third party 4,413,917 Within 1 year 4
TRBERERBRAR BUE=H 1EMR
Johnson & Johnson (China) Company Limited Independent third party 3,321,955  Within 1 year 3
BE(RE)BRAR BUE=H 1EHA
Beijing Baili Tongda Trading Company Limited Independent third party 2,061,300  Within 1 year 2
IREMEEREERAR BUE=] 1EMR
Total 21,199,672 20
A

Other receivables exceeding RMB5 million are classified

as individually significant by the Group.

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012,

there were no other receivables due from shareholders

holding 5% or more of Company’s shares with voting

power.

AEEBEFEHEARES008 T
EWEMERFIERAERSRESE
R E A REUR ©

M2013F12A31 8 &k2012612 A

318

H A & W R IR AR I W

BRREE% (25%) A EFRIRER
BV AR REYFRIA ©
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED (R)EHHMEHRREETR(E)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. Inventories 5- FE&
(1) Categories of inventories (1) HFESE
2013.12.31 2012.12.31
ZE-ZEtZB=t-H “E--%+-A=t-R
Provision Provision

Gross for decline Net (Gross for decling Net

carrying in value of Carrying carrying in value of Carrying

amount inventories amount amount inventories amount

REHE KERE RAER REAE HEER REER

RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB

ARET ARER ARER ARET ARET ARET

Merchandise EREm 1,473,348,427 1,454,904 1,471,893,523 | 1,529,051,015 2,044,284 1,527,008,731

Raw materials Rt 8,755,812 - 8,755,812 8,690,112 - 8,690,112

Reusable materials FEMH 601,149 - 601,149 248,841 = 248,841

Total At 1,482,705,388 1,454,904 1,481,250,484 | 1,537,989,968 2,044,284 1,535,945,684
As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, no M2013F 12 A31H K20125F12 A
inventories were pledged or guaranteed. 318 - EARERNERNTFSE -

(2) Provision for decline in value of inventories (2) HFEHREERFE
Increase
in the Decrease

2013.1.1 current year in the current year 2013.12.31

—B-zf -g-=f%

-A-B  AEHRE AERD toA=1-8

Reversal Write-off
E[ By

RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB

ARET AR ARET ARET ARET

Merchandise EGHEM 2,044,284 290,456 - 879,836 1,454,904
In 2012, there was no change in provision for decline R2012FE  FEREEERE

in value of inventories. 1k -
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NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

6.

(RN)EHt /KRB TB(E)

Other current assets 6 HitbRBEE
2013.12.31 2012.12.31
—-g—= —T——F
t=A=+—-R| t=A=+—H
RMB RMB
AR® T ARETT
Short-term investment (Note 1) RHAIRE (FE1) 65,000,000 25,000,000
Tax credit FEIEER 148,368,819 163,454,595
Prepaid lease expenses HFEESER 28,420,556 33,140,813
Prepaid heating expenses FEHEER 3,552,731 2,415,581
Other prepaid expenses (Note 2) HEmF#ERGE2) 1,780,271 7,543,021
Total & 247,122,377 68,099,415
Note 1: On 31 December 2013, the Company held banking financial 1 ARFIR2013F12A31 A\ KFE
products of RMB20,000,000 managed by Guangda FRMDEBATNEARZEMERA
Securities Co., Ltd., and Chaopi Trading, a subsidiary of R #20,000,0007TC * A RAEZF
the Company, held financial products of RMB45,000,000 AR ER2013F12A318 M
managed by Bank of Communications Co., Ltd., with RMIRITRD B IR A BB AR TR
estimated annualized rate of return of 3.0% to 25.6%. E @ A R #45,000,0007C © £ F 8
The principal and interest of such short-term investments UL 5 K B3.0%E25.6% ° 12014
amounted to RMB65,028,064 were fully recovered on 13 F1R13H - ZEFRMRER S RA
January 2014. B s AR #65,028,0647T C 2 8
U@ o
Note 2: Other prepaid expenses mainly included property fees, 2 EMSBBRATIERERNYEE -

cleaning fees, security fees, etc.

REE  RLEF -

2013 4§
ERREEEEERRNBRAR
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7. Available-for-sale financial assets

(1) Available-for-sale financial assets

)

Available-for-sale equity

instruments

AR EESTA

(R)EHMBH/RRBETRE)

7 THHESHEE

(1) TRHELEEERER

2013.12.31
—EB—=F
+=A=+—-H
RMB
AR® T

3,860,000

2012.12.31
—ET——fF
+=ZA=+—A
RMB
AR¥T

8,332,000

Description of available-for-sale financial assets

Name of investee

Shanxi Xinghuacun Fen
Wine Factory Co., Ltd.

(Shanxi Xinghuacun)
(Note 1)

Luoyang Chundu Group
Limited(Luoyang Chundu)

(Note 2)

BRECERR

PR IERT B R 0
AR DB UAT B
BRI (1)

BREBEERD
AR DA (AT
[aBE#H])(F2)

(2) THHEEZBEENHH

Proportion of
investment to
equity (%)
Frib R %

0.023

0.120

Amount of investment

RELHE
2013.12.31 2012.12.31
—E-=F —E——F
+=ZB=+—-H +-A=+—H
RMB RMB
AR%T ARETT
3,860,000 8,332,000
1,188,000 1,188,000
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NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7. Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

(2) Description of available-for-sale financial assets

(Continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Chaopi Trading, a subsidiary of the Company gained
100,000 stocks (RMB1 for each stock) from Shanxi
Xinghuacun for RMB350,000 at November 1993.
On 18 May 2012, Shanxi Xinghuacun issued a stock
dividend of 10 for 10 stocks to all shareholders
through the notice of 2011 annual general meeting.
As at 31 December 2013, Chaopi Trading held
200,000 stocks in total with 0.023% of its equity. (31
December 2012: 0.023%). In 2013, the decrease in
fair value of the Group’s available-for-sale financial
assets was RMB4,472, 000 (In 2012: increased
by RMB2,018,000) and was recognised in other
comprehensive income. (Note VI 46).

Chaopi Trading, a subsidiary of the Company, gained
600,000 stocks (RMB1 for each stock) from Luoyang
Chundu for RMB1,188,000 in June 1993. As at 31
December 2013 and 31 December 2012, Chaopi
Trading held 0.12% of its equity. As the change of
operating condition of Luoyang Chundu, the Group
took full provision for the long term equity investment
whose recoverable amount is less than the carrying
amount and the decrease is not expected to be

recovered in the foreseeable future.

(RN)EHt /KRB TB(E)

7~

AHHESREE#E)

(2) HHHESBEENFHYH(E)

Gal

RARZFRABUFER
19B8FIANERES AR
#5358 JT R B 1L T A IR
ABRIOBR(EREEARE
1.007T) ° WA A LR F2012
F5A18A HM20FHERE
RERZFERQRSE - 2011512
AS1EMARABES M2
BB R R B10MR X10MR AT AR -
£ 1E2013F 128318 + 8 #t
BERFAWLASIENEEA
fi% A% 21 /5208 AR ° 720134
12A318  HAHBHEEEH
0.023% (20124124318 :
0.023%) & i # o 120134
FERABEEDHARIAR
#4,472,0007T (20124 [ -
A R¥2,018,0007T) © B
P AHE AR A Has - 2R
(75)-46-°

RARZFRAABAM/EFER
1993F6A LN EEE AR
#118.8B TRE S G HFH =
ABReOER(GREEARKE
1.007C ) ° 2013%F12A318 &
20124 12A318 - AW &
HE B HO12%K) IR 4E - R
FHEEMEERRAE N ERA
8 B3z & AR R & ATl el
SREENRENREEE I
BEBRENEBEERTELN
KKHIR A A R E 1S
R MR RETIRAEERS o
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED (R)EHHMEHRREETR(E)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7. Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued) 7 AHHESREEE)
(2) Description of available-for-sale financial assets (2) WHEHELHBEENFH(E)
(Continued)
Except for the investment in Luoyang Chundu (Note 2), YRS EEHRE (FF2) 4N 7]
the Group took no further provision for availavle-for- HEESMEEP NMFEBRER
sale financial assets as there was no evidence that the BBEULERAE N EREME
change of the invested company’s operating condition HEARE S BERIEENREE
may cause the assets’s recoverable amount to be less B - I BEfERENEEE BT
than the carrying amount, and of which the decrease is B R R BRI AT BEIRIE V1B -
not expected to be recovered in the foreseeable future. RETIRBIELEE -
8. Investment property 8 BREMEME
Investment properties measured at cost BREAGBHREMEEHE
2013.1.1 Increase in Decrease in 2013.12.31
—E-=F the year the year —B-=F
-A-H KEEM AERY +t-A=t-H
RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR¥T ARER IN: ARETR
. Total original carrying amount — BERE
Buildings FEREEY 72,918,149 15,699,022 - 88,617,171
Land use rights TiERE 54,533,927 12,117,934 - 66,651,861
Total At 127,452,076 27,816,956 - 155,269,032
II. Total accumulated depreciation = BETEMREE
and amortisation
Buildings BEREEY 16,834,767 4,053,222 - 20,887,989
Land use rights TitE AR 3,536,257 2,600,874 - 6,137,131
Total aif 20,371,024 6,654,096 - 27,025,120
Ill. Total net book value of investment = RAREHERTIE
properties
Buildings FEREEY 56,083,382 - - 67,729,182
Land use rights T fE R 50,997,670 - - 60,514,730
Total G 107,081,052 - - 128,243,912
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED (R) et BHRBEETRE)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

8.

Investment property (Continued) 8- BREMEHEGRE)
Investment properties measured at cost (Continued) B ARG ENREMEEHE (&)
201211 Increase Decrease 2012.12.31
“E-—F in the year in the year “E—fF
—A—-8 REEN KERY +TZA=+-AR
RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR ARETL ARET ARETL
. Total original carrying amount — BERE
Buildings FEREEY 44,259,348 28,658,801 - 72,918,149
Land use rights it 54,533,927 - - 54 533,927
Total &5t 98,793,275 28,658,801 - 127,452,076
Il Total accumulated depreciation and = REAWMEMRHEH
amortisation
Buildings FEREEY 11,257,893 5,576,874 - 16,834,767
Land use rights TR 2,121,754 1,414,503 = 3,536,257
Total At 13,379,647 6,991,377 - 20,371,024
lll. Total net book value of investment = REMRHEEmRE
properties
Buildings BEREEY 33,001,455 - - 56,083,382
Land use rights T RE 52,412,173 - - 50,997,670
Total A3t 85,413,628 - - 107,081,052
As at 31 December 2013 and at 31 December 2012, 72018512431 A ;20126124818 -
increases in the carrying amount of investment properties EERENEINGZEEAFEERR
were due to the conversion from own-occupied properties. RREMEFEIE °
The depreciation charged for 2013 was RMB4,693,059 (2012: WBFEARTNESERARY
RMB3,382,068). 4,693,0597C (2012 : AR
3,382,0687L) °
As at 31 December 2013, the investment properties with R2013F12A31R - FEH AR
the net book value of RMB7,447,628 (As at 31 December 7,447,6287L(2012F12A310 + AR
2012: RMB6,620,660) were pledged to secure certain of the #6,620,6607C ) MR A FE L EE
Group’s bank loans. (Note (V1) 27). ERITIE M E Y « 2RMEG)
27 °
2013 4
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(R)EHMBH/RRBETRE)

8. Investment property (Continued) 8- REMEMEE)
As at 31 December 2013, the fair values of the investment M2013F12A831H * ZEH/RE M F i
properties were RMB180 million (As at 31 December 2012; EARBENARARE1.8ET(20124F
RMB150 million). As at the date of this report, the fair values 128318 : HARBA5ET) - RATR
of the investment properties were determined by valuations HH - BREMEHENARBERES
performed by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited using Y EEVELEMBSNEEN GERD
market comparison approach, an independent qualified AR RIRE IS L EBUEPTE I B0 RT
valuer. The fair values were classified as level 2. BT - ZoNnBEEBNE2ER -
9. Fixed assets 9. BEEEE
2013.1.1 Increase in Decrease in 2013.12.31
—E-=F the year the year “B-=%
-A-H AEEM XEHY +ZA=t-H
RMB RMB RMB RMB
N AR®T ARETR ARET
| Total original carrying amount — BEEREA: 1,884,577,804 238,317,447 57,500,092 2,065,395,159
Including: Buildings 2 BRREEY 964,272,151 86,144,779 15,699,022 1,034,717,908
Machinery and equipment HaRR 762,218,414 110,568,798 24,672,173 848,115,039
Electronical devices and others ETRERLM 120,892,808 22,672,009 12,746,557 130,818,260
Transportation vehicles EHR 37,194,431 18,931,861 4,382,340 51,743,952
Additions for
the year
REGHR
IIl.  Total accumulated depreciation . 2HEAH: 698,955,495 126,413,149 39,301,196 786,067,448
Including: Buildings Hi: EEREEY 190,776,242 36,276,656 972,394 226,080,504
Machinery and equipment R 388,580,486 69,259,127 22,407,246 435,432,367
Electronical devices and others ETREREM 98,729,520 15,218,798 12,376,158 101,572,160
Transportation vehicles BEHRE 20,869,247 5,658,568 3,545,398 22,982,417
IIl. Total net book value of fixed assets = BErdEREEEA: 1,185,622,309 - - 1,279,327,711
Including: Buildings Ed: REREEY 773,495,909 - - 808,637,404
Machinery and equipment R 373,637,928 - - 412,682,672
Electronical devices and others EPREREMD 22,163,288 - - 29,246,100
Transportation vehicles BRRE 16,325,184 - - 28,761,535
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NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(RN)EHt /KRB TB(E)

Fixed assets (Continued) 9. BEEEEE)

2012.1.1 Increase in Decrease in 2012.12.31
2% the year the year 2%
—-A-H REEAN AERY  +TZA=T-H
RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARET ARET ARETL AR¥TT
. Total original carrying amount — REREA 1,790,358,551 165,707,226 71,487,973 1,884,577,804
Including: Buildings Ei BEREEY 900,236,862 92,694,090 28,658,801 964,272,151
Machinery and equipment W% 787,079,323 54,685,631 29,546,540 762,218,414
Electronical devices and others EFREREMD 121,254,069 10,489,738 10,850,999 120,892,808
Transportation vehicles EHRE 31,788,297 7,837,767 2,431,633 37,194,431

Additions for

the year

KEFR
Il Total accumulated depreciation = BiEALH: 629,218,465 111,900,415 42,163,385 698,955,495
Including: Buildings B RERBEY 165,100,997 29,284,554 3,609,309 190,776,242
Machinery and equipment MR 353,427,443 61,306,927 26,153,884 388,580,486
Electronical devices and others BETRERLM 983,501,003 15,733,616 10,504,999 98,729,520
Transportation vehicles BEHRE 17,189,022 5,575,418 1,895,193 20,869,247
Ill. - Total net book value of fixed assets = ErEERAEBEA 1,161,140,086 - - 1,185,622,309
Including: Buildings Hi: EEREEY 735,135,865 - - 773,495,909
Machinery and equipment HER 383,651,880 - - 373,637,928
Electronical devices and others EFREREMD 27,753,066 = = 22,163,288
Transportation vehicles B 14,599,275 - - 16,325,184

The increase in the original carrying amount for the current
year consists of acquisitions of RMB126,195,785, and an
increase of RMB112,121,662 transferred from construction
in progress. The decrease in the original carrying amount for
the current year consists of a decrease of RMB41,801,070
on disposals and a decrease of RMB15,699,022 on
reclassification as investment properties. The increase in
accumulated depreciation for the current year consists of
charge for the year of RMB126,413,149. The decrease in
accumulated depreciation for the current year consists of a
decrease of RMB38,328,802 on disposals and a decrease

of RMB972,394 on reclassification as investment properties.

R2013F ERERELMGT - AEE
i3 A R #126,195,7857C + A&
TEEAMEINARI12,121,6627T :
EEREANFRIH  BESMERD
AR %41,801,070T - A AKE
B Hb 2 R A R #15,699,0227T ©
EEMEARFEMF - AFFHIEAR
#£126,413,14970 + Bt INERF R D
o BB E iR A K 38,328,802
7T A AR E B E TR D AR
972,3947T °

2013 1R
IR R EEAEEEROBRAR]
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VI.

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

9.

Fixed assets (Continued)

The increase in the original carrying amount for 2012
consists of acquisitions of RMB105,801,524, and an
increase of RMB59,905,702 transferred from construction
in progress. The decrease in the original carrying amount
for 2012 consists of a decrease of RMB42,829,172
on disposals and a decrease of RMB28,658,801 on
reclassification as investment properties. The increase in
accumulated depreciation for 2012 consists of charge
for the year of RMB111,900,415. The decrease in
accumulated depreciation for 2012 consists of a decrease
of RMB38,554,076 on disposals and a decrease of

RMB3,609,309 on reclassification as investment properties.

On 31 December 2013, the fixed assets with net book value
of RMB140,039,233 (31 December 2012: RMB89,192,077)
were pledged to secure certain of the Group’s bank loans.

(Note (VI) 27).

ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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(R)EHMBH/RRBETRE)

9-

EEEEE)

R0 EHRERERE MY AES
i 3% o0 A R #6105,801,5247C © EEE
T2 A i35 0 A R #59,905,7027T :
REREARFERS P BREMmRD
AR #42,829,17270 - B# AKE
B #h 2 s 2 A R #28,658,8017T ©
SEEARFEENF - AFFRAR
#111,900,4157C : 2FHITEARF R D
o BB MR A K #38,554,076
T ABAREMEERD ARE
3,609,3097T °

M2013F 12831 F B A R ¥
140,039,2337C (2012412 A31H : A
R#89,192,077L )M EEEER A
EEAERTEROERD T Z R
#ll o 2RMIFEGS) 27 -
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED (R) et BHRBEETRE)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

9. Fixed assets (Continued) 9. BEEEEE)
Fixed assets of which certificates of title have not been MR20135F12A31H » AP HEHEETE
obtained as at 31 December 2013: HMETEEEBR
Reasons why Expected time
certificates of of obtaining
title have not certificates
been obtained of title
Amount RIMTERE AR E
REFE BERE EEERRE
RMB
AR¥TT
Room 901, 902, 9083, 904, Unit 9, ARMAMIEAE
Fenghui Mansion, Zigiang Road B 58 B 1355
No.13, Qiaoxi District, BYEKE98 901
Shijiazhuang 902 ~ 903 * In progress 2014
Q04 E 5,712,726 IEfEEE A 20144
Room 1-201, 1-202,2-201, RRIREEE
2-202, 3-201, 3-202, Unit 13, 13-1-201 -
Chenxin Garden, Datong 13-1-202 -
13-2-201 -
13-2-202 -
13-3-201 - In progress 2014
13-3-202F & 3,031,562 FHEREH 20144
Fixed assets of which certificates of title have not been MR20125F12A31H AP HEEZE
obtained as at 31 December 2012: HETEEEBR
Reasons why Expected timing
certificates of of obtaining
title have not certificates
been obtained of title
Amount R ErE TERTIEEE
BRESHE BFERHA B E
RMB
ARETT
Room 901, 902, 903, 904, ARETEARR
Unit 9, Fenghui Mansion, B 58 #1355
Zigiang Road No.13, Qiaoxi LIEAE9
District, Shijiazhuang #7901 ~ 902 - In progress 2014
903 * QU4 E 5,999,419 ETEH#IE R 20144
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED (R)EHHMEHRREETR(E)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

10. Construction in progress 10 EEIRE
(1) Details of construction in progress are as follows: (1) EBIRBHUT :
2013.12.31 2012.12.31
“E-ZE+ZA=1-R I
Provision for Net Provision for
Carrying impairment carrying Carrying ~ impairment  Net carrying
amount losses amount amount losses amount
RESE HEER BEFE | REBRE  HEEE  REFE
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR¥T ARER  ARERn | ARER ARET  ARER
Shuanggiao Project BETR 49,825,460 - 49,825,460 | 49,825,460 - 49,825,460
Pingfang Project TEIR 36,694,407 - 36,694,407 83,780 - 83,780
Jiuxiangiao Project BEETR 3,180,911 - 3,180,911 = = =
System Software Project ZEHHEE TR 2,562,803 - 2,562,803 162,821 = 162,821
Convenignce Store Project EAERETR 768,524 - 768,524 | 1,104,324 - 1,104,324
Project of Drysaltery Distribution GEmRIR
Center 713,685 - 713,685 - - -
Project of Fresh Food Distribution & T2
Center 321,263 - 321,263 - - -
Changping Project E¥IR - - - | 54,164,902 - 54,164,902
Tuofangying Store Project BEEEIR - - - | 27,546,542 - 27,546,542
Logistics Sorting Equipment Project M1 A Bk E LR - - - | 16,264,447 - 16,264,447
Sanjianfang Project “HEIR - - - | 5937562 - 5,987,562
Renovation Project of Wangjing Store R ERiE T2 - - - | 4151111 - 415111
New platform of 5th District “HELRFETAIR
No.2 Warehouse Project - - - | 2,560,000 - 2,560,000
Shahe Warehouse Renovation Project 7)1 R i T12 - - - | 665,000 - 665,000
Daxing Juncheng Store Project AREHETR - - -| 555602 - 555602
Xingshenglu Store Project BREETR - - - 141,081 - 141,081
Renovation Project of EEHELNETR
Huilongguan Mall - - - 123,357 - 123,357
Tangshan Store Project ElEIR - - - 85,761 - 85,761
Headquarters Project BUTR - - - 30,175 - 30,175
Total At 94,067,053 - 94,067,053 |163,391,925 - 163,391,925
ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED (R) et BHRBEETRE)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

10. Construction in progress (Continued) 10 EEIR(E
(2) Changes in significant construction in progress (2) EBEAGEBEIEREEZEHER
31 December 2013 2013%12H31H
Transfer
to fixed
assets,
intangible
asstes
and Amount
long-term injected as a Including:
prepaid proportion of Amount of  capitalised Interest
expenses budget accumulated interest for capitalisation
E\BR amount (%) capitalised  the year rate for the 20131231
Budget 201311 Increase EE&F Other ~ IBKA Construction interest 2 year (%) —E-zF
amount ZE-Z£ intheyear EERRY  decreases EBE pogess%) — HEERX  AEFE  AEHES  Source of funds 1258
BEE® -A-R AEEM SEER HtEY W) IBEEW (EHEE EALEE ER(E%) EERR =t-
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARER  AR®T  ARMR  AREn  ARE:n ARET  ARER ARET
Shuanggiao Project 100,636,426 49,825,460 - - - 50 50 3,000,000 - - Ownfundsand 49,825,460
(Note 1) bank loans
$EIR(GH) BEAER
RI-RER
Pingfang Project 73,655,986 83,780 36,610,627 - - 50 50 425,988 425,988 531 Ownfundsand 36,694,407
TRIE loans
BEEER
RT-RER
Changping Project 68,482,545 54,164,902 14,317,643 68,482,545 - 100 100 5,541,916 727,334 531 Own funds and -
(Note 2) loans
ETIR(GR) HEEER
RiT-RER
Langfang Store Project | 44,222,899 - 44220899 44,222,899 - 100 100 - - - Own funds -
BAETR R4S
Tuofangying Store 30,631,608 27,546,542 3,085,066 30,631,608 - 100 100 - - - Own funds -
Project BEES
RREEIE
Renovation Project of 30,492,983 4,151,111 21,896,772 26,047,883 - 100 100 338,843 102,530 531 Own funds and -
Wangjing Store loans
ZREREIR BE4ELR
RT-RiER
Logistics Sorting 20,521,127 16,264,447 4,256,680 20,521,127 - 100 100 - - - Own funds -
Equipment Project HEEE
MRARRBIE
Sanjianfang Project 19,570,981 5,937,562 13,633,419 19,570,981 - 100 100 148,168 120,465 531 Own funds and -
=FHRIE loans
BEELR
RT-RiEX
Tiandalu Store Project 8,127,934 - 8127934 8127934 - 100 100 - - - Own funds -
RERELE BEES
Longwangzhueng Store | 5,833,596 - 5833596 583359 - 100 100 - - - Own funds -
Project BEES
ERAETE
Jinzhan Store Project 5,404,280 - 5404280 5,404,280 - 100 100 - - - Own funds -
SEETR BEES
Qther Construction in 25,671,000 5418121 24,012,430 21,883,365 - 110100 110100 475,292 3,470 531 Ownfundsand/ 7,547,186
Progress 1£100 12100 or bank loans
AERIE BRESS/R
RT-HRER
Total 163,391,925 181,401,346 250,726,218 - 9,930,207 1,747,787 94,067,053
aft
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED (R)EHtHBBREETRE)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
10. Construction in progress (Continued) 10 EEIR(E)
(2) Changes in significant construction in progress (2) EAGERIBEHELZBER(E
(Continued)
31 December 2012 2012%12H31H
Transfer to Amount
fixed assets injected as a Including:
and long- proportion of Amount of  capitalised Interest
term prepaid budget accumulated interest for ~ capitalisation
expenses amount (%) capitalised the year  rate for the 2012.12.31
Budget  2012.1.1 Increase  EAEE Other  THKA  Construction interest He: year (%) 3
amont  “E-"F  intheyer BEREH  decroases FBE pogess(e) FEEAL  FEAE AEFES Source of funds 28
REg -A-B  AEEN GEBER EY bl TEEE®)  RiHeE  EAEE  ARE%) EEKR =t+-A
RVB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RVB
ARET  ARET  ARER  ARER  ARER AREL  ARER ARET
Shuanggiao Project 100,636,426 49,825,460 - - - 50 50 3,000,000 - - Own funds and 49,825,460
(Note 1) bank loans
ERTEGH) B5ESR
BTN
Changping Project 68482545 41264734 12,900,168 - - 57 57 4814582 564,582 5.57 Own funds and 54,164,902
(Note 2 bank loans
EVIEGR) BHELR
RIT-HE
Mentougou Store Project 14,447,028 - 14,447,028 14,447,028 - 100 100 - - - Own funds -
FREEETE e
Sanjianfang Project 19,670,981 - 5,937,562 - - 18 18 21,108 21,108 557 Own funds and 5,937,562
“HEIR bank loans
BERER
RiT-HER
Tuofangying 30,631,608 - 21,546,542 5 90 90 5 = - Own funds 21,546,542
Store Project BEAS
LREEIE
Beiyuan Project’ 20237,361 5981227 23,159,517 29,140,744 & 100 100 231,894 137,042 557 Own funds and =
IR bank loans
BEELR
RIT—HiEH
Renovation Project of 30492,983 4445100 4,151,111 4445100 - 15 15 236,313 33,213 557 Own funds and 4,151,111
Wangjing Store" hank loans
ZRENETE BEAELR
BTN
TTH Street 26,601,888 17,269,082 8,332,806 25,601,888 - 100 100 - - - Own funds -
Store Project” ERES
TABETR
Logistics Sorting 20,521,121 - 16,264,447 - - 79 79 - - - Own funds 16,264,447
Equipment Project g5E%
MRARRBIE
Yirui Mid Road 8,563,240 577311 7985929 8,563,240 - 100 100 86,415 77,398 5.57 Own funds and -
Store Project * bank loans
BiRRETER BEESR
RT-RER
Xisangj Store Project * 8,166,304 221385 7,944919 8,166,304 = 100 100 = = - Own funds &
A-BETR E):)-6a
Fangzhuang 6,753,337 562256 6,191,081 6,753,337 - 100 100 35,013 26,232 557 Own funds and -
Store Project” bank loans
FEEIR BRALR
TR
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

10. Construction in progress (Continued)

(2) Changes in significant construction in progress

(Continued)

31 December 2012 (Continued)

(RN)EHt /KRB TB(E)

10 EEIR(E)

(2) EXGEIBEBEEHEEER(E)

20125128318 (&)

Transfer to Amount
fixed assets injected as a Including:
and long- proportion of Amount of  capitalised Interest
term prepaid budget accumulated interest for  capitalisation
expenses amount (%) capitalised the year  rate for the 2012.12.31
Budget  2012.1.1 Increase  EAET Other  T#EA  Construction interest Hi year (%) —3--F
amont  “F--F  intheyer EERRE  decreases (FBE pogess (%) FEEAL  AFEME  AFHE Source of funds -8
R -R-B  AEEN GEBER AfW) ooy TRER%  EHeE  ERLEE  AAlE() SRR =1+-A
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
AREL  AR¥TL  ARER  ARER  ARER ARETL  ARET ABET
Kangying Store 4756765 1265611  3501,154 4,756,765 - 100 100 54,748 35,138 5.57 Own funds and -
Project* bank loans
REETR BEESR
RT—RER
Dongba Store Project® 2,239,053 44064 2,194,999 2,239,053 - 100 100 40,134 38872 557 Own funds and -
RERTE bank loans
BEELR
Ri—RiER
Qther Construction 27003281 2,660,096 16,062,604 13,220,799 - 110100 110100 307,21 239,720 557 Own funds and/or 5,501,901
in Progress 12100 12100 bank loans
AfpERIRE BREST/R
RT-RiEH
Total 124,106,316 156,619,867 117,334,258 - 8,799,005 1,179,900 163,391,925
At

The project budget and the proportions of project
investments of the total budget in respective periods
were restated in accordance with revised budget amount

for subsequent years/periods.

ZEIEB RBERNIARFE LM
BIRNEESHEREREH
BHHRMNEBEREERTREREANL
TBERLLAI -

ERREEEEERRNBRAR




190

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

VI.

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

10. Construction in progress (Continued)

(2) Changes in significant construction in progress

(Continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

The costs of Shuanggiao Project mainly consisted of
land compensation cost. Due the change in planning
policies on the requisitioned land, the Company has
not obtained the land use right certificate. Pursuant to
the Land Requisition and Compensation Agreement
between the Company and the People’s Government
of Guanzhuang Township, Chaoyang District, Beijing
and its supplemental agreement, the amount paid to
the latter shall be refunded in full to the Company in
case of any change in policies or any other situation
that may affect land requisition of the Company. As
such, the management believes that there is no risk of

impairment for the project.

Changping Project is jointly developed by the
Company and Beijing Shengshui Yuanhua Real
Estate Development Company Limited (“Shengshui
Yuanhua”), an independent third party real estate
developer. As agreed upon by the parties, the
Company shall be responsible for land compensation
cost and certain infrastructures, and Shengshui
Yuanhua shall be responsible for construction of
buildings. Up completion, buildings and structures not
less than 16,000 square meters shall be allocated to
the Company for operation of hypermarket. Most of
infrastructures on the part of the Company had been
completed before 2008, and the remaining main work
was constructed by Shengshui Yuanhua. The project

was completed and commenced operation in 2013.

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 R R BT

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

(RN)EHt /KRB TB(E)

11. Intangible assets 11 BEEE
2013.1.1 Increase in Decrease in 2013.12.31
—E-=fF the year the year —E-=F
-B-R KEEM A5@4 +=B=t-A
RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARET ARET AR¥T ARER
| Total original carrying amount — BEREA 231,803,191 21,095,553 12,117,934 240,780,810
Land use rights TitfE R 196,270,971 4,211,482 12,117,934 188,364,519
Software development costs HHRRE 16,887,587 2,174,071 - 19,061,658
Operation rights of distrioution network DI ICHE 18,644,633 14,710,000 - 33,354,633
Il Total accumulated amortisation . RitEEAE 35,202,386 9,066,751 988,643 43,280,494
Land use rights i RE 19,282,116 5,249,134 988,643 23,542,607
Software development costs HHERE 8,892,387 1,868,700 - 10,761,087
Operation rights of distribution network DB 7,027,883 1,948,917 - 8,976,800
IIl. Total net book value of intangible assets = BRAEREEEA 196,600,805 - - 197,500,316
Land use rights TiHERE 176,988,855 - - 164,821,912
Software development costs YHFELE 7,995,200 - - 8,300,571
Operation rights of distribution network DHRRT R 11,616,750 - - 24,377,833
2012.1.1 Increase in Decrease in 2012.12.31
—E-CF the year the year —E-CF
—2-B REEN AFRY» +zZB=1+-H
RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARETL AR ARETL AR¥TT
. Total original carrying amount - RAREA 220,729,886 11,073,305 = 231,803,191
Land use rights TR 196,270,971 - - 196,270,971
Software development costs HHRRE 13,814,282 3,073,305 - 16,887,587
Operation rights of distrioution network DIHRBRITIAE 10,644,633 8,000,000 - 18,644,633
Il Total accumulated amortisation = RHEEA 28,163,624 7,038,762 = 35,202,386
Land use rights TiifE R 15,171,924 4,110,192 - 19,282,116
Software development costs BHRLE 7,310,151 1,582,236 - 8,892,387
Operation rights of distribution network DERRCEE 5,681,549 1,346,334 - 7,027,883
Ill. Total net book value of intangible assets = BRAEREEEA 192,566,262 - - 196,600,805
Land use rights TifE A 181,099,047 - - 176,988,855
Software development costs YHELE 6,504,131 = = 7,995,200
Operation rights of distribution network DIHRBIR TR 4,963,084 - - 11,616,750
2013 3R
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED (R)EHtHBBREETRE)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
11. Intangible assets (Continued) 11 BREEEE)
The increase in the original carrying amount for 2013 R2013FEREREENT - ABEM
consists of an increase of RMB16,884,071 on acquisition i AR#16,884,0717C © RERIE
and an increase of RMB4,211,482 due to transfer from A g A REE4,211,48270  BRAIR
construction in progress. The decrease in the carrying BEARFRLF  AEAKREEEEM
amount for 2013 consists of a decrease of RMB12,117,934 WA ANREE12,117,93470 « Rt# A
on reclassification as investment properties. The increase FRINF - KFEFHR AR 9,066,751
in accumulated depreciation for 2013 consists of T REHEEAFRASH - AEARE
charge for the year of RMB9,066,751. The decrease in M 5 Hb E TR A A R #5988,6437T ©
accumulated depreciation for 2012 consists of a decrease
of RMB988,643 on reclassification as investment properties.
The increase in the original carrying amount for 2012 R2012F EREREENGT - AEEMm
consists of an increase of RMB11,073,305 on acquisition. HEIARYE11,073,3057T ° RFHEEHAR
The increase in accumulated depreciation for 2012 consists FEMF - KFEFHEARY7,038,762
of charge for the year of RMB7,038,762. 50
As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, no land M2013%12A31H Kk20124F12A31H -
use rights were pledged or guaranteed. EANEARE BRI EARE -
12. Goodwill 12~ B&
2012.1.1,
2012.12.31 and
2013.12.31
—E—_F
—A—-BR
—E-—_F
+ZA=+—-HRK
Name of the investee and HREBNBEY —EB-—=fF
item resulting in goodwill FEREEBNEE +=—B=+—H
RMB
AR
Acquisition of Shouchao Group WiEEHEE 86,673,788
ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12. Goodwill (Continued)

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the
balance was the goodwill arising from the acquisition
of Shoulian Supermarket and its subsidiaries (“Shoulian
Group”), and Beijing Jingchao Commercial Company Limited

(Hereinafter referred to as “Jingchao”).

The impairment tests of goodwill acquired through the
purchase of Shouchao Group and Jingchao were conducted
on the group of assets in relation to the retailing business
segment of the Shouchao Group after consolidation of

Jingchao.

The recoverable amount of the group of assets had been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets covering a five-
year period approved by senior management. The discount
rate applied to calculate the present value of a future stream
of cash flows was 12% (2012: 13%). The growth rate used
to extrapolate the cash flows of the subsidiary beyond the
five-year period was 3% (2012: 3%).

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012,
the calculation of the present value of the cash flow of
Shouchao Group was based on certain key assumptions.
Below are the key assumptions made by the management
in forecasting the present value of a future stream of cash

flows to conduct impairment tests of goodwill.

Expected gross profit — The estimation of gross profit is
based on the average gross profit realized in previous year,
and then appropriately increased according to the increase

of expected efficiency and market expansion.

Discount rate — using the discount rate before tax which

reflects Shouchao Group’s specific risks.

1:||||/

(RN)EHt /KRB TB(E)

12 BE(E)

72013124318 k201266124318 -
ZHEAREEHET REF AR
THEEBAIEHBER]) R R R B
BERRAB(ATERBAIREDEENE

=
AEBYBEEBEEE R UBRISHEE
NEHRBENEBEETRTEXY
HENEEFER—EEEMETRE
AR ZBEEABRTENE -

ZEEMANAIRE € BIRBETE AR
ReRENBAERTE  BEEEEHR
BERSFHNMBEHEEER FNRESR
SEBRETE - SAEHEFFRKRE SR
SREMBHITIREE12% (20124 :
18%) ' SFUEHNBESRENERER
3%(2012%F : 3%) °

AT E E B % B R2013F12A318 &
2012F12 ABIHMES R RN SR E
RERBTERBR - UTHLTER
B R#EITEERERR - IEREER
RKBELTERERELHBRERS

HEER - BT ERRERETEH —
FEROTHTNERRL - RFE
Bk RE R T SRR ERE Y R
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

13. Long-term prepaid expense

(R)EHMBH/RRBETRE)

13- REFHEER

2013.1.1 Increase in  Amortisation Other 2013.12.31
—E-=% the year  for the year reductions ZE—-=f Reasons for other reductions
—-A-H KEREM KEBHY Hited +=A=1+-R0 HttEIRE
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARER ARETR ARETR ARET ARETR
Leasehold improvements Disposal
GERMABTEAERRSL | 548,035830 134,393,074 68,129,537 83,156,364 531,143,003 RE (M (L) 4(1)2H1)
Rent Transferred into current assets
Efl 50,560,050 - - 16,476,817 34,083,233 EERBHEE
Others Transferred into current assets
Hit 630,112 - - 630,112 - BERHEE
Total
a5t 599,225,992 134,393,074 68,129,537 100,263,293 565,226,236
201211 Increase in Amortisation Other 2012.12.31
“2——F the year for the year reductions ZF—Z% Reasons for other reductions
—-A—A REEN TEBHE RS +ZA=+—R0 E#RIRR
RMB RVB RMB RMB RMB
AR ARETL ARET AR ARETL
Leasehold improvements
EEBEAETEESRSE 543,296,036 79,593,526 74,853,732 - 548,035,830
Rent Transferred into current assets
Efl 55,441,342 8,257,847 - 13,139,139 50,560,050 EZFEHEE
Others Transferred into current assets
it - 1,680,300 210,038 840,150 630,112 EEFEEE
Total
A&t 598,737,378 89,531,673 75,063,770 13,979,289 599,225,992
ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

14. Deferred tax assets (liabilities)

(1) Recognised deferred tax assets and deferred tax

)

(RN)EHt /KRB TB(E)

14 BEFREHEE(EE)

(1) EERELFEHEEBE)

liabilities
2013.12.31 2012.12.31
—EB-=F —E—-%F
+=—A=+—H +=—BA=+—H
RMB RMB
AR®T ARETT
Deferred tax assets EIEFSHREE !
Deductible losses AT INES 1R 20,478,748 16,542,792
Total (Sl 20,478,748 16,542,792
Deferred tax liabilities BEEMEHEHE
Fair value adjustment of IEEBIEEEZIRBA
assets arising from BEAREEFAZE
non-monetary asset exchange 4,467,896 4,734,505
Changes in the fair value of At ECREE
available-for-sale financial NREEZE
assets recognised in
capital reserve 877,500 1,995,500
Capitalized adjustment of BEREAFBENMLAE
borrowing costs 2,806,473 3,193,979
Differences between the book  #fE&F A FIRREE G
value and the fair value of NABEEERE
the acquired subsidiaries 1,575,360 1,136,816
Total ast 9,727,229 11,060,800

Details of unrecognised deferred tax assets

Deductible losses of
unrecognised deferred
tax assets

REREIEFTEIRE ER
AEMER

(2) ARERELFEHEERA

2013.12.31 2012.12.31
—E—= —E—F
+=A=+—H +=-RA=+—H
RMB RMB

AR®T AR¥ETT
25,514,542 10,374,997

In the opinion of the management, deferred tax assets

are not recognised since taxable profits were unlikely

to present in the future to offset deductible losses.

SEEREERRARTZMRATEE

A R R Lt T IR0 B 1R O FE A
BFTSEE - B RFERIA BB B

BEFREHREE -

2013 1R
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED (R)EHtHBBREETRE)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

14. Deferred tax assets (liabilities) (Continued)

(3) Deductible losses for which no deferred tax assets

14 REFREHEE (RE)(HF)

(3) ARERELEHEER T

are recognised will expire in the following years BRERUTEEZA
2013.12.31 2012.12.31
—E—-=fF —E——4F
+=-—H=+—H +=—A=+—H
RMB RMB
Year F1p AR¥TT AREETT
2013.12.31 —FE—=F+-A=+—H - 2,942,282
2014.12.31 —E—FE+-_A=+—H 1,365,943 1,365,943
2015.12.31 —ZE—R&E+=-A=+—H 2,361,236 2,361,236
2016.12.31 —T—RFE+-A=+—H 2,721,122 2,721,122
2017.12.31 —E—+tF+-A=+—H 984,414 984,414
2018.12.31 —E-N\E+=-A=+—H 18,081,827 =
Total ST 25,514,542 10,374,997

(4) Details of taxable temporary differences and

(4) SIBEHRMEENEEXEEER

deductible temporary differences HENEFTERE
Amount of
temporary
differences
TEMERSE
RMB
AR¥T
2013.12.31 —EB-ZF+ZH=+—H
Deductible temporary differences: TR E R ER
Deductible losses A INE 18 81,914,991
Total A&r 81,914,991
Taxable temporary differences: RS EREER !
Fair value adjustment of assets arising FEBHEESBRIBABENR
from non-monetary asset exchange BEAE 17,871,583
Changes in the fair value of available-for-sale st AB A AR A HEHESREE
financial assets recognised in capital reserve AR {BEZEH) 3,510,000
Capitalized adjustment of BRERFSERN AR
borrowing costs 11,225,891
Differences between the book value and HETARREEEMN
the fair value of the acquired subsidiaries AREBEEEE 6,301,441
Total E 38,908,915
ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED (R) et BHRBEETRE)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

14. Deferred tax assets (liabilities) (Continued) 14 EEFBHEE(ARE) (&)
(4) Details of taxable temporary differences and (4) SIEEHEMEENEEXEEER
deductible temporary differences (Continued) YENTEHERE(E)
Amount of
temporary
differences
TRMEERESHE
RMB
AREETT
2012.12.31 —E-—F+ZHA=+—H
Deductible temporary differences: AT REER
Deductible losses AEHEE 66,171,168
Total At 66,171,168
Taxable temporary differences: AP ERMEER
Fair value adjustment of assets arising from FEEBHEEESHBIBABLENLBERAE
non-monetary asset exchange 18,938,022
Changes in the fair value of available-for-sale st ABAATERAIHEESREE
financial assets recognised in capital reserve A5 EEEE 7,982,000
Capitalized adjustment of EREBERAEER AR
borrowing costs 12,775,913
Differences between the book value and HEFATRABENARBEER
the fair value of the acquired subsidiaries 4,547,267
Total &t 44,243,202
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED (R)EHUBBRREETE(E)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
15. Details of provision for impairment losses of assets 15 EEREEERHA
Decrease in the year
KERD
2013.12.31
2013.1.1 Increase —2-=F%
ZZE—=% intheyear Reversals Write-off +=A
—B—H ZARFEMm Eg gy =+-H
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR¥T AR¥ET AR¥T AR¥T AR¥R
Bad debts provision BHREE 8,703,079 1,171,772 125,000 - 9,749,851
Provision for decline in value of FERELERE
inventories 2,044,284 290,456 - 879,836 1,454,904
Provision for impairment losses of At HES FEE
available-for-sale financial assets EEE 1,188,000 - - - 1,188,000
Total Sl 11,935,363 1,462,228 125,000 879,836 12,392,755
Decrease in the year
AERD
2012.12.31
2012.1.1 Increase —T-—F
ZT—ZF intheyear  Reversals Write-off +=R
—A—H AEEM o) B3 =+-H
RVMB RMB RVMB RVMB RVMB
AR AR AR AR AR
Bad debts provision BEERE 7,000,000 1,890,579 187,500 - 8,703,079
Provision for decline in value of FEWELER
inventories 2,044,284 - - - 2,044,284
Provision for impairment losses of A4t &S B EERELEE
available-for-sale financial assets 1,188,000 - - - 1,188,000
Provision for impairment losses of ~— EEBABTEERR X H
leasehold improvements 888,054 - - 888,054 -
Total &t 11,120,338 1,890,579 187,500 888,064 11,935,363
ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

16. Other non-current assets

17.

(RN)EHt /KRB TB(E)

16~ HtERBEE

]|E|E||/

2013.12.31 2012.12.31
=—F-=F -
+=—B=+—H +=ZA=+—H
RMB RMB
AR® AR
Long-term receivables due from HEBERMN

Shoulian Group (Note 1) REAFEUGR (1) 47,500,000 .
Long-term receivables due form ¥JL R FE A R HA FE K

Hongchao Weiye (H3E(E) ~ 4 (1)Z25E1)

(Note (VII) 4(1) Note 1) 45,476,373 =
Security deposit e RES 13,712,683 13,780,628
Total =) 106,689,056 18,780,628
Note 1: As at 31 December 2013, such long-term receivables are 1. R2013F12A31H * ZSEREHAEK

consisted of borrowings lent by Shoulian Supermarket to NABHBETREHEBRRERRNE
Shoulian Group, due on 30 April 2015 as agreed upon. The e EHHTENRAE RB2015F

long-term receivables bear interest at 6.00% per annum.

A piece of land and related buildings of Shoulian Group

with a total fair value not less than the balance of the long-

term receivables has been pledged in favor of Shoulian

Supermarket.

Short-term borrowings

Accounts receivable secured
loans (Note 1)

Guaranteed loans (Note 2)

Unsecured loans (Note 3)

4AB0H © |l & 5 fE I RUIR G FI =
6.00%5H 8 o FIFf - B ETHAE
G A 2 BETEN R AR
BOREER T BRERERE

& o

17 ~ BHIER

2012.12.31
—E—-—4F
+=-—A=+—8H
RMB

AREETT

50,000,000
1,817,706,849
470,000,000

Total

2013.12.31

—F—=
+=A=+—H
RMB
AR®TT

FEURBR SRR B TR (FET)

99,598,081
REBEBR(GE2) 1,611,379,861
ERAERGES) 150,000,000
&5t 1,860,977,942

2,337,706,849

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the

short-term borrowings bore annual interest rates ranging

from 5.04% to 7.20% and 5.04% to 7.22%, respectively. All

the loans were repaid in time.

72013512 H31H Kk2012412H31

H- Lt

LE B E RO ERNED RS

5.04%%7.20%55.04%%E7.22% * R
B\ EHECE B RERENER -
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VI.

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

17. Short-term borrowings (Continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

As at 31 December 2013, such short-term bank loans from
were secured by certain of the Group’s accounts receivable
amounted to RMB206,767,979 (31 December 2012:
RMB89,633,545).

As at 31 December 2013, among such short-term
bank loans, RMB250,000,000 was borrowed by the
Company upon a surety provided by Chaopi Trading;
RMB980,431,697 was borrowed by the Company’s
subsidiary Chaopi Trading upon a surety provided by
the Company; and RMB380,948,164 was borrowed by
subsidiaries of Chaopi Trading upon sureties provided by
Chaopi Trading.

As at 31 December 2012, among such short-term
bank loans, RMB500,000,000 was borrowed by the
Company upon a surety provided by Chaopi Trading;
RMB1,059,629,653 was borrowed by the Company’s
subsidiary Chaopi Trading upon a surety provided by the
Company; and RMB258,077,196 was borrowed by a
subsidiaries of Chaopi Trading upon sureties provided by
Chaopi Trading.

As at 31 December 2013, the credit loans included
RMB100,000,000 and RMB50,000,000 granted by Beijing
Rural Commercial Bank and Mizuho Bank (China), Ltd.
respectively on an unsecured basis.

As at 31 December 2012, the credit loans included
RMB50,000,000 granted by China Industrial and
Commercial Bank, Chaoyang Branch, RMB40,000,000
granted by Huaxia Bank, Beijing Branch, RMB220,000,000
granted by Beijing Rural Commercial Bank, Commerce
Branch to the Company, and RMB160,000,000 granted by
China Everbright Bank, Beijing Jingguanggiao Branch to the
Company’s subsidiary Chaopi Trading, all short-term loans

are on an unsecured basis.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED
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MR2013F 128318 * ZEEEER
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BIER - AR BIREREER
AR #980,431,697TL AR A FZ T
NEFAHEEMER - AR ARH
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MAREEZ IR HER -

2012128318 ' EREXR+TH
B TR RITHAR TR AR A R B
H) 52 H1 & A R #50,000,0007T -

EERITIERDITRAARA R BN E
HE 3 A R #40,000,0007C + 3k
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NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

18. Notes payable

19.

Bank acceptances IRITHEHIERER

A

il

(RN)EHt /KRB TB(E)

18 BNRE

2013.12.31
—g2—=
+=A=+-AH
RMB
AR®TT

56,677,291

2012.12.31
B
+=-—A=+—H”
RMB
AR

20,791,692

As at 31 December 20183, security deposit for the
issuance of the above bank acceptances amounted to

RMB11,335,458 (31 December 2012: RMB4,158,338).

All of the bank acceptances of the Group will be due within

one year.

Accounts payable

Trade payables FERTER

19

v

R2013%12A31H © A M A £ it iR
TERAEZENRIBISERBARE
11,335,458 (2012612 A31H : AR

"4 158,3387T) °

AEBHRITELERGEINFEZA

FHY

FEAS BRX

2013.12.31
—g2—=
+=A=+—H
RMB
AR® T

1,138,958,035

2012.12.31
B
+=-A=+—H
RMB
ARETT

1,054,796,045

As at 31 December 2013, the security deposit amounted
to RMB700,000 (31 December 2012: Nil) was used for the
issuance of domestic long-term letter of credit to pay back

the accounts payable amounted to RMB3,000,384.

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the
accounts payable were consisted of procurements payable,
among which there were no significant payables aging
more than one year. There were no account payable due to
shareholders holding 5% or more of the Company’s shares

with voting power.

MR2013F12A31H AW A B RN E

A R #3,000,3847C JE & T HY
NEHERENREFSERAARE
700,0007C(20125F12 8318 : &)

M2013F12 8318 &2012412A31H -

EMERBENEFERRER

He

I AR iR R B 1 F RO RBRE (S 50IR - &
NERBER T FEREARRS% (B
5% ) VA £ ZRORRE R A7 B0 A SR SR BEHSE 77 5%

I8 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

VL. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED (R)EOMBHREBATRE)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
20. Advances from customers 20 - FEWKIE
2013.12.31 2012.12.31
—E-=F —E—CF
t=A=+—-B | +tZ-H=+—H
RMB RMB
AR¥ T ARET
Procurements received in advance TEME * 503,311,013 466,999,477
As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the M2013F12A331H K&20125F12 431
advances from customers are consisted of procurements C AEBTBBHIBES ATERER
received in advance, among which there were no significant A R AR ER ER B F A K EE TR UREH -
advances from customers aged more than one year. There FEWRIBHRBER I FEREER QALY
were no advances from shareholders holding 5% or more of (&5%) A EFRFIER D AR R FIA ©
the Company’s shares with voting power.
21. Employee benefits payable 21 BB IHMN
2013.1.1 Increase in  Decrease in 2013.12.31
—E-=F the year the year —B-=F
-A-H RERM *EHY +=A=+-H
RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR%TRT AR%RT AR AR%T
. Wages or salaries, bonuses, — 1% %% 2R
allowances and subsidies - 439,962,704 439,962,704 -
Il Staff welfare - BIEFE - 26,185,405 26,185,405 -
lll. Social security contributions = HERKE - 102,792,523 102,792,523 S
Medical insurance Hi: BERKBRE - 33,681,309 33,681,309 =
Basic retirement Insurance §$§%1 BE - 62,291,047 62,291,047 =
Unemployment insurance KERRE - 3,042,915 3,042,915 =
Work-related injury insurance 11%%&‘};%3 - 1,152,949 1,152,949 -
Maternity Insurance HERRE - 2,624,303 2,624,303 -
IV. Housing funds m-FEAES - 27,660,029 27,660,029 -
V. Labour union expenditures and I TERENBIHELS
employees’ education expenses 8,298,385 8,096,646 13,266,681 3,128,350
Total A& 8,298,385 604,697,307 609,867,342 3,128,350
ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

21.

22.

Employee benefits payable (Continued)

(RN)EHt /KRB TB(E)

21 BRI (Z)

2012.12.31
2012.1.1 Increase in Decrease =
ZZ—ZF the current year in the year +=A
—R—AH RELEN KERD =t+—A
RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR ARETL ARET AR
. Wages or salaries, bonuses, — IR & 2BHHE
allowances and subsidies - 420,421,143 420,421,143 -
Il Staff welfare —BIGAE - 25,701,489 25,701,489 -
Il Social security contributions = HERRE 92,730 89,776,309 89,869,039 -
Medical insurance Ho: BERWRE 70,772 29,210,622 29,281,394 -
Basic pension insurance BEAEZRRE 20,426 54,616,209 54,036,635 =
Unemployment insurance KERBE 1,632 2,627,452 2,628,984 -
Work-related injury insurance THERRE - 1,030,374 1,030,374 -
Maternity insurance LERKRE - 2,291,652 2,291,652 -
IV. Housing funds m-fELES - 24,752,986 24,752,986 =
V. Labour union expenditures and i ISRENBIHELE
employees’ education expenses 7,441,181 8,050,935 7,193,731 8,298,385
Total At 7,633,911 568,702,862 567,938,388 8,298,385

There were no arrears payments among employee benefits

payable.

Taxes payable

22 ERXHE

FERTE TR B b R B N B RIEE HO 3K
I8 o

2013.12.31 2012.12.31

—ZE—= —T—=F

+=ZHA=+—H +=—A=+—H

RMB RMB

AR®T AR¥ETT

Business tax =) 6,127,151 3,939,793

Income tax FTiSHL 5,298,909 4,545,863
Urban construction and T AR AR

maintenance tax 3,346,533 3,087,287

Education surcharges A BHN 1,463,115 1,349,421

Value added tax I(EF 6,658,761 125,833

Others Hih 2,972,365 3,175,697

Total i 25,866,834 16,223,894

2013 i)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

23. Other payables

(1) Details of other payables are as follows:

(R)EHMBH/RRBETRE)

23~ HiENR

(1) RMEMSBHAT -

2013.12.31 2012.12.31

—E—-=F —T——F

+=—A=+—H +=ZA=+—H

RMB RMB

AR®T AREETT

Construction fees payable FERTIERK 150,470,723 32,830,148
Deposit e 36,360,103 85,135,844
Rent received in advance BUEE 8,591,527 7,745,346
Others HAith 20,741,103 29,470,566
Total &=k 216,163,456 155,181,904

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012,
there were no other payables due to shareholders
holding 5% or more of the Company’s shares with

voting power.

(2) Description of significant other payables aged more
than one year:
As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012,
other payables aged over one year were mainly

deposits and construction fees payable.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED (R) et BHRBEETRE)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

24. Bonds Payable 24 - ERESR
As at 31 December 2013, the remaining amounts of bonds 20135 12A31H * BN EHF MR E
payable were as follow: IR ¢
Opening Accrued Interest Closing
Term of Issue interest interest for  paid during interest Closing
Par value Issue date the bond amount payable the year the year payable balance
HE BTAH B HR BTEE FOENTE AEEARE AFEANE EREANE EXBE
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
N AR%R AR¥T N N AR¥T N
Short-term bonds
EHERNES
Short-term bonds 2012.7.10 1 year
HHREER 200,000,000 2012575108 15 200,000,000 4,398,333 4,575,278 8,973,611 - -
Short-term bonds 2013.7.12 6 months
REREES 200,000,000 2013%7H12A 618 A 200,000,000 - 4,911,111 - 491,111 199,979,167
Subtotal
Nt 400,000,000 400,000,000 4,398,333 9,486,389 8,973,611 491,111 199,979,167
Long-term bonds
REERES
Long-term bonds 2013.8.13 5 years
RERERER 750,000,000 2013%8F13H 5% 750,000,000 - 15,869,167 - 15,869,167 743,553,870
Total
EH 1,150,000,000 1,150,000,000 4,398,333 25,355,556 8,973,611 20,780,278 943,533,037
As at 31 December 2012, the remaining amounts of bonds R2012F12A31H - BN EHFHNHRE
payable were as follow: FIREATR -
Opening Accrued Interest Closing
Term of Issue interest interest for ~ paid during interest Closing
Par value Issue date the bond amount payable the year the year payable balance
BfE ZTAH BHHR B2 FORATE AEEAFS AFEFNE ERENNE FRHE
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARETT ARETT AE#T ARBT N ARET ARBT
Short-term bonds
EHEMNES
Short-term bonds 2011.8.24 1 year
RHmAES 300,000,000 201148A24H —f 300,000,000 7,236,667 13,193,000 20,429,667 - -
Short-term bonds 2012.7.10 1 year
RERAES 200,000,000 20127 A10R —& 200,000,000 - 4,398,333 - 4,398,333 199,650,000
Total
At 500,000,000 500,000,000 7,236,667 17,591,333 20,429,667 4,398,333 199,650,000

ERREEEEERRNBRAR
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VI.

1:||||/

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

24. Bonds Payable (Continued)

On 12 July 2013, the Company issued short-term bonds in
an aggregate amount of RMB200,000,000 with a term of
maturity of six months through Bank of Nanjing. The short-
term bonds were issued at par value of RMB100, bearing a
coupon rate of 5.20% per annum. The issuance expenses
of RMB250,000 were included in the cost of bonds payable.
As at 25 January 2014, such debentures and interest

payable were repaid in full.

Pursuant to the “Approval on Issuance of Corporate Bonds
of Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited” (Zheng Jian Xu Ke
[2013] No. 791) issued by the CSRC, on 15 August 2013,
the Company finished issuing the corporate bonds in an
aggregate amount of RMB750 million, bearing a coupon
rate at 5.48% per annum, with a term of maturity of 5 years,
embedded with the option to increase the coupon rate by
the issuer and putable option by the investor at the end of
the third year. The corporate bonds were jointly secured
by Beijing Chaoyang District National Capital Operating
Management Center, a state-owned enterprise. The
issuance expenses of RMB6,923,208 were included in the

cost of bonds payable.

As at 10 July 2012, the Company issued short-term bonds
amounted to RMB200,000,000 of one-year maturity through
Bank of Beijing. Issue price was par value (RMB100) per
unit and coupon rate was 4.55% per annum. The issuance
expenses of RMB700,000 had been included in the cost of
bonds payable.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

25. Long-term borrowings due within one year

(1) Long-term borrowings due within one year

)

Secured loans

EREX

(RN)EHt /KRB TB(E)

25 - 1R REHHRBERK

(1) 1FREFHHRAEH

2013.12.31
—g2—=

+=A=+—H

RMB

AR® T

10,000,000

2012.12.31
B
+=ZA=+—8
RMB

ARKT

As at 31 December 2013, the long-term borrowings

duw within one year were secured by certain of the

Company’s buildings with aggregate carrying amounts

of RMB140,039,233 and investment properties with

carrying amount of RMB7,447,628.

Details of long-term borrowings due within one

M2013%F12A31H + —F N E|H
RBEROAASEETEERE
T8 A A R #140,039,2337T 1) B
ERBREYREEFEAARE
7,447,6287T B2 B 1 B 3 E 1 1

HRER -

(2) 1FREIHHRREBEH

year
2013.12.31 | 2012.12.31
Inception date of Interest | —8-=% | —B——%
Lender borrowing Maturity date Currency rate (%) +ZA +ZA
EHEN fEFtemA BRELER B ME% | =t-B| =t-8
RMB RMB
ARYR | ARBT
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank, Beijing Branch ~ 2013.1.24 2014.6.20 RMB 5.84 | 2,500,000 -
LERRBRRTIRAT 201314248 2014567208 ARE
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank, Beiiing Branch ~ 2013.1.24 2014.12.20 RMB 5.84 | 2,500,000 -
FERRERETIRAT 2013F1A248 2014128208 ARE
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank, Beijjing Branch ~ 2013.4.12 2014.6.20 RMB 5.84 | 2,500,000 =
FERRERBITLRAT 201348128 2014665208 ARE
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank, Bejjing Branch ~ 2013.4.12 2014.12.20 RMB 5.84 | 2,500,000 -
HERRERBITLRAT 2013F4A128 20146127208 ARE
Total 1,000,000 -
Ait

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the

Group had no overdue borrowings outstanding.

R2013F 128318 » REBH T 1F

FEEBIHME R AR EENER o
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

26. Other current liabilities

26~ HiiEBAE

(R)EHMBH/RRBETRE)

2013.12.31 2012.12.31
—E—=F —E——F
+=—A=+—H +=ZA=+—H
RMB RMB
AR¥T AREETT
Accrued expenses TEIRE A 45,335,045 24,528,010
Deferred income due within one year 14 R % EIEIEIE Yz 4,502,260 3,668,929
Total 58t 49,837,305 28,196,939
(1) Accrued expenses (1) FHEEH

2013.12.31 2012.12.31

—E-=F —F—=
+=—A=+—H +=—A=+—H
RMB RMB
AR ARETT
Accrued interest expenses TERFEEA 24,866,447 9,763,863
Accrued rent expenses EiREM 11,613,873 6,942,179
Accrued audit expenses TEIRERTE 2,140,000 1,140,000
Others HAith 6,714,725 6,681,968
Total Sial 45,335,045 24,528,010
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NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

26. Other current liabilities (Continued)

(2) Deferred income due within one year

(RN)EHt /KRB TB(E)

26~ HiRBAE(E)

(2) 1FERERHEL R 2

2013.12.31 2012.12.31
—g_= - —f
+=—A=+—-R8| +=ZA=+—H
Notes RMB RMB
ihg=s AR ARBT
Asset-related government grants —4F X 51| # ) B2 Note 1
due within one year & E RO BN B 3 1,017,267 266,667
Considerations allocated to DB HERENE Y Note 2
the award credits HEHE 2 3,484,993 3,402,262
Total &&t 4,502,260 3,668,929
Note 1: Government grants related to assets due within one 1 —FREIHAEEEERAR

year were consisted of deferred income due within
one year generated from special funds received
in 2005 and 2013 by the Company and would be

recognised as revenue in next year. See Note (VI) 29.

Note 2: The Group offers membership credit cards to
customers, and awards credit reaching certain
points can be converted into cash while shopping.
As deferred income, considerations allocated to the
award credits will be recognised as revenue when the

award credits are converted or cleared in next year.

2 :

3 1 B B AR R Rl R2005%F &
R2O13FEWREINEBE S
EEMIET TR —F NI
#E vthAT—il*ﬁ%
Wzs o 2RMIEEGR) ~ 29 ¢

AEREEEEERTERED
RESEHEK - HROEBEDE
—ENENEPED —JLM:E
BYRAEAREER -
Ef‘ﬁﬁﬂz“ﬁ’ﬁﬁ’ééﬂﬁ?ﬁﬁiﬁ
fEYas - WA SRR D B
HHE T —FEREETRER
RN »
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

27. Long-term borrowings

(1) Category of long-term borrowings

Secured loans

ERER

27 » REIER

(R)EHMBH/RRBETRE)

(1) RAEHTE
2013.12.31 2012.12.31
—B—=F —E——F
t=A=t—-8| TZA=1+—H
RMB RMB
AR®R AR®T
234,000,000 200,000,000

As at 31 December 2013, long-term borrowings were
secured by certain of the Group’s buildings with
carrying amount of RMB140,039,233 and investment
properties with carrying amount of RMB7,447,628.

As at 31 December 2012, the long-term loans were
secured by certain of the Group’s buildings with
carrying amount of RMB89,192,077 and investment
properties with carrying amount of RMB6,620,660.

(2) Details of long-term borrowings

720135128318 » K H{E HH
AEEETEEREFEAARE
140,039,233 H E E R &Y K&
BREFEAARKT 447,628TH)
BB M B EE VR IR -

20124128318 + REAERAE
AEBETEEREFEAARE
89,192,077 THI 5 E M2 &Y M ER
% B A A R #6,620,6607T #) %

B EHELE

(2) RAEEHH

KRR

2013.12.31 2012 12.31
Inception date of Interest | =B-=% | ZE—=%
Lender borrowing Maturity date Currency rate (%) +ZA TZA
ENEN {AFetA AR K fl&% | =1-A =tA
RMB RMB
AR¥R ARET
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank, Beijing Branch 2013.1.24 2015.6.20 RMB
PERRERETIRAM 013F1A248  2015F67208 AR® 584 | 2,500,000 -
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank, Beijing Branch 2013.1.24 2016.1.23 RMB
DERRERETIRAT 2013F1R24B 201651 23R ARE 584 | 57,500,000 -
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank, Beijing Branch 2013.4.12 2015.6.20 RMB
PERRERRTIRAM 013F4R128  201556F208 AEH 584 | 2,500,000 =
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank, Beijing Branch 20134.12 2016.1.31 RMB
PERRERRTIRAMT 2013548128 2016F1A318 AR 584 | 37,500,000 -
Bank of Communications, Sanyuan Branch 2012.12.14 2015.9.20 RMB
RBRI=TXN 0125128148 2015698208 AR® 584 | 74,000,000 | 90,000,000
Bank of Communications, Sanyuan Branch 2012.12.26 2015.9.20 RMB
REROIZENO 2012F12A268  2015F9A208 ARE 5.84 | 60,000,000 | 110,000,000
Total
Aif 234,000,000 | 200,000,000
ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

20.

(RN)EHt /KRB TB(E)

]|E|E||/

28. Provisions 28 ~ EFTAE
2013.1.1 Increase in Decrease in 2013.12.31
—E-=F the year the year “E-=f
-A-H KERM xE@Y +t=A=t-H
RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR®T AR AR%T AR%T
Pending litigation RRFFHR - 910,612 - 910,612
On 4 May 2012, Beijing Baili Tongda Co., Ltd. lodged M2012F5R848 - t R BEFBERE
proceedings to People’s Court of Beijing Chaoyang District BRARMERATHAEYEBE RS
on the collapse of property leased from the Company. FHERAIL R MG R A RERBF o &
Pursuant to the first-instance judgment awarded by IR mEAGE A RIAB R2013F12 A
the court on 31 December 2013, the Company shall S1REEN —FH R KRB EEE
indemnify Beijing Baili Tongda Co., Ltd. against its loss of IERBEFBEREERAREBRIARE
RMB910,612, which has been included in the provisions. 910,6127C * st AT AE - KAFIE
The Company has filed an appeal to Third Intermediate MILRTE=FRAREIZE LG -
People’s Court of Beijing. Up to the date of this report, a HERSER  ERME=ZFRARER
second-instance judgment has not been made by Beijing MAVER ZBHR c KATIEIEEBIR
Third Intermediate People’s Court. The Company does not RBEZFREHARFNEREEELS
expect the litigation to have any material adverse impact on AR E -
normal operations of the Company.
Other non-current liabilities 29 HitnFERBERS
2013.12.31 2012.12.31
—E—-= T
+=A=+-8| +=A=+-~
RMB RMB
AR® T ARBTT
Long-term rent payable REENES 16,571,770 13,684,660
Deferred revenue — asset-related IRIEW =S
government grants — BE E B R BT 4 B 4,039,449 1,866,666
Total il 20,611,219 15,551,326
2013 4§
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VI.

1:||||/

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

29. Other non-current liabilities

Included in deferred revenue are:

(i)

Government grants totaling RMB4,000,000 received in
2005 from Beijing Municipal Development and Reform
Commission and Bureau of Finance of Chaoyang
District, Beijing to support the construction of fresh
distribution center, fresh procurement center and
distribution center logistics system. The deferred
revenue was recognised upon receipt of the financial
allocations. When the project was completed and
confirmed by Bureau of Finance of Chaoyang District,
Beijing, deferred revenue would be evenly amortized
in the useful life (15 years) of the related assets, and
recorded in the profit and loss in the current and
subsequent periods. In 2013 and 2012, the amortized
deferred income had been released to non-operating
income. On 31 December 2013 and 31 December
2012, deferred income amortized in within one year

would be recorded in other current liabilities.

In 2013, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB3,753,000 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce as a special funding for
renovation of energy-saving lamps. Deferred income
was recognised upon reception of these government
grants, which are amortized on a straight-line basis
over the useful lives of relevant assets being 5 years
upon completion of the project and confirmation by
Beijing Municipal Commission of Commerce and
credited into profit and loss for the current and future
periods. The income amortized in 2013 was included in
non-operating income. As at 31 December 2013, the
deferred income to be amortized in the next year was

included in other current liabilities.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(RN)EHt /KRB TB(E)

30. Share capital 30 - R
Changes for the year
RERE
Capitalisation
Opening New issue of surplus Closing
balance of shares  Bonus issue reserve Others Subtotal balance
L2 BOSR 35 DESER it Mt EXY
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARETL ARETL ARET ARETL ARETL ARETL ARETL
2013 20135
. Restricted tradable shares - BEREEERD
1. State-owned legal 1. BEZEARR
person shares
Chaoyang Auxiiary HEaR 167,409,808 - - - - - 167,409,808
Total of state-owned legal BB EARR G
person shares 167,409,808 - - - - - 167,409,808
2. Other domestic-owned shares 2. EREER
Domestic non state-owned BREEAEAER
legal person shares 7,294,599 - - - - - 7,294,599
Domestic individual BRERARR
shareholder 55,355,593 - - - - - 55,355,593
3. Foreign shares listed overseas 3. SE5h EREI AR
Bk 182,160,000 - - - - - 182,160,000
Total shares B 412,220,000 - - - - - 412,220,000
2012 20125
. Restricted tradable shares — BEREEAKR
1. State-owned legal person 1. BEEAER
shares
Chaoyang Auxiliary EiCE 167,409,308 - - - - - 167,409,808
Total of state-owned legal BEEARR
person shares 167,409,308 - - - - - 167,409,808
2. Other domestic-owned shares 2. EfRNEER
Domestic non state-owned BRFEAEEABR
legal person shares 8,336,685 - - - (1,042,086) (1,042,086) 7,294,599
Domestic indvidual BRERARR
shareholder 54,313,507 - - - 1,042,086 1,042,086 55,355,593
3. Foreign shares listed overseas 3. E0h EATEI AR
Bk 182,160,000 - - - - - 182,160,000
Total shares Biniag 412,220,000 - - - - - 412,220,000
2013 3R
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED (R)EHtHBBREETRE)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
31. Capital reserve 31~ EXNTE
2013.1.1 Increase in Decrease in 2013.12.31
—E-=F the year the year —E-=F
—-A—H KEEM AEHY t=A=1-H
RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARETR AR¥R AR¥R AR¥T
Capital premium RRAEE 609,598,028 - - 609,598,028
Change in fair value of available-for-sale HREELHEEY
financial assets (Note 1) MnEEEH(H) 5,986,500 - 3,354,000 2,632,500
Differences arising from acquisition of WEF AR PERE
minority interests of subsidiaries FEEZ 1,197,195 - 698,277 498,918
Other capital reserve HthEADE 695,493 - - 695,493
Total A&t 617,477,216 - 4,052,277 613,424,939
201211 Increase in Decrease in 2012.12.31
“E-—F the year the year “E-—F
—A—A REE AERS +ZA=1+-H
RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARBT ARET ARET ARETL
Capital premium BRAEE 609,598,028 - - 609,598,028
Change in fair value of avallable-for-sale AHNMESHEE .
financial assets (Note 1) R BEEH(H) 4,473,000 1,513,500 - 5,986,500
Differences arising from acquisition of WEFARDERRRERE
minority interests of subsidiaries 1,197,195 - - 1,197,195
Other capital reserve i EARTE 695,493 - - 695,493
Total At 615,963,716 1,613,500 - 617,477,216
Note 1: Change in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets 1 AtHESREEIAREBEEHA
was the net effect of changes in fair value of the stocks of RARZ FARALEEBREN L
Shanxi Xinghuacun invested by Chaopi Trading, a subsidiary BARIENREAABEEZHNFER
of the Company, which had been recorded in other & ORFARMERE MG - 2RI
comprehensive income. See Note (VI) 46. (7) - 46
ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(R) GO B |MRITE TR ()

32. Surplus reserve 32 BHrNTE
Opening Increase in ~ Decrease in Closing
balance the year the pyear balance
E0% KEEM FERD XY
RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARET ARET ARET N
2013 20135
Statutory surplus reserve EEBBDNE | 121,313,202 8,187,617 - 129,500,819
2012 20125E
Statutory surplus reserve ETRBAK 113,969,231 7,343,971 - 121,313,202

According to the Company Law and the Company’s Articles
of Association, the Company is required to transfer 10% of
its net profit to the statutory surplus reserve. The transfer
may be ceased if the balance of the statutory surplus
reserve has reached 50% of the Company’s registered

capital.

Statutory surplus reserve can be used for covering losses,
expanding operation or transferring to capital of the

Company.

BEQRE  ARREROBRE - KA
AIRFFEA10%IRBUE E BB AR
€ ETERBRABRIEARRAFM
BERE50%PA FH) - AR o

AEBEBARAARBAHARNER
BARREERLEHEERRER -

2013 4§
ERREEEEERRNBRAR

215




216
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

33. Undistributed profits

(R)EHMBH/RRBETRE)

33 RO EFHE

Proportion of

Amount appropriation
&8 REERISmEH
RMB
AREETT
2013: 20135 E :
Undistributed profits at the FYIRDBFH
beginning of year 493,033,750
Add: Net profits attributable to m: AEEBREARIMESR
owners of parent company for SO ¥ IS
the year 57,055,711
Less: Appropriation to statutory B IREUETE BB AR
surplus reserve 8,187,617 10%
Sales of minority interests HELERRER 1,045,635
Dividend payable to ordinary FEA i AR AR F
shareholders 41,222,000
Undistributed profits at the end of FERADEFE
the year 499,634,209
2012: 20125 fE
Undistributed profits at the FYIRDBFH
beginning of year 477,717,215
Add: Net profits attributable to m: AEEBREARIMES
owners of parent company for SOy IS
the year 105,104,506
Less: Appropriation to statutory A IREVEE BB AE
surplus reserve 7,343,971 10%
Dividend payable to FE AT 3 i AR AR )
ordinary shareholders 82,444,000
Undistributed profits at the end of FRADEHNE
the year 493,033,750
(1) Appropriation to statutory surplus reserve (1) RBECEERBARE

According to the Company’s Articles of Association,

the Company is required to transfer 10% of its net

profit to the statutory surplus reserve. The transfer

may be ceased if the balance of the statutory surplus

reserve has reached 50% of the Company’s registered

capital.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

33. Undistributed profits (Continued)

(2) Cash dividend approved in annual general meeting

On 28 May 2013, the aggregating dividends in cash
of RMB41,222,000 in respect of year ended 31
December 2012 (RMBO0.10 per share) were declared to
the shareholders of the Company as resolved by the

annual general meeting.

On 28 May 2012, the aggregating dividends in cash
of RMB82,444,000 in respect of year ended 31
December 2011 (RMBO0.20 per share) were declared
to shareholders of the Company as resolved by the

annual general meeting.

On 28 March 2014, the directors of the Company
proposed to distribute the payment of a dividend of
RMBO0.10 per share to shareholders on 28 May 2014.
The proposal of dividend distribution mentioned above
is subject to the approval by the shareholders at annual
general meeting of the Company. This recommendation
has not been incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements as a liability. The proposed dividend shall
be paid to all the shareholders on the register of
members on 9 June 2014. The estimated amount of

dividends in aggregate is RMB41,222,000.

]|E|E||/

(RN)EHt /KRB TB(E)

33 RO EWABE(E)
(2) BRERABEMENELRF

M2013%F5A28H + IRIEARQAIA
REERZE - ANDQAH 20124
ERMRBIRARKC10T - &5
R B AR #41,222,0007T °

2012858280 « REA QAN
REGRZE - NRAH 20114
ERFATRARK0.20T « A5t
B F B AR #82,444,0007T °

201463 A28H - ARARIMES
IRFEMN201465 A28 H MR R X A4
FROATTHIRRFI « AR FI T 45 AR
REFERRAG LA - ZR
FAERERBEFARE T
BE -B2RORANBEESETE
201456 H9R T3 AR R A& it &
RFTARR o TEEHIE AT B AR A2
A AR 41,222,000 ©

2013 1R
IR R EEAEEEROBRAR]
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED (R)EHHMEHRREETR(E)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

34. Operating income and operating costs 34 BEIWA - BERK
(1) Operating income and operating costs (1) EFEWRARKE
2013 2012
—E-=FE T FF
RMB RMB
AR AREETT
Principal operating income FEEFRA 9,629,190,672 9,205,359,750
Other operating income EH b EBUWA 774,562,805 625,916,000
Operating costs EER AR 8,309,825,077 7,826,352,943
(2) Principal operating income (classified by industry (2) FEEK(FTF)
segments)
2013 2012
—E-ZEE “E-ER
Principle Principle Principle Principle
operating operating operating operating
income costs income costs
FEERRA  FEEERK | TEEBRA EEEBML
RMB RMB RMB RMB

AR¥R AR¥R

AR¥T ARET

Retailing TE 4,516,544,357 3,754,479,230 | 4,574,310,078 3,836,613,308
Wholesale #rE 5,095,888,750 4,535,998,482 | 4,607,069,608 3,966,840,690
Others Hith 16,757,565 13,362,756 23,980,064 19,304,076
Total A 9,629,190,672 8,303,840,468 | 9,205,359,750 7,822,758,074
The principal operating income is mainly consisted of FEEBRAETEAHERR &
selling food, non-staple food, daily consumer goods, R BAEER - SOBAESHE
beverage and wine, etc. BEIHA °

ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

34. Operating income and operating costs (Continued)

(RN)EHt /KRB TB(E)

34~ ERA -~ EREAE(E)

(3) Operating income the from the Group’s top five 3) RAAEEEFHEEUNARGT
customers
Proportion to the
total operating
income of
the Group (%)
Operating LERNE ki
Income EEWARN
EERA LAl (%)
RMB
AR
2013 —E—=FE
Beijing Wu-mart ERE 1,012,186,045 10
Beijing Carrefour I RREEE 347,833,368 4
Beijing Yonghui Supermarket It FKEBT AR AR
Co., Ltd. 194,305,378 2
Walmart (China) Investment REBEB(FE)REBRAT
Co., Ltd. 154,660,784 1
Lotte Supermarket Co., Ltd. LXRBHER AR 153,331,211 1
Total &=t 1,862,316,786 18
Proportion to the
total operating
income of
the Group (%)
Operating (/N
Income EERAR
EERA LB 151(%)
RMB
AR
2012 T FE
Beijing Wu-mart Bl ES 1,041,855,756 11
Beijing Carrefour IERREERE 276,090,673 3
Beijing Yonghui Supermarket JEFOKIEEE T AR A
Co., Ltd. 178,561,643 2
Walmart (China) Investment ABAB(FE)IREBR AT
Co., Ltd. 171,394,941 2
Lotte Supermarket Co., Ltd. LRBTERAF] 133,132,434 1
Total il 1,801,035,447 19
2013 4
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

35. Business taxes and levies

35 BEFSRHM

(R)EHMBH/RRBETRE)

2013 2012
—F-=FE —TCHE
RMB RMB
AR®TRT AR
Business tax =) 39,249,157 34,907,323
Consumption tax HER 3,634,849 2,476,538
Urban construction and maintenance tax 3 m 4 &2 & 5% 24,098,432 23,113,964
Others Hfb 39,252 35,635
Total A&t 67,021,690 60,533,460

36. Operating expenses 36 BXEH
2013 2012
—E-ZFE —E-CFFE
RMB RMB
AR%T AREETT
Wages and salaries B3 T 37 A 407,284,424 378,086,279
Depreciation and amortization expenses & & # 442 189,522,843 180,281,881
Lease expenses HEEA 242,472,453 203,733,038
Others Hitb 645,232,311 566,398,365
Total =18 1,484,512,031 1,328,499,563

37. Administrative expenses 37 - EEEH
2013 2012
—E-=FE —E—FE
RMB RMB
AR%T AREETT
Wages and salaries B3 T 37 A 189,623,053 183,773,059
Depreciation and amortization expenses #1 & & # t5 & 8,405,720 7,552,032
Others Hitb 68,202,644 74,466,978
Total i 266,231,417 265,792,069

ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

38.

39.

40.

(RN)EHt /KRB TB(E)

Financial expenses 38 MIEEH
2013 2012
—E-=FE —T-—FE
RMB RMB
AR® T AR
Interest expenses FEXH 164,731,429 159,955,759
Less: Capitalised interest expenses B FEER SR 1,747,787 1,179,900
Interest income FLEWA (12,927,861) (13,594,240)
Bank charges RITFEE 8,116,358 8,621,074
Exchange differences T (103,484) 414,831
Total il 158,068,655 154,217,524
Impairment losses on assets 39 EERERKX
2013 2012
—E-=£§F i
RMB RMB
AR¥T AR
Provision for bad debts BERIBLETHR 1,046,772 1,703,079
Written-down of inventories FEBEBNK 290,456 -
Total Siall 1,337,228 1,703,079
Investment income 40 ~ BEW =
2013 2012
—E-=FE —ECZFE
RMB RMB
AR¥ T ARETT
Investment income from BEEYEMRE R
financial products 2,078,247 806,279
Total &5t 2,078,247 806,279
2013 4§
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

41. Non-operating income

41~ BRIMIA

(1) Details of non-operating income are as follow:

(R)EHMBH/RRBETRE)

(1) EEIPKRABHMT :

2013 2012
—E-=FE —E-CFE
RMB RMB
AR AR
Total gains on disposal of R EERENEAE
non-current assets 99,083 50,868
Including: Gains on disposal of He : EFEEERERNG
fixed assets 99,083 50,868
Compensation for placement of B TZ E@ER(MzF(+—) -
employees (Note (XI) 3 Note 3) 327 :¥3) 18,931,368 18,880,424
Governments grants AL A 6,199,165 9,904,371
Compensation for FEBRMEWRA
breach of contract 4,321,892 1,800,000
Relocation compensation income & £ 2 Ut A - 6,333,941
Others EAh 4,518,530 1,885,562
Total A&t 34,070,038 38,855,166
(2) Details of government grants (2) BB
2013 2012
—E-=FE —T—=FE
RMB RMB
AR ARETT
Compensation for BT & A maL
government reserve expenses 1,044,000 4,000,000
Subsidies for agricultural BEMMEEEB /L
products retail 350,000 1,650,000
Subsidies for ease IRERDLEE AL
the employment pressure 1,912,825 2,557,424
Subsidies to support the R/ R AL
development of small and
medium enterprises 1,000,000 587,040
Amortization of asset-related B = AR R A T 47 Bh AN R B 8E
government grants 829,617 266,667
Other subsidies H{h#mhy 1,062,723 843,240
Total &5 6,199,165 9,904,371
ANNUAL REPORT 2013

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED




VI.

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

42.

43.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

Non-operating expenses

(RN)EHt /KRB TB(E)

42 - EEIHNITH

2013 2012
—E-=FE T CZFE
RMB RMB
AR® T AR
Total losses on disposal of IEMBEERBIBLEET
non-current assets 3,297,069 3,096,917
Including: Losses on disposal of Heh BFEEREEBX
fixed assets 3,297,069 3,096,917
Relocation losses mBEK 3,268,969 -
Accident compensations EihEEES 1,279,450 =
Fine Bl 241,724 25,750
Others HAtb 1,333,404 1,087,301
Total &t 9,420,616 4,209,968
Income tax 43 ~ FiBH
2013 2012
“E-=FE —E-CFE
RMB RMB
ARMTT AR
Current tax expense calculated BRE R ARBRE
according to tax laws and FTEREBRER
relevant requirements 47,320,462 56,565,077
Deferred income tax expense BIEFRSHER (4,151,527) 1,258,884
Total &5t 43,168,935 57,823,961
2013 F#f
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VI.

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(R)EHMBH/RRBETRE)

43. Income tax (Continued) 43 ~ FRiEH (&)
Reconciliation of income tax expenses to the accounting B ERMEeHFBENRGRET
profit is as follows:
2013 2012
—E-=FE TR FF
RMB RMB
ARMTT AREETT

Accounting profit EHHE 143,485,048 229,628,589
Income tax expenses calculated RSN MBI EFTER

at tax rate of 25% St & A 35,871,262 57,407,147
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses — “NA[ K308 A &) 49 FH 22 3,088,252 1,872,395
Tax effect of non-taxable expenses EEFRRRANRT L (1,297,195) (1,452,268)
Effect of using previously FIFR LART & 2 R TR AT

unrecognised deductible losses INEENNT T E (56,341) (249,417)
Effect of unrecognised deductible REER AT H BB R AT

losses and deductible TR EENNTHEE

temporary differences 4,520,457 246,104
Tax effect of related party borrowings Bt 75 & £ I £ 1R R F &

recognized as interest income WAR T & 1,042,500 =
Total =18 43,168,935 57,823,961
With respect to corporate income tax rate, see Note (IV) DEMRESHM RGN - 2R KF(m) -
Taxation. IE o
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44. Net Profit

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(RN)EHt /KRB TB(E)

44 ~ FXE

The Group’s net profit is arrived at after charging/(crediting): AEBBFFE LR (GFA) AT H
I8 :
2013 2012
—E-=FE —E——FE
Notes RMB RMB
BiEE AR AR
Cost of inventories sold s A (V134 8,303,840,468 7,822,758,074
Depreciation of KEUEHETE (Vs
investment properties 4,693,059 3,382,068
Depreciation of fixed assets EEEETE (Vo 126,413,149 111,900,415
Amortisation of intangible assets 2 & E#EHY (V)11 9,066,751 7,038,762
Amortisation of KEHARETEERR (V13
leasehold improvements S g 68,129,537 74,853,732
Total of depreciation and eSS
amortisation 208,302,496 197,174,977
Net gains on disposal of EMBEERE FER (V)41. 42
non-current assets 3,197,986 3,046,049
Net rental income from REEEERSFHA
investment properties (14,424,791) (12,205,000)
Staff costs BT R (V)21 604,697,307 568,702,862
Including: Directors’ emoluments H : EEFE& 4,148,296 8,854,257
Other staff costs: Hih B TR ¢
Wages, salaries and IE -%Hek
social security costs HERFER A 538,387,427 505,363,558
Retirement benefit contributions  EAZBEZREE 62,161,584 54,485,047
Audit expenses ETEH 3,275,323 1,583,335
2013 4

ERREEEEEERNBRAF

225




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED (R)EHHMEHRREETR(E)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

45, Calculation process of basic earnings per share and 45 EXFRUZNHESRUSZNTE
diluted earnings per share (Continued) BREE)
For the purpose of calculating basic earnings per share, FEERERKER - BER T ERR
net profit for the current year attributable to ordinary REOEHFFEA

shareholders is as follows:

2013 2012
—E-=FE —ECFE
RMB RMB
AR ARETT
Net profit for the current year BENERRRERED
attributable to ordinary shareholders & HRVEF) A 57,055,711 105,104,506
Including: Net profit from continuing HEih  BERESELEN
operations EE 57,055,711 105,104,506
For the purpose of calculating basic earnings per share, the AEERGRKER - 5 ABITEIN
denominator is the weighted average number of outstanding LTdRETIa8 - SHEBRENT ¢
ordinary shares and its calculation process is as follows:
2013 2012
—B-=EE e
RMB RMB
AR T AREBT
Number of ordinary shares outstanding 21T ESMNY L 3@ AR ER 412,220,000 412,220,000
Earnings per share (=2
2013 2012
—E-=FE —ECFE
RMB RMB
AR T AREBT
Based on net profit and net profit from #2538 & A TR R 80F F 8 &
continuing operations attributable to ) NSNSk
shareholders of the Company LEFFETE -
Basic earnings per share HEARFR IS 0.14 0.25
Diluted earnings per share wEg R N/A FiE A N/A T i
Up to the reporting date, the Company had no dilutive HERKH  AREAEWELENEE
potential ordinary shares. il
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VI.

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(RN)EHt /KRB TB(E)

]|E|E||/

46. Other comprehensive income 46 ~ HitARE W=
2013 2012
S ——FE
RMB RMB
AR¥T AR
Gains (losses) arising from AIHEECREEESN

available-for-sale financial assets ME(BXR) e (4,472,000) 2,018,000

Less: Tax effects arising from W R ESREEELEN
available-for-sale financial assets FEGER)MATEHTE (1,118,000) 504,500
Total &5t (3,354,000) 1,513,500

47.

Notes to items in the cash flow statement

(1) Other cash received relating to operating activities

&)

47 - BEHRERBEETE

(1) KEWEMELLZBHERYRE

2013 2012

—E-=FE —E—FE

RMB RMB

AR AREETT

Rental income EaUA 154,916,161 115,386,281

Scrap sales income & S A 3,286,129 3,995,200

Franchise income PIEEESL N 1,905,188 1,964,929

Compensation income FEFUA 25,280,409 27,014,365

Government grant income B Bh A 9,122,548 15,783,110

Recover the deposit U B & 5,105,451 899,156

Others Hib 22,882,275 22,208,893

Total &5 222,498,160 187,251,934
Other cash paid relating to operating activities (2) ZTHEMICE TEFEIIEE

2013 2012

—E-=FE —TE-FE

RMB RMB

AR AREETT

Selling expenses (excluding rent) $4EER(T2HES) 645,706,802 564,501,422

Administrative expenses BIEEH 46,335,572 54,240,244

Manufacturing expenses RS 4,596,486 4,774,072

Rent FRyitka 213,716,575 177,023,892

Deposit and margin YREEMRES 3,799,108 10,873,251

Bank charges RITFEE 7,060,113 8,621,074

Others Hih 3,646,071 6,282,729

Total &5 924,860,727 826,316,684

2013 1R
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

48. Supplementary information to the cash flow

statement

(1) Supplementary information to the cash flow

statement

1. Reconciliation of operating
activities cash flows from
net profit:

Net profit
Add: Provision for impairment

losses of assets

Depreciation of fixed
assets

Depreciation of
investment property

Amortization of
intangible assets

Amortization of long-term
prepaid expenses

Net losses of disposal of
fixed assets, intangible
assets and other
long-term assets

Financial expenses
(including foreign
exchange gains and
losses)

Investment income

Amortization of
asset-related
government

Decrease in deferred
tax liabilities

Decrease (increase) in

deferred
tax assets

Decrease (increase) in
inventories

Increase in receivables
from operating activities

Increase in payables from
operating activities

Net cash flow from
operating activities

2. Net change in cash and
cash equivalents:

Closing balance of cash
Less: Opening balance of
cash
Net increase (decrease) in
cash and cash equivalents

1. FF MBS AR L LS
R

N =g R
NLEE -

JHERE

o

#=h

ATRH B ERLE
M FE
BEEEENTE
KEEEHETE
BB
REFEEREH
BREETEE \BIEE
MEMREEENEBR

MBER(SELEBR)

S E W
S5 B AR B RO U #75 BY
EIEFT SR A ERR D

ELFT SR EER
A ORAE n)

FEHRAD (RIE M)
A EYOR B R AN
KEMENIER S

o CRURA)
Z“‘%)ﬁﬁb%iﬁ’lfﬁémi

FER
2. Iﬁ%&fﬁd%#ﬁ%/?

Ll p

%i%i%ﬁ%

R LR e EEFEM
CR) &

B NFHRE

(R)EHMBH/RRBETRE)

48 - HERER

2013
—E-=fRE
RMB
AR¥T

100,316,113
1,337,228
126,413,149
4,693,059
9,066,751

68,129,537

3,197,986

151,008,542
(2,078,247)
(829,617)

(215,571)

(3,935,956)
54,404,744

(387,922,827)
183,855,611

307,440,502

589,553,313
461,110,253

128,443,060

(1) RERBRHLEH

2012

—ET——FE

RMB
AR

171,804,628
1,703,079
111,900,415
3,382,068
7,038,762

75,063,770

3,046,049

146,746,450
(806,279)
(266,667)

(918,115)

2,176,999
(119,139,352)
(126,430,243)
(228,753,021)

46,548,543

461,110,253
580,655,216

(119,544,963)
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CON
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

48. Supplementary information to the

statement (Continued)

SOLIDATED

cash flow

(2) Composition of cash and cash equivalents

48~ RERBR(E)

(RN)EHt /KRB TB(E)

(2) H2zREZ2ZEY

2013.12.31 2012.12.31

—E—-=F T fF

+=BA=+—H +=-A=+—H

RMB RMB

AR®T AR TT

Cash Be

Including: Cash on hand Hep: @ZFHRe 28,438,613 23,092,126
Bank deposits AEER AR Y MAVRITIFER 561,114,700 438,018,127

Cash and cash equivalent B MRS EEMRTE 589,553,313 461,110,253

49. Net current assets 49 - FREBEE

2013.12.31 2012.12.31

—E-=F —T—=F

+=RA=+—H +=-—A=+—8H

RMB RMB

AR¥T ARETT

Current assets MENEE 4,667,991,529 4,137,257,830
Less: current liabilities B mEAE 4,064,904,393 4,287,849,185
Net current assets (liabilities) FRBEEBRR) 603,087,136 (160,591,355)

50. Total assets less current liabilities 50 EERABERE

2013.12.31 2012.12.31

—E-=F —E—CfF

+=ZA=+—-B| +t=-—A=+—8H

RMB RMB

AR® T ARETT

Total assets BERBT 7,150,058,349 6,514,509,121
Less: current liabilities B OREBEaE 4,064,904,393 4,287,849,185
Total assets less current liabilities BEERMREARE 3,085,153,956 2,226,659,936

2013 3}
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VII. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION AND (LA RBEHIS
TRANSACTIONS
1. Parent of the Company 1> REENFLATRR
Proportion  Proportion
of the of the
Company's  Company's
ownership voting
interest power  Ultimate
held by the  held by the  controlling
parent (%) parent (%)  party of the Organization
Name of Type of Place of Legal Registered BREY 8AFH  Company code
theparent  the entity incorporation  representative  Nature of business capital  AREMER ALENRRE AoE AR
BARER it Batsd EAME $HitE Ei-u EA(%) A%  EREHR g2
RMB
AEER
Chaoyang State-owned  Beljing Wang Weiin ~ Sales of food 289,821,000 40,61 4061 Chaoyang 10163706-x
Auxiiary ERFAR pihai} TRH and il products Auxiliary
EDE HERRBAER HHaIR
2. Subsidiaries of the Company 2. FEENFATER

Please see Note (V) Business combination and consolidated
financial statements for the details of the subsidiaries of the

Company.

3. Other related parties of the Company 3

Relationship between other
related parties and the Company

Name of other related party

AEENFRARBERFRME(I)LE
BHRAHYBTRE -

KA HE MBS ER

HAiupam 5 &8 HibBmE 5 AR A R BAAR

Beijing Tengyuan Xingye Motor Service
Limited Company (“Tengyuan Xingye”) same parent

IR EEE TERBERAA
(AT em szt ])

ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

VIl. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION AND (L)BAm S REA R 5 ()
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

4. Related party transaction 4 BERBER
(1) Related party’s lease transaction (1) BHHERER
Pricing basis
of related party 2013.12.31 2012.12.31
Lessor Lessee Type of transaction transaotion Notes Amount Amount
ettt il RHEH BR AT EKE i 0135ELE 0126 F L
AR¥T ARET
Chaoyang Auxiliary The Company Rental expense Price negotiated Note 1 1,326,345 744,551
#AGEIR YN fexi RER MBS 1
Chaoyang Auxiliary Xinyang Tongli Relocation Price negotiated Note 2 4,321,892 -
B El MEEN compensation REFRENER 2
Chaoyang Auxiliary Xinyang Tongli Rental expense Price negotiated Note 2 - 16,931
G E RE#N Bexit RERBEMES #2
Tengyuan Xingye The Company Rental expense and Price negotiated Note 3 3,203,934 2,678,217
BEEE NG| property management K& 75 E B i3
expense
BeRMEEELM

ERREEEEEERNBRAF




232
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

VII. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

4. Related party transaction (Continued)

(1) Related party’s lease transaction (Continued)

Note 1: On 30 April 2004, the Company and its subsidiary

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

Chaopi Trading leased certain properties in Beijing
from Chaoyang Auxiliary, with annual rent incremental
once every five years for a term from 1 January 2004
to 31 December 2023. From 2006 to 2009, the
Group entered into lease contracts or supplemental
agreements on certain properties with Chaoyang
Auxiliary. As at 30 June 2011, the annual rents
under the contracts with Chaoyang Auxiliary were
RMB7,344,499 and RMB920,853 respectively for
the Company and its subsidiary Chaopi Trading. On
30 June 2011, except for the properties used by
10 stores of the Company (including 5 properties
still owned by Chaoyang Auxiliary and 5 properties
for which lease agreements were terminated), the
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of Beijing Chaoyang District approved
the transferring of the land and properties leased
by the Company from Chaoyang Auxiliary to
Hongchao Weiye. The Company continued to lease
the properties owned by Chaoyang Auxiliary for its
5 stores at annual rent of RMB162,758, incremental
once every five years. On 18 June 2012, the
Company entered into a property lease supplemental
agreement with Chaoyang Auxiliary, pursuant to
which the annual rent for the aforesaid five properties
were adjusted to RMB1,111,933 with effect from 1
July 2012, incremental by 3% every five years; and
1 additional property was leased at annual rent of
RMB214,412 with a term from 1 July 2012 to 31
December 2023, incremental by 3% every five years.
The rental expenses payable to Chaoyang Auxiliary for
2013 and 2012 were recognised at RMB1,326,345
and 744,551 respectively.

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

(E)RBAREABXS (&)

4 -

BB S ER(E)

(1)

HBHERER (&

B

A2004F4A308 © AR A K&
RRARZFAREBHEE M
BRI REANC NIRRT RS
THE THESHFEY—
xR MEHB2004F1 A1RE
2023912 A31H » B20064F &
2009 - AEEEHABER
EEBRITEEMENTEES
7 % #8 75 % & o B E20115
6A30H + "ARAEARARZ
FRRBAUHERBGRARLY
ENAERFHEDIAARE
7,344,4997T & A R 920,853
T ° 7201146 A308 b R
THBERAEELEEERES
BgIEK FBGARTAE
RN B0 M EE PR 1082 P
FrfE M B E (L RsE N A
BB EI RN ME - B INEL
IEFES ) 2 S B 845 5L
B¥ - HBRIRHENEER
B4R RISEPIE R E R FH
& A ARK162,7587T * &
FIRIE — K - R201266H18
B AQrHBBERERE
EBREWTHE - 8201257
A1 LilsEREEMEDN
FHSAEZEARK1,111,933
T BRFIEHE3% B
FEGIEEEYE B
& H# 5201247 A1H £2023
F12A31H - FHEARARE
214,4127T - G RAFIEE3% °
20134 [ 20124 [ HER
HEBRRNHESERS A
AR #1,326,3457T k AR
744,5517T
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VIl. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Related party transaction (Continued)

(1) Related party’s lease transaction (Continued)

Note 1: (Continued)

On 1 July 2011, the Company and its subsidiary
Chaopi Trading entered into lease contracts
respectively with Hongchao Weiye to renew the
leasing of properties under the original contractual
terms, at annual rent of RMB7,344,499 and
RMB920,853 respectively with effect from 1 July
2011.

On 1 July 2012, the Company and its subsidiary
Chaopi Trading entered into supplemental agreements
to the aforesaid lease contracts respectively with
Hongchao Weiye, pursuant to which the annual rents
for such properties were adjusted to RMB26,997,108
and RMB2,808,259 respectively with effect from the

same day, incremental by 3% every five years.

On 18 December 2013, the Company entered into
supplemental agreements to the aforesaid lease
contracts with Hongchao Weiye. Considering the
Company paid relevant construction fees on the re-
build project of certain of the properties in previous
years and the renovation project conducted by the
Company on behalf of Hongchao Weiye, Hongchao
Weiye will compensate the Company for the cost of
construction costs and related taxes paid (“agent
construction fees”) on property renovation project
and re-build project of RMB86,741,711, including
RMB41,265,838 recorded in other receivables and
RMB45,476,373 recorded in long-term receivables.
Meanwhile, agent construction fees receivables of
RMB22,197,108 recorded in other receivables will
immediately offset the rent payable to Hongchao

Weiye at the end of 2013 as agreed by both parties.

(E)EBT KA S (&)

4~ BBIZERE)

(1) BBHEEERE)
1 ()
M2011E7A1B » AR A K&
ARARZFREAREESD R
B HEXRIT THESR
ERARGRATEHLIERE
E - B0FE7TA1ARFERS
7Rl B A R T7,344,4997T K
AR#920,8537T °

M2012F7A18 + AR A &
ARARZFRAF# L A
HRERIRBEARSRIE
R THFEHE A AR Ll
HEVMEFHRLHNAEA
A K #26,997,1087C & A R
#2,808,2597C © B B FiEIE
3% °

M2013F 128188 + A A A
B BB ER FMAEARE
T Hhak - ST D R ART
FEHBSMEMEETER
ARABRERTRAARNRE
YT A EWEE HE I E s
BEPARRAZAAEBETLIRR
FIE - SABREEERBIHAEE
ERAEREERENEEME
BETRY P RERTIRAAR
THMR2HS(REIR
1) A A R #86,742,211
T DRI AEMERZAR
#£41,265,8387C & &= HA FE Lk
AR¥45,476,3737T ° FIK
RIBEEH AT - Hib RGP
AR 22,197,108 7T H) FE UK R
BIRRERBMNEZETZ
ST HEAEE - 2013 RELfERS
LERERSHEBET RN
R o

2013 1R
IR R EEAEEEROBRAR]
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

VIl. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

4. Related party transaction (Continued)

(1) Related party’s lease transaction (Continued)

Note 2:

Note 3:

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

On 30 April 2004, the Company’s subsidiary Xinyang
Tongli leased a property located at No. 1 Tuofangying,
Jiuxiangiao Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing from
Chaoyang Auxiliary with annual rent of RMB16,257 for
a term from 1 January 2004 to 31 December 2023.
On 14 December 2012, a compensation agreement
was entered into between Chaoyang Auxiliary and
Xinyang Tongli, pursuant to which a compensation
in the amount of RMB6,349,040 shall be paid to
Xinyang Tongli as determined after taking into account
its loss in equipment and fixtures and loss of business
interruption etc. arising from the termination of lease
agreement. The lease contract between Xinyang
Tongli and Chaoyang Auxiliary was terminated with
effect from 31 December 2012. According to the
relocation progress as at 31 December 2013, Xinyang
Tongli recognised the compensation of RMB4,321,892
as an income which was received on 18 January
2013. During 2012, the rental expenses payable to
Chaoyang Auxiliary by Xinyang Tongli were recognised
at RMB16,931.

On 2 July 2007, the Company leased a property
located at Court 52, Jiuxiangiao Road, Chaoyang
District, Beijing from Tengyuan Xingye with annual
rent of RMB2,100,000, incremental once every five
years for a term from 1 April 2007 to 30 September
2022. On 1 July 2011, the Company terminated the
property lease agreement and undertook to pay the
occupancy fee till 30 June 2012. On 18 June 2012,
the Company re-entered into a lease contract on
the property with Tengyuan Xingye, with annual rent
and property management fee of RMB2,232,249 and
RMB971,685 respectively, incremental once every
four years for a term from 1 July 2012 to 31 March
2022. During 2013 and 2012, the aggregate amount
for rent, occupancy fee and property management fee
was recognised at RMB3,203,934 and RMB2,678,217
respectively.

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

(E)BBAREABXS (&)

4 -

BB S BR(E)

(1)

BHHEEEY (&)

2

Ha

2004548308 - ARAEZ
FRARMGEAMAGE R
ABIRL R L R T 8ARS [ E LS
SEEEITHYE  aRFEHA
& A AR®16257L A E
Bl B52004%F1A18 20234
128318 ° 20125124148 -
HSREIREMRGENEBRE
wmEG®E  ATHREANE
FEBMESNZBRBRER
EESBAINHERARE
6,349,0407T » 2012412 A31
A MERHHEBBEIAR
WERBESRKIL - KI5
@ M2013F1 /188 W F
ZERERMER LRER
FE2013F12A318 LW IR B
BE  BRFBHEBERAAR
#£4,321,8927T ° FA201246F & -
R B 3 1 1R 8815 Bl B 4 /9 F
SBRAAARKE16,9317T °

M2007F7 A28 © AR EEE
B AWM R RS
EE LGRS % - &
B &8 < A A R2,100,000
T EBRFEE-—XK-HE
H 8200784 F18 F2022%F
9A308 - M201167A18 -
RRABEIETZMENHER
FWHEMEERBEINE
201246 308 ° M201246
A18H ' A QR EEREE
FiMEENEERESR -
ARFHEEMEETEES R
BARM22322490T R AR
#£971,6857C + & U iR IE —
Ko FAEHIE20126 7818 E
20229 3A31H ° KR2013F &
K&2012F & - RARIHERAME
© MELRERVEETESR
H 5t AR #3,203,9347T & A
R#2,678,2177C °
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VIl. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

4.

Related party transaction (Continued)

(2) Emolument of key management

(E)EBT KA S (&)

4 -

BHXBER(E)
(2) FBERREEASHH

2013.12.31 2012.12.31
—E—-= —E——F
t=A=+—-RA | t=A=+—H
RMB RMB
AR® T ARETT

Emolument of key management BA#EE 12 A B ZREA

Benefits of short-term HHREREER

employees 8,161,150 14,921,628
Retirement benefits RIKIBER] 424,186 393,487
Total A& 8,585,336 15,315,115

Key management members are personnel having
authority and responsibility for planning, directing
and controlling the activities of the Group, including
directors, supervisors and other personnel to exercise
similar functions. Emolument paid to key management

includes basic salary, bonuses and allowances.

MREEABEBRMNL A RET
FHE - mEMEHEEEBHOA
8§ BRES EEhHMTER
UIRRBEEHAR - I aRRE
BEASHNBMEIEEATE  ®e
R B IEME o

2013 4§
ERREEEEERRNBRAR
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VII. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

4. Related party transaction (Continued)

(2) Emolument of key management (Continued)

As resolved by the Listing Rules of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and Article 161 of
Companies Ordinance of Hong Kong, emoluments of

directors and supervisors for the year are as follows:

(@) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive

(E)RBAREABXS (&)

4 BBIZERGE)

(2) BREZEASHM (&)
REBEBEBMIMES ETRAIRE
BRRGHIEI611K - FREFR
EEMEMT :

@) BUIFBITEEFH
FEAXNBIIFRITES

directors during the year were as follows: MEWT

2013 2012

—E-=F —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBTFT
Onward Choi BLE 155 155
Chen Liping PR 37 42 42
Wang Liping EFF 42 42
Total &5t 239 239

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during 2013

and 2012.
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VII. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

4.

Related party transaction (Continued)

(2) Emolument of key management (Continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors,

(E)EBT KA S (&)

BB S ER(E)

@)

BREZASHM (&)
b) BITEFE FHTEF &

supervisors and the chief executive Eg v
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Retirement
in kind  Perfornance benefit
g related contributions
Fees  #% 28 bonuses B Total
2013 —E-=§ we  REWER Buge BAIER “e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR%TR AR¥Tr AR%®Tx
Executive directors: WIEE:
Li Jianwen* FEX - 761 732 36 1,529
Li Chunyan THER - 467 345 36 848
Liu Yugjin 2 - 293 - 36 329
Subtotal Nt - 1,521 1,077 108 2,706
Non-executive directors: JEHITES
Wei Tingzhan (Note 1) #1{28 (551) - 449 733 21 1,203
Gu Hanlin BEMN - - - - -
Li Shunxiang =y :ped = - - - -
Subtotal Nat - 449 733 21 1,203
Supervisors: Ex:
Liu Wenyu e - 398 262 36 696
Wang Hong Tir - 294 58 36 388
Yao Jie /83 - 198 63 36 297
Yang Baoqun HERH - - - - -
Chen Zhong FRig 35 - - - 35
Cheng Xianghong BRA 35 - - - 35
Subtotal INET 70 890 383 108 1,451
The chief executive: T
Li Wei (Note 2) FE(512) - 192 - 16 208
Total CE 70 3,052 2,193 253 5,568
Note 1: On 28 June 2013, as resolved by the board 1 R201346A28H @ IREARAES
of directors, Mr. Wei Tingzhan resigned as the BRE - HEBEAREARENT
executive director and was designated as non- TEE  ARIEETREENIER
executive director of the Group. fTESE -
Note 2: On 28 June 2013, as resolved by the board F2:  R2013F6H28H @ REBEANRES

of directors, Mr. Li Wei was designated as the
chief executive of the Group.

BAE  FREEXEEEAEES
MR -

ERREEEEERRNBRAR
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VII. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

4. Related party transaction (Continued)
(2) Emolument of key management (Continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors,

(E)RBAREABXS (&)

4 -

BB Z RN (E)
(2) BREZEANSIHH(E)
(b) HITEF FHITEF £

supervisors and the chief executive (Continued) ERABATE ()
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Retirement
inkind  Perfornance benefit
e related  contributions
Fees &% 28 bonuses RIR Total
2012 —T——F e REMEF BuEs TRFER Felil
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Executive directors: HITES:
Wei Tingzhan EHEY S 749 2,483 33 3,265
Li Jianwen* ES=y - 749 2,483 33 3,265
Li Chunyan TERK = 449 780 33 1,262
Liu Yuejin 2 - 301 491 32 824
Subtotal Nt - 2,248 6,237 131 8,616
Non-executive directors: FFHITEE :
Gu Hanlin BEM = = = = S
Li Shunxiang ZEx H = = = =
Subtotal Nk - - - - -
Supervisors: Ex:
Liu Wenyu 235k - 380 510 33 923
Wang Hong FiT S 231 130 33 394
Yao Jie ki - 198 112 33 343
Yang Baoqun 5B B - - - -
Chen Zhong BiE 35 - - - 35
Cheng Xianghong R4 35 - - - 35
Subtotal et 70 809 752 99 1,730
Total = 70 3,057 6,989 230 10,346

* In 2012 and period ended 28 June 2013, Mr. Li
Jianwen was also the chief executive of the Group
and his emoluments disclosed above include
those for services rendered by him as the chief

executive.

In 2013 and 2012, there was no arrangement
under which a director or a supervisor waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration, and no
remuneration was paid by the Group to a director
or a supervisor as bonuses or unemployment
compensations for their entry to the Group.
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TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

VIl. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION AND

4. Related party transaction (Continued)

(2) Emolument of key management (Continued)

(c)  Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid employees during the year

included one (2012: two) directors, details of

whose remuneration are set out above. Details

of the remuneration of the remaining four (2012:

three) non-director, highest paid employees for

the year are as follows:

(E)EBT KA S (&)

BB Z BN (E)
(2) BREZEANSHH(Z)

(c) IfuREEFHBEESHHE
AEERN AURSHES
BIE—RL(2012F F © WiL)
BE HFMEBEELR
FIR - BRI (20126 F -
=D EEHEESTAT ¢

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREET T
Salaries, allowances e ®/e - ER
and benefits in kind REYEF 2,663 3,176
Performance related BEWES
bonuses 5,022 8,456
Retirement benefit RIREFIER
contributions 57 66
Total &5t 7,742 11,698

The number of employees whose remuneration

FE R T 5 R A R 8 2

=

fell within the following bands is as follows: £
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HKD1,500,001 to 1,500,001/ 7T
HKD2,000,000 22,000,000/ 7T 3 -
HKD4,000,001 to 4,000,001 7T
HKD4,500,000 4,500,000/ 7T 1 2
HKD6,000,001 to 6,000,001 7T
HKD6,500,000 6,500,000/ 7T = 1
Total At 4 3
2013 3

ERREEEEEERNBRAF
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VII. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

5. Receivables and payables of related parties

The Group had no receivables or payables balance with
related parties on 31 December 2013 and 31 December
2012,

6. Commitments between the Group and related parties

The Company had signed lease contracts with Tengyuan

Xingye for store operation.

The anticipated future rent paid by the Group:

(E)RBAREABXS (&)

5 EET FEW R RRIE

R20135F12A31H K2012412A31A »
7N 5% 13 i ERL A G Oy P MR R R A R IR £

2H o

6 MRS HVERE
ARBEBGRREBERERIT TS
HEEER - BRFIERLE -

AREEARARFEINOEERS

2013.12.31 2012.12.31

—E—=F —E——F

+=—A=+—H +=-A=+—H

RMB RMB

AR®T ARHETT

With 1 year 1FE AR 4,530,278 4,530,278
1-2 years 1-24F 4,530,278 4,530,278
2-3 years 2-34F 4,530,278 4,530,278
Over 3 years 3ELE 27,228,163 31,447,995
Total &5t 40,818,997 45,068,829

VIIl. CONTINGENCIES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had no significant

contingencies to disclose.
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IX. COMMITMENTS (h)EHESBE
Capital commitments B AREE
2013.12.31 2012.12.31
—E-=F —EF——F
+=-A=+—-8| +=ZA=+—8
RMB RMB
AR¥T ARETT
Acquisition of fixed assets BEBRTEE
Authorized but not contracted EEEERELD 95,547,767 154,775,847
Contracted but not provided BEELVEREB 136,735,792 195,961,732
Total A& 232,283,559 350,737,579
Operating lease commitments SR

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the Group

had the following commitments in respect of non-cancellable

A20135E12A31H M201256F12 8310 - A&
EEINRRT N ARG B E A LB R

operating leases: T
As the lessee ERRFA
2013.12.31 2012.12.31
—E—-=F —ET——F
+=—A=+—H +=—A=+—8H
RMB RMB
AR®T ARHETT
Minimum lease payments under TR EHE EHENRERE
non-cancellable operating leases: INE¢
First year from the BEABRAKFEIF
balance sheet date 222,302,230 216,177,361
Second year from the BEEBERABE2F
balance sheet date 215,016,809 214,336,563
Third year from the EEBEBERAKEIF
balance sheet date 221,843,607 207,724,633
Subsequent years LAEFE 1,801,096,633 1,955,316,654
Total (S 2,460,259,279 2,593,555,211

2013 3}
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

no events after the balance sheet date to disclose as of approval

date of these financial statements,

ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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IX. COMMITMENTS (Continued) (h)EHEE
Operating lease commitments (Continued) TEEEREE)
As the lessor ERBHHEA
2013.12.31 2012.12.31
—EB—-=F —E—F
+=ZA=+—-8| +t=ZA=+—H
RMB RMB
ARET AREETT
Minimum lease receivables under TRAHEGEEEHER
non-cancellable operating leases: HEREWRTEE -
First year from the BEABERAKEF
balance sheet date 79,350,294 50,300,063
Second year from the BEEBEBERABE2F
balance sheet date 71,687,761 43,885,982
Third year from the BEABRARESF
balance sheet date 62,025,898 38,766,180
Subsequent years ABEE 147,123,072 75,586,600
Total EE 360,187,025 208,538,825
X. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE (HEEEEBERBAEE
Except for the issues disclosed in Note (VI) 33, the Group has BREFEE(IS) ~ S3FTH TR EIRIN - BEA T

BERAER  AREEEGAFRENEE

BEXRARER-
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OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

Assets measured at fair value

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the
financial instruments measured at fair value represented the

available-for-sale equity investment made by the Company’s

(t-) Htb EEEH

1

BARBEAENEE

P20134%12 431 A K20126F12A31H -
AREURABEMAENEERARF
ZF AR A BRI EENA

subsidiary Chaopi Trading in Shanxi Xinghuacun: HEERERE -
Cumulation Cumulation
in current in current
201211  year's equity 2012.12.31 year’s equity 2013.12.31
“FOCF AFGAMEG | SB-CF RFiARE  —F-=F%
—R—H MEFH T=A=+-8 MEHE +-A=+-H
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARET AR AR¥T AR¥T AR¥T
Avallable-for-sale A ERER &
equity investments 6,314,000 2,018,000 8,332,000 (4,472,000) 3,860,000

Segment reporting 2 AE®mE

For the purpose of management, the Group classified the HRERER  ANEEREEMMBRS

operations into three segments according to the product BN EBEI AEEBWT = AR

and service: EoE -

(@) the retailing segment engages in the distribution of @ ZEEIBEZRHEERL AR
food, untagged food, daily necessities, drinks and HAEE B AeREE
cigarettes, hardware and household appliances; (&l

(o) the wholesaling segment engages in the wholesale b)) FARHEIHFEFERRER AR

supply of daily consumer products, including food,
untagged food, beverages, drinks, cigarettes and daily

necessities;

(c) the “others” segment comprises, principally, the

production of plastic packing materials.

o fE - AR EESEMAN
HEEEZER -

Hih D MBEEXBRIHEEHBE
@uu% °

2013 3}
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XI.

OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (Continued)

2.

Segment reporting (Continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit, which is measured consistently with the
Group’s profit before tax in the consolidated financial

statements.

All the asset and liability has been allocated to respective
segment, no unallocated asset and liability which are

centrally managed by the Group.

The pricing of inter-segment transactions is base on the

market prices as well as the actual transaction prices.

Since all the business and assets of the Group allocate in

China, no geographical segment report was disclosed.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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2

(t-) Atb EREH(#)

7 BB & ()
ERBHREEERMFEEENARAR
B HREBETHRKERRIFAE
ITETR - DEVEE - UBEN D IFIE
RERETHE - ZIEFERYELFE
REETARRNER  BAKELE
MBRER B -

PBEAEMAEDREES BELSRE
F A FERARESR - EENEEN
BfE-

BEDHENBREE  2EmS
BB HEHHENBERET
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]|E|E||/

(t-) b EEEH(2)

Segment reporting (Continued) 2. pEWEE)
2013 20135 E
Inter-segment
Retailing ~ Wholesaling Others elimination Total
28 At Hitn%% ABEETER Bt
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR¥R AR¥R IN: AR®TR AR¥R
Operating income EL N
External revenue HMZHHA 4,867,342,447 5,516,945982 19,465,048 - 10,403,753,477
Inter-segment revenue PEEZHHN 33,210,155 559,119,438 16,383,101  (608,712,694)
Total =H3 4,900,552,602  6,076,065,420 3mw9@wm%wmmm
Total profit FlHBE 24,406,141 115,923,669 3,155,238 - 143,485,048
Income tax expenses eHER 5,708,343 36,656,363 804,229 - 43,168,935
Net profit FHE 18,697,798 79,267,306 2,351,009 - 100,316,113
Total assets BELE 4,166,122,378  3,771,491,805 16,824,133 (804,379,967) 7,150,058,349
Total liabilities BEEE 3,171,872,601  2,697,531,678 8,683,011  (804,379,967) 5,073,707,323
Supplementary information: BRER:
Depreciation and amortisation HENEHER 185,723,638 22,507,161 71,697 - 208,302,496
Impairment losses on assets BERERL 1,337,228 = = = 1,337,228
Capital expenditures BARMEZH 285,087,672 39,273,715 119,815 - 324,481,202
2012 2012 &
Inter-segment
Retailing Wholesaling Others elimination Total
& E L E Ht %% HHBEEEER =
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARET ARET ARET ARET ARET
Operating income LN
External revenue IR BWA 4892,205346  4,913,152,010 25918394 - 9,831,275,750
Inter-segment revenue RGN 26,404,321 536,489,188 15,883,637 (578,777,146) -
Total At 4,918,609,667  5,449,641,198 41,802,031 (578,777,146)  9,831,275,750
Total profit HE(BE) LS 21,166,917 208,697,840  (236,168) = 229,628,589
Income tax expenses MEHER 4,311,640 52,854,593 657,728 = 57,823,961
Net profit FRE(ER) 16,855,277 155,843,247 (893,896) - 171,804,628
Total assets BEAE 3,585,957,655 3,366,890,631 12,921,917  (451,261,082)  6,514,509,121
Total liablities BEAE 2,492,064,189  2,466,266,397 6,491,807 (451,261,082)  4,514,461,311
Supplementary information: HRES:
Depreciation and amortisation WENSHEER 173,410,115 23,948,498 26,402 = 197,385,015
Impairment losses on assets BERERK 1,703,079 = - - 1,708,079
Capital expenditures BARMEZE 270,397,560 25,192,265 69,801 = 295,659,666

The Group’s businesses are principally retail and wholesale

in Beijing, PRC. The mainly identifiable assets are located in

Beijing.

AEBEBFBEPEAREMBE L AL
EERTEEMMRE TEAHRE
BB RS »
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OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (Continued)

Segment reporting (Continued)

The information of main customers of the Group is as

follows:

Client |

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

(t-) Atb EREH(#)

2 DEHE(E)

REBNFEERLERMOT -
2013.12.31 2012.12.31
“2-=ft-A=1-H SR CFTZAZT-H
Proportion Proportion
to the total to the total
operating operating
income of income of

Operating the Group (%)

income EEEEE

BEHNA  BALHI%)
RMB
ARETR

1,012,186,045 10

Operating  the Group (%)

income  EEEEE

ERBA WALHI%)
RMB
N

1,041,855,756 1

Transaction and balance between the Group and

Shoulian Group

(1) Main transactions between the Group and Shoulian

Group are as follow:

Interest income
Lease charge
Compensation for

placement of employees

Borrowings

Default compensation

3 FAEEEEHEE RS RRHE

() AEEEABEENIEXZMN

Note 1: Interest income is derived from accounts receivable
and lending. The interest expenses charged on the
balance of accounts receivable and lending due from
Shoulian were determined with reference to prevailing

bank lending rate.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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T
Note 2013 2012
s —E-=F —T——F
Note 1 5,699,068 7,538,856
Note 2 4,134,088 4,134,088
Note 3
18,931,368 18,880,424
Note 4 47,500,000 -
Note 5 - 6,298,941
1 FIBIRA B E IR KA S

AREEHEFEBA - A&
E2ERITAPERFEHR
ERSER‘EEHEENE
WHR SRR EE e B 2 I IR
BMEEA -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (Continued)

3. Transaction and balance between the Group and

Shoulian Group (Continued)

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

On 1 January 2009, the Company leased a property
and land located at Kaifang Road, Huairou District,
Beijing (“Huairou Hypermarket”) from Shoulian Group
with annual rent of RMB3,000,000 for a term from 1
January 2009 to 31 December 2028.

On 1 January 2009, Shoulian Supermarket leased a
property and land located at Xihongmen Road, Daxing
District, Beijing from Shoulian Group with annual rent
of RMB1,134,088 for a term from 1 January 2009 to
31 December 2028. On 24 December 2010, Shoulian
Supermarket was acquired by the Company and the
lease contract remained valid.

For each of 2013 and 2012, the rental expenses
recognised by the Group were RMB4,134,088.

As agreed by Shoulian Group with the Company
and its subsidiary Shoulian Supermarket, the Group
shall assist Shoulian Group in job placement of
certain employees, and Shoulian Group shall pay the
placement compensation to the Group at the agreed-
upon rate. The placement compensation incomes for
2013 and 2012 were recognised at RMB18,931,368
and RMB18,880,424 respectively.

As at 31 December 2013, the lending provided by
Shoulian Supermarket to Shoulian Group amounted
to RMB47,500,000, repayable on 30 April 2015 as
agreed upon. The interest expenses charged on the
lending due from Shoulian were determined with

reference to prevailing bank lending rate.

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

AY

P el

]|E|E||/

(t-) Rt EEEH (&)

3-

B2

GZE

FEBREHEB IS RBEE)

20091 B18H » AR AR E

BEEBEALRIERTE
ZERARBNEERLM
(ATEBEMEZAESD 8

EHIH 200941 A1H £20284

12A318 ' ARFHEAAR

#3,000,0007T ©

200951 A1H » BT

EBMEERAALLRmARER
AMBENEERLH BE
HIE 20091 A1H 22028412
A31B - ARFHEERARE
1,134,0887T ° 12010512524

B BB RAQ A
ZHEARBERR -

R2013%F € R2012F € © &

SEEINESERATER

ANE%4,134,0887T °

RIBEBHEREARBRAR
FlZF AR EBETGZ
HE AKESHEBE

BETHEEENETEULR

E RNEBEEBEUNOTE
EEYNASBBRIZER
B3R o A% B R2013F F &

2012 E - D RIRERAERA
AR #18,931,368TT K AR
18,880,424 7T °

2013512 A31H © & W
MR EBERRENESITE
A R #47,500,0007T © &
75K E B E B201554 530
B AEELERITRPER
FEEMEHEBREESF
ERREBFIRER -

2013 4§
ERREEEEERRNBRAR
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XI. OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (Continued) (t-) EthEEEH(#)
3. Transaction and balance between the Group and AEBHREHER IR RGTEE)
Shoulian Group (Continued)
Note 5: In 2012, the Company’s subsidiary Shoulian Jiulong 351 R2012FE - ARRZTFAR
received compensation of RMB6,298,941 from B AR RIECERE
Shoulian for early termination of the operating lease W mESESEENEOR
agreement. ERAREEB,298,9417T °
(2) Accounts receivables and accounts payables between (2) AN EEgEE A B R R
the Group and Shoulian Group are as follow: HNT -
2013.12.31 2012.12.31
—E-=F —F—=
+=BA=+—H +=ZA=+—H
RMB RMB
AR¥T AREETT
Accounts receivable FEUAR X
(Note (VI), 2) (B3E(7R) ~ 2) 80,000,000 80,000,000
Other non-current assets HihIEREEE
(Note((V1), 16) (M=E(R) ~ 18) 47,500,000 -
Rent paid in advance* Ef e 30,000,000 33,000,000
& The amounts are related to the rents for 15 years * ZEFREAAEEREEZKRE
prepaid once-off by the Group to Shoulian under the GHECRYEHER —RMtEE
lease contract on Huairou Hypermarket. The prepaid M15FMEERSEH - EPE
rents are included in long-term prepaid expenses NS BREEASESEERARE
and other current assets as at the relevant balance FERHGHERARHEMREE
sheet dates. Details are set out in Not 2 to the major EYF  -#F2R Ll AEEE T
transactions between the Group and Shoulian. SENFERFHzHE2 -
ANNUAL REPORT 2013



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

Xl. OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (Continued)

4.

Financial instruments and risk management

The Group’s financial instruments mainly comprise cash
and bank balances, accounts receivable, other receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets, other non-current assets,
accounts payable, other payables, bonds payable, notes
payable, short-term bank loans, long-term loans due within
one year and long-term loans. Details of the financial
instruments are set out in Note (VI). The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the risk management
policies on how to mitigate these risks are detailed as
below. These risk exposures are managed and monitored
by the management to ensure that such risks are within a

limited range.

(1) Risk management objectives and policies

The Group engages in risk management with the aim
of achieving an appropriate balance between risks and
returns, where the negative effects of risks against
the operating results of the Group are minimized,
in order to maximize the interests of shareholders
and other stakeholders. Based on such objective of
risk management, the fundamental strategy of risk
management of the Group is to ascertain and analyze
various risks exposures, establish appropriate risk
tolerance thresholds, carry out risk management
procedures and monitor these risks in a timely and
reliable manner, thus to confine risk exposures within a

prescribed scope.

(t-) b EEEH(2)

4 ~

SRITARERER
AEEBNTZLRHTIAGEERES
FEMBRE SR « Eoth FEUCEK - FLERIRE - 7]
HEESMEE  HMERDEE - &
RERFR - HAb AR - BAIES - B
ZE - BHER - —FRIHNREE
RERBESRS - SHSBRITANFA
BRFRMFOR) - RELSHMT AR
BAMER - URAEE AR KELRR
FTERER YRR B IR BOR A T At » A%
EEEHE LR O T E RN E
12 LA AR % - it o s 22 1) 72 PR € £ 6 [
ZA e

(1) EREZEREFMEE

AEBERERAREENBZEER
RS MBSEENTE - &
EBREAREQERENARTE
PRAK R SRAKAKF - AR M E o
SREENNREAL - ERZEA
REEBR ARERREENE
AR B EREE MO A E B & 18
R - BIEE R BRAR RN
ETRBREIR - IR SR
BRERETEE - BEBRIEHIER
EMHEZA -

2013 1R
IR R EEAEEEROBRAR]
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Xl. OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (Continued)

4. Financial instruments and risk management (Continued)

(1) Risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

1.1. Market risk

1.1.1.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk of loss resulting
from changes in foreign currency exchange
rates. All of the Group’s businesses are
carried out in the PRC and all its transaction
are denominated in its functional currency
Renminbi. As at 31 December 2013 and 31
December 2012, except for the amounts of
approximately RMB15,870 and RMB75,668
denominated in foreign currency, all
amounts in the Group’s balance sheet were
denominated in Renminbi. The management
does not expect that a change in foreign
exchange rate will have a significant
impact on the Group’s gross profit and

shareholders’ equity.

. Interest rate risk — risk of changes in cash

flows

The risk of changes in fair value of financial
instruments as a result of interest rate
change mainly relates to fixed-rate bonds (see
Note (VI), 24). The Group has not taken any
action to avoid risk of changes in fair value

from fixed-rate bonds.

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

4~

(t-) Atb EEREH(E)

ERTARBEBRERE)

(1) EREZEREMBEFEE)

1.1
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1.1 15NE R B
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EEMEBEHTR
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BEAERT  BRHOR
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#75668 T EEE ©
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OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (Continued)

Financial instruments and risk management (Continued)
(1) Risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

1.1. Market risk

1.1.2. Interest rate risk — risk of changes in cash

flows (Continued)

The risk of changes in cash flows from
financial instruments as a result of interest
rate change mainly relates to floating-rate
bank loans (see Note (VI), 17, 25 and 27).
It is the Group’s policy to maintain floating
interest rate of these loans in order to
eliminate fair value risk due to interest rate

change.

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis is based
on the assumption that a change in market
interest rates would have an impact on
interest income or expense of floating-rate

financial instruments.

The management believes that the Group’s
exposure to interest rate risk in bank
deposits is not significant, and therefore did
not disclose the sensitivity analysis of bank
deposit interest rate. On the basis of the
above assumption and supposing that other
parameters remain constant, a 1% increase/
(decrease) of interest rate would lead to a
(decrease)/increase of RMB21,049,779 and
25,377,068 (before taxation) in current profit
or loss and shareholders’ equity in 2013 and

2012, respectively.

1:||||/

(t-) b EEEH(2)

4- SEMIARERERE)
(1) EEREZRFEABEE)

1.1 mEEE (&)

112f kAR -REnEE
B ()
REEFEFEFB | L
CRIAERERELD
0 E R+ 2 EF 8 F
ERTER(F R T
(75) 17~ 25HM127) &
o NEBEMEKRR
BFELBEROFEHF
o PUERAEZEEH
AREERR -

) R i RN D AT B
RRETHME &
BUEMNESRT AN
MEWALER -

AEBEEBERRAS
& PR R SR 1T 17 A0 F
R AEXN - Bt
RIEMBEEERITER
B FI R GRS T o B
20134 & K2012%F &
£ R e 2R -
EHMEETENE
N %IJ%HJD/(?@Z
D) 1% & B kK
RERNBAIZED R
RBORD) /EIMARY
21,049,779 R AR ¥
25,377,0687T °

2013 1R
IR R EEAEEEROBRAR]
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Xl. OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (Continued) (t-) Bt EEEE(#E)

4. Financial instruments and risk management (Continued) 4 SRTAREKRESEE)
(1) BEBEZEEEMNBEE)

(1) Risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

1.2. Credit risk 1.2 15/HE R

252

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December
2012, the largest credit risk exposure related to
a potential financial loss mainly derived from the
failure in performance of contractual obligations
by counterparty, which would result in a loss in
financial assets, and the guarantees provided
by the Group, including: the carrying amount of
financial assets recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet. The carrying amounts of the
financial assets, which are recorded at fair value,
represent the current risk exposure but not the
maximum risk exposure that could arise in the

future as a result of the change in fair values.

To reduce credit risk, the Group trades only with
recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is
the Group’s policy that all customers who wish
to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, balances of
accounts receivable are monitored on an ongoing
basis to ensure that the Group’s exposure to bad

debt is not significant.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED
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OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (Continued)

Financial instruments and risk management (Continued)
(1) Risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

1.2. Credit risk (Continued)

In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt at each
balance sheet date to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. Therefore, the management believes
that the Group’s exposure to credit risk has been
effectively monitored and managed. The Group
has adopted necessary policies to ensure that
all customers have a good credit record. Except
for the amounts included in account receivables
due from Shoulian Group (Note (VI) 2) and as
stated below, the Group has no other significant

concentration of credit risk.

FEW R — &P

Accounts receivable
— client 1

(t-) Rt EEEH (&)

4 TRITAREBEEE)

(1) EREEREMBFEE)

1.2 1=/A/ER (&)

o AEEREBEEER
BERABZE - BRERK
B E YR - DA RE AR L R
[l Y 1) FRIREHR T 0 B IR R
Eigo At AEBEEERE
RBAKEFAZENERR
RELBIAEREE - AR
BB T S B BRERPT
EEFPHAARENERT
85 o BR 3B A B A B R
HIEB (MEE(R) 2R
RETFIAEB SN NEEEE
EREREPER

2013.12.31 2012.12.31
—E-=F —E——F
+=-A=+—-HB| +=ZA=+—8
RMB RMB
AR¥T AREETT
440,821,311 458,910,622

The Group’s working capital is deposited at banks
with higher credit ratings, and hence the credit

risk in working capital is insignificant.

AEBENRBDESHFRER
ARBRSHRT R
B ERRRBE

2013 4§
ERREEEEERRNBRAR
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Xl. OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (Continued)

(t-) Rtb EREH(#)

4. Financial instruments and risk management (Continued) 4 SRIARRBEREREE)
(1) Risk management objectives and policies (Continued) (1) BEREEEZMEEE)
1.2. Credit risk (Continued) 1.2 1=/ (&)
Maturity analysis of the financial assets past due EEABERBCEBIERE
but not impaired: ENEREENRR TN
T~
31 December 2013 2013%F12H31H
Past due but not impaired
ERHARE
Within Over
1 month 1-3 months 3 months Total
BEIEAR  AE-3ER BEEAMNL Bt
RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARETR ARETR AR¥TRT ARER
Accounts receivables EURER 97,211,379 63,545,978 208,087,355 368,844,712
Other receivables HA IR - - 4,600,000 4,600,000
31 December 2012 2012412 A31H
Past due but not impaired
BEREARE
Within Over
1 month 1-3 months 3 months Total
BREAR  RE1-SEA AEIEAML Ch
RVB RMB RVB RMB
ARET ARET ARETL ARET
Accounts receivables [EUER 116,652,671 50,310,914 164,441,024 331,404,609
Other receivables Hi el = = 4,600,000 4,600,000
ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (Continued)

Financial instruments and risk management (Continued)

(1) Risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

1.2.

1.3

Credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012,
the accounts receivables that were past due but
not impaired related to a number of independent
customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Other receivables that were past due but
not impaired related to other amounts payable
to the Group as a prevailing party in litigations.
Based on past experience, the Group believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in
respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.
Except for the overdue accounts receivable due
from Shoulian Group which bear interest on
the balance and are secured by collaterals, the
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over other balances past due (Note

V1) 2).

Liquidity risk

In managing liquidity risk, the Group maintains
and monitors cash and cash equivalents that are
adequate in the opinion of the management, to
meet the needs of the Group’s operations and
mitigate the impact from cash flow fluctuations.
The management monitors the utilization of
bank loans and ensures compliance with loan
covenants. Meanwhile, the Group adopts banking

instruments to meet short-term funding needs.

]|E|E||/

(t-) b EEEH(2)
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For the year ended 31 De

Xl. OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (Continued)

4. Financial
(1) Risk

1.3

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

instruments and risk management (Continued)
management objectives and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Group manages its risk to deficiency of funds
using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This
tool considers both the maturity of its financial
instruments and the projected cash flows from

the Group’s operations.

As at 31 December 2013, the Company’s net
current liabilities amounted to RMB607,841,295
(31 December 2012: RMB952,425,200). The
Company uses bank loans and bonds as its major
sources of funding. As at 31 December 2013,
the Company had unutilized bank loan facilities
of RMB330 million. Based on the Company’s
unutilized bank loan facilities, profitability and
cash flow forecast within the next 12 months, the
management believes that the Company will have
adequate funds in the future for timely repayment
of the existing debts and maintaining its normal

business activities.

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

4~
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

Xl. OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (Continued)

4. Financial instruments and risk management (Continued)
(1) Risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

1.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)
The following is the maturity analysis for financial
assets and financial liabilities held by the Group
which is based on undiscounted remaining

contractual obligations:

Financial assets

31 December 2013

(t-) Rt EEEH (&)

4 ~

ERMTARBEBEERE)
(1) EEREZRFEABEE)

1.3 wBER(E)

AEERBANSREENS
MAEBRATRARGBERE
BHRIHHR DT

2013128311

Within

1 month 1-3months ~ 3-12 months ~ Over 1 year Total
18R KA 12388 MEREIE 1500 E Bit
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARER AR AR#T ARET ARER
Cash and bank balances ~ E#%&% 589,553,313 1,307,504 10,727,954 - 601,588,771
Accounts receivables EUEET 664,226,912 993,938,020 - - 1,658,164,932
Other receivables Hi YR 6,574,049 122,561,261 - - 129,135,310
Other current assets RERE 65,000,000 = - - 65,000,000

Other non-current assets ~ EfIEnsh &
(including interest) (BHE) - - 2,850,000 93,926,373 96,776,373
Total Ll 1,325,354,274  1,117,806,785 13,577,954 93,926,373  2,550,665,386

31 December 2012

2012512 A31H

Within
1 month 1-3 months  3-12 months Over 1 year Total
1EAUR 123M@A RIEEYE: 1€ E At
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARET ARET ARETL ARET ARETL
Cash and bank balances ~ E§#%&4 461,110,253 4,158,338 = - 465,268,591
Accounts receivables FEUURR 631,644,604 767,401,570 = - 1,399,046,174
Other receivables Hi KR 14,587,691 83,341,849 - - 97,929,540
Short-term investment RHRE 25,000,000 S = - 25,000,000
Total At 1,132,342,548 854,901,757 = - 1,987,244,305

2013 4§
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

Xl. OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (Continued)

4. Financial instruments and risk management (Continued)

(1) Risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

1.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

(t-) Atb EREH(#)

4 TRTARBEBERE)

(1) EREZEREMBEFEE)

1.3 BEE(E)

Financial liabilities TRBE
31 December 2013 2013%12A31H
Within 1
month  1-3 months ~ 3-12 months 1-2 years  Over 2 years Total
1BA MR 12388 AREIE 13528 2ENE fit
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARER ARETR ARETR
Bank barrovings RifER(4HE)

(including interest) 40,136,438 822,723,784 1,057,332,641 150,328,367 296,240,236 2,366,761,466
Notes payable EHE 3,037,520 53,639,771 - - - 56,677,291
Accounts payable R 27,805,171 1,111,152,864 - - - 1,138,958,035
Bonds payable EREH(EHE)

(including interest) 210,400,000 - 41,100,000 41,100,000 873,300,000 1,165,900,000
Other payables EHER 20,741,104 - 186,830,825 - - 207,511,929
Total At 302,120,233 1,987,516,419 1,285,263,466 191,428,367 1,169,540,236 4,935,868,721
31 December 2012 20124128310

Within 1
month ~ 1-3months ~ 3-12 months 12 years  Over 2 years Total
1EANA 1237 SEAZIE 122% ED N At
RVB RVB RVB RVB RVB RVB
ARETL ARET ARET ARET ARET ARET
Bank borrowings (including interest) $/T23(4718) - 384756400 2034644603 11,680,000 208,448,000 2,639,529,102
Notes payable EREE 7291692 13,500,000 5 5 - 20,791,692
Accounts payable ERER 28,488,252 1,026,307,793 = = - 1,054,796,045
Bonds payable (including interest)  [EfHE5 (4718 = - 209,100,000 5 - 209,100,000
Other payables HHERT 37,215,912 - 110,220,646 5 - 147436558
Total At 72,995,856 1424564202 2353965339 11680000 208,448,000 4,071,653,397

ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Xl. OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (Continued)

4. Financial instruments and risk management (Continued)

(2) Fair value

Fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities

are determined as follows:

° The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded on active markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices and ask

prices respectively;

° The fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities (excluding derivative instruments)
are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted
cash flow analysis or using prices from observable

current market transactions;

The available-for-sale financial assets (Note (VI), 7 Note
(1)), fair value of which determined in accordance with
quoted market price of investee’s stock, are classified
as Level 1, known as quoted price (unadjusted) of

similar assets and liabilities in active market.

The management considers that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at
amortized costs in the financial statements approximate

their fair values.

B 75 R R BT

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

(t-) EthEEE1H(E)
4 SRTEFNERKREEE)
2 AREHE

EREENERABENIABER
SR JTERERE

o AEBBEGRRRKMHLFE
ARTHENEREERSRE
BENDABEDHZ2EE
FERERMIZIRITHERR
TTEEWETE

s HpEmEENEBMABECT
BREOIETR)NAREER
BAKRESREFTRAR/E
e B0 3 A RE (B AR AL T E SR
RABENRITTHEXZE
IRHERR

AHHESREEMEON) 72
A AEREEMERETS L
MBEER AN BEERTERE
REIEL  AIRREEXREHR
AT (CREARB)MERE -

AEBEREBRR  MBERPE
BRI ENEREERSRA
ENREBERIZEEERER
MRSEE -

2013 4§
ERREEEEERRNBRAR

259




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) DB BHRRETERE TR

1. Cash and bank balances 1. EBES
2013.12.31
—E-=%+=ZA=+—H
Foreign
currency Exchange Amount
amount rate in RMB
IESEE WE=E ARBEEE
RMB RMB
AR¥T AR¥T
Cash: B
RMB ARHE 24,023,022
usD ETT 482 6.1017 2,941
HKD B 1,650 0.7861 1,297
GBP e 193 10.0363 1,937
SGD Hrhnig s 2,026 4.7853 9,695
Bank deposits: RITEN -
RMB AR 231,605,326
Total CE 255,644,218
2012.12.31
—E——F+ZA=+—H
Foreign
currency Exchange Amount
amount rate in RMB
INEE S FE TE= ARB ST
RMB RMB
AREETT ARETT
Cash: B
RMB ARHE 19,839,220
usb =TT 482 6.2946 3,034
HKD B 2,331 0.8114 1,892
GBP HgE 193 10.1140 1,952
SGD Fohnig s 2,026 5.0889 10,310
Bank deposits: RITFER
RMB ARHEE 216,587,453
HKD B 72,073 0.8114 58,480
Total A&t 236,502,341

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2013, the

Company had no currency funds with use restrictions.

260 ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

Xll. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.

(1) DA M BRRETEHRBZR(E)

Entrusted Loans 2. EFER
2013.12.31 2012.12.31
—E—=F —E——F
t=A=+—-RH| t=A=+—H©
RMB RMB
AR AREETT

Entrusted loans EAER

Related party E2):yal 250,000,000 330,000,000
Total: & 250,000,000 330,000,000

The Company entrusted Beijing Bank Jiulongshan Branch to

lend to Chaopi Trading, a subsidiary of the Company. The

terms of those loans are 1 year. The annual interest rate of

entrusted loans for 2013 and 2012 are 5.70%, and 5.31%

to 5.60%, respectively.

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the

entrusted loans had no indication of impairment and thus no

impairment provision is necessary.

ZEZRERARERRARNEZFRILRBITA
BILXTTERARAIZ FARSHHALRE
BHHRIE - B\R R —F - R2013F &
R2O12FEZAERNEFNES B A

5.70%55.31%%5.60% °

R2013F12A31H KX2012F12H318 -
ZRERHYERETSR - BARIRE

2013 3}

ERREEEEEERNBRAF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. Accounts receivable

(1) 31 December 2013

Disclosure of accounts receivable by categories:

(1) DA BHRRETEHBER(E)

3 FEWARR

(1) 2013%12H31H
FEURBR IR TE RN FE

2013.12.31
—E-=%+ZA=+-H
Carrying amount Bad debt provision
RHME BREE
Amount  Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%)
S8 EL Al (%) S8 E (%)
RMB RMB
ARER IN:
Accounts receivable that are individually BIE4EE AT EB51E
significant and for which bad debt BERERRNEKES
provision has been assessed
individually 257,006,668 95 - -
Accounts receivable for which bad debt 1&484 sHEZEREE
provisions has been assessed by JEURER
portfolios
Accounts receivable that are not EESBETEARRERRR
individually significant but have BEEEARZEARNEREA
significant risk when divided into A MR ER 3
a portfolio by similar credit risk
characteristics - - - -
Other insignificant accounts receivable  H R & AU ER 3 12,176,279 4 s s
Total of portfolio BANT 12,176,279 | 4 - -
Accounts receivable that are not BESE ENAEE
individually significant but for which RERERBNEWER
bad debt provision has been assessed
individually 1,890,579 1 1,890,579 100
Total Eh 271,073,526 100 1,890,579 100
Aging analysis of accounts receivable is as follows: JEUERRER BRI -
2013.12.31
—E-=F+-f=1-H
Bad debt Carrying
Amount  Proportion (%) provision amount
&8 LE Al (%) BRER BEEE
RMB RMB RMB
AR®R ING ARETR
Within 1 year 1EUA 189,182,947 70 - 189,182,947
1-2 years 1226 1,890,579 1 1,890,579 -
3-4 years REYk:d 80,000,000 29 - 80,000,000
Total A&t 271,073,526 100 1,890,579 269,182,947
ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

Xll. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(1) DA M BRRETEHRBZR(E)

3. Accounts receivable 3 EWERFE(E)

(1) 31 December 2013 (Continued) (1) 2013%12531H(#%&)

FE W B R 77 B FRIB AN T

Amounts due from related parties are as below:

Provision as a
proportion of
accounts
Relationship with receivable (%)
the Company Amount {hEUBRFR4EEE
Name of entity E vy LN/ R Ex-] B9 EE (%)
RMB
AR¥TT
Jingkelong Langfang REBEES Subsidiary
FRA] 90,845,680 33
Shouchao Group BHHREER Subsidiary
NG 56,272,182 21
Jingkelong Tongzhou RERERM Subsidiary
FRA] 20,509,866 8
Total Sl 167,627,728 62

Bad debts provision of accounts receivable that are not BIESEITENBEEIREEREE

BH MR TR RRET IR EFT

individually significant but for which bad debt provision

has been assessed individually are as follows:

Content of Carrying Bed Proportion of Reason for
accounts receivable amount debt amount provision (%) the provision
JEUER AR IRE R BEReE FHREEBI(%) EA
Liu Liangguo 1,890,579 1,890,579 100 Controversial debts
EBe1 which are unlikely to
be recovered
BEBABRREESE
i WL ] 7] g 1 R K
2013 F#f
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. Accounts receivable (Continued)

(2) 31 December 2012

(1) RER M BREREEHB TR (E)

3-

FEW R (48)

(2) 2012412H31H

Disclosure of accounts receivable by categories: FEURBR RIS AR 7R
2012.12.31
“T-ZH+tZR=1—H
Bad debt
Carrying amount provision
Proportion Proportion
Amount (%) Amount (%)
ik EEA1(%) i EA1(%)
RMB RVMB
AR AR
Accounts receivable that are BHEBEAWER
individually significant and for REREEN KRR
which bad debt provision has been
assessed individually 216,308,677 94 - -
Accounts receivable for which bad 1484 SHEZIREE
debt provisions has been FERER TR
assessed by portfolios
Accounts receivable that are not BESBIENBRER
individually significant but have BREEEEEZEEH
significant risk when divided into Bl BN G
a portfolio by similar credit risk
characteristics - - - -
Other insignificant accounts Ef A ERERER
receivable 11,240,211 (5 = =
Total of portfolio B NE 11,240,211 5 = =
Accounts receivable that are not BRESEAEABERH
individually significant but for which — 1REBREE R FEUEE TR
bad debt provision has been
assessed individually 1,890,579 1 1,890,579 100
Total Bt 229,439,467 100 1,890,579 100
ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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Xll. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. Accounts receivable (Continued)

(2) 31 December 2012 (Continued)

(1) DA M BRRETEHRBZR(E)

3 BWERMRE)

(2) 2012%412531H (%)

Aging analysis of accounts receivable is as follows: FEUBRFARER AN T ¢
2012.12.31
—F—%t-A=t-A
Proportion Carrying
Amount (%) Amount amount
8 £t 6(%) ZHRER FEEE
RMB RMB RMB
ARET ARET AR
Within 1 year 1EAR 149,439,467 65 1,890,579 147,548,888
2-3 years 2Z3F 80,000,000 35 = 80,000,000
Total At 229,439,467 100 1,890,579 227,548,888
Amounts due from related parties are as follow: FEMR R F O RIRIN T
Provision as
a proportion
of accounts
Relationship receivable (%)
with the Company Amount 1 EMER K
Entity name B AT BN FIRER S BEOLII(%)
RMB
AREETT
Shouchao Group HHBEE Subsidiary
FAHA] 82,575,969 36
Jingkelong Langfang R RS Subsidiary
FAA] 46,858,171 20
Jingkelong Tongzhou REREEM Subsidiary
FRA] 6,874,537 3
Total iy 136,308,677 59
2013 F#f
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S (12) AR BHRRETEHETRE)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. Accounts receivable (Continued)

(2) 31 December 2012 (Continued)

Bad debts provision of accounts receivable that are not
individually significant but for which bad debt provision

has been assessed individually is as follows:

3 BWERMR(E)

(2) 2012%412831H (%)
BIESETEANBEENIRERE
B W ARSI IRAHREF T -

Content of
accounts Carrying Bed Proportion of  Reason for
receivable amount debt amount provision (%) the provision
JEWEERAR AR #RER ZRSH FHEREEHI(%) FRER
RMB RMB
AR ARETT
Liu Liangguo 1,890,579 1,890,579 100 Controversial debts
25 E which are unlikely to be
recovered
BEAHRIIFERE
ifi Yt [B] AT g 1 R K
ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

Xll. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3.

accounts receivable

31 December 2013

Accounts receivable (Continued)

(1) DA M BRRETEHRBZR(E)

3-

(3) Top five entities with the largest balances of

FE Uk B R (48)
(3) EREHETHEAILEENER

2013%12A31H

Proportion of
the amount
to the total

accounts
Relationship with the receivable (%)
Company Amount Age EEBER
Name of entity EfhES ] HANFBR SE ER 41t Al (%)
RMB
AR
Jingkelong Langfang REEES Subsidiary 90,845,680 Within 1 year 33
FAT 1E0R
Shoulian Group (Note (V) 2) BEREE(MEGS) - 2) Independent third party 80,000,000 3-4 years 30
BUE=5H 3-4%
Shouchao Group BREE Subsidiary 56,272,182 Within 1 year 21
FR7 1k
Jingkelong Tongzhou REBERN Subsidiary 20,509,866 Within 1 year 8
Fo7 1EUR
Beijing Ruitai Hongxin Digital It R REEEE Independent third party 9,378,940 Within 1 year 3
Technology Co., Ltd. BEBRAT BIE=FH 1EUR
Total &3t 257,006,668 95
31 December 2012 20126 12A31H
Proportion of
the amount
to the total
accounts
Relationship with the receivable (%)
Company Amount  Age HRERER T
Name of entity BlI47E BANRRE 2% £R B HI%)
RMB
ARET
Shouchao Group BREE Subsidiary 82,575,969 Within 1 year 36
Fral TENR
Shoulian Group (Note (V) 2 EEFEBE(MZH(R) - 2) Independent third party 80,000,000 2 - 3 years 3%
BUE=H 2-3F
Jingkelong Langfang REERS Subsidiary 46,858,171 Within 1 year 20
FRal 1EMR
Jingkelong Tongzhou REERN Subsidiary 6,874,537 Within 1 year 3
TR TELA
Liu Liangguo Bl Independent third party 1,890,579 Within 1 year 1
BUZ=H 1ELAR
Total &5 218,199,256 95

2013 4§
ERREEEEERRNBRAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S (+2) AR BHRFRETEHEETRE)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. Accounts receivable (Continued) 3 EWERR(E)
(3) Top five entities with the largest balances of (3) YR EHEAEEENRER
accounts receivable (Continued)
The Company classified accounts receivable exceeding ARREE2EEHARES008 7T A
RMB5 million by the Company as individually FHEKRRERAEBRSEERKN
significant. BIFKIA o
4. Prepayments 4~ FEMRFIE
Aging analysis of prepayments is as follows: TERFOEIRIRER TR -
2013.12.31 2012.12.31
ZE-Z§tZh=t-H 2"+ -A=t-H
Proportion Proportion
Amount (%) Amount (%)
£ EE4(%) 8 £L (%)
RMB RMB
AR¥R ARET
Within 1 year 1EARA 1,596,853 100 3,506,250 100
Total At 1,596,853 100 3,506,250 100
ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

Xll. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S (12) AR BHRRETEEETRE)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. Prepayments (Continued) 4 BENREE)
(1) Top five entities with the largest balances of (1) FAAHBELEHEZENER
prepayments
31 December 2013 2013%12H31H
Relationship with the Reason for
Company Amount Age uncleared
Entity name vt ARNTBE 28 R FEERR
RMB
AR
Beijing Huairou Tobacco L RMEREE N Independent third party 591,564 Within 1 year  Goods not
Company BUE=H 1507 received
MR KEEN
Beijing Changping Tobacco EEmEFEENH Independent third party 326,308 Within 1 year ~ Goods not
Company BYE=H 1R received
HAREEY
Beiling Yanqing Tobacco ERMEEEENR Independent third party 209,986 Within 1 year  Goods not
Company BUE=H 1507 received
HABEEY
Beijing Miyun Tobacco IRMEEEELNF Independent third party 206,651 Within 1 year  Goods not
Company BYE=H 0 received
HAREEY
Beiing Yadu Appliance I FTHBRERERAE  Independent third party 118,883 Within 1 year  Goods not
Co., Ltd. BUE=H 15 5R received
HAREEN
Total &5 1,453,392

ERREEEEEERNBRAF
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UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S (+2) AR BHRFRETEHEETRE)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. Prepayments (Continued) 4 FENREE)
(1) Top five entities with the largest balances of (1) FAHELHETREENER(E)

prepayments (Continued)

31 December 2012 20124 12A31H
Relationship with the Reason for
Company Amount  Age uncleared
Entity name BAAHE BEAARBE 8 R AEERR
RMB
ARET
Beijing Miyun Tobacco IRMEEEE A Independent third party 971,196 Within 1 year ~ Goods not
Company BUE=F 1ELAR received
mARE &
Xinyang Tongli 5@ Subsidiary 900,000 Within 1 year ~ Goods not
FAH 1EMR received
WARE £
Beijing Yanqing Tobacco ERMEEEELNA Independent third party 426,208 Within 1 year ~ Goods not
Company BIE=F 1ELAR received
WARWE &
Beijing Huairou Tobacco T RMEREE DA Independent third party 312,344 Within 1 year ~ Goods not
Company BUE=F 1ELAR received
R UE £
Meng Xiangli aRE Independent third party 275,708 Within 1 year ~ Goods not
BUE=H 1ENR received
A WE &
Total AEt 2,885,456
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

Xll. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. Prepayments (Continued)

(4)

(1) DM BRRETERB TR (E)

4 FANREGE)

(3) Explanations of prepayments (2) FETRELZE -
2013.12.31 2012.12.31
—E—=F —E——F
t=A=+-8| +-A=t-~
RMB RMB
AR¥TT AREET
Other insignificant prepayments  HE bR E A BTN 7B 1,596,853 3,506,250
Total A& 1,596,853 3,506,250
Prepayments to related parties: (3) FEITEBHLHE
2013.12.31 2012.12.31
“E-=¥+ZA=1-H ZE-ZFtZR=1-H
Relationship Amount Proportion (%) Amount Proportion (%)
with the k2 E41% Ex £ 1%
Company RMB RMB
Name of entity B EHE HANREE AR¥ER ARET
Xinyang Tongli & Subsidiary
FARA - - 900,000 26

Prepayments exceeding RMB5 million are classified as

individually significant by the Company.

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012,

there were no prepayments due from shareholders

holding 5% or more of the Company’s shares with

voting power.

ARl &R AARES008 TIA
THEMNRERRAEBESEEKN
FIFEATF0E -

#2013%F12A31H K2012412A
BIREMNREFERNHAELRA
F15% (85%) bA_EFRRIER D KPR
RE)FKIE o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. Other receivables

(1) 31 December 2013

Disclosure of other receivables by categories:

(1) DA M BHRRETERBERE)

5

Htt YR (&)

(1) 2013%F12H31H

H b U iR TE SR 5R

2013.12.31
ZE-Z5+tZA=t-H
Carrying amount Bad debt provision
BESE BREE
Amount Proportion (%) Amount Proportion (%)
&8 EE (%) k2] EE (%)
RMB RMB
AR®T AR¥R
Other receivables that are individually ~— EIE&ESE AW BIE 2R
significant and for which bad debt EEOE bR
provision has been assessed
individually 115,309,575 66 6,687,500 85
Other receivables for which bad RAATHRE RNt
debts provision has been assessed Bl R
by portfolios
Other receivables that are not ERSBIENERERER
individually significant but have FHEARZESNER
significant risk when divided into BRRE MR
a portfolio by similar credit risk
characteristics 48,385,462 28 - -
Other insignificant other receivables HANEAH Y 8,326,004 5 - -
Total of portfolio WA 56,711,466 33 - -
Other receivables that are not BEGBTENEEE
individually significant but for which ~ 1EIZBREEM A 1t I
bad debt provision has been
assessed individually 2,051,300 1 1,171,772 15
Total At 174,072,341 100 7,859,272 100

Aging analysis of other receivables is as follows:

HAs EUGRIRER AT -

2013.12.31

ZE-Z#+t-h=t+-H
Bad debt Carrying
Amount Proportion (%) provision amount
8 EL 4 (%) BREE REEE
RMB RMB RMB
AR¥ER ARET AR
Within 1 year 1EMR 160,733,541 92 - 160,733,541
1-2 years 1-26 2,051,300 1 1,171,772 879,528
3-4 years 3-4%F 11,287,500 7 6,687,500 4,600,000
Total Eh 174,072,341 100 7,859,272 166,213,069

ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

Xll. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5.

Other receivables (Continued)

(1) 31 December 2013 (Continued)

Bad debt provision of other receivables which are

individually significant is as follows:

Content of other receivables HitERRAR
Bejing Guanyuan Wholesale EREEERENS
Market Company Limited BRAE

(1) DM BHRREERB TR E)

5 HEAIBWER(E)

(1) 2013%12F31H(#&)
BB IE ¢ FAE KA H At FEUGRIZ AR T

REBIT

Carrying Amount of  Proportion of

amount bad debt provision (%) Reasons

REGE BReE  GHREH%) B

RMB RMB

ARBT AR

6,687,500 6,687,500 100  Controversial
debts which
are unlikely
to be
recovered
EBEAHRTE
EZEMURE
TEMRK

Bad debt provision of other receivables which are not

BIRSBETIEANH M RKFIER

individually significant is as follows: FHREBOT ¢
Carrying Amount of  Proportion of
amount bad debt provision (%) Reasons
Content of other receivables HttEW T AR RESRE BESE  AHELAI(%) B
RMB RMB
ARETR ARETR
Beijing Baili Tongda Trading TREHBEREERAR 2,051,300 1,171,772 57  Controversial
Company Limited debts which
are unlikely
to be
recovered
ERAHRRF
EFEMEE
TEMRK
2013 3R 273
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(1) DA M BHRRETERBERE)

5. Other receivables (Continued) 5. HthpEEWR(E)
(1) 31 December 2013 (Continued) (1) 2013%12F31H (&)
Reversals and collections during the current year: AEERIMBERAOT
Accumulated
bad debt
Basis of provision prior
determining the to reversals
Reasons for original bad or collections Amount of
Content of reversals or debt provision HE R R reversals
other receivables collections BERER EEHRREIR  or collections
HitERRAR BEHER EENKE EHELH ER$HE
RMB RMB
AR%RT AR
Beijing Guanyuan Partially recovered Controversial debts 6,812,500 125,000
Wholesale Market 2285 Uk which are unlikely to
Company Limited be recovered
I REE ML ET S BB ABRREFLEFH
BRATA el Ay gE 1 R
Receivables due from related parties: H At FELUR RS 5 M SRIBIAT ¢
Proportion of the
amount to the total
Relationship with other receivables (%)
Name of entity the Company Amount 1k L 4th FE UK BR X
BUARE B D REAR &8 #BEARYEE Bl (%)
RMB
AR
Chaopi Trading Subsidiary 63,560,042 37
HEE FRA]
Jingkelong Tongzhou Subsidiary 25,993,303 15
RN S
Chaopi Zhongde Subsidiary 955,199 1
PG Fra
Chaopi Flavourings Subsidiary 611,727 -
EARLFR FRAE]
Chaopi Huaging Subsidiary 448,614 -
HHtEF TR
Chaopi Oil Sales Subsidiary 236,344 -
BAH R AR FRA]
Chaopi Shuanglong Subsidiary 124,377 -
ARt EEE FRd
Chaopi Shenglong Subsidiary 22,781 -
TR E TR
Total 91,952,387 53
Ast
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

Xll. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. Other receivables (Continued)

(2) 31 December 2012

Disclosure of other receivables by categories:

(1) DA BHRREEHBERE)

5. HihEWRE)
(2) 2012%12H31H
HEh R GRIRTE A

2012.12.31
e
Carrying amount Bad debt provision
RESE SRR
Amount  Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%)
Ec EL15(%) &8 L1 (%)
RMB RMB
AEBT ARET
Other receivables that are individually ~— BIES4EE AT B2
significant and for which bad debt BERERREMEYRT
provision has been assessed
individually 43,261,529 45 6,812,500 100
Other recaivables for which bad debts  {R414 HHEZREGBHE
provision has been assessed by FEMER
portfolios
Other receivables that are not BESEIEANEREARR
individually significant but have BEESRZHAENER
significant risk when divided into BARRE e
a portfolio by similar credit risk
characteristics 41,574,721 43 - -
Other insignificant other receivables — HE TR EAH U 11,060,543 12 - -
Total of portfolio B NE 52,635,264 55 = =
Total At 95,896,793 100 6,812,500 100
Aging analysis of other receivables is as follows: HAb EYCRERER AT -
2012.12.31
—E-ZFE+-A=1-H
Proportion Bad debt Carrying
Amount (%) provision amount
Content of other receivables Bk &% LE1(%) SHREE FEEE
RVB RMB RVB
ARBT ARET AR
Within 1 year TELR 83,957,910 88 = 83,957,910
1-2 years 1-2% 526,383 1 S 526,383
2-3 years 2-3F 11,412,500 11 6,812,500 4,600,000
Total At 95,896,793 100 6,812,500 89,084,293
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XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. Other receivables (Continued)

(2) 31 December 2012 (Continued)

Bad debt provision of other receivables which are

(1) DA M BHRRETERBERE)

5. HiEWR(E)
(2) 2012%412831H (&)

BIRSRE R EME YRR

individually significant is as follows: REBIT -
Carrying Amount of  Proportion of
amount bad debt provision (%)  Reasons
Content of other receivables HitERFAR RHHE BRe®  REHI) B
RMB RMB
ARET ARET
Beijing Guanyuan Wholesale TREERRMETS 6,812,500 6,812,500 100 Controversial
Market Company Limited BRAF debts which
are unlikely
to be
recovered
EBABRF
EFEmE
EEZ:ZON
Reversals and collections during the current year: REERIWERLOT
Accumulated
bad debt
Basis of provision prior
determining the to reversals
Reasons for original bad or collections Amount of
Content of reversals or debt provision O] R5T reversals
other receivables collections TEE RER EEHRAER or collections
Hib IR AR HEEHRE AR EHEHE EoleEE
RMB RMB
AREETT AREBT
Beijing Guanyuan Partially recovered Controversial debts 7,000,000 187,500

Wholesale Market B85 Uk

Company Limited

which are unlikely to
be recovered

tREEAMILETS BEEAHRREFEFH
BRAT 4@ AT REE A
ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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Other receivables (Continued)

(2) 31 December 2012 (Continued)

Xll. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Receivables due from related parties:

Relationship with

(1) DA BHRREEHBERE)

HAib WK ()

(2) 2012%412531H (%)
H At B U BEESE 5 B FIBIA T

Proportion of the
amount to the total
other receivables (%)

Name of entity the Company Amount 1y E PR U BR 3R
BRIETH eI/ R ER ] HBEER LB (%)
RMB
AR¥ETT

Jingkelong Tongzhou Subsidiary 36,449,029 38
RERERM FRA
Chaopi Trading Subsidiary 1,587,577 2
Bt E FRa
Chaopi Shuanglong Subsidiary 72,000 -
TRt EEE FRAHE
Chaopi Flavourings Subsidiary 654,899 1
AL TR o FRA]
Chaopi Jinglong Oil Sales Subsidiary 62,700 -
B R R FAR]
Chaopi Huaqing Subsidiary 275,400 -
PHEE TR
Chaopi Zhongde Subsidiary 1,047,386 1
PG TR

Total 40,148,991 42

At

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012,
there were no other receivables due from shareholders

holding 5% or more of the Company’s shares with

voting power.

72013128318 K2012F12 A
31 AEFPHREPERAFLAR
A15% (E5%) A EFRABER D AR
FREY EL fth BT o

2013 4§
ERREEEEERRNBRAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. Other receivables (Continued)

(3) Top five entities with the largest balances of other

receivables

31 December 2013

(1) DA M BHRRETERBERE)

5. HABWRKE)

(3) AMERHTHEIEEENER

2013%12A31H

Proportion of
the amount to
the total other

Relationship with receivables (%)
Name of entity the Company Amount Age 1 L 4th FE UK
BUARE BEARD T @R 28 FR HAEE Y EE (%)
RMB
AR¥TRT
Chaopi Trading Subsidiary 63,560,042  Within 1 year 36
R E TR 1R
Jingkelong Tongzhou Subsidiary 25,993,303  Within 1 year 15
REREEM FA] 1R
Hongchao Weiye Independent third 19,068,730  Within 1 year 11
(Note (VII), 4(1), Note 1) party 1F R
SAERRE(MFE(L) - 4NZ5E1) BYFE=F
Beijing Guanyuan Wholesale Independent third 6,687,500 Over 3 years 4
Market Company Limited party 3FENE
IREERRETSERAR BIE=7H
Beijing Guibao Baodi Hotel Independent third 4,600,000 Over 3 years 3
Management Co., Ltd. party 3FENE
IRREEREEEEARAR BUYFE=H
Total CEl 119,909,575 69

ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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Xll. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. Other receivables (Continued)

(3) Top five entities with the largest balances of other

receivables (Continued)

31 December 2012

Relationship with

(1) DA BHRREEHBERE)

5+ HEAEWRE)

(3 EMEKRFTHEITLEENER

(%)
2012412A31H

Proportion of
the amount to
the total other
receivables (%)

Name of entity the Company Amount  Age 15 EoAth FE ISR
BAIEH RN AR TR FR R L (%)
RMB
AR¥ETT

Jingkelong Tongzhou Subsidiary 36,449,029 Within 1 year 38

REEEIMN FRA] 1FELAA

Beijing Guanyuan Wholesale Independent third 6,812,500 Over 2 years 7
Market Company Limited party 2F LA E

ITREEEREMSEERAT BIYFE=H

Beijing Guibao Baodi Hotel Independent third 4,600,000 Over 2 years S
Management Co., Ltd. party 2F LA E

IR REESHEEERERAR BUE=FH

Beijing Fupai Food Co., Ltd. Independent third 4,413,917 Within 1 year 5

party 1 AR

Rk RmARRDA BIE=F

Beijing Bailitongda Trading Independent third 2,051,300 Within 1 year 2
Co., Ltd. party 1F AR

IERBEMBERERRAQA BIE=F

Total

a&f 54,326,746 57

Other receivables exceeding RMB5 million are classified

as individually significant by the Company

KRB EEEHARBS008 7T
EMEMERFERAERSES
KHFRIA ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S (t2) AR BHRRETEHETR(E

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

)

6. Inventories 6 RFE
(1) Categories of inventories (1) HFESE
2013.12.31 2012.12.31
ZB-ZE+ZA=t-H “F-—F+-A=t-H
Provision Provision

Gross  for decline Net Gross for decline Net

carrying in value of carrying carrying in value of carrying

amount  inventories amount amount inventories amount

RESE BEEE REEE REHE BrEEE FRER

RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB

ARETR ARET ARET ARET ARET ARET

Merchandise EfFEm 330,112,863 290,456 329,822,407 | 319,379,307 - 319,379,307

Raw materials R 6,474,894 - 6,474,894 8,093,997 - 8,093,997
Reusable materials [EEH 601,149 - 601,149 248,841 = 248,841

Total At 337,188,906 290,456 336,898,450 | 327,722,145 - 327,722,145
As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, no R2013F 12 A31H K2012F12A
inventories were pledged or guaranteed. 318 - EARERNIERNTFE -

(2) Provision for decline in value of inventories (2) HFEHKEERE
Decrease in the year

2013.1.1  Increase in REFD 2013.12.31

oE-ck the year Reversal Write-off tE-cf

Category of inventories BEEE -A-B REHRE el Y f2Rz1-H

RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB

ARET ARET ARBT ARET ARET

Merchandise ERER - 290,456 - = 290,456

280 ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

Xll. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(1) DA BHRREEHBERE)

7. Other current assets 7. HiRBEE

2013.12.31 2012.12.31
—Eg—= —E——F
t=A=+—-R| t=A=+—H
RMB RMB
AR® T ARETT

Short-term investment R E
(Note (VI), 6 Note 1) (BFFE(R) ~ B25E1) 20,000,000 =
Tax credit FEINEBR 76,284,853 75,113,925
Prepaid lease charge FEHLEBER 17,857,980 17,268,421
Prepaid heating expenses FHHEER 2,572,210 2,085,209
Other prepaid expenses (Note 1) EMAFEERGE) 904,993 4,927,561
Total S 117,620,036 99,395,116
Note 1: Other prepaid expense mainly included property fees, H1: EtSEBERTIZERNDEE -

cleaning fees, security fees, etc. REE  RLEBE -
8. Entrusted Loans 8- ZEFEEX

2013.12.31 2012.12.31
—B—= —T——F
+=A=+—H +=ZA=+—8H
RMB RMB
AR® ARHETT

Entrusted loans EER
Related party B2)ibay 350,000,000 330,000,000
Total &t 350,000,000 330,000,000

The Company entrusted Beijing Bank Jiulongshan Branch
and Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Beijing Branch
to lend to Chaopi Trading, a subsidiary of the Company.
The maturity of those loans is from 2 years to 3 years. The
annual interest rates of those entrusted loans for 2013 are

5.84% to 6.15%.

As at 31 December 2013, the entrusted loans had no
indication of impairment and thus no impairment provision is

necessary.

ZERAERRARRARFILRRITA
BRUSITR LSRR ERRBTIERDT

&4

RElZ FRAAIEHERNIA -

HRAB-FEZF - R2013FEFFE

/35.84%%6.156% ©

MR2013F12H31H » T ERHER
BEU% - \ARDUREERE -

2013 3}

ERREEEEEERNBRAF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(1) DM BHRRETERE TR (E)

9. Long-term equity investments 9 RERERE
Explanation
of the
inconsistency
between the
proportion
of ownership
interest and
the proportion
Proportion Proportion of voting
of ownership of voting power Provision for
interest in the  power in the ERRE impairment
investee (%) investee (%) Bfi%R  Provision for losses for Cash
Accounting Investment 2013.1.1 2013.12.31 HRRE EHRRE  WAERE  impaiment theyear dividends
Investee method cost ZE-Z Changes ~ —%-=% Bk ERAE  BHAT- losses  AEFRE  forthe year
RREER BERE NRRERA -f-A #5%8 +-B=t-A B (%) H6(%) i HEER EEE  AFRAA
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARET ARET AR#T ARET AR#T ARH#R AR#T
Long-term equity investment
to subsidiaries
HIRARERERE
Jingkelong Langfang Cost method 8,000,000 83,980,000 - 83,980,000 100 100 - - - -
REERY S
Chaopi Trading Cost method 55,733,000 296015270 140,490,324 436,505,594 79.85 79.85 - - - 58,771,400
HEg AmE
Xinyang Tongli Cost method 832,500 1,665,000 - 1,665,000 52.08 52.08 - - - 333,000
&N S
Shoulian Supermarket Cost method 121,160,000 422,484,500 - 422,484,500 100 100 - - - -
Bl RAE
Jingkelong Tongzhou Cost method 29,000,000 29,000,000 - 29,000,000 100 100 - - - -
REEBN 3
Total At 833144770 140,490,324 973,635,094 - - 59,104,400
ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B R B ot

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

(1) DA BHRREEHBERE)

9. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 9. RHIRERE(#E)
Explanation
of the
inconsistency
between the
proportion
of ownership
interest and
the proportion
Proportion Proportion of voting
of ownership of voting power Provision for
interestinthe  power in the g impaiment
investes (%) investes (%) Efp5FR  Provision for losses for Cash
Accounting Investment 2012.1.1 2012.12.31 g TREE  LAERR impaiment the year dividends
Investee method cost CE-If Changes ~ —F-—% Bk  BugpE  ELAAR losses  AEEIER forthe year
HREEN V&R MERERE -A-A #5289 +-A=1-8 SE07(%) H%) EEkd] HERR R AERSITH
RVB RMB RMB RMB RVB RVB RMB
ARET AR®T ARETR AR®T ARET AR¥T ARET
Long-term equity investment
to subsidiaries
HFAARERERE
Jingkelong Langfang Cost method 8,000,000 83,980,000 - 83,980,000 100 100 - - - -
REEREY AE
Chaopi Trading Cost method 55,733,000 296,015,270 - 296,015,270 79.85 79.85 - - - 64648540
BEg AE
Xinyang Tongi Cost method 832,500 1,665,000 - 1,665,000 52.08 52.03 - - - 333,000
TN AR
Shoulian Supermarket Cost method 121,160,000 422,484,500 - 422,484,500 100 100 - - - -
BB AE
Jingkelong Tongzhou Cost method 29,000,000 29,000,000 - 29,000,000 100 100 - - - -
REEBN 3
Total Bt 833,144,770 - 833144770 - - 64981540

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, there

is no restriction on the capability of transferring fund from

investees to the Company.

R2013F12 A31H K2012F12 A31H AR
RAFANRARERE 2 WIREEM
MARREBESWNEENRZEIRS

2013 4§
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

10. Investment properties

(1) DA M BHRRETERBERE)

10 REMEHE

Investment properties measured at cost LA BRI E S E
2013.1.1 Increase in Decrease in 2013.12.31
—E-=F the year the year —E-=F
—-R—H KERM AERHY +ZA=t-H
RMB RMB RMB RMB
ING: ARETR ARETR AR¥T
. Total original carrying amount — BERE
Buildings FEREEY 53,557,051 - - 53,557,051
Il Total accumulated depreciation T BEEMRIEH
and amortization
Buildings EERESEN 14,417,040 1,654,647 - 16,071,687
lll. Total net book value of = RENEHERDFE
investment properties
Buildings FEREEY 39,140,011 - - 37,485,364
2012.1.1 Increase in Decrease in 2012.12.31
—E-C-F the year the year “ZF-C-F
—A-A AREEN RS +ZRA=1+—A°
RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARETL ARETL ARETL AR
IV, Total original carrying amount — RERE
Buildings EEREEY 24,898,250 28,658,801 - 53,557,051
V. Total accumulated depreciation o EHENMZEY
and amortization
Buildings FEREEY 9,841,778 4,575,262 - 14,417,040
V1. Total net book value of = REWUEHEERTE
investment properties
Buildings FEREEY 15,056,472 - - 39,140,011

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, increases

in the original carrying amount were due to the conversion

from own-occupied properties.

Depreciation charged for 2013 was RMB1,654,647 (2012:

RMB965,953).

ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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Xll. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

10.

11.

Investment properties (Continued)

Investment properties measured at cost (Continued)

As at 31 December 2013, the investment property with
net book value of RMB7,447,628 (31 December 2012:
RMB6,620,660) was pledged to secure certain of the
Company’s loans. See Note (XIl) 25.

As at 31 December 2013, the fair values of the investment
properties were RMB90 million (31 December 2012: RMB90

million). As at the date of this report, the fair values of the

investment properties were determined by Vigers Appraisal

& Consulting Limited, an independent qualified valuer using

market comparison approach. The fair values were classified

as Level 2.

(t=) AFE

10~

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

]|E|E||/

NBHRREERBERE)

REMFEHEE)

LR AT B REMEHE(E)
M2013F12A31H - FEHOARKE
7,447,62870(2012F12A310 « A B
#6,620,6607C) )R E M B b E B FAE
RITERWERY - 2RMFE(+Z) -
25 °

20135 12A31H - ZEHREEF b
E R nEBEDNRIET(2012F12A
31H : HARB0IEIL) - RAHE
H REUEMEAABEREEYE
EMELEMEETEENHERER
N RIR AR T35 L BUE FT 1R I 80 TS (B 7
F o ZARBERBNE2ER -

Fixed assets 1 BEEEE
2013.1.1 Decrease in 2013.12.31
~B-=F Increase in the year theyear ~ —E-Z%
-E-H REEM AERS +-A=1-H
RMB RMB RMB RMB
N U= N U=
. Total original carrying amount - RAREARH: 1,497,981,947 137,329,806 23,994,090 1,611,317,663
Including: Buildings Hi:  EEREEN 857,821,795 61,574,715 - 919,396,510
Machinery and equipment WL 525,059,434 61,536,836 13,674,961 572,921,309
Electronical devices BTRERAM
and others 101,450,270 10,774,195 9,595,308 102,629,157
Transportation vehicles EBRE 13,650,448 3,444,060 723,821 16,370,687
Additions for  Provisions for
the year the year
KEHE REHR
II. Total accumulated depreciation = BitmEAR: 558,494,012 110,956 88,672,006 21,714,089 625,562,885
Including: Buildings i FEREEY 184,147,019 - 31,287,757 - 215,384,776
Machinery and equipment ER 286,329,758 78,022 48,182,804 11,892,827 322,697,757
Electronical devices STREREMY
and others 79,184,644 32,934 8,332,806 9,299,096 78,251,288
Transportation vehicles EBikE 8,832,591 - 918,639 522,166 9,229,064
. Total net book value of fixed assets = - EEFEA: - 939,487,935 - - 985,754,778
Including; Buildings i FEREEY 673,674,776 - - 704,011,734
Machinery and equipment BER 238,729,676 - - 250,223,552
Electronical devices STRERER
and others 22,265,626 - - 24,377,869
Transportation vehicles EE 4,817,857 S S 7,141,623
2013 &
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

11. Fixed assets (Continued)

. Total original carrying amount

- REAREAT

2012.1.1
—E-CF
—-A-A
RMB
ARET

1,458,022,869

(1) DA M BHRRETERBERE)

11 BAEEBEE)

Including: Buildings £ FEREEN 829,325,674
Machinery and equipment KER 514,086,385
Electronical devices
and others EFREREM 99,681,215
Transportation vehicles EgHE 14,929,595
Il Total acoumulated depreciation — EiMEA: 496,766,698
Including: Buldings Hh: ERREEY 159,468,288
Machinery and equipment HaH 256,902,018
Electronical devices STHREREM
and others 72,670,016
Transportation vehicles EHRE 7,826,376
lIl. Total net book value of fixed assets = » EREFEAF : 961,256,171
Including: Buldings Hh : ERREEY 669,857,386
Machinery and equipment e 257,184,367
Electronical devices
and others BTHERAMS 27,111,199
Transportation vehicles EBSE 7,103,219

Decrease in 2012.12.31
Increase in the year the year “3-—F
REE AERY +-A=t-B
RMB RMB RMB
ARET ARBT N
91,274,955 51,315,877  1,497,981,947
57,154,922 28,668,801 857,821,795
27,537,096 16,564,047 525,059,434
6,540,037 4,770,982 101,450,270
42,900 1,322,047 13,650,448
Additions for  Provisions for
the year the year
RERE REETR
552,985 85,233,567 24,059,238 558,494,012
- 28,288,040 3,609,309 184,147,019
523,694 43,607,293 14,703,247 286,329,758
29,291 11,207,701 4,622,364 79,184,644
- 2,130,533 1,124,318 8,832,591
- - 939,487,935
- - 673,674,776
- - 238,729,676
- - 22,265,626
- - 4,817,857

The increase in the original carrying amount for 2013
consists of acquisitions of RMB65,123,713, an increase of
RMB72,010,963 transferred from construction in progress,
and an increase of RMB195,130 on acquisition from
subsidiaries. The decrease in the original carrying amount
for 2013 consists of a decrease of RMB22,866,348 on
disposals and a decrease of RMB1,127,742 on the sale to

subsidiaries.

The increase in accumulated depreciation for the
current year consists of charge for the current year of
RMB88,672,006, and an increase of RMB110,956 on
acquisition from subsidiaries. The decrease in accumulated
depreciation for the current year consists of a decrease
of RMB21,230,622 on disposals, and a decrease of
RMB483,467 on the sale to subsidiaries.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

Xll. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

11.

Fixed assets (Continued)

The increase in the original carrying amount for 2012
consists of acquisitions of RMB73,400,461, an increase of
RMB16,855,995 transferred from construction in progress,
and an increase of RMB1,018,499 on acquisition from
subsidiaries. The decrease in the original carrying amount
for 2012 consists of a decrease of RMB21,858,618
on disposals, a decrease of RMB798,458 on the sale
to subsidiaries, and a decrease of RMB28,658,801 on

reclassification as investment properties.

The increase in accumulated depreciation for 2012 consists
of charge for the year of RMB85,233,567, and an increase
of RMB552,985 on acquisition from subsidiaries. The
decrease in accumulated depreciation for 2012 consists of
a decrease of RMB20,220,402 on disposals, a decrease of
RMB229,527 on the sale to subsidiaries, and a decrease of

RMB3,609,309 on reclassification as investment properties.

As at 31 December 2013, the fixed assets with the net
book value of RMB140,039,233 (as at 31 December 2012:
RMB89,192,077) were pledged to secure certain of the
Company’s bank loans. See Note (XII) 25.

A

]|E|E||/

(1) DA BHRREEHBERE)

1 BAEBEEE)

R20126 EREREZ NG  BEEM
I AREET3,400,46170 - AERIRR
B\ 1 i A R %616,855,9957T © B #
FAREAMEINARE,018,4997T
FERRERFERIFT  BREEMRDA
R#21,858,6187T * A#iH4F A
B AR #798,45870 - HEEAKRE M
B iR AR 628,658,801 7T ©

R2012F [ 2T EENF - sHRAR
#£85,233,5677T + FE{EF 2 B AT
AR #552,9857T « REH T EARNFR
D AR EmR A A R#20,220,402
T ABEEFRARmED AR
229,5277T « EE AR E M 1 EE iR
L AR¥3,609,3097T °

2013F12A31B FAEHAF AR K
140,039,2337C (201246128318 : A
R #89,192,0777L )M EEEER A
REBERTERNERYn X IR
H o 2RME(+=) 25

2013 1R
IR R EEAEEEROBRAR]
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12. Construction in progress

Details of construction in progress are as follows:

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S

(1) DA M BHRRETERBERE)

12 EEIRE

2013.12.31
ZE-ZE+ZAZt-H

Provision for

FERZTIZRRMNAT -

2012.12.31

“F--Ff+-fA=1-H

Provision for

Carrying  impairment  Net carrying Carrying impairment ~ Net carrying
amount losses amount amount losses amount
RESE HEEE REEE RESE HEEE REFE
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARET AR AR ARET AR AR
Shuanggjao Project EEIR 49,825,460 49,825,460 | 49,825,460 - 49,825,460
Pingfang Project TEIR 36,694,407 36,694,407 83,780 - 83,780
Jiuxiangiao Project BlETRE 3,180,911 3,180,911 - = =
Project of Drysaltery FEREIR
Distribution Center 713,685 713,685 - - -
Convenience Store Project EFRIERETE 501,780 501,780 837,580 = 837,580
Project of Fresh Food SRR TRE
Distribution Center 321,263 321,263 S - -
Changping Project E¥IR - - | 54,164,902 - 54,164,902
Tuofangying Store Project RREEIR - - | 27546542 - 27,546,542
Sanjianfang Project “HETE - - 5,937,562 - 5987562
Renovation Project of
Wangjing Store BREMELR - - 4151111 - 415111
Xingshenglu Store Project FERRETR - - - 141,081 - 141,081
Renovation Project of EEB@HETR
Huilongguan Mall - - 123,357 - 123,357
Tangshan Store Project EWETR - - 85,761 - 85,761
Headquarter Project BT - - 30,175 = 30,175
Total ait 91,237,506 - 91,237,506 | 142,927,311 - 142,927,311
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Xll. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S (12) AR BHRRETEHEEFR(E)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12. Construction in progress (Continued) 12 EEIR(E)

(1) Changes in significant construction in progress

31 December 2013

(1) EXGEBEIEBEEEEEL
2013%12831H

Transfer to
fixed assets,
intangible
assets
and long-term Amount Including:
prepaid injected as Amountof  capitalised Interest
expenses a proportion accumulated interest for ~ capitalisation
Increase in E)\BR of budget capitalised the year  rate for the
Budget 01311 thecurent  EE - EF Other ~ amount (%) ~ Construction interest " year (%) Source of 20131231
Item name amount  ZE-=F year  BERRE  decreases  IBRAK progress HEER REFIE KERE  funds g-zf
BRLE BE®  -F-H AEEN HER RbHY  EERH) IREEC) LEHEE  EALEE  BALEY) EEKE tZASt-R
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR¥R  ARER ARER N ARER ARER AR®R ARER
Shuangojao Project | 100,636,426 49,825,460 - - - 50 5 3,000,000 - - Ownfundsand 49,825,460
(Note VI-10-1) bank loans
BEIR REELR
(MEA023) RT-RER
Pingfang Project 73,655,986 83,780 36,610,627 - - 50 50 425,988 425,988 531 Ownfundsand 36,694,407
TRIR bank loans
BEELR
B-REH
Changping Project 08482545 54164902  14317,643 68,482,545 - 100 100 5541916 727,334 531 Own funds and -
(Note VI-10-2) bank loans
E¥IE BEEER
(HEA10238) #f-RiER
Tuofangying 30,631,608 27546542 3,085,066 30,631,608 - 100 100 - - - Own funds -
Store Project EL64
RREEIR
Renovation Project of | 30492983 4,151,111 21,896,772 26,047,883 - 100 100 338,843 102,530 531 Own funds and -
Wangjing Store bank loans
ERRRETR REELREM
B E
Sanjianfang Project 19,570,981 5037562 13633419 19,570,981 - 100 100 148,168 120,465 531 Own funds and -
“HEIR bank loans
BEELRET
-RER
Tiandalu Store Project 8,127,934 - 8,127,934 8,127,934 - 100 100 - - - Own funds -
REREIE BEES
Jinzhan Store Project 5,404,280 - 5,404,280 5,404,280 - 100 100 - - - Own funds -
SEEIR REEE
Other construction 16,649,183 1217954 14865806 11,366,121 - 110100 110100 475,292 3470 531 Own funds 4,717,639
in progress and/or bank
loans
EpAEIR 12100 12100 EHELY/
k-
£
Total
&5 14291311 17941547 169,631,352 9930207 1,747,787 91,237,506
2013 3R
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XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12. Construction in progress (Continued)

(+2)

(1) Changes in significant construction in progress

(Continued)

31 December 2012

12 ERIE(E)

NAMBHRREBHEBERE)

(1) EXGBEIEBEEEERL(E)

2012 12A318

Transfer to
fixed assets Amount Incluaing:
and long-term injected as Amount of  capitalised Inferest
prepaid a proportion accumulated interest for  capitalisation
Increase in £Xpenses of buaget capitalised the year rate for
Budget 01211 the current EYNEd Other ~ amount (%)  Construction mteres © theyear %) Source of 2012.12.31
liem name amout  Z3-Z g EERRE  deceasss TERAR ogess  HSAR $ﬁ EHE  funds 5%
BRER BEg -A-B REEN BRER HM”\ BRI TREEW  (CZHEE ﬁmtﬁ EELEW B8R +0AC + B
RE RB AB B RiB
AR¥n  ARMr  ARBn AREx /\E%n ARERL AE%E AE%E
Shuanggiao Project 100636426 49,825,460 - - - 50 5 3000000 - - Own funds/ 49,825,460
Note VI-10-1) bank loans
gETE HEELR
(K 1028) B—HiH
Changping Project 68482545 41264734 12,900,168 = = 5 51 4814582 564,582 557 Own funds/ 54,164,902
(Note VI-10-2* bank Ioans
Bk KA
(EA 0238 - ﬁﬂ”
S_an%mn ang Projct 10,570,981 - 5,987,562 S S 18 18 20,103 2,108 557 Own funds/ 5,087,562
= bank loans
Eﬁé{ﬁ&i&n
a0
Tuofangying Store 30,631,608 - 21546542 = = 90 90 = = - Own funds 21,546,542
Project
SEEMEI gEES
Beiyuan Project’ 29,237,361 5981227 23159517 29,140,744 - 100 100 231,804 137,042 557 Ownfunds/ -
IRIE bank loans
Eﬁi?&ﬁ«1
i
Renovation Project of 30492983 4,445,100 4151111 4,445,100 = 1% 1 236,313 33213 557 Own funds/ 4151111
Wangjing Store bank loans
ZREIE ﬁﬁéﬁmﬂ
Yirui Mid Road Store 8,663,240 577,311 7,985,929 8,663,240 - 100 100 86,415 77,398 557 Own funds/ -
Project* bank loans
BRTRELE ﬁﬁﬁ{ﬁ&fﬁﬂ
EITA
Fangzhuang Store 6,753,337 562256 6,191,081 6,753,337 - 100 100 3013 26232 557 Own funds/ -
Project” bank loans
THETE a‘ﬁéé&ﬁﬂ
iy
Kangying Store 4,756,765 1,266,611 3,501,154 4,756,765 = 100 100 54,748 35,138 557 Own funas/ =
Project” bank loans
REELE ﬁﬁﬁ{%&fﬁﬂ
3
Dongba Store Project” 2,239,053 44054 2194999 2,239,053 - 100 100 40,134 38872 557 Own funds/ -
bank loans
REEIR a‘ﬁ%%&iiﬁ
DAEDY
Other construction 32,784,862 2584809 10834160 1211723 - 1-100 1-100 307,271 239,720 557 Own funds/ 1,301,734
in progress bank loans
EEETR 12100 1210 EEE%9/ R
SRR
Total
it 106540562 104402223 68,016,474 - 8,834,073 1,179,900 142,921,311

*

The project budget and the proportions of project investments of the total *

budget in respective periods were restated in accordance with revised
budget amount for subsequent years/periods.
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Xll. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

13.

A

P el

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

]|E|E||/

(1) DA BHRREEHBERE)

Intangible assets 13- B EE
(1) Intangible assets (1) BEZLERR
2013.1.1 Increase in Decrease in 2013.12.31
—B-=f the year the year —E-=F
-B—H KEEM AEHY +ZRA=t-H
RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARER ARETR ARETR ARER
. Total original carrying amount — RERBEAH 109,991,422 6,249,603 - 116,241,025
Land use rights TitE R 95,109,412 4,211,482 S 99,320,894
Software development costs HHHRE 14,882,010 2,038,121 = 16,920,131
Il Total accumulated amortisation - EREEAE 20,269,122 4,541,986 - 24,811,108
Land use rights T {E 13,211,372 2,704,550 - 15,915,922
Software development costs HER%RE 7,057,750 1,837,436 - 8,895,186
lIl. Total net book value of = EFBEREEEA
intangible assets At 89,722,300 - - 91,429,917
Land use rights T E 81,898,040 - - 83,404,972
Software development costs HEREE 7,824,260 - - 8,024,945
201211 Increase in Decrease in 2012.12.31
—B--F the year the year —E-Cf
—R—H RESEM XERY FZR=t-8
RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARET ARET ARET ARET
I. Total original carrying amount — REREAH 107,089,057 2,902,365 = 109,991,422
Land use rights T AR 95,109,412 - - 95,109,412
Software development costs HHHRE 11,979,645 2,902,365 S 14,882,010
Il Total accumulated amortisation - ZitEEAs 17,238,250 3,030,872 - 20,269,122
Land use rights T fE 11,762,736 1,448,636 - 13,211,372
Software development costs HHEE 5,475,514 1,582,236 = 7,057,750
lIl. Total net book value of = EWEREREEE
intangiole assets Bt 89,850,807 = = 89,722,300
Land use rights TR 83,346,676 - - 81,898,040
Software development costs HHRRE 6,504,131 - - 7,824,260

Among the increase of intangible assets in 2013, the original

carrying amount increased by RMB4,211,482 due to transfer

from construction in progress.

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, no land

use rights were pledged or guaranteed.

R2013F ERAERBEENF - AEET
f2E A MmN AR EE4,211,4827T ©

2013512310 K2012412A31H -
EAREAKE RO LHERE -

2013 £
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XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

14. Long-term prepaid expenses

(1) DA M BHRRETERBERE)

14 REBFHEER

Reasons
2013.1.1 Increase in  Amortisation Other 2013.12.31  for other
—E-ZF the year  for the year reductions ZZ-=% reductions
-A-H RER KEBEY HiBY +=A=+-B HtELER
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
N AR¥R AR¥R N AR¥T
Leasehold improvements 469,645,012 93,408,907 50,715,320 83,156,364 429,182,235  Disposal
(Note(vlI),
4(1), Note 1)
B
LERABTEE (WaE(E)
BRI 4(1)2zH1)
Rent il 40,629,625 - - 12,823,000 27,806,625 Transferred to
current
assets
EERBEE
Total At 510,274,637 93,408,907 50,715,320  95979,364 456,988,860
Reasons
2012.1.1 Increase in Amortisation Other 2012.12.31  for other
“E-—F the year for the year reductions “Z-F  reductions
b= REEN REZHEY Hgd TZA=+-B EtESRR
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARET ARET ARET ARET ARET
Leasehold improvements BEBAET 472,545,310 51,159,479 54,089,777 - 469,645,012
BEAR M
Rent i 50,358,908 - - 9,729,283 40,629,625  Transferred to
current
assets
BEERHEE
Total At 522,904,218 51,159,479 54,059,777 9,729,283 510,274,637
ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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15. Other non-current assets

16.

Xll. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(+=

15 EftiERBEE

) RER M BHRREERBERE)

2013.12.31 2012.12.31
—E-=F —E—CF
+=ZA=+—H| +TZHA=+—H
RMB RMB
AR ARHTT
Long-term receivables due from HoL AR EN R BRI

Hongchao Weiye (FF&E(E) ~ 4 ()Z5E1)

(Note (VII), 4(1) Note 1) 45,476,373 -
Security Deposit RS IRTE S 5,318,721 6,306,235
Total A&r 50,795,094 6,306,235
Short-term borrowings 16 ~ BHIfER

2013.12.31 2012.12.31

—E-=F —E——F

+=A=+—A| +ZA=+—H

RMB RMB

AR¥ T ARET

Guaranteed loans (Note 1) REBMER(GGED) 250,000,000 500,000,000
Unsecured loans (Note 2) ERER(EE2) 150,000,000 310,000,000
Total Eieill 400,000,000 810,000,000

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, those

short-term borrowings bear annual interest rate of 5.40%

and 5.60% to 6.00%, respectively. All of those loans were

repaid in time.

M20135F12 A31 H K2012F12A318 -
ot SRR F R B5.40% %

5.60%%6.00% -
REZERER ©

AT EFEEHHH

2013 3}
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XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

16.

17.

18.

Short-term borrowings (Continued)

Note 1: As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012,

the short-term borrowings of RMB250,000,000 and
RMB500,000,000, respectively, are guaranteed by Chaopi
Trading, a subsidiary of the Company.

Note 2: As at 31 December 2013, the Company borrowed

RMB100,000,000 and RMB50,000,000 from Beijing
Rural Commercial Bank and Mizuho Bank (China), Ltd.,
respectively. And the Company was not required to provide
gurantees for such loans by the banks. As at 31 December
2012, the Company borrowed RMB220,000,000,
RMB50,000,000, and RMB40,000,000 from Beijing Rural
Commercial Bank, Commercial Bank of China Chaoyang
Branch and Huaxia Bank Beijing Branch, respectively,
for improvement of daily liquidity. And the Company was
not required to provide guarantees for such loans by the

banks.

Accounts payable

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the
accounts payable are consisted of procurements payable,
among which there were no significant payables aged
more than 1 year. There was no accounts payable due to
shareholders holding 5% or more of the Company’s shares

with voting power.

Advances from customers

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the
advances from customers are consisted of procurements
received in advance, among which there were no significant
advances from customers aged more than 1 year. There
were no advances from shareholders or related parties
holding 5% or more of the Company’s shares with voting

power.
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Xll. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

19. Employee benefits payable

(1) DA BHRREEHBERE)

19 ~ BB T HMH

2013.1.1 Increase in Decrease in 2013.12.31
—E-=F the year theyear ~ -“B-=F&
-B—H AEEM AEHY TZR=1-H
RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR%R AR%R AR®T AR¥R
. Wages or salaries, bonuses, alowances ~ — T & « 4 « 2EAEH
and subsidies - 246,561,109 246,561,109 -
Il Staff welfare ZBIRHE - 15561,332 15,561,332 -
Il Social security contributions = HERRE - 61,275,267 61,275,267 -
Medical insurance H: BERKE - 20,468,963 20,468,963 -
Basic pension insurance BERBZRRE - 36,896,646 36,896,646 s
Unemployment insurance KERRE - 1,683,957 1,683,957 -
Work-related injury insurance IERRE - 607,468 607,468 -
Maternity insurance EERRE - 1,618,233 1,618,233 -
IV. Housing funds mFRAES - 14,700,214 14,700,214 -
V. Labor union expenditures and employees’ T I @EBABIHELE
education expenses 4,993,456 4,908,308 8,433,906 1,467,858
Total CHI 4,993,456 343,006,230 346,531,828 1,467,858
201211 Increase in Decrease in 2012.12.31
—I--F the year the year —T--F
—R—H REHEM XERY +ZA=1+—H
RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARET AR ARETL ARETL
. Wages or salaries, bonuses, alowances ~ — I & - 4 « 2B
and subsidies - 240,648,451 240,648,451 -
II.  Staff welfare ZBIGHNE - 14,572,693 14,572,693 -
Il Social security contributions = HeRRE - 54,619,882 54,619,882 =
Medical insurance Hi: BERRE - 18,154,798 18,154,798 =
Basic pension insurance BErEERRE - 32,988,345 32,988,345 =
Unemployment insurance KERRE - 1,474,873 1,474,873 -
Work-related injury insurance IERRE - 546,422 546,422 -
Maternity insurance YERBE - 1,455,444 1,455,444 -
IV. Housing funds mERAES - 14,036,241 14,036,241 -
V. Labor union expenditures and employees’ T T &EBEMBIHE LS
education expenses 3,889,019 4,828,859 3,724,422 4,993,456
Total A&t 3,889,019 328,706,126 327,601,689 4,993,456
2013 4§
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(1) DA M BHRRETERBERE)

20. Taxes payable 20 EXBE

2013.12.31 2012.12.31

—E—=fF —E— 4

+=A=+-8| +=A=+—8

RMB RMB

AR¥T ARETT

Business tax BED 3,086,549 1,791,545
Income tax Fris®i 1,717,256 (5,365,009)

Urban construction and T MR R

maintenance tax 2,631,715 2,462,265
Education surcharges A BN 1,151,784 1,059,361
Others Eh 608,016 1,195,153
Total S 9,195,320 1,143,315

21. Other payables

(1) Details of other payables are as follows:

21~ HENAR

(1) EEMFHHANT

2013.12.31 2012.12.31

—E-=fF —ET——F

+=—A=+—H +ZA=+—H

RMB RMB

AR®T AREETT

Deposit e 28,353,766 26,668,855
Construction fees payable FERTIER 92,556,036 72,659,138
Rent received in advance BUEE 6,819,933 6,635,596
Others HAith 4,920,589 6,217,716
Total A&t 132,650,324 112,181,305

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012,

there were no other payables due to shareholders

holding 5% or more of the Company’s shares with

voting power.
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Xll. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

21.

Other payables (continued)

(2) Description of significant other payables aged more
than 1 year
On 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, other
payables aged more than 1 year were mainly deposits

and construction fees payable.

22. Bonds payable

23.

In 2013 and 2012, the Company issued short-term bonds
through Bank of Beijing and Bank of Nanjing and issued
a five-year corporate Bond in an aggregate amount of
RMB750 million, embedded with option to increase the
coupon interest rate by the issuer and putable option by the

investors (Note (VI) 24).

Long-term borrowings due within one year

(1) Long-term borrowings due within one year

(1) DA BHRREEHBERE)

21~ EMEARAE)

(2) EREBEBIFHAEEMENLE
pEA
2013412 5318 K2012412 A
S1HREREBE —F o E b AR
FEAMERIBIKRNRER -

22 - EIESH

23~

20134 E K20126F [ « AR AlAiA
It FERITREARBITEIT T RHIEAE
5 WEABEBENRAREITARBTS
BITMBERAREAME=ZFRETA
FAZEMNRRRERREERMEEE
BEDRIES - 2RMFEGR) - 24 -

1EREHHRBER

(1) 1FRFHHRAEH

2013.12.31 2012.12.31

—B—= —T——F

t=A=+—-RA | t=A=t—H

RMB RMB

AR#TT ARHETT

Secured loans (Note (VI), 25(1))  EIFER(MIEER) ~ 25(1)) 10,000,000 =
2013 43§
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XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

23. Long-term borrowings due within one year (Continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

(1) DA M BHRRETERBERE)

2 1FREHHRBERE)

(2) Description of long-term borrowings due within one (2) 1FRABFHHRAE B
year
Inception date Interest 2013.12.31 2012.12.31
Lender of borrowing  Maturity date Currency rate (%) —E-=% 3
ENEQ A BR&LR BE F%E% | tZA=t+-B| tZA=T-8
RMB RMB
N AEET
Shanghai Pudong Development 2013.1.24 2014.6.20 RMB 5.84 2,500,000 -
Bank, Beiing Branch ARE
DERRERBITERAT
Shanghai Pudong Development 2013.1.24 2014.12.20 RMB 5.84 2,500,000 -
Bank, Beijng Branch ARE
DEERERBTARANT
Shanghai Pudong Development 2013.4.12 2014.6.20 RMB 5.84 2,500,000 -
Bank, Beiing Branch AEE
DERRERRITERAT
Shanghai Pudong Development 2013.4.12 2014.12.20 RMB 5.84 2,500,000 -
Bank, Beijing Branch AEE
DERRERBTERAN
Totel & 1,000,000 =

As at 31 December 2013, the Company had no unpaid

overdue loan.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

Xll. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

24. Other current liabilities

24 HtRBEE

(1) DA BHRREEHBERE)

2013.12.31 2012.12.31

—E—=F —E——F

+=BA=+—-H| +ZA=+—H

RMB RMB

AR¥TT ARETT

Accrued expenses TEIRE A 31,111,873 13,233,397

Deferred revenue due within one year 14 A% EIEIEIE Y %5 4,502,260 3,668,929

Total & 35,614,133 16,902,326
(1) Accrued expenses (1) FHEEH

2013.12.31 2012.12.31

—E-=F —E——F

+=BA=+—H +=ZA=+—8~

RMB RMB

AR¥T ARETT

Accrued interest expense ERMEER 21,908,090 6,049,670

Accrued audit expenses TEIRERTE 2,040,000 1,040,000

Accrued rent BiREA 1,958,193 321,202

Others Hh 5,205,590 5,822,525

Total S5t 31,111,873 13,233,397

Deferred revenue due within one year is consisted of

government grants related to assets due within one

year, and the consideration allocated to award credits.

See Note (VI) 26.

1ERBMREER S R —FAZ
Hie B2 A AR RA MY R AR B K 0 i
HBEESMHEL(E - 2RKE

(7R) ~ 26

2013 3}
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

25. Long-term borrowings

(1) Categories of long-term borrowings

25 REER

(1) RAEHZE

(1) DA M BHRRETERBERE)

2013.12.31 2012.12.31

—E-=F —E——F

+=A=+—-H| +=ZA=+—8

RMB RMB

AR¥T AR

Secured loans & 234,000,000 200,000,000
As at 31 December 2013, the long-term borrowings 20134 12A318 © ZE R E{E

were secured by certain of the Company’s buildings
with aggregate carrying amounts of approximately
RMB140,039,233 and investment properties with
carrying amounts of approximately RMB7,447,628

As at 31 December 2012, the long-term borrowings
were secured by certain of the Company’s buildings
with aggregate carrying amounts of approximately
RMB89,192,077 and investment properties with
carrying amounts of approximately RMB6,620,660.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

Xll. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

25. Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(2) Description of long-term borrowings

(1) DA BHRREEHBERE)

25~ REIERR(E)

(2) RAEHBH

Inception Interest | 2013.12.31 | 2012.12.31
date of  Maturity rate | —E-=F | ZF-ZF
borrowing date  Currency (%) tZB TZA
fBRERA  ERALA BiE %% =t-H =
RMB RMB
ARER ARET
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank, i BREES(T 2013124 20156.20 RMB
Beiing Branch ERATT AR 584 | 2,500,000 S
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank, ~ FERRZEH(T 2013124 2016.1.23 RMB
Beijing Branch R N3 584 | 57,500,000 =
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank,  HEBR%ERT 2018412 2015620 RVB
Beiing Branch E2H1T AR 584 | 2,500,000 S
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank,  HiEHRER SRS 2013412 2016.1.31 RMB
Bejjng Branch TRAH PN 584 | 37,500,000 -
Bank of Communications, Beijing TEBTERZRT 20121214 2015.9.20 RVB
Sanyuan Branch ARE 584 | 74,000,000 | 110,000,000
Bank of Communications, Beifing RBRTIASIET 20121226 2015.9.20 RMB
Sanyuan Branch ARE 5.84 | 60,000,000 | 90,000,000
Total At 234,000,000 | 200,000,000
26. Deferred tax liabilities 26 BELEFEBHER
(1) Recognised deferred tax liabilities (1) EEFEHEEST
2013.12.31 2012.12.31
—EB-=fF —ET——F
+=A=+—H +=—A=+—H
RMB RMB
AR%T ARHTT
Deferred tax liabilities: ELEREHEE:
Fair value adjustment of assets ~ JF&EE M & E IR A
arising from non-monetary BEAARBEAE
asset exchange 4,467,896 4,734,505
Capitalized adjustment of BRERMNEE AR
borrowing costs 2,806,473 3,193,979
Total Szl 7,274,369 7,928,484
2013 R
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XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

26. Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

(2) Taxable temporary differences for which deferred

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

(1) DA M BHRRETERBERE)

26~ EEFFEHRABE)
(2) SIEEHMEZNR EHENE R

tax liabilities are recognised MEE
Temporary
differences
FRHEERESHE
RMB
AR®T
2013.12.31 2013.12.31
Taxable temporary differences: FEMTS T =R
Fair value adjustment of assets JEEEHEERBIBA
arising from non-monetary BEAREEAZE
asset exchange 17,871,583
Capitalized adjustment of ERERREER R
borrowing costs 11,225,891
Total &5t 29,097,474
2012.12.31 2012.12.31
Taxable temporary differences: JEMTRE R =R
Fair value adjustment of assets JEEEMEEEIRBA
arising from non-monetary BEARBEAR
asset exchange 18,938,022
Capitalized adjustment of borrowing ERERFEERLAHE
costs 12,775,913
Total A& 31,713,935
27. Other non-current liabilities 27 - HitkREBAE
2013.12.31 2012.12.31
—EB-=F —E—_F
+=A=+-H8| &H#&=A=+—H
RMB RMB
AR¥ETT AREETT
Long-term rentals payable REEMAES 8,000,000 7,730,000
Deferred revenue — asset-related RIEWZ — HEEERM
government grants B IR 4 Bh 4,039,449 1,866,666
Total S 12,039,449 9,596,666

Deferred revenue is asset-related government grants (Note (VI)

29).
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Xll. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

28.

29.

(1) DA BHRREEHBERE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

Share capital 28 ~ B
Changes for the year
rE2E
Capitalisation
Opening  New issue Bonus  of surplus Closing
balance  of shares issue reserve Others Subtotal balance
£ BOER &R DESER 2 Nt LTS |
ARET  ARET  ARER  ARER  ARET  ARER  AR¥n
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
2013 01358
. Restricted tradable shares - ERERHRH
1. State-owned legal person shares 1. BAEASR
Chaoyang Auxiliary EHUEY 167,409,808 - - - - - 167,409,808
Total of state-owned legal BEE ARG
person shares 167,409,808 - - - - - 167,409,808
2. Other domestic-owned shares 2. HftNERRK
Domestic non state-owned legal BNEEAEABR
person shares 7,294,599 - - - - - 7,29459
Domestic individual shareholders BRARANRE 55,355,593 - - - - - 55,355,508
3. Foreign-owned shares listed overseas 3. $E5h EMAIARESER | 182,160,000 - - - - - 182,160,000
Total shares BOEE 412,220,000 - - - - - 412,220,000
2012 012
. Restricted tradable shares - ERERERRA
1. State-owned legal person shares 1. BEEABK
Chaoyang Auliary R 167,400,808 - - - - - 167,409,808
Total of state-owned legal B E ARG
person shares 167,409,808 - - - - - 167,409,808
2. Other domestic-owned shares 2. EfmERR
Domestic non state-owned legal EniEEEARR
person shares 8,336,685 - - - (1,042,080) (1,042,080) 7,294,599
Domestic individual shareholders BRERARE 54,313,507 - - - 1042086 1,042,086 55,355,593
3. Forelgn-owned shares listed overseas 3, $50h EMAARISIMER 182,160,000 5 S 5 S - 182,160,000
Total shares R g 412,220,000 - - - - - 412,220,000
Capital reserve 29 EXRTE

There is no change in capital reserve in 2012 and 2013.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(1) DA M BHRRETERBERE)

30. Surplus reserve 30~ BERNTE
Opening Increase Decrease Closing
balance in the year in the year balance
F9¥ RELM KEFD EFS |
RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARET ARET AR ARET
2013 20135 E
Statutory surplus reserve YN 97,535,968 8,187,617 - 105,723,585
2012 20125
Statutory surplus reserve YN 90,191,997 7,343,971 - 97535968

According to the Company Law and the Company’s Articles
of Association, the Company is required to transfer 10% of
its net profit to the statutory surplus reserve. The transfer
may be ceased if the balance of the statutory surplus
reserve has reached 50% of the Company’s registered

capital

Statutory surplus reserve can be used for covering losses,
expanding operation or transferring to capital of the

Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Xll. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

31.

32.

Undistributed profits

P el

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

A

]|E|E||/

(1) DA BHRREEHBERE)

31 X%

2B F

Proportion of

Amount appropriation
SHE RESIELA
RMB
AR
2013: 20135 E :
Undistributed profits at the FHIRDBEF)HE
beginning of the year 271,003,360
Add: net profit for the year o AREFERHE 81,876,169
Less: appropriation to statutory W REUETE B AR
surplus reserve 8,187,617 10%
Dividend payable to ordinary FEAT 3 i AR AR A
shareholders 41,222,000
Undistributed profits at the end of FRADEFE
the year 303,469,912
2012: 20125 E :
Undistributed profits at the FYIARDEFHE
beginning of the year 287,351,622
Add: net profit for the year s AREFAE 73,439,709
Less: appropriation to statutory A RBUEERBRAE
surplus reserve 7,343,971 10%
Dividend payable to ordinary JEAF 3 AR AR A
shareholders 82,444,000
Undistributed profits at the end FERADEFHE
of the year 271,003,360

Operating income and operating costs

Principle operating income
Other operating income
Operating costs

TEEBRA
HADERFWA
BEMRA

32 BEWAREEMA

2013
—2-=F
RMB
AR®T

4,292,745,641
322,103,209
3,658,535,498

2012
—E——4F
RMB
AREETT

4,309,734,457
286,988,068
3,701,966,183

The Company’s main business is retailing, and therefore the

top five customers are not disclosed.

The principal operating income is mainly consisted of selling

food, non-staple food, daily consumer goods, beverage and

wine, etc.

N
it

TEXEBRATERHEERM

I

ERT AR -

331“

AXEEBEIRERTEXR

BR

AR

m o BREEM - REAEFRG RN

A

o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

33. Business taxes and levies

33 BEF S KM

(1) DA M BHRRETERBERE)

2013 2012

—E—-=F T F

RMB RMB

AR¥T AREETT

Business tax ) 16,507,807 14,705,404

Consumption tax HER 3,634,849 2,476,538

Urban construction and maintenance 3 # 2 %5 N2 A & M n
tax 11,796,601 10,485,612
Total a5t 31,939,257 27,667,554
34. Operating expenses 34 EEEH

2013 2012

—E-=F T F

RMB RMB

AR¥T AREET

Wages and salaries B T 357 B 227,196,989 211,964,441
Depreciation and amortization MERBIHEER

expense 132,387,301 181,474,744

Lease expenses HEEH 135,290,505 108,669,369

Others Hi 202,124,685 198,910,424

Total &t 696,999,480 651,018,978

35. Administrative expenses 35 EHEH

2013 2012

—E-=F —E——F

RMB RMB

AR ARET

Wages and salaries 5 T 37 B 108,019,412 109,898,161
Depreciation and amortization WEREHESA

expenses 5,861,135 4,890,477

Others EAth 43,502,456 44,240,091

Total A& 157,383,003 159,028,729
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

Xll. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

37.

38.

(1) DA BHRREEHBERE)

36 - BMiEE R
36. Financial expenses
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
RMB RMB
AR¥ T ARBT
Interest expense FEZH 70,209,433 66,832,865
Less: Capitalized interest expenses & - F B &R 58 1,747,787 1,179,900
Interest income FEUA (33,168,635) (18,041,889)
Bank charges FEE 6,080,756 7,070,162
Exchange differences (= (103,484) 414,831
Total &&t 41,270,283 55,096,069
Impairment losses on assets 37 EERERKX
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
RMB RMB
AR¥ T ARBT
Provision for bad debts ERRIBRGHR 1,046,772 1,708,079
Written-down of inventories FEKEEZX 290,456 3
Total BEHEX 1,337,228 1,703,079
Investment income 38 - BE W
(1) Details of investment income (1) REUZFAERL
2013 2012
—E-=F —T—=F
RMB RMB
AR%T AR¥TT
Long-term equity investments AR AR A% E B = BApSAE
under the cost method "B W 59,104,400 64,981,540
Investment gain from purchase & S IR E RIRERA
of financial products 1,077,601 597,373
Total A& 60,182,001 65,578,913
2013 4§
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

38. Investment income (Continued)

&)

Income from long-term equity investments under
the cost method

Investees from whom investment income accounts for

more than 5% of the total profits:

(1) DA M BHRRETERBERE)

38~ RE W= (#E)
(2) BREFZEEHRAKRERE R

BB W 6 N AR %A Lk

Chaopi Trading L E

B -
2013 2012 Reasons for
—E-=FE —ZE—_%FfZ increase or
RMB RMB decrease
AR%T AR ERESNER
58,771,400 64,648,540 Subsidiary
Distributions
FRABIDE

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012,
there is no significant restriction on the Company’s

remittance of investment income.

39. Non-operating income

(1) Details of non-operating income are as follows:

M2013%F12 A31H k20124124
31H » AR AR &K E Wz E B~
GFHEERRH -

39~ EEIMIA
(1) EEIPURABHMT :

2013 2012
—E—=F —T——F
RMB RMB
AR AR
Government grants LGN 5,576,085 9,200,851

Relocation compensation FBHERA
income - 1,800,000
Others HAith 748,659 907,179
Total SHr 6,324,744 11,908,030
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

Xll. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

39. Non-operating income (Continued)

39 BEINIA(E)

(1) DA BHRREEHBERE)

(2) Details of government grants (2) BB
2013 2012
—E-=fF T4
RMB RMB
AR ARBT
Compensation for government BT & & A 4 8
reserve expenses 1,044,000 4,000,000
Subsidies for agricultural BEMIMEEMET
products retail 350,000 1,650,000
Subsidies for ease the IRARLEIR A
employment pressure 1,912,825 2,507,424
Subsidies to support the A/ R B R RE AL
development of small and
medium enterprises 1,000,000 587,040
Amortization of asset-related & FE AR R Y BT 1 B
government grants AN 829,617 266,667
Other subsidies H b4 Rh 439,643 189,720
Total A& 5,576,085 9,200,851
40. Non-operating expenses 40 ~ EENIZH
2013 2012
—EB-=F T
RMB RMB
AR¥ T AR¥TT
Total losses on disposal of ERBEEREBKLXAT
non-current assets 2,120,920 1,684,242
Including: Loss on disposal of Hep: BREERERKX
fixed assets 2,120,920 1,684,242
Accident compensations EWEEES 1,279,450 -
Others Hit 1,117,094 570,284
Total A&r 4,517,464 2,154,526
2013 4
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(1) DA M BHRRETERBERE)

41. Income tax 41 -~ FRSs
2013 2012
—E-=fF —E——4F
RMB RMB
AR AREETT
Current tax expense calculated EHERABE T ER
according to tax laws and & TSR
relevant requirements 8,151,328 3,052,756
Deferred income tax expense RIEFRS R E B (654,115) (918,115)
Total iy 7,497,213 2,134,641
Reconciliation of income tax expense to the accounting FrEMERESHAENASROT -
profit is as follows:
2013 2012
—E-=£ —E——fF
RMB RMB
AR AREETT
Accounting profit e=tFE 89,373,382 75,574,350
Income tax expenses calculated };125%E’J$R+u‘|' BEHEHER
at tax rate of 25% 22,343,346 18,893,588
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses <A K 1 & F &) 40751 57 22 1,168,261 938,706
Tax effect of non-taxable income R UL A B4 frﬁ%% (16,014,394) (17,697,653)
Total A&t 7,497,213 2,134,641
42. Notes to the items in the cash flow statement 42 - HERERBEEHTE
(1) Other cash received relating to operating activities (1) WKEWEMEEE TEEENEL
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
RMB RMB
AR%T AR
Rental income i ON 95,556,004 84,631,759
Scrap sales income EEmUA 2,701,417 3,246,447
Franchise income JIEENE PN 1,905,188 1,964,929
Compensation income mETIA - 1,835,000
Government grant income R RF R B UR A 8,499,468 15,079,590
Recover the deposit W EHe 1,032,800 857,500
Others Hith 15,266,089 10,732,085
Total A&t 124,960,966 118,347,310
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Xll. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

42. Notes to the items in the cash flow statement

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B R B ot

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

(1) DA BHRREEHBERE)

42 - BEREXRBEEFR(E)

(Continued)

(2) Other cash paid relating to operating activities (2) SRR MEARE EEEREIE S

2013 2012

—EB-=fF —E——F

RMB RMB

AR¥ T AR¥ETT

Selling expenses (excluding rent) IHEEM (T EHE) 202,581,134 199,865,704

Administrative expenses EREA 27,378,563 30,074,712

Manufacturing expenses B 4,596,486 4,774,072

Rent paid SRRk 121,150,073 100,847,717

Bank charges RITFEE 5,024,511 7,070,162

Others Hi 2,445,272 5,683,980

Total S 363,176,039 348,316,347

2013 F ¥}
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XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

43. Supplementary Information to Cash Flow Statement

1. Reconciliation of operating 1.

activities cash flows from net

profit:

Net profit

Add: Provision for impairment
losses of assets

Depreciation of fixed assets

Depreciation of investment
property

Amortization of intangible
assets

Amortization of long-term
prepaid expenses

Net losses of disposal of fixed
assets, intangible assets and
other long-term assets

Financial expenses (including
foreign exchange gains and
losses)

Investment income

Amortization of asset-related
government grants

Decrease (increases) in
inventories

Decrease in deferred tax
liabilities

Decrease (increase) in
receivables from operating
activities

Increase in payables from
operating activities

Net cash flow from operating
activities

. Net change in cash and cash 2.

equivalents:

Closing balance of cash

Less: Opening balance of cash

Net increase (decrease) in
cash and cash equivalents

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

(1) Supplementary information to cash flow statement

R R R & EE
Bemns

FEFIHE
o EHEMEERELERE

BIEBENE
BREUEEHENE

B EE S
REFHEREE

REBETEE BEE
FEMRAEENFIEEX

MBER(SELRR)
KB WS

B AR B ) KT e B B 8
7 & &R ORI in)
ERLFEHAEMND

Rt EYOR B KR
OB )

I RETTE B B93E N

e EHEENRSMEFHE
RekReEBMFEHER
REMERERE

W BRE R E R

RE MRS FEYFE I
CRADE)

43 - BEFERBARER
(1) BERBRHEHEER

2013
—E-=F
RMB
AR

81,876,169

1,337,228
88,672,006

1,654,647
4,541,986

50,715,320
2,120,920
36,245,772
(60,182,001)
(829,617)
(9,466,761)

(654,115)

(20,819,602)
104,692,462
279,904,414
255,644,218
236,502,341

19,141,877

(1) DA M BHRRETERBERE)

73,439,709

1,703,079
85,233,567

965,593
3,030,872

54,059,777
1,534,242
49,175,907
(65,578,913)
(266,667)

119,757,777

(918,115)

7,712,978
19,405,504
349,255,670
236,502,341
255,457,898

(18,955,557)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

Xll. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

43. Supplementary Information to Cash Flow Statement

(Continued)

(2) Cash and cash equivalents

(1) DA BHRREEHBERE)

43 BERBRBAER(H)

(2) HE2zREZ2ZEY

2013.12.31 2012.12.31

—E—-=F T fF

+=ZA=+—-B| +t-—A=+—8H

RMB RMB

ARET AR TT

Cash BHe

Including: Cash on hand Heh: EFRe 24,038,892 19,856,408
Bank deposits AEER AR Y MRRITIFER 231,605,326 216,645,933

Cash and cash equivalents Re MR EEMERTE 255,644,218 236,502,341

44. Net current assets 44 - BREEE

2013.12.31 2012.12.31

—E—-=F T

+=BA=+—-H| +ZA=+—H

RMB RMB

AR ARETT

Current assets MEBAE 1,397,155,573 1,313,759,033
Less: current liabilities W OREAE 2,004,996,868 2,266,184,233
Net current liabilities FEmEAE (607,841,295) (952,425,200)

45. Total assets less current liabilities 45 BEERFRDAME

2013.12.31 2012.12.31

—E-=fF —E——F

t=A=+—-8 | t=A=1—H

RMB RMB

AR¥TT ARETT

Total assets BERE 4,434,482,186 3,874,762,232
Less: current liabilities o B AE 2,004,996,868 2,266,184,233
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRSAR 2,429,485,318 1,608,577,999

2013 3}
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

46. Related parties and related party transactions

(1) Inter-group transactions

7 Sales of goods to subsidiaries

Subsidiary
Jingkelong Langfang
Jingkelong Tongzhou

Shouchao Group

FAT
REERY
REEEM
ERcEE]

(1) DA M BHRRETERBERE)

46 - BB A RBABAIRS

(1) EERBEHEXE

Pricing basis
of related party
transaction

R 5 EEKE

Price negotiated
RET A ERER
Price negotiated
RER R ERER
Price negotiated

BT R ERER

1 #FRAmEEEm
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
Amount Amount
ot | k]
RMB RMB
AR¥T AREBT
197,987,335 205,901,078
134,868,717 132,118,638
395,432,839 377,040,871

2  Purchase of goods/receipts of services from

subsidiaries

Subsidiary

Xinyang Tongli

Chaopi Trading

Chaopi Shuanglong
Chaopi Flavourings
Chaopi Jinglong Oil Sales
Chaopi Huaging

Chaopi Zhongde

Chaopi Shenglong

FATE
R38N
PHtEE
SR
AHE IR A
B R e g
PHLEF
HHLPIF
At E

Pricing basis
of related party
transaction

BB % EEKE

Price negotiated
RE T A ERER
Price negotiated
RE T HRERER
Price negotiated
RET A BRER
Price negotiated
REFHHEBRER
Price negotiated
BT R ERER
Price negotiated
RET B IRHER
Price negotiated
REF R ERER
Price negotiated

BT R ERER

2

WFRAMRER @ ER

Ll

2013
—E—=
Amount
-]
RMB
AR®TT
13,550,858
273,753,039
44,787,866
59,242,184
37,957,601
79,621,434
62,143,471

1,613,843

2012
T
Amount
Gkt

RMB
ARTT
15,883,637
261,538,843
35,967,459
73,135,130
39,693,620
71,693,434

54,460,702
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XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

46. Related parties and related party transactions

Inter-group transactions (Continued)

Leases to subsidiaries

Jingkelong Langfang

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

(1) DA BHRREEHBERE)

46 - BB A RBEBAER S (&)

(1) FERBEBEXE (&)

Pricing basis
of related party
transaction

BB 5 EEKE

Price negotiated

BT R ERER

Interest income from entrusted loans

Chaopi Trading

Pricing basis
of related party
transaction

BB 2 EEMKE

Prevailing interest
rate of bank loans

RABRITERAE
2

FFLREIRIHE

2013 2012
—E-=F ZE—CfF
Amount Amount
it | &8
RMB RMB
AR AREETT
1,699,200 3,285,120

ZAEEAFIBMA
2013 2012
—E-=F —ET——F
Amount Amount
o] &7
RMB RMB
AR ARHETT
26,390,220 10,291,462
2013 F
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S (12) AR BHRRETEEETRE)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

46. Related parties and related party transactions 46~ BT RBBAR S (E)
(Continued)
(1) Inter-group transactions (Continued) (1) EEASEHETXS (&)
5 Others — Promotions income 5 A —(E#HZEKA
2013 2012
—B= —T——F
Pricing basis Amount Amount
of related party -] o)
transaction RMB RMB
Subsidiaries FATE B EEXE AR®TT AR¥TT
Chaopi Trading Bt E Price negotiated
REH BRERER 17,908,596 13,501,910
Chaopi Shuanglong PR Price negotiated
RET HEBRER 2,152,480 72,000
Chaopi Flavourings BHLFAR S Price negotiated
RETT i BRER 1,578,145 2,835,899
Chaopi Jinglong Oil Sales  #A#t R[E)HAR  Price negotiated
RE T REBRHER 3,358,176 1,928,350
Chaopi Huaging RIS Price negotiated
RET R BIRHER 2,860,850 3,035,056
Chaopi Zhongde LS Price negotiated
RETT B IRER 5,278,708 5,036,106
Chaopi Shenglong LR fE Price negotiated
RE TR BERER 73,200 -
(2) Balance of other related party transactions (2) EbEH T XEEEE
1 Accounts receivable 1 R
2013.12.31 2012.12.31
—=E—= —E——F
+=ZR=+—H | +tZHA=+—H
Amount Amount
Xl x|
RMB RMB
AR¥TT AR®TT
Jingkelong Langfang RERE Y 90,845,680 46,858,171
Jingkelong Tongzhou R N 20,509,866 6,874,537
Shouchao Group BEHEER 56,272,182 82,575,969
ANNUAL REPORT 2013

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UG eI EES

For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12/431H i F/E

(Continued)

Other receivables

Xll. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

46. Related parties and related party transactions

(2) Balance of other related party transactions
(Continued)

(1) DA BHRREEHBERE)

46 - BB A RBEBAER S (&)

(2) REBAIXZE8E(E)

2 AftgEhH

2013.12.31 2012.12.31

—E-=F T

+=B=+—-H| +t=ZA=+—H

Amount Amount

x| ]

RMB RMB

AR¥ T AR

Jingkelong Tongzhou RN 25,993,303 36,449,029

Chaopi Trading HitEmE 63,560,042 1,587,577

Chaopi Shuanglong HRERE 124,377 72,000

Chaopi Flavourings BB AR 611,727 654,899

Chaopi Jinglong Oil Sales  R#t & i g 236,344 62,700

Chaopi Huaging SIS 448,614 275,400

Chaopi Zhongde FHLR S 955,199 1,047,386

Chaopi Shenglong SHAL AR 22,781 =
Entrusted Loan 3 ZEFEH

2013.12.31 2012.12.31

5= —E—F

+=ZA=+—-H| +t=ZA=+—H

Amount Amount

-] ¢

RMB RMB

AR¥T ARHETT

Chaopi Trading At E 600,000,000 330,000,000

Prepayments 4 AT

2013.12.31 2012.12.31

—B—= —E——F

+=ZA=+—-H | +t=ZA=+—H

Amount Amount

x| EA L]

RMB RMB

AR ARHETT

Xinyang Tongli RFZ38 7 - 900,000

2013 3R
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 20134 12531H i- /&

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

46. Related parties and related party transactions

(Continued)

(2) Balance of other related party transactions
(Continued)

5) Other current assets

(1) DA M BHRRETERBERE)

46 - BB A RBABAE RS (&)

(2) RUBBIXZ68E(E)

5 EHtEBEE

2013.12.31 2012.12.31

—ZT—=F —T——fF

+=B=+—-H| tZA=+—H

Amount Amount

X X

RMB RMB

AR® T ARBT

Chaopi Trading At E 187,917 =

6  Accounts payable 6 ENERH

2013.12.31 2012.12.31

—E-=F —E——-%F

+=ZA=+—-8 | +=ZA=+—8

Amount Amount

x| A

RMB RMB

AR ARETT

Xinyang Tongli fRFZ @1 811,060 505,650

Chaopi Trading At E 61,750,644 54,407,474

Chaopi Shuanglong SRR 15,186,930 9,625,677

Chaopi Flavourings i N 14,396,973 16,469,365

Chaopi Jinglong Oil Sales  EA#L K& Mg 8,774,234 6,064,019

Chaopi Huaging LIS 16,345,633 13,016,627

Chaopi Zhongde LR E 17,184,816 13,389,719

Chaopi Shenglong PR IR 571,958 -
7 Other payables 7 HmEE

2013.12.31 2012.12.31

—_Zg—= —E——-F

t=A=+—-R | t=A=t—-H

Amount Amount

x| e

RMB RMB

AR AR

Xinyang Tongli fREZ 387 2,402,481 1,415,659
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Xll. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S (12) AR BHRRETEEE TR (E)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

46. Related parties and related party transactions 46 - BB A RBEBAIR S (£)
(Continued)
(2) Balance of other related party transactions (2) BB X S (E)
(Continued)
8  Advances from customers 8 YA
2013.12.31 2012.12.31
—E-=F —ET——F
+=—B=+—H +=-—A=+—H
Amount Amount
X T
RMB RMB
AR® T ARHETT
Shouchao Group BEE 4,038,872 46,448,418
(3) Guarantees with inter-group related party (3) EERZBEEH T IER
As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the 201312 8318 &20129F12 A
Company did not make any guarantees in respect of 318 XRAIRRARB ZF R
its subsidiaries’ loans. AR B RE D TR (R -
As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the 2013412318 Kk2012412A4
Company’s sureties for its subsidiary Chaopi Trading’s 318 EARA BARRZF
short-term loans are shown in Note (VI) 17-2, NEIARE B WS HE RE DR E
BEROBERSEWFECS) 1725
2 o
Except for the eliminated inter-group related party R 3 R 3% B HE 01 MO 5 (8] 7 50 A B
transactions mentioned above, details for other related FRZHN - BT R 5 RRE
party transactions and balances are shown in Note (VII). 2R MEE() .
XIll. APPROVAL FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENT (=) iRk 2 #Ht
The Company’s and consolidated financial statements were RRABIHR AR E OB KR R201453 A
approved by the board of directors on 28 March 2014. 28HERLARNTESSHM

ERREEEEERRNBRAR
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
AP E

A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities and equity

of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the

Company’s annual reports, is set out below.

UTAREAEERNBEREAYBRFEIES
BE BERERAZHE :

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—E-=F —T-CF —T——F —T-TF —TENF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT | ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Results #5
Revenue EEEBRA 9,629,191 9,205,360 8,632,531 7,438,729 6,691,036
Profit before tax ekt 143,485 229,629 352,968 305,011 253,565
Income tax expense FEHiE M (43,169) (57,824) (79,957) (76,510) (65,049)
Profit for the year SR 100,316 171,805 273,011 228,501 188,516
Attributable to: EBER
BRARMAEN
Owners of the parent SR 57,056 105,105 210,160 180,502 147,783
Minority interests DHRRER 43,260 66,700 62,851 47,999 40,733
100,316 171,805 273,011 228,501 188,516
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—B—=f | Z%T-f% % ZT-TF —TTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR | AREFTT AREFTT AREFT ARETR
Assets, Liabilities and Equity EE - BERRAK
Non-current assets ERBEE 2,482,067 2,377,251 2,281,615 2,153,416 1,838,827
Current assets TEEE 4,667,991 4,137,258 4,045,886 3,371,577 2,930,017
Current liabilities mEaE (4,064,904) |  (4,287,849)  (4,210,344)  (3,365,476)  (3,202,732)
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE/(8R)
Pk 603,087 (150,591) (164,458) 6,101 (272,715)
Total assets less current liabilities &R REN A& 3,085,154 2,226,660 2,117,167 2,169,517 1,666,112
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (1,008,803) (226,612) (225,040) (454,759) (29,236)
Net assets FEE 2,076,351 2,000,048 1,892,117 1,704,758 1,536,876
Represented by: b
Equity attributable to owners BENE AT
of the parent MR i 1,654,780 1,644,044 1,619,871 1,492,559 1,388,458
Non-controlling interests DER R ERS 421,571 356,004 272,246 212,199 148,418
Total equity BERHER A 2,076,351 2,000,048 1,892,117 1,704,758 1,636,876

Note: the data from 2009 to 2011 is prepared in accordance with Hong Kong i
Accounting Standard, and the data of 2012 and 2013 is prepared in
accordance with China Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises.
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